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November 19, 2012

HONORABLE MAYOR and CITY COUNCIL

THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT OF THE CITY OF SAN JOSE

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of the City of San Jose

("City") for the fiscal year July 1, 201 t through June 30, 2072 as requiretl by Sections 805(a) and 1215 of
the City Charter. Although submittetl to the Mayor and City Council ("Council") for consideration, the
CAFR is also intended to provide relevant financial information to the resitlents of San Jose, taxpayers,

creditors, investore, and other interested parties.

This letter of transmittal provides anon-technical summary of City finances, services, achievements, and

economic prospects. We ask that readers who wish a more detailed discussion of the Ciry's (financial

results refer to ManagemenPS Discussion &Analysis ("MD&A") contained in the Financial Section of the
CAFR.

The City's Adminis~relion is responsible for the accuracy of the information contained in this report, the

adequacy of its disclosures, and the fairness of its presentation. We believe this CAFR to be complete
and relia0le in all ma[enal respects. To provide a reasonable basis for making this representation, we

have established a comprehensive system of internal controls designed to protect City assets from loss,

to identify and record transactions accurately, 'and to compile the information necessary to produce
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The City contracted with Macias Gini &O'Connell LLP, a firm of Cetlified Public Accountants licensed to

practice in the State of California, to pertorm the annual independent audit The auditors expressed an

opinion that the City's financial statements for fiscal year 2071,2092 are fairly stated in conformity with

accounflng principles generally accepted in the United States. This is the most famrable conclusion and

is commonly known as an "unqualife8' or "clean" opinion. The independent auditor's repotl includes

explanatory paragraphs discussing the changes to California Redevelopment Law and the dissolution of

the ftetlevelopment Agency of the City of San Josh ("Agency"); the Special Termination Event under the

Continuing Covenant of the 2010 C Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bonds; the uncertainties over ~~e

validation of cetlain obligations and asset transfers of the former Agency to the City and its related

entities; and that the actuarial value for [he City's two pension systems reflect actuarial accrued liabilities

exceeding the actuarial value of their assets for both the retirement and postemploymen[ healthcare

plans. The independent auditor's report is included in the Financial Section of this report.

in addition, Macias Gini &O'Connell LLP is in the process of auditing the Cry's major program

expenditures of federal funds for compliance with the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the

Office of Management and Budget Circular A-733 regulating Single Audits, and the standards applicable

to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standarcls issued by the Comptroller General of the

United States. The report of the Single Audit is published separately from this CAFR, and when

completed, may be obtained upon request from the City's Department of Finance.

_.._ .....__._._,_ _..._____ _____ _ _. __. Ca
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This CAFR is organized into three sections:

The Introductory Section is inlendetl to familiarize the reader with the organizational
structure of the City, the nature and scope of City services, and specifics of the City's
legal operating envimnmenL '

• The Financial Section inclutles Managements Discussion 8 Analysis, Basic Financial
Statements, Notes to Basic Financial Statements, and required supplementary
information. The Basic Financial Statements include the government-wide financial
statements that present an overview of the City's entire financial operations and the fund
financial statements that present financial information for each of the City's major funds,
non-major governmental funds, as well as proprietary funtls, infernal service funds, and
ftluciary Ponds. This section also contains the independent auditor's report on the Basic
Financial Statements.

The Statistical Section presents up io den years of detailed statistical data on the Ci~ys
financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographic and economic
information, and operating information as a content to the information presented in the
financial statements and note disclosures.

REPORTING ENTITY

San Jose is a charter city that has operated under acouncil-manager form of government since 1916.
Under the City Charter, the Mayor and Council form the legislative body that represents the community
and is empowered to formulate Citywide policy. The Council consists of a Mayor and ten Council
members. The Mayor is elected at large for afour-year term, and Council members are elected by district
for staggered four-year tettns. The Mayor and Council members are limited to hvo consecutive four-year
terms. Under the Charter, the Mayor recommends policy, program, and budget priorities to the Council,
which in turn approves policy direction for the City. The City Manager is appointed by the Council and
serves as the chief administrative officer of the organization responsible far the administration of City
aRairs, day-to-day operations, and implemeNation of Council policies. In addition io the City Manager, the
Ciy Attorney, Cily Clerk, City Auditor, and IndependenF Police Auditor are appointed by and repotl
directly to the Council

Prior to February 1, 2012, the Council had been acting as the Redevelopment Agency Board and had the
authority to appoint the Director of the Redevelopment Agency ("Agency") to administer redevelopment
projects and programs. Pursuant to the passage of state legislation in 2011, AB X1 26, redevelopment
agencies in California were dissolved effective February 1, 2012. Effective February 1, 2012, the Council
became the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Josh (°SARA") and per
the legislation assets, properties, contracts, leases, books, records, buildings and equipment were
~ransferretl to SARA on February 1, 2012 by operation of law. SAR4 is responsible for the management
of City redevelopment projects currently underway, making payments identified on the Enforceable
Obligation Payment Schedule ('FOPS") and the subsequent Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules
("ROPS"), and the orderly disposition of assets and propetlies. Activities of SARA are supervised by a
seven-member Oversight Board that has authority aver the former Agency's financial affairs and is
comprised of representatives of the local taxing agencies that serve the San Jose redevelopment project
area: the City, County of Santa Clara, special districts, and educational agencies.

The City provides a range of municipal services, including police and fre protection, sanitation services,
env~ronmenta~ management, maintenance of streets and infrastructure, and the administration of library
services, recreational activities, and culture) facilities. The City operates a parking program, a municipal
water system, a wastewater treatment facility, the Minela San Jose International Airpotl, and three
municipal golf courses. In addition, the City oversees convention, cultural event and hospitality facilities
that include the San Jose McEnery Convention Center, Center for the Pertorming Arts, California Theatre,
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Mexican Heritage Plaza, Dolce Hayes Mansion and Conference Center, and the HP Pavilion at San Jost
—home of the San Jose Sharks of [he National Hockey League.

San Jos@ covers approximately 179 square miles at the sough end of the San Francisco Bay and is the
county seat of Santa Clara County. With a 2012 estimated population of 971,372', it is the tenth largest
city in the United States and the third lar9esl city in California. In addition, San Jose is the oldest city in
California, developing from a Spanish pueblo established on November 29, 1777. The City has
irensformed dramatically from the rich agricWtural selling of its early years into the largest city in the
Silicon Valley, known as the "Capital of Silicon Valley" Silicon Valley is home to many of the world's
largest technology companies and is a global center of technology innovation Service providers account
for approximately 78 percent of the employment in the San Jose-Sunnyvale-Santa Clara Metropolitan
Statistical Area ("MSA") with the majority of employment related to professional and business services,
education and health services, government, antl retail. In addition, durable goods manufacturing, primarily
computer equipment, semiconductor components, and electronic instruments, accounts for approximately
16.3 percent' of the MSA employment.

The CAFR includes all funds of the City, as well as all governmental organizations and activities for which
the Council has financial accountability. These organizations incWde the former Agency through its
dissoWtion date, Parking Authority of the Ciry, San Jos€-Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority,
the City's Financing Authority, and the San JosA Diridon Development Authority. The CAFR also includes
SARA far the fve-month period ended June 30, 2012.

ECONOMIC CONDITION and FISCAL OUTLOOK

Fiscal year 2011-2012 finished with encouraging though modest signs of improvement in City revenue
growth. However, the City still faces (scat challenges for its long-term financial outlook. The City's five-
year Fiscal Reform Plan ("Reform Plan") approved by the Council in fscai year 2010-2011 continues to
be a policy guide and operational blueprint for the development of future budgets to achieve 9scal stability
and organizational sustainabilify. The Reform Plan envisions achieving General Fund savings through
implementing recommendations related to revenues, retirement costs, organizational changes, and
service delivery efficiencies.

On June 5, 2012, San Jose voters approved a comprehensive pension reform measure that established
parameters for a new pension benefit structure for new City employees ('Tier 2"), established higher
employee retirement contribution rates for current City employees who choose to stay in the existing plan,
and provided current City employees the choice to opt in to a lower cost retirement plan with a reduced

benefit sUUCWre from the existing plan. The implementation of the Tier 2 plan was effective for all
members of the Federated City Employees' Retirement System hired on or after September 30, 2012.
The City will continue to focus on controlling the growth in retirement wsls io maintain fnancial stability

and io ensure appropriate levels of service delivery for San Jos@ residents.

The City Council approved a balanced fiscal year 2012-2013 budget in June 2012. Ten prior consecutive
yeare of budgetary shotlfalls required significant reductions in services, staflin9, and compensation to
achieve balanced budgets, but the fiscal year 2012-2013 budget allowetl for setting aside a $9.0 million
reserve to help address a forecasted $22.5 million shortfall in fiscal year 2013-2014. This two-year

"bridge' sfretegy is intended to provide a smooth transition towaNs the projected budgetary stabilization

~ Stale of California, Department o! Finance, Popula(lon Eslima~es br Cities antl Gounlies, January 2012.

~ Stake of Celifomie, Employment Oeveiopment OeOatlment, Labor Market Infotmalion Divison. March 2012.

Stale n! CaIlPornta, Employment ~evelopmenl 0epatlment, Labor Martel InPormallon Division, March 2 12.

Clly Manager's Butlge~ Message, May i, 2012.



r Lefler of Transmittal (Continued) ~-•.=

occurring over the next several years. The prior decade of budget shortfalls also required the sustained
use of surplus reserves.

In fscal year 2012-2013, [he Cify aims to begin the effort to restore key services in public safely, and
maintenance of City critical infrastructure areas at the same level of January 1, 2011. The fiscal year
2072-2013 budget includes the funding to: (1) open four newly wnsUUCted libraries and one community
center lha~ had been unopened tlue to budget constraints; (2) begin to atldress the critical replacement,
repair, and maintenance al City facilities and infrastructure; (3j address essential operational and
organizational needs; (4) continue implementing new models for service tlelivery to improve efficiency,
reduce costs, and enhance service levels.

in addition to these budgetary challenges, the City faces the likely impacts associated with State actions
dissoWing the former Agency. The dissolution process, in conjunction with the lingering effects of the
economic tlownNm, will require City funds be expended in fiscal year 2012-2013 and possibly beyond to
ensure payment of SARA obligations that the City would be contractually obligated to pay, as well as
administre~ive casts due to the forecasted insufficiency in redevelopment property tax increment revenues
to pay for alt obligations.

The San Jos€ June 2012 unemployment rake of 9.7 percent represents an improvement over the June
2011 unemployment rate of 11.4 percent, and although 6elter than the s~atewitle rate of 10.7 percent°, it

is still high compared to historic local norms. While San Jose and the nation continue io face uncertain
ewnomic times, the City will strive to maintain a couree of fiscal prudence and community engagement to
achieve budgetary stability and suslainability.

The City's current general obligation credit ratings are Aa1/AA+/AA+ from Moody's Investors Service,
("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's ("S&P"), and Fitch Ratings ('Fitch"), respectively. Although the Moody's
end S8P ratings reFlect a one-notch downgrade from the prior year, the CiTy remains the highest rated
large city (with population over 250,000) in California, and third highest among the nation's ten largest

cities. The ratings continue to reflect the diversity of the local economy anchored by a strong technology
presence and sound financial operations and strong budgetary practices. However, raking agencies
express wncern that years of budget pressures resulting in service cuts and labor concessions may
make future cuts more challenging. Overall, the wrrenl maintenance of these ratings trenslates to
significant interest ws~ savings in the City's debt program which in Wrn beneft the taxpayers of the San
Josh community.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS and ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Highlights of activities and accomplishmeNS (or the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, include the
following:

In August 2011, the Norman Y.~ Mineta San Jose International Airport (the "Airport") received a
national award for Innovative Design in Engineering and Amhi~ecWre with Shuctural Steel from the
American Institute of Steel Construction in rewgnition of the new Terminal B and Terminal B
Conwuree. This award is considered the most prestigious award in the structure) s~eei industry far
oufslanding achievements in engineering and architecture on steel-framed building projects. The
Airport was one of 14 winners from approximately 100 competing projects across the nation judged
on the creative use of stmctural steel including design, visual impact, and architectural advances.

In August 2011, the renovated Watson Park was reopened. The park had been closed since 2005 as
a result of the discovery of refuse materials uncovered during excavation on the site that required

5 Slate or Calibrnla. Employment Development oevanmenl, Labor Market Inbrmalion Division, rune 2012.
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remetliation. The 35-acre park now has two soccer fields, basketball courts, a playground, dog parks
far both small and large dogs, restmoms, and a parking area.

In August 2011, the San Jos€ Housing Department won the 2011 National Association of Housing
and Redevelopment Officials Award of Excellence for the Casa Feliz Slutlio project that provides
affordable rental apartments for low-income tenants in San Jose. The award recognizes ou~stantling
innovation and achievement in housing antl community development programs throughout the
country. The Casa Feliz Studio pmjecl has sixty affordable rental apartments for low-income tenants
and twenty-one units set aside for residents with developmental disabilities.

In September 2071, Happy Hoilow Zoo receivetl the 2011 Jean M. Hromadka Excellence in Animal
Care Award. This award was given based on outstanding animal husbandry, enrichment far all
species, research, exhibit design, public education, and the national accreditation of Happy Hallow
Zoo.

In September 2011, the Environmental Services Department received LEEO Gold Certifcation from
the U.S. Green Building Council for the City's Environmental Services Building ("E5B°) bcated on
Zanker Road, atljacent to the San Jose/Santa Clare Water PolWlion Control Plant. This is the second
highest level of certifcation of green buildings. The ESB achieved all seventeen energy eRiciency and
renewahle energy credits, making it one of the most energy eHcienl buildings in San Jose.

In September 2011, the San Josh Housing Department was selected to be the (rst recipient of the
Robert C. Larson Workforce Housing Public Policy Award. This award recognized exemplary state
and local eRorts that provide ongoing and sustainable support far the protluctioq rehabilitation, or
preservation of workforce housing. The Housing Depatlment was recognized for implementing
successful public policies 10 address workforce housing needs of working families.

r In October 2011, Storm Water Solutions Magazine selected the San Jose Environmental Innovation
Center ("SJEIC") as a winner of the Storm Water Solution Top Project for innovative use of storm
water polWtion measures. The SJEIC uses technologicalry advanced green design elements to
ensure all runoff is treated prior to entering the storm drain system. The technology includes a
modular wetland mechanical unit, which is one of the first successfN adaptations of this technology in
Northern California, as well as a bioretention area consisting of a special soil mix (sand, topsoil, and
compost) specifcaliy designed for this project.

In October 2011, the City received the 2011 National Medal for Museum and Library Service for
meeting the information and learning needs of its diverse community, innovative and educational
programs, and for providing its customers with on demand services and self-service options that
enhance their librery experience. The Ciry's library system was the first municipal library in California
and one of only ten libraries in the nation to receive the award.

In November 2011, the MetLife Poundation and Local Initiatives Support Corporation selected the
San Jose Police Department ("SJPD"), Strong Neighborhoods Initiative, and CommUniverCity as one
of the lop ten projects from around the country to receive the 2011 Community 8 Policy Partnership
Award (or Neighborhood Revitalization. A successful partnership model between community
organizations in the McKinley and Olinder neighborhoods and SJPD worked to reduce crime, and
revitalize and improve safety in neighborhoods.

In November 2011, the City received the "Community Bay Steward" award at Save the Bay's annual
event. San Jose was recognized far adopting [he most comprehensive ordinance to reduce single-
use carryout bags in the nation. Several local, state, and federal legislators, community leaders, non-
profils, regulators and private sector partners participated in the even. Save the Bay is the largest
regional organization working to protect, restore, and celebrate San Francisco Bay.
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In December 2011, the City's Parks, Recreation and Neighborhood Services Department ("PRNS")
won the 2 12 Learning Resources NeN✓ork International Award for Marketing. PRNS stall tleveloped
an innovative marketing approach that uses Quick Response codes to help increase customer
contact, market programs, and improve customer retention.

In December 2011, the City became the first city in the nation to earn the E-Stewards Enterprise
designation from the Basel Action Nehrvork, which rewgnizes companies, institutions, antl
government hodies that commit to globally responsible recycling antl refurbishment of electric
equipment The E-Stewards Enterprise designation recognized the City's achievements in upholding
the high standards for the responsible management of e-waste, such as adopting an Environmentally
Preferable Pmcuremen~ Policy and commuting to do business with certified recyders.

:• In January 2012, The Boys and Gids Club of Silicon Valley ("BGCSV") honored the Ciry's PRNS
Reuse Program with the 2011 Community Partner Government Award. As a Reuse Program Palmer,
the Bays and Gids Gub operates seven sites throughout the San JosA providing youth leadership,
athletic leagues, community events, antl recreational prog2ms. PRNS received this award for being
a source of active community supporter, partner, and volunteer for BGCSV.

In March 2012, the City was recognized with three awards of excellence by the California ParKS and
Recreation Society ("CPRS") for three projects: Coyote Creek Trail Master Plan, Guadalupe River
Trail Reach 6, and San Jose Family Camp. The CPRS is an advocate for California's park antl
recreation professionals.

in April 2012, Waste &Recycling News ("WRN") awarded the 2012 Green City Award to San Jose for
having the most eRective and successful residential recycling program for a large city in the United
States. WRN is a national publication in the solid waste industry, and its annual Green City Awards
program recognizes municipalities that have shown exceptional leadership in communicating and
promoting residential recycling programs.

r In May 2012, the Smart Start San Jose program received an award from the California Chiid
Development Administrators Association, a statewide organization for Program Design in Eady
Education. The Smart Start San Jose program promotes quality childcare programs as an essential
step for young children's success in school and life.

In May 2012, the Envision San JosA General Plan won the 2012 Comprehensive Planning large
Jurisdiction Award from the Northern California Chapter of the American Planning Association. The
award recognized the leamwo~k across multiple City departments, an extensive community
engagement process, antl the City's contributions to the fieltl of long-range planning.

In June 2012, San Jos€ was named a Community Solutions Pacesetter by the Campaign for Grade-
Level Reading for promoting youth reading skills. The City was recognized for its collaboration with
the Santa Cara County Office of Education and other local partners to enhance early education
through the SJ2020 Initiative lhaF suppods early learning and school readiness programs. The City is
one of 124 cities, counties, and towns nationwide that has committed to signifwnlly increase the
number of low-income students who read at their grade level by the end of third grade.

r In June 2012, the City's Public Library received the 2012 Top Innovator Award from the Urtan
Libraries Council. The Library was selected for ifs Work Wise literacy program in the category of
Education, Literacy and Lifelong Learning. Woik Wise is a vocational and literacy reining program
ghat improves the lab pertormance of workers in San Jose. _
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FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

The City is commitled to providing excellent municipal services io its resitlen~s, businesses and visitors.
The City organization is structured into six City Service Areas ("CSAs') that integrate services provided by
separate departments and offices info key alignments from the community's perspective. The CSAs are:
Community &Economic Development; Environmental &Utility Services; Neighborhood Services; Public
Safely; Strategic Support; and Transpotlation &Aviation Services. The City publishes a fve-year Capital
Improvement Program ("CIP") that guides the City in the planning, scheduling, and butlgeting of capital
improvement projects. The CIP is updated annually and appmvetl by the Ciry Council. Signifwnt issues
and projects included in the 2013-2017 CIP, presented within the CSA structure, are as follows_

Community &Economic Deve/opment

The Community and Economic Development CSA seeks to manage the growth and change of the Ciry in
order to encourage a strong economy, create and preserve healthy neighborhoods, ensure a diverse
range of employment and housing opportunities, and encourage a diverse range of arts, culWrel and
entertainment offerings. One of the primary capital programs of this CSA is the Developer Assisted
Projects Capital Program to ensure that resitlential developments include the construction of public
improvements necessary to maintain or improve the City's infrastructure. This capital program includes
the Underground Utility Fund and the Residential Construction Tax Contribution Fund that facilitate the
undergrounding of existing overhead facilities and to reimburse developers for the construction of certain
sVeet improvements throughout the City. Funding is derived from fees associated with residential
development and as such continues to be impacted by the economic downturn. Program funding of $B.t
million is allocated for the 20132017 CIP, of which $4,1 million is allocated in 2012-2013.

• The Underground Utility Fund is usetl to account for tleveloper fees that are collected when a
developer opts out of placing facilities underground a[ the time of development. The Fund is used to
establish Rule 208 Underground Utility DistricGS that combine several smaller undergmunding
projects into one large project to achieve economies of scale and minimize the undesirahle result of
piecemeal undergrounding of utility facilities throughout the Cily. In addition, the Fund acwunts for
undergrounding projects fnanced by Pacific Gas and Electric Company, known as Rule 20A projects,
as mandated by the California Public Utilities Commission. ATBT and Comcast also set aside funds
to participate in Ruia 20A projects. The Developer Assisted Projects Capital Program allocates
funding of $5.8 million for the Rule 20A and Rule 20B programs during the 2013-2017 CIP.

• The Residential Construction Tax Coniri6ution Fund ("RCTCF") was establishetl to account for faxes
coileded from developers that construct housing, and in turn reimburse developers that construct
qualified improvements on City streets in connection with new residential developments. The
principal objective of the program funded by the RCTCF is to achieve the General Plan goal of
assigning priority to the ins~altation and maintenance of median island conshuclion and center strip
paving.

EnvlronmentalB Utility Services

The Environmental and Utility Services CSA Capital Improvement Program is designed to achieve the
outcomes of a reliable utility infrastructure; healthy streams, rivers, marsh, and bay; and a safe, reliable
and sufficient wafer supply. In order to help achieve CSA objectives, this capital program is organized in
the City's CIP under the Sanitary Sewer System, Storm Sewer System, Water Pollution Control Plant, and
Water Utiiiry System. The fiscal years 2013-2017 combinetl funding for the tour capital programs totals
$617.8 million.

• The Sanitary Sewer System Capital Program for fiscal years 2013-2017 plans funding of $209.9
millioq of which $702.0 million is allocated in 2012-2013. The program's funding is used to enhance
sewer capacity for economic development arid to rehabilitate existing sewers. This level of funding
does not include an increase for Sewer Service and Use Charge fees in 2012-2013. However, current
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estimates suggest that annual rate increases of approximately 3 % would need to resume in 2014-
2015 to meet the aNicipated needs of this capital program. The Sanitary Sewer System consists of
approximately 2,500 miles of sewer mains with a replacement value estimated at $3.5 billion. Projects
of note in this CIP include the construction of a new Fourth Major Interceptor. The In~ercep~or System
is the primary arterial sewage collection point for all local sewer systems of the City antl the ultimate
conveyance of wastewater to the Water PolWtion Control PIanL When completed, the Fourth Major
Interceptor will allow for one of the three older interceptors to be removetl from service for routine
maintenance or rehabilitation.

• The Storm Sewer System Capital Program for fscal years 2013-2017 plans funding of $45.3 millioq
of which $152 million is allocated in 2012-2013. This level of funding tlid not require a rate increase
in fiscal year 2012-2013, and no rate increases. were assumed far the four years of the CIP beyond
2012-2013. The existing storm sewer main system is approximately 1,150 miles long. The program's
2013-2017 oblectives include the installation of technology and infrastructure to maximize the
eKciency of the storm drain collection system; increase the reliability of storm pump stations; manage
the quality of storm water runoff; and minimize water from pooling in residential areas. Projects of
note in the 2013-2017 CIP include: replacement or rehabilitation of high-priority storm pump stations
($2.8 million); various small neighborhood storm sewer impmvemeN projects ($27 million); and
continuation of the Storm Drainage Improvement— Special Corridors Project ($3.8 million).

The San Jose/Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant ("WPCP") is a regional wastewater treatment
facility serving eight sewage collection agencies including municipalities and sanitary sewer districts.
The WPCP Capital Program for 2013-2017 plans funding totaling $3392 million, of which $144.3
million is budgeted in 2012-2013. This level of funding does not include a rate increase in 2012-2013,
but moderate rate increases were projected for the next four years of this capital program. WPCP's
five-year capital program incorporates the anticipated results of a three-year master planning effort for
rehabilitating and modernizing the plant that has not been wmpleted, as well as a new packaged
approach for implementation of the recommended capital improvement projects. Package 1 includes
critical rehabilitation projects covering the various treatment process areas at the Plant. Package 2,
not included in the this capital program, will include implementation of several new technology
projects to improve, enhance, and replace existing treatment process technologies to be completed
over a period of seven years. Package 3, also not included in this capital program, will indudeend-of-
li(e cycle replacement projects for existing infrasimcWre to be constmctetl beyond the 10 to 15-year
horizon. Funding options for Packages 2 and 3 may include debt fnancing to spread costs over the
life of the projects and potentially ease the potential impact of rele increases on users. Anticipated
projects oY note in the 2013-2017 capital program and anticipated costs include: primary tanks
rehabilitation ($332 million); biosolids transition technology and digester rehabilitation program ($662
million); headworks repairs ($13.4 miliion)~, advanced process control and automation ($6.5 million);
and site facility improvemen4s ($32 4 million).

The Water Utility System Capital Program is developed to ensure reliable infrastructure for the San
Jose Municipal Water System. Municipal Water provides water service to approximately 26,000
customers in fve service areas: Evergreen, North San JosA, Aiviso, Edenvale, and Coyote Valley.
The Evergreen Service Area contains approximately 92 percent of the total customers served and
accounts for 72 % of the total water usage in the system. The Water Utility System Capital Program
plans funding of $23.4 million for fscal years 2013-2017 and includes the construction of new
facilities, maintenance of existing infrastructure, and improvements to the existing Municipal Water
facilities.

Neighborhood Services

The goal of the Neighborhood Services CSA is fo provide services to residents and neighborhoods that
promote safe and clean parks, facilities and attractions, and suppotl vibrant cultural, learning and leisure
opportunities. In November 2000, San Jose voters approved a $228.0 million bond measure for park and
recreational facility improvements and a $212.0 million band measure for library facility improvements. As
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a result of these successful bond measures, major investments in the City's libraries, parks, and
community centers have been matle over the past decade, and all bond-funded projects are anticipated
io be completed within this five-year CI P. Funding for the Neighborhood Services 2013-2017 Wpi~al
Program is programmed at $297.8 million.

The objective of the Library Capital Program is to provide readily accessible and high quality library
services to San Jose residents. The Library Capital Program provides funding io construct new
library facilities, renovate existing facilities, acquire materials, install automation ,equipment, and
support general facility improvements. The 2013-2017 Library Capital Program plans funding of $57 0
million, of which $38? million is allocated in 2012-2013. A total of $19.6 million is allocated in the
2013-2017 capital program for the completion of branch library bond projects including the opening of
two new branches (Bascom Branch and Southeast Branch) and three expandetl/relocated branches
(Calabazas Branch, Educational Park Branch, and Seven Trees Branch). Four of the five new and
expanded libraries are scheduled to open during 2012-2013. In addition to bond-funded projects, this
capital program allocates funding for the acquisition of new library materials ($18.5 million),
automation projects and system maintenance projects ($4.5 million), and maintenance of lihrary
facilities ($3.0 million).

The mission of the Parks, Recreation, and Neighborhood Services Department is "To build healthy
communities through people, parks, antl programs'. This mission is the basis for the long-term
acquisition, development, and maintenance of parks, recreational facilities, trails, and open space
through the Parks and Community Facilities Development Capital Program. The 2013-2017 Capital
Program allocates funding of $240.8 million, of which $162.3 million is allocated in 2012-2013. The
2013-2017 capital program focuses on delivering projects ghat will help the parks system become
financially and environmentally sustainable by building oN the ireil network, banking land for future
park development, consimcling atlifciai turf spohs fields, and replacing aging infrastructure. The
Parks and Recreation Bond Projects Fund totals $34.5 million for the anticipated completion of new
sokball and soccer sports complexes in the 2013-2017 capital program. In addition to bond-funded
projects, this capital program includes funding for frail development in the amount of $129 million of
which $10 4 million is budgeted in 2012-2013.

Public Sa/ery

The Public Safely CSA's objective is to provide, maintain, and improve faciii~ies and equipment that
support the eNective delivery of emergency services. To help effectuate this goal in March 2002, San
Jos€ voters approved the $159.0 million Neighborhood Security Act Bond Measure to provide the funding
for police and fire capital improvements with the goal of improving response limas to emergency
incidents, public access to public safety services, and working conditions for public safety personnel. The
2013-2017 Public Satety Capital Program allocates footling of $50.7 million, of which $22.1 million is
budgeted in 2012-2013. The remaining projects funded by the Neighborhood Security Act Bond Measure
are scheduled for completion during the 2013-2017 CIP.

• The Police Depadmenfs Public Safety Bond Program projects initially included the wnstruclion of a
South San JosA Police Substation, community policing centers, renovation of the 9-1-1
Communications Dispatch Center, and a Driver Safety Training Center. The development of previous
Public Safety capital programs included partial defunding of community policing centers and the full
defunding of the Driver Safety Training Center in order to fully fund the South San Jos€ Police
Substation. Although the Polity Substation was completed in 2010-2011, its opening has been
delayed to September 2013 due to Funding constraints for operations.

• Fire Department Public Safety Bond Program projects include the constmction of three new fire
stations, relocating six fire stations, rebuilding one fire station, consolidating one fre station,
remodeling i6 fre stations, and renovating existing fire training facilities. In 201&2013, the focus will
be on completing design work and construction for new and relocated fre stations. In addition to the
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funds provided through the Fire DepaAment Public Safety Bond Program, the 2013-2017 CIP

budgets $27.9 million of funding (or fire apparaWS repair and replacement. The City's investment in

fire apparatus has signifcaNly improved the reliability of the Fire Departments fleet and its ability to

respond to emergencies in accordance with established response time performance measures.

Sfrategic Support

The Strategic Support CSA is comprised of intemai functions that enable the five other CSAS io deliver

services to the community. The City departments which comprise the Strategic Support CSA endeavor to

design, build, and maintain City facilities while managing the Cry's fnancial and technology systems. The

SUategic Support CSA includes the Communications, Municipal Improvements, and Service Yartls

Capital Improvement Programs. The Strategic Support Capital Improvement Program for fiscal years

2013-2017 programs funding of $62.1 million.

The Communications Capital Program inclutles funding totaling $6.8 million allocated to

communications equipment upgrades and replacement The Communications Capital Program

priorities for 2013-2017 include the replacement of public safety-related communications equipment,

maintenance of existing radio equipment to extend useful life, and strategic planning for future

communication upgrades and technology changes.

The 2013-2077 Municipal Improvements Capital Program allocates funding of $33.1 million, of which

$29.1 million is allocated in 2012-2013. The Municipal Improvemen4s Capital Program budgets

funding for capital improvements and maintenance for Cily facilities and their operating systems not

funded in other capital programs. The following projects are Included in the funding allocated to 2012-

2013: the Convention Center Expansion and Renovation Project ($14.7 million), the Householtl

Hazardous Waste Las Plumas Facility Project ($84 million), and the Police Communications

Emergency Uninterrupted Power Supply Project ($3.8 million}

The Service Yard Capital Program allocates funds for the construction and capital improvements for

support facilities that maintain City vehicles, buildings, sewer systems, pavement, and related public

infrastructure facilities. The 2013-2017 Service Yard Capital Program plans funding of $32.4 million,

of which $4.0 million is allocated in 2012-2073.

Transportation & AviaNOn Services

The Transportation and Aviation Services CSA facilitates the provision of a safe and efficient

transportation system including freeways, Vansit, streets, bicycle and parking facilities, and sidewalks, as

well as Mineta San Jose International Airport and its suppoR facilities. Transportation and Aviation

infrastructure and services provide an impoRanl resource to support the community's livability and

economy. The Transportation and Aviation Services CSA includes the Traffic, Parking, and Airport Capital

Programs and includes $630.9 million in funding for fiscal years 2013-2017.

The mission of the Traffic Capital Program is to implement a safe, efticien~, and environmentally

sound surface transportation system, consistent with the goals and policies of the City's General

Plan. The General Pian defnes a network of major streets, bikeways, pedestrian corridors, and

regional lranspodalion facilities needed to support land uses within the Cily. The 2013-2017 Tragic

Capital Program plans funding of $278.5 million, of which $110.8 million is allocated in 2012-2013.

The maintenance activities in the Traffic Capital Program include pavement maiNenanre, bridge

maintenance, traffic signal rehabilitation, and cirywitle emergency repairs. The adopted CIP allocates

$109.0 million for maintenance activities, of which $106.8 million is earmarked for pavement

maintenance. In addition $33.4 million is allocated toward projects and programs that improve

operetional efficiency and enhance safety of the City's transpotlaiion network. The 2013-2017 capital

progrem also allocates $27.3 million for the development of local transportation enhancements

throughout the City including the streets extension, and pedestrian and bicycle related improvements.
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• The Parking Capital Program's primary responsibilities are developing new parking facilities,
maintaining and improving existing facilities and upgrading, and replacing both on-street and ofl-
street parking equipment. The oH-street component of the program currently operates eight garages
and nine suAace lots with approximately 7,500 parking spaces, mostly in San Jose's downtown core.
The on-street component wrrently operates approximately 2,600 metered parking spaces in the
areas of Downtown, Japanlowq Civic Center, and HP Arena/Diridon Station. The 2013-2017 capital
program primarily focuses on projects io upgrade equipment, security, and technology of existing
parking facilities. The Parking Capital Program for fiscal years 2013-2017 plans funding of $67
million, of which $3.3 million is allocated in 2012-2013.

The Airport's Capital Program for fscal years 2013-2017 totals $345.7 million, of which 5214.4 million
is allocated in 2012-2013. The 2013-2017 CIP focuses on the maintenance and preservation of
Airport infrastructure that reflects a transition from the successful completion of Phase 1 of the
Terminal Area Improvement Program to the business neetls and opportunities beyond the terminal
area. Non-terminal area opportunities include the development of the Airport's west side and the
rehabilitation of areas in the northeast and southeast of the Airport. In addition, the Airport's Taxiway
W Improvements Project addresses safety concerns identified by the FAA Runway Safety Action
Team, and will add taxiway capacity and improve ai~eld efficiency that will support the anticipated
development of the Airport's west side for future growth of general aviation. The Airport Capital
Program allocates $41.4 million towards the Taxiway W Improvements Project. Taxiway W
construction funding includes extensioq reconsimction of taxiways, preventive pavement
maintenance, and various improvements pursuant to FAA requirements.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Cirys Administration is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls that safeguard
the City's assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and allow the compilation of adequate accounting data for
the preparation of financial statemenGS in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Inlemal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurence recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed its
likely benefits and that the evaluation of costs and benefits is subject to management estimates and
judgments.

Single Autlit

As a recipient of federal, state and county funding, the City is responsible for providing assurance that
adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations relating
ro these award programs. Internal controls are subject to periodic evaluation by management, the Office
of the City Auditor, and the Ciry's outside independent auditors.

As part of the Cilys single audit procedures, tens ara pertormed to determine the effectiveness of the
internal controls aver major Federal award programs and the City's compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these award programs.

Budgetary Controls

The City maintains hudgetary controls through the City CounciPs adoption of an annual appropriation
ordinance and by maintaining an encumbrance accounting system. Expenditures for City operations and
other purposes identified in the annual budget cannot legally exceed the budgeted amounts approved by
the City Council.
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The City also uses encumbrance accounting as another technique for acwmplishing budgetary control.
An encumbrance is a commitment of a future expenditure earmarked for a particular purpose that
reduces the amount of budgetary authority available for general spending. At the end of the fiscal year,
encumbered appropriations are carried forward and become part of the following yeafs budged while
appropriations that have not been encumbered lapse.

The City continues to meet its responsihilily for sound fnancial management as demonstrated by the
statements and schedules included in the Tnancial section of this report.

Deb[ Management Policy

The City's Debt Management Policy was adopted by the City Council on May 21, 2002, and is reviewed
annually. The Debt Management Policy establishes the fallowing equally important objectives:

Minimize debt service and issuance costs

• Maintain access to cosFeffective borrowing

• Achieve the highest practical credit rating

Full and timely repayment of debt

• Maintain full and complete financial disclosure and reporting

• Ensure compliance with applicable Stale and Federal laws

The frst set of program-specific policies, related to the City's multifamily housing program, was adopted
by the Ciry Council on June 11, 2002 and subsequently amended on December fi, 2005.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association ("GFOA") of the United States and Canada awarded its
Certifwle of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Ciry for its CAFR for the fscal year
ended June 30, 2011. This was the hvenry-fourth consecutive year the City has received this prestigious
award. To qualify for the Certificate of Achievement, the governmental entity must publish an easily
reada6~e and effcien[ly organized CAFR, the contents of which conform to program standards. Such
repotl must satisfy accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as all
applicable legal requirements.

The CertiOcate of Achievement is valid for one year only. The Ciry believes this CAFR continues to
conform to the Certifcate of Achievement Program requirements and will be submitting it to GFOA for
consideration of the annual award.

For the twenty-second consecutive year, the City received the GFOA Distinguished Budget Preparation
Award for ids annual budged for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017. To qualify for this award, the
government unit mush publish a budget documeN that meets program criteria as a policy document, a
financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications medium.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this CAFR represents the culmination of a concerted team effort by the entire shaft of
the Finance DepaAment. Many members of the DepaAment demonstrated exemplary personal
determination and dedicated many long days of focused attention to produce this document.
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In addition, staff in all City departments and the Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency should

be recognized for responding so positively to the requests for detailed information that accompanies each

annual audit. The City also recognizes the contributions antl positive working relationship with Macias

Gini &O'Connell LLP.

Finally, we wish to express our sincere appreciation to the Mayor and City Council far providing policy

direction and a firm foundation of support for the pursuit of exrellpnce in all realms of professional

entleavors, especially their mle in guiding the City to a secure financial condition that assures resources

are available to provide core services to the community.

Respectfully submitted,

`~ 
j __l

DEBRA FIGONE
City Manager

LIA H. COOPER
ling Director of Finance
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City of San Jose, California ~„„ i,,,~„

Lidcpcndcn~Aodiror's Report s~„~

We have audited the amompenying fmncial s~atemenLS of the governmental activities, the business-type aclivilies,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inFortnation of [he CiTy of San Jose, California (the City), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectivety comprise the City's basic financial statements zs lined in
the table ofcontents. These fnaneial statements ere the responsibility ofthe City's management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions mi these finmicial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally acecp~ed in the United States of America.
Those standards require Thal we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material miss~atemenL An audit includes considere~ion of internal control over
financial reposing as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in [he cirwms[ances, but not for [he
puryose of expressing an opinion un the effectiveness of the City's in~emal control over financial reporting.
Acwrdin6lY, we express no such opinion. An audit also incWdes examining, on a hest basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disolosurex in the financial sta~e+nen[s, assessing the accounting ryri~ciples used and signifiwm
estimates made 6y managemem, az well as evaluating the overall financial sta[emmrt presentation. We believe that
our audit provides x reasonable basis forouropinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referted [o above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
Tnancial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each mal~r fimA, and the aKSregate
remaining fund information of the City of San Jose, California, az of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, sash flows tltereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

As discussed in Note I.A. to the basic finanoisl statements, the California State Legisinture enacted legislation that
dissolved redevelopment agenoies in the Stake of (`aliforvia as of Febniary 1, 2012. On February 7, 2012, the City,
as the Successor A6ency to the Redevelopment AKemy of the City of San JusB, beeumc responsible for overseeing
the dissolution process and [he wind down of redevelopment activity.

As discusseA in Note N.C.3. m the basic financial s[acemen[s, on June 8, 2012, Moody's lmestors Service
downgrnded the former Redevelopmeo~ Agency of the City of San los€'s Senior Obligations Rating to below
"~aal", which triggered a Special Termination Event under the Continuing Covenant Agreement of its 2010 C
Housing Se4ASide 7'az Allocation Bonds (Bonds). The Bonds has an omstanding balance at June 3Q 2012 of $88.6
million and am reporleA as a wrrent liability. For the period commencing on August I5, 2012 and ended on
November 15, 2012, the bank agreed to forebear Trom exercising its rights and remedies under the bond documents
in respect m the existing default Negotiations are presrntly underway m extend the forbearance agreement The
Ciry cannot predict the oumome of [he negotimions.

As discussed in Nole N.D ~. to the basic fmgncial statements, in connection with the Redevelopment Dissolution
Law, ~hc County of Santa Clare's AuditorvConholler issued its Agreed-Upon Procedures Report on October 5, 2012,
which identified three separate issues questioning a total of $201.0 million of assets held by the City and a
componem unit, which are cuvently in dispute by the City and fie Successor Agency m [he Redevelopment A6ency
of the City of San lose. 'Ihe City has requested meet and confer meetings with the State Deparhnent ofFivance and
is in the process of other administrative procedures to resolve these issues. Due ro uncertainties with the
Redevelopment Dissolution Law, the ultimate outcome oRhese issues cannot presenNy be de~ertnined, accordingly,
no provision for any liability that may result has been rewrded in the financial s~a[emems. It is wexonebiy possible
that a determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate S~a~e or ludiciai authority that would resolve this
matter unfavorably to the City.



As described in Note IV.A J.4. In the basic financial starementt, based on the most recent acmariai valuations as of
June 30, 201 I, the Police and Fire Department Retireme+n Plan's end the Fedwa~ed City Hmployeu' Re~immom
Sys~cm's independent actuaries determined [hat, a~ Jwie 3Q 2011, the value nC Ihr defined benefit pension plans'
actuarial accrued liability exceeded the acwarial value of their asses by $5103 million and $981.6 million,
respectively. Alsq as described in Node IVA.2.4~ Rased on the most recw~ aumerial valoa~ions es of June 30, 201 I,
[hc Police and Fire Department Re~iremen[ Plan's and the Federated City Gmployees' Ne[irnment System's
independent actuaries determined that, a[ June i0, 2011, the value of the postemploymen[ healthcare plans' actuarial
accnied liability exceeded the actuarial value of their assets by $941.1 million and $1,009.9 million, respcdively.

Accoun[iny principles gweizlly acecpted in the United States of America require that the manayemenCS discussion
and analysis; the schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances — budget and actual for the
General Fund, Housing Activities Fund and the Affordable Housing Investment Fund; and the schedules of funding
progress lixted in the table of wments be presented to supplement the basic financial stacemems. Such informa~ioq
although nod a part of the basic fnancial s~atemen[s, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Boats
who w~siders i[ to be an esscirtial part of fnancial reporting for placing the basic fnancial s[atemems in an
appropriate operational; economic, or historical comexL We have applied certain limned prwedw'es to the required
supplememary information in accordance with auditing riandards generally awepred in tM1e Uniced S[a~es of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about [he methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with managements responses to our inquiries, the basic fnancial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of fhe bazic financial sta~emen[s. We do nod express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limned procedures do no[ provide us with
sufficiem evidence [o express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted fm [he purpose of forming opinions on the financial sla~ements that collegively comprise
the City's basic financial s~atemems. The introductory sectioq combining wnmajor govemmeotal, imemal service,
trust and agency Ponds financial s~atemen[s and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor
governmrntal, internal service, ~ms~ and agency funds financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
managemem and were derived Rom and relate directly m the underlying accounting and other records used m
prepare the basic financial statements. The information haz been subjecced m the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial sta[emems and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used m prepare the basic financial sta[emems or
m [he basic financial s[aremen[s themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with audi~iny standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinioq the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation m the basic financial statements as a whole. The inlmdmtory and sta~isliwl sections Lave nod
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial s~z~emw[s and, accordingly, we
do riot express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

W alms[ Cmck, Califrmia
November 79, 2012
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ManagemenCS Discussion antl Analysis ('MD&A") provides an overview of the City of San Josh's ("City°)
activities and financial performance for the fscal year ended June 30, 2012. Readers are encouraged io
read the MD&A in conjunction with the basic financial statements that immetliately follow, along with the
letter of Vansmiltal at the beginning of the Introductory Section, and with other portions of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR"j. Ail amounts have been rounded to the nearest one
hundred thousand dollars and one tenth of a percent

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The government-wide statement of net assets for the City's governmental and business-type activities
indicates that as of June 30, 2012, total assets exceed dotal liabilities by $7.470 billion. Of this
amount, $131.7 million represents unrestricted net assets, which is comprised of a deficit balance of
$197.3 million for governmental activities, and a positive balance of $329.0 million for business-type
activities. In addition, the City's restricted net assets total $1.068 billion ($939.5 million for
governmental activities and $128.4 million for business-type activities) and are dedicated to specific
purposes. Lastly, net assets of $6210 billion are invested in capital assets, net of related debt
($5.351 billion for governmental activities and $859.4 million for business-type activities).

• Total net assets increased by $1.761 billion or 312 percent during 201 b2012 from $5.648 billion to
$7.410 billion. The majority of the increase was primarily due to the extraordinary gain on the
dissoWtion of the former Redevelopment Agency ("Agency") of $2.062 billion resulting from the
transfer of liabilities in excess of its assets to the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of
the City of San Jos€ ("SARA"), aprivate-purpose tmsl fund reported in the financial statements of the
City. Excluding the extraordinary gain, net assets decreased by $300.6 million.

In accordance with the decision of the California Supreme Court on December 29, 2011, all
redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal
entity as of February 1, 2012. Prior to that date, the final seven months of activity of the former
Agency was reported in the governmental funds and governmental activllies of the City. After the
date of dissoWtioq the asses, liabilities, and activities of the former Agency were reported in SARA.
The dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California qualifies as an e#raordinary
item since this state-wide dissolution was both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
Accordingly, the movement of the lia6ili~ies in excess of its assets of the former Agency as of
February 7, 2012 from governmental funds of the City to SAR4 was recorded as an extraordinary
gain in the governmental fund financial statements ($70.5 million) and in the governmen4wide
fnanc~al statements ($2.104 billion). In connection with the dissoWtion, the City also incurred
eairaordinary losses that offset some of this gain including the transfers-out of Housing Activities
Fund's cash to pay SAR4's enforceable obligations ($6.9 million) and the invalidation of loans and
interest between the former Agency and the City ($35.3 million). The receipt of these liabilities in
excess of assets as of February 1, 2D12 was reported in the SARA trust fund as an eMraordinary bss
($2.062 billion). A reconciliation of the difference between the e~Rraordinary gain in the governmental
fund fnancial statements and the governmenbwide fnancial statements is shown on page 53 under
Note I.F. i6.

• Governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $1.186 billion at June 30, 2012,
which is $62.3 million or 5.0 percent Tess than the June 30, 2017 balance. The decrease was
at~ribNabie to the dissolution of the former Agency ($60.6 million) and a decrease in the fund balance
for Housing Activities ($363.0 million), and Special Assessment Districts ($26 2 million). These
decreases were partially offset by increases in fund balance including the General Fund ($16.4
million), Affordable Housing Investment Fund ($355.1 million), and other nonmajor funds ($t6.5
million).

• Unassigned fund balance btals $492 million, which is 4.1 percent of combined governmental fund
balances at June 30, 2012.
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Total long-term obligations decreased by §1.821 billion to $3.493 billion al June 30, 2012, which
represents a tlecrease of 343 percent wmpared to $5.315 billion at June 30, 2017. The primary
factor leading to this decrease was the $2.313 billion transfer of former Agency debt to SARA. This
tlecrease was partially oNset by the issuances of the Norman Y. Mineta San JosA International Airport
("Airport") Revenue 8ontls in the amount of $508.6 million to refund certain variable rate comme¢ial
paper notes (a current obligation) ($354.3 million) antl to refund existing revenue bonds totaling
($922 million).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion antl analysis provides an introduction to the City's basic fnancial statements, which are
comprised of four components'.

Govemmen4wide Financial Statements
• Fund Financial Statements

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Requiretl Supplementary information

In addition, this report also contains other supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmen4wide Financial Statements provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances in
a manner similar tothat of aprivate-sector business.

The statement o/ net assets presents information on ail assets and liabilities and repoAS the difference
helween the hvo as net assets. Over lime, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicatorof whether the City's financial position is improving or deteriorating

The statement o1 activities presents information showing how the net assets changetl during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
repotled in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fscal periods. Examples
include revenues pertaining to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation
antl sick leave.

Both of these government-wide fnancial statements address (unctions that principally are suppotled by
faxes and intergovernmental revenues (govemmental activities) and other functions that intend to recover
all or in part a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, capital maintenance,
community services, sanitation, and interest and fscal charges, The City's business-type activities include
airport, wastewater treatment, water supply, and various parking management operations.

The government-wide fnancial statements include the primary government of the City, the former Agency
for aseven-month period, antl four separate components for which the Cily is financially accountable.
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Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements. report information about groupings of relatetl accounts used to maintain
control over resources segregated for specific activities.or objectives. As do other state antl local
governments, the City uses fund acwunting io ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance.
Each City fund falls into one of three categories: govemmenta/ /unds. proonefary /untls, or /iducia
funds.

Governments/ funds account for essentially the same functions reported as govemmenfal activities in
the governmenFwide financial statements. However, unlike the governmen4wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on nearvfertn inflows and outflows o/spendable resources,
as well as on balances oI spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating the City's capacity to fnance its programs in the near fuWre.

Because the Locus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fnancial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented far governments/ activities in the governmenFwide fmanciai statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the govemment'S near-term fnancing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate comparison
behveen govemmentallunds sndgovernmental activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances preseN information separately for the Generel Fund, former
Redevelopment Agency, Housing Activities, Affordable Housing Investment, Special Assessment
Districts, and the San Josh Financing Authority Debt Service, which are all classified as major funds.
These statements also report several individual governmental funds dassifed as nonmajor funds such as
special revenue, debt service, and capital prgeGS funds, which are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this CAFR.

Proonetary funds 9enerelly account for services charged to external or internal customers through fees.
Proprietary funds provide [he same type of information as shown in the governmenMwide financial
statements for business-type activities, only in more detail. The City accounts for its airport, wastewater
treatment, water system, and parking management operations in proprietary funds.

The City accounts for its Public Works program support, employee benefits, antl stores, vehicle
maintenance, and operations as internal service funds. These services predominanNy beneft
governmental functions. Therefore, they are included as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor internal service funds are prov'~ded in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this CAFR.

Fiduciary funds account for resources held far the beneft of City employees and outside parties in a
similar manner as that for proprietary funds. Pension plan irus~ funds, private purpose trust funds, and
agency funds are reported as fiduciary funds. The governmenPwide financial sta~emenis do not include
fduciary funds as their resources are not available to support City programs.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information includes the budgetary schedules /or the General Fund, Housing
Activities Fund, and the Affordable Housing Investment Fund. In additioq pension and other
postemployment healthcare schedules present the City's progress toward funding its obligations to
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provide fuWre pension and other postemployment healthcare benefits for its active and refired
employees.

Combining and individual (und statements and schetlules provide information for nonmajor
governmental funds, internal service funds, and (fiduciary funds and are presented immediately following
the required supplementary information.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of net asseGS: As noted earlier, nel asse4s may serve as a useful indicator of a govemmen~'s
fnancial position. As of June 30, 2012, the Cry's total assets exceed total liabilities by $7.410 billion.

The following table is a condensed summary of the City's net assets for govemmen~al and business-type
activities:

Statement of Net AsseFs
June 90, 3012 and 2011

pn mousantls~

Govemmemal Business~rype
Activities AcWities To~els

FY 2012 FV 2011 FY 2012 FY 2411 FY 2012 FV 2011
Assets:
Current and olM1e~assels... _.. 5 1,616,435 1666,180 ]86,254 ]05,3]4 2402,689 2,391,538
Capital assets.__ _.___... Q59I,590 ],090,]33 2158569 2,2a893~ 8]58,158 929]663

Total assets_....__._.._ 8,214,029 B,>36,89> 2,844,818 2952304 H,158,84] 11.689201

Liabil~tles:
Current end other liabill~les_... 150,890 259,550 101,211 066,855 256,101 ]26,205
longderm llebilifes_.......... _. 1,866262 4.1]3,424 1,52680] 1,M0.808 3,493,069 5,314,532

Total pab0ltles...___.._._ 2,41152 9?33,2]4 1,628,018 160]663 3.]49,110 6.W0./3]

Net asufs:
Inve51¢d In capital d55e15,

net Mrelaletl tlebL.___..._ 5.350,66fi J,BID,B01 859394 889,fi14 6,210, 58 a~~0.4]5
Res~ncted net assets............ 939,509 822,241 128,361 122,539 i,p6].8]0 949,]]5
Unreslridetl ne~asseis......... ❑9],298) ry28019) 029,04] 3ffi,633 131.]49' 203,214

To~nl ne~assels....._...... $ 6.092.87] 4,303,fi23 t 316,800 1,344,811 J,409,6A 5,808,466

Al June 30, 2012, the City reported positive balances in all three categories of net assets on a ~olal basis.

Net assets invested in capital assets (infrastructure, land, buildings, other impmvemenis, vehicles, and
equipment, less outstanding debt used to acquire them) of $6210 billion comprise 83.8 percent of the
Cityk total net assets. These capital assets facilitate providing services to the San JosA community, but
they are not liquid, and therefore they aye not available for future spending. During 2011-2012, net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debt for governmental activities increased by $1.510 billion
primarily due to the net eHecl of transfers of the former Agency's capital related long-term deb[ ($1.945
6iilion) and capital assets ($180.4 million) to SARA.

A portion of the City's net assets, $1.068 billion or 14.4 percent are subject to legal resUictions on their
use, including $939.5 million in governmental activities and $128.4 million in business-type activities.
During 2011-2012, restricted net assets increased by $323.1 million primarily due io the transfer of the
former Agency's Housing Tax Allocation Bonds ($329.0 million) io SARA. Of the total net assets, $131.7
million or 7.8 percent represents unrestricted net assets, which comprises a defcit balance of $197.3
million for governmental activities, and a positive balance of $329.0 million for business-type ac~ivi~ies.
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Primary (actors wniributing to the governmental activities deficit balance are the City's other
postemploymen~ benefits and workers' compensation long-term liabi~ilies.

During 2011-2012, the City's total net assets increased by $1.761 billion or 312 percent. The increase in
total net asses is primarity attributed to an eutraordinary gain of $2.062 billion resulting from the transfer
of liabilities in excess of assets to SARA Eucluding the extraordinary gaiq rotal net assets decreased by
$300.6 million, or $81.4 million lower than the decrease of $382.0 million experienced in 2010-2017.
Expenses decreased 6y $104 6 million from the prior fiscal year.

Notable changes in the statement of net assets between June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 include'

Capital assets decreased by X5415 million or 5.8 percent compared to the prior fiscal year.
Governmental capital assets decreased by $493.1 million and business-type capital assets
decreased by $48.4 million. The decrease in governmental capital assets resulted from
Uansfers of the former Agencys capital assets to SARA totaling $180.4 million, and
depreciation expense of $362.7 million for major infrastructure and other assets. The
decrease in governmental capital assets was slightly offset by atldifions (net) b capital assets
of $58.8 million. The decrease in business-hype capital assets was primarily due to
depreciation expense of $81.3 million but was oRSet by additional projects at the Wastewater
($13.8 million) and at the Airpotl ($16.5 million). Projects completed as of June 30, 2012
include the Terminal Equity Improvement, Terminal B Phase 1 project, airport signage,
surtace parking, SoNh Loop parking, and airfeld improvements.

• Current and other assets increased by $it 2 million or 0.5 percent due to an increase of
$40.9 million for business-type activities, which was partially offset by a decrease of $29.7
million for governmental activities. The increase in current assets for business-type activities
is due [o the net proceeds of $43.9 million from the issuance of revenue bonds to refund
existing bonds and cetlain commercial paper notes for Airpod capital projects. Tha decrease
in governmental activities is primarily the resWl of a decrease in cash balances of
governmental activities due to the payment of pension contributions during the year.

• Long-term liabilities decreased by a net amount of $1 827 billion or 343 percent. The net
decrease was primarily the result of the transfer of the former Agency's long-term debt
($2.313 billion) to SARA. The decrease was partially offset by the issuance of 20t 1 Airport
revenue bonds ($508.6 million) to refund various short-term commercial paper notes ($3543
million) and revenue bonds ($922 million). In addition, the Airport used $21.9 million of the
proceeds to pay down various revenue bonds.

• Current and other liabilities for the City decreased by $470.1 million or 64.7 percent due to a
decrease of $104.7 million (or governmental activities and a decrease of $365.4 million for
business-type activities. The decrease for governmental activities is primarily due to shorl-
~ertn liabilities previously recorded by the former Agency ($138.9 million) that are now
recorded in the SARA financial statements. The decrease for business-type activities is
primarily the result of a $7.9 million pay down of commercial paper notes payable and the
refunding of $3542 million of short-term commercial paper notes payable with long-term
bonds for the Airpotl.

Unrestricted net assets for governmental activities decreased by $67.9 million or 52.4 percent
resulting in a deficit balance of $197.3 million at year-end. A significant part of the reduction in
unrestricted net assets is the resWl of continued under-funding of the annual required contribution
of the City's other postemployment benefits thereby increasing its net other post employment
benefits obligation (NOPEBO) and reducing net assets by an additional $68.1 million. At June
30, 2012, the Ciry's NOPEBO balance for governmental activities is $2922 million.
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Analysis of activities: The following table intlica~es the changes in net assets far governmental and
business-type activities:

S~alement of ACtivitles
for@e Yeers Ended June 30, 3013 and 1011

din ~M1OUSantls~

GovemmeMal Businessiype
Auirilies Actiwlles idals

FY 2012 FY ]OH FY 412 FY 2011 FY PDt3 FY 20fl
Revenues:
Pmg2m revenues:
Fees,fines, and Charges lot seMCeS_.._........ $ ]40,93P 916,BSA 964643 dC9,i6] 703,555 666,@5
Operzling gnn~s and mnln~ulions.. _ ............. 123,A29 id0,Od5 6]D ]01 t0C d99 tOq]O6
Caq~al gmn~5 end con~tlbNionc.....__.._. _...... 2P]98 9] OC1 igB99 19,d13 33,6d8 SYpSA

Genersl revenues:
ProPetlYlaxes ......................._..............'.. _. 4W,8]] dB1.1C5 - - COC.B)] GB1.iC5

111i41Y faxes .......................__...... _. _. _........ 110.912 10B SYB fl0.812 1~B$2B
FrancM1iu lees........ _ ............. _.. _........ 41]9 C1 P3 C1 ]09 C12T9
Transient acupanq lases._......__.___.__ 2]451 iBJ ~O - ~ 21.451 18,101
Sslesl~es sM1aretl revenue_. _. _. _. _. _. _. _. _.. 15d,~26 iW,9]0 - ~ 154,046 1d],990
SlateM Calilomia in-0eu_._ _. _. _. _._____ 36ff d.8B9 - ~ t.6H d.809
6vAness Woes__. ...... 41.194 3].967 C1 id6 9].96]
UnresintlN interest and inoextmenl earnings.. _. 6,850 8,142 3,584 3,886 10,512 12,028
OIM1e~rtvenua .................... _..__..............._ 21.2D] 93 29I - P13W 71.23]
Thal reronues...__ .................._..._........ 1.PBJ.38] 1,311,191 31].95d 3]9p6) t6]1.td1 1.69d.3fi0

Erpmse s:
General 9owmmenL_......... _....__..... _...._. 111.996 1<B 515 - ifl 986 id8.515
PuNic sale~Y .........................--.......-.—.... 490.442 48),659 - 484 Ad2 CB].659

CammunAY Services ........................ _.... _..._ 2d].518 25C,~B1 - - 4C'/.518 251,<B1
Sani~alion...._ .................... _.......___. _...... ll5.543 128,108 - ll5$d3 129.178
Capital maintenance._.....__...__. _........... _.. <13,fiPd 515,808 - ~ 4]9.6'!d 515.808
Interest anA fsral cM1mges..... _. 143,696 163280 - - 113696 16J?BD
Norman Y. Mlnela San Jose lntemalional
A rpod _ _. _._ ___. ~ - 20,090 195,06) 10.380 195,867

Wa9ewa~erTreatmen~Syslem.. _........ _...._ ~ - tA9,990 14],283 1d9,9B0 14],300
Muniapal Wd~¢~SyS~em_._...._.___. _.____. - ~ 29,Yfi0 24 64D P9,2fi0 44,604
Paging SYrem....... _. ._._.. _........ _.......... 9 29~ B 690 9.290 9,fiO4
To~Bl expenses ........... ................. 1,504,069 1690,982 388.910 3]],380 19]1]]9 2,W6,36P
Oefciency belae lrereters and

evVeo~Elnaryilems (269,CA2) (31],]89) (it 156 (q,]13~ (30~6J8) (383 003)
Tnnzlers__. 3,35) 53W (3,35] (Sd03~ - -
Edrewtllnarygain Qoss) on tllasolNion of iM1e

lotmer Redevelopment Agency..__... _. 10Y5,B➢B - ll,5P6) - 2061,851
CM1ange In net assets.__. _........ _. _.... i]B9 ]Sd (3]4.486) (28.041) (9,5161 1.]61.213 (3BR.001)

NM assets al beginning of yeah 4343630 6,6]6,109 13dq,8H 13J05] S.6AB d6d 6,W~,<66
NM assess alend of yeas __. .............. _.. _.._ E 6,09?W] 4.303,623 1,316,800 1,344,041 ],409,6i] 5.648,464
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Governmental activities: Nei assets for governmental activities increased' by $1.789 billion or 41.6
percent during 2011-2012 from $4.304 billion to $6.093 billion. Total expenses decreasetl by $116.1
million whereas total revenues decreased 6y §27.8 million. Although the year aver year decrease in
expenses was larger compared to the year over year decrease in revenues, expenses wMinue to exceetl
revenues resulting in a decrease in net assets before transfers and extraordinary items. Significant
elements of the decrease in net assets before transfers and extraordinary items for governmental
activities from June 30, 2011 to June 30, 2012 are as follows:

• Contributing hctors resulting in increases to certain revenue categories are as follows; Transient
occupancy tax receipts from guests staying in the Ciry's local hotels increasetl by $4.3 million or
24 0 percent. Far the foutleen largest hotels in the City, the average room rate increased from
$117 [o $129 and the occupancy rate rose from 58.5 percent to 61.6 percent during the year
indicating signs of economic recovery. Operating grants and contributions increased by $23.8
million or 23.8 percent primarily due to additional Federel and State grenis received far public
safety ($10.3 million), neighborhood stabilization program ($122 million), HOME grants ($3.5
million), and Mobilehome Seismic Retrofit ($5.6 million). Sales tax revenue increased by $16.1
million or 11.6 percent indicating a modest improvemeN in Consumer Spending. Business tax
revenues improved by $32 million or 8.4 percent. Fees, fines, and charges for services
increased by $24.1 million or 7.6 percent primarily due to higher developer revenues for in-lieu
fees, and fee increases charged by the City for services such as building permits. Utility taxes
increased by $2.4 million or 22 percent due ro higher utility charges.

Contributing factors resulting in decreases to cedain revenue categories are as follows: State of
California in lieu decreased by $2.3 million or 46.6 percent due to a re-categorization of aircraft
property tax revenue, which was formerly included as aimraR in-lieu tax in the revenue from the
Slate of California category, is now included in the property tax category. Capital grants and
contributions decreased by $10.3 million or 31.1 percent primarily due to a decrease of $7.5
million in dedication of capital assets from developers. Propetly tax revenues decreased by
$76.3 million or 15.9 percent due to the redistribution of the June 2072 former Agency's property
tax revenues in the amount of $822 million into the SARA private-purpose trust fund.

• interest and investment inwme showed a decrease of $12 million or 14.6 percent from the prior
year due to a decrease in the fair value of investments. In addition, lower cash balances
combined with lower interest yields contributed to the decrease. The increase in pre-payment of
the City's contribution to its two retirement plans in July 2011, along with expenses continuing to
outpace revenues, caused lower cash balances. In addition, the annualized investment interest
yield for the City's investment pool declined From 0.7 percent as of June 30, 2011 to 0.6 percent
as of June 30, 2072, reflecting the continued Tower interest rate envimnmenl experienced in the
capital markets.

General government expenses decreased by $36.5 million or 24.6 percent during 2011-2012
primarily due to a decrease in expenses recorded by the former Agency ($13.3 million) during the
last seven months of its existence. The decrease in generel government expenses ($Z3 million)
atln6ulable to the General Fund is explained in more detail in the governmental fund section later
in this document.

• Pu61ic safety expenses increased by $2.8 million during 2011-2012 due to increases in pension
and healthcare rates.

Community services expenses decreased by $7.0 million or 2.7 percent primarily restating from
large reductions in service levels for branch libraries (open 39 hours per week as compared to 47
hours in the prior year) and for parks maintenance and enhancement combined with staffing level
reductions to align with service eliminations.
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Sanitation expenses increased by y6.4 million or 5.0 percent primarily due to an increase in costs
for the commercial solid waste recycling program.

Capital maintenance decreased by E422 million or 82 percent primarily due to retluctions in
capital maintenance spending programs.

Interest and fiscal charges decreased by b39.6 million or 242 percent primarily due to obligations
of the farmer Agency that are now reported under the SARA private-purpose imst fund.

Governmental Activities Revenues 2012
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The chart above shows the primary componenis'of governmental adivilies revenue sources for 201b

2012. Of the $1 293 billion in total revenues generated by governmental activities, 79.1 percent is

attributable to four categories: property taxes (31.3 percent), fees, fines, and charges for services (26.3

percent), sales taxes (71.9 percent), and operating grants and contributions (9 6 percent). Except for

property taxes, which were down by $76.3 million compared to the previous year altri6uta61e to the
dissoNtion of the former Agency, sales taxes, utiiiry taxes, and revenues for fees, fines and charges for

.services increased slightly over the prior year.
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The chart below shows the principal categories of 2011-2012 expenses for governmental activities. Of the
$1.583 billion in total expenses incurred by governmental activities, the categories accounting for 76.5
percent of the total are: public safety (31.0 percentg capital maintenance (29.9 perrnnt); and community
services (15.6 percent).

Governmental Activities Expenses 2012

sa~nero, ce~aaic~~om~i
os~ >>v.

b~. •'..,.' CaPI IMelnlrmanco
Public Safely 2B9°o
310%

In@rest end 4scel charges
Community ~rvims

]0% 1~~

Bus'nesstvpe activities: Business-type activities net assets decreased by $29.0 million or 21 percent
to $1.317 billion during 2011-2012.

The notable components of net assets for business-type activities during 2011-2012 are:

Airport net assets decreased by $35.5 million or 8.5 percent. The Airport had an operating income
of $62 million, an increase of $19.8 million or 145.3 percent compared to the prior year loss of
$13.6 million. Operating revenues increased by ̂ ~9.3 million or 7.3 percent despite the decline in
major airport iraHic activities. Revenue increases were experienced in germinal rentals, parking
and roadway, Customer Facility Charges and fuel handling fees. These increases were offset by
decreases in landing fees, terminal buildings and concessions, airfield, and general aviation and
other revenues. Operating expenses of $130.9 million were $10.5 million or 74 percent lower
compared m 2010-201 t, highlighted by decreases in expenses associated with terminal building
and concessions ($9.4 million) and general and atlminisirotive ($0.8 million) due to outsourcing of
custodial services and the reduction in building maintenance staff. Nonoperating expenses
exceeded nonopereting revenues by $490 million, which represented an increase of $14.9
million fmm 2010-2011. This increase in nonoperating expenses was mainly due m the expensing
of interest costs in 2011-2012 for construction projects substantially completed in the prior fiscal
yeas

• Wastewater Treatment System net assets increased by $20.4 million or 27 percent from $757.0
million to $777.4 million. Operating revenues were flat ai $167.7 million when compared to
operating revenues for the previous year. Although sewer service charges increased 6y $3.G

million due to a 3.0 percent sewer rate increase affective July 1, 2011, and increases were
experienced in sewer connection fees ($10 million) and recycled water sales and other
miscellaneous revenues ($1.1 million), these increases in revenues were offset by a $5 7 million
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decrease in contribution from the Cily of Santa Clara and other participating agencies to the
Treatment Planfs costs. Total operating expenses increased by $2.6 million or 1.8 percent
primarily due to a $2.1 million increase in other postemployment benefits costs, and a $QS million
increase in various project costs incurred to rehabilitate the aging treatment plant and sewer
collection system. Nei nonoperating expenses increased by $0.9 million mainly tlue to decreases
in the fair value of investments, Capi(al grants and conUibutions decreased by $5.0 million
primarily due to a $3 4 million reduction in grants received fmm the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
for constmction of wastewater recycling facilities and recycled water projects. In addition, there
were reduction in reimbursements from the California Department of Transportation ($72 million)
and capital dedications from developers ($0] million) as projects were substantially completed.

Municipal Water System net assets decreased by $1 0 million or 12 percent from $84.1 million to
$83.1 million. Operating revenues of $28.5 million increased by $2.5 million or 97 percent, which
includes a 3.8 percent rate increase effective July 1, 2011. Operating expenses of $29.3 million
increased by $47 million or 19.0 percent mainly due to higher wholesale prices of wader.

Parking System net asses decreased by $11.9 million or 13.7 percent from $87.1 million to $75.7
million primarily tlue to a $13.5 million extraortlinary loss fmm the dissolution of the former
Agency. As mentioned in the financial highlights above, pursuant to AB Xi 26, all prior loans
made between the Cily and the farmer Agency, except for loans made from the Affordable
Housing Investment Fund for payment of Supplemental Education Revenue Augmentation Fund
("SERAF"), were invalidated on February 1, 2012. As such, the Parking System loans to the
former Agency totaling $13.5 million were written off and reported as an eMraordinary loss to the
fund. Operating revenues increased by $2.0 million or 21.4 percent primaniy due to more activity
at the parking facilities resulting from an improving ewnomy. Operating expenses decreased by
$0.3 million or 3.5 percent reflecting reductions to operations and maintenance costs. Net
nonoperating revenues were Flat when compared to the previous year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted eatlier, the Ciry uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrele compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

As of June 30, 2012, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1.186 billion, a
decrease of $62.3 million or 5 0 percent compared to the balance ai June 30, 2011. The governmental
fund balances are categorized as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned.

• $20.5 million consists of nonspendable fund balance including prepaid items, advances and
deposits, and other assets that are not intended to convert into cash and long-term in nature and
do not represent currently available resources

$921.6 million is reported as restricted fund balance that includes restrictions imposed by e~cternal
parties or enabling legislation. This amount includes unspent bond proceeds, unspent grant
revenues, and restricted tax revenues;

• $91.9 million is reported as commiVed fund balance that had been limited by formal Council
action to specific purposes.

• $102.9 million is reported as assigned fund balance that includes amounts that may be used for
specific purposes, but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or commuted.

• $492 million is reported as unassigned fund balance that represents the residual classification for
the City's General Fund and includes ail spendable amounts not contained in the other
classifications.
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Revenues and other financing sources far governmental funds totaled approximately $1.777 billion in
2011-2012, an increase of $72.6 million or 4.3 percent fmm 2010-2011 primarily due to increases in
transfers-in ($269.5 million). The increase was padially offset by the absence of long-term debt issuance
($162.0 million) in the current year.

General Fund: The Generel Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At June 3D, 2012, the General
Fund's available (unassigned) fund balance is $49.4 million or 27.0 percent of the $1830 million total
General Fund balance. Comparing available fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expendiWres may be useful as a measure of the General Fund's capacity io liquidate future obligations.
A[ June 30, 2012, available fund balance represents 7.3 percent of total General Fund expenditures of
$673.0 million, while total fund balance represents 272 percent of total General Fund expenditures. This
measure of financial health shows a modest improvement from the prior fiscal year. At June 30, 2011, the
same measures were 6.5 percent and 243 percent, respectively.

For the frst lime in fve years, revenues exceeded expenditures resW[ing in an excess of $48.9 million in
2011-2012. The excess was generated through a combination of slightly stronger revenues and
continued implementation of cosh reduction measures including deep service reductions and eliminations,
reduction in employee total compensation, and service delivery changes.

in 2011-2012, Generel Fund revenues of $721.9 million were $41.7 million or 6.0 percent higher than
2010-2011 revenues of $680.8 million. Taxes and special assessments revenues increased by $652
million or 732 percent. The increase was aHributed to the following reclassification of business taxes to
business tax w[egory ($37.4 million), increases in sales tax ($76.1 million), property lax ($4.5 million),
marijuana business tax ($2.5 million), utility tax ($24 million), transient occupancy tax revenues ($1.8
million), and electric franchise fees ($0.4 million).

License, permits and fines decreased by $31.3 million or 33.5 percent primarily due to a reclassifcalion of
$37.4 million formerly in this category to the business taxes category to conform to budgetary practices
but was offset by an increase of $6.7 million in revenues from various permits. Intergovernmental
revenues rose by $9.1 million due to a new SAFER grant ($4.6 million), 2010 COPS Hiring Program ($2.1
million), 2009 Assistance Firefghters GraN ($1J million), and 2009 UASI grant ($L2 million). Charges
for services increased by $2.2 million due to increases in departmental charges from Public Works for
services related to engineering, grinding, and utility excavations, and from Parks, Recreation and
Neighborhood fees ($0.8 million). Investment income showed a gain of $1.1 million aver the prior year
mainly due to an increase in fair value of investments. Other revenue decreased by $5.2 million due to
the nonrecurring termination of the Airport Wesl Option Payment ($2.0 million) received in the prior year
and decreases in other miscellaneous revenues.

2011-2012 General Fund expenditures of $673.0 million were $12.7 million or 1.9 percent lower than
2010-2011 expentliNres of $685.7 million. General govemmenl expenditures decreased by $7.3 million
primarily due to a lower sick leave payout ($8.3 million) but were padially offset by an increase in
expenditures resulting from the transfer of the Public Works Real Estate Services Unit to the Office of
Economic Development ($1 7 million).

Public safely expenditures increased by $11.9 million due primarity to the reduction in cost
reimbursement through overhead allocation resulting from salary and position reductions ($92 million)
and expenditures related to the Fire Self-contained Breathing Apparatus program.

Community services expendiWres decreased by $6.0 million due to substantial staffing and service cuts
in libraries and reduced expenditures far park enhancement and other community suppotl programs.
Sanitation expendiWres slightly increased by $D.1 million due to additional costs for commercial solid
waste programs. Infrastructure and fxed asset capital outlay expenditures increased by $1.6 million due
ro casts associated with additional fre equipment
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Capital maintenance expenditures decreased by $13.0 million or 26.1 percent primarily due to reductions
in slaHing and compensation of personnel in Public Works, the transfer of the real es~ale division of Public
Works io the Office of Economic Development, and reduction in wslodial services casts.

Redevelopment Aaencv funtl: As mentioned under the Financial Highlights section of this MD&A, the
California Supreme Court upheltl AB Xi 26 and dissolved all redevelopment agencies in the Sate of
California effective February 1, 2012. As such, for 201 L2012, only seven months of revenues and
expenditures of the farmer Agency were reported in the governmental funds. The remaining five month
periotl (February t through June 30) of 5nancial activity of the former Agency was reportetl in a private
purpose trust fund under SARA.

Housinn Activities fund: The Housing Activities fund accounts kr the Ci(y's commitment to providing
affordable housing activities. The City's Housing Activities fund receives resources from the US.
Department of Housing antl Urban OevelopmeN and the California Department of Housing and
Community Development. At June 30, 2012, the fund's loan receivable balance (net), which represents
loans to developers of various affordable housing projects and first time homebuyers was $61.1 million.
This balance includes loans to developers for various projects, including Taylor Oaks Apartments,
Northrup, Roundtable, Kings Crossing, Peacock Commons, Archer Studios, Canoas, Terrace, Curtner
Gardens, Homesafe, Markham Plaza, Plaza Dei Sol, Verandas, and Willow Glen Senior Housing.
Additions to the loan receivable balance were offset by an increase in the valuation allowance in the
Housing Activities fund based on [he City's annual review of the valuations and adjustments reflecting the
terms of the loans.

Prior to (he dissoWtion of the former Agency, the Housing Aclivi~ies fund was a special revenue fund that
accounted far all of the City's allordable housing activities, including the twenty percent requirement to
set-aside funds from former Agency incremental property taxes for low and moderate income housing
and related expenditures. Upon dissolution of the former Agency and the City Council's election io retain
the housing assets, functions, and powers previously pertormed by the former Agency, the City created a
housing successor Lund (AROrdable Housing Investment Fund) and transferred the assets and housing
activities associated with the twenty percent incremental property taxes set-aside funds for low and
moderate income housing.

Affordable Housing Investment fund: The Affordable Housing Investment Fund is the City housing
successor fund, which was created to administer the housing assets and functions rela~etl to the Low and
Moderate Income Housing Program retained by the City following the dissolution of the former Agency.
At June 30, 2072, the fund's loan receivable balance (net) was $253.5 million and includes the following
low and affordable housing projects including the Belovida, Almaden, Orvieto Apartments, Cinnabar
Commons, EI Paredor and EI Paseo Studios, Hillview Glen, Monte Vista, Oak Tree Village, Rincon De
Los Esteros, and Terramina Square.

On Oclo6er 16, 2012, the Affordable Housing Investment Fund was renamed the Low and Moderate
Income Housing Asset fund to comply with the requirements of Assembly Bill 1484.

Special Assessment Districts fund: The Special Assessment Districts fund accounts for debt issuance
and capital improvements related to the specific purposes of eight special assessment and wmmunity
facilities districts bcated in diRerent parts of the Cily. A total of $52.9 million in special assessment and
special tax debt outs~antling at June 30, 2072 is secured by special assessments or special taxes
charged to the owners' real property in the district issuing the debt. The Ciry is not obligated to cure any
defciency or redeem any debt of special assessment districts from City funds.

Total expenditures for 2011-2012 increased 6y $28.3 million or 211.9 percent compared to the prior fiscal
year primarily due to expenditures associated with the Convention Center renovation and expansion.
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Financing Authority fund: The Cily's Financing Authority Debt Service fund accounts for the issuance of
commercial paper notes secured by lease revenues as a mechanism for fnancing City public
improvements and purposes such as: Phase II improvements of the City's Cenral Service Yard; non-
conslmction costs for technology, furniture, and equipment at City Hall; capital improvements at the City's
HP Pavilion, pmcurin9 the consolidated utility billing system; and making the loan to the Housing
Activities fund to fnance law and moderate income housing ac~ivi(ies and programs. The amount of
commercial paper notes outstanding decreased from $46.6 million on June 30, 2011 to $45$ million on
June 30, 2012, a decrease of $1.3 million, which represented defeasance of commercial paper noes.

Other financing sources (net of uses) decreased by $12.9 million or 27.3 percent io $34 4 million primarily
due to a $24.4 million decrease in transfers-out offset by a $7.0 million decrease in transfers-in.

Prouriefary funds

The Cry's proprietary Funds provide the same hype of information found in the government-wide financial
statements for husiness-type activities, but in more detail. AI June 30, 2012, the unrestricted net asses
were $64.0 million for the Airport, $237.7 million for the Wastewater Treatment System, $15.7 million for
the Municipal Water System and $17.6 million for the Parking System. Net assets for proprietary funds
fell from $1.345 billion at June 30, 2011 to $1.317 billion at June 30, 2012, resuHing in a decrease of
$28.0 million or 2.1 percent.

Other aspects of proprietary fund activities are discussed in the business-type activities section above.

- GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City's Charter requires the City Manager to submit balanced operating and capital budgets to the City
Council prior to the beginning of a new 5scal year that begins each July 1 and ends on the fallowing
June 30. Council approved the 2011-2012 budgets in June 2011.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, there was a $412 million increase in the budgeted revenues
behveen the original and foal amended operating budget for the General Fund. The increase reflected
higher acNal receipts in sales tax, utility, business tax, licenses, permits and fines, intergovernmental,
charges for current services, and other revenues

Ac~uai budgetary basis expenditures of $694.1 million were $49J million less than the amended budget
and $45.4 million less than the original budget. Savings were experienced over all expenditure
categories.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CaoiWl Assets

The City's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for its governmental and
business-type activities together amounted to $8.756 billion at June 30, 20t2. This investment includes
land, infrasUUCture, structures and improvements, vehicles, equipment, intangible assets, and
cons~mc~ion-in-progress. The City's decision to depreciate infrastructure capital assets resutls in
recording a large non-cash depreciation expense each year that offsets additions to capital assets. At
June 30, 2012, net capital asses decreased by $541.5 million ($493.1 million in governmental activities
and $48.4 million in business-type activities) or 5.8 percent compared io net capital asse4s at June 30,
2071. The decrease in capital asses of $493.1 million in governmental activities is primarily due to
depreciation expense of $362.7 million and the Vansfer of capital assets totaling $180.4 million b SARA
during 2011-2012. These decreases were patlially offset by additional infrastructure projects totaling
$58.8 million in the governmental activities. The decrease of $48.4 million in capital assets in the
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business-type activities restated from depreciation expense of $813 million, oRSe~ by additions of capital
projects of $30.3 million at the Airport and Wastewater.

Total cons~mc~ion-in-progress increased 6y $1.7 million or 1.3 percent from $1362 million at June 30,
2011 to $139.9 million ai June 30, 2012. The constmc~ion-in-progress for the governmental activities
remained Oat at 869.8 million Business-type activities contributed a modest increase of $LB million to the
total constmction-in-progress as atldition to Airport consfmction-in-progress totaling $165 million was
offset by a $7.3 million projects that were completed and placed in-service. The completed Airport
projects include the following: improvements to the terminal area roadway, which inclutled a widened
Airport BNd and a dedicated shuttle lane behveen Terminal A and the new rental car garage, Green
Island Parking; Terminal B Parking, South Loop Parking, and airtield improvements.

The City 2mrds infras~mcWre assets at historical cost in the governmenbwide financial sta~emants antl
depreciates assets from acquisition dale to the end of the current fiscal year as required by GASB
Statement No. 34. For governmental fund financial statements rewrding purposes, capital asset
purchases are rewrded as expenditures, rather than capitalizing and rewrding related depreciation.
Capital assets, net of depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities in the governmen4wide
financial s~atemenis are presented below to illustrate changes behveen June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012
(in thousands):

Governmental activities Business~rype activities Tolsl

zmz mn saiz zo~i zmz zon

LanU E d63 ]26 538,805 13G,BR6 199,980 598,65E 663,531
Inlanglbl¢d6s¢~5 - - 11,882 12,882 1'1,802 ~108R
ConS~mtlion in
progress - 69,)69 89,813 ]O.i59 68,368 ~J8,823 138,181

BuAaings 1,U3AJP8 1161,205 t25J,659 ~28T ]53 3280,P85 ?446,698
ImpmvemenLS, o1M1e~
IM1an bUlldings 189,103 194,100 fiO4,Y46 Bt4,559 ]W,351 808,958
Inlras~rvcNre 4,813,511 5,10I,d5d d,B13,5H S,tOJ 45d
FumiNre antl lixlures,
~e~lcles, egolpmenl P3,86] 28.508 81.233 86.55< 105,100 115,084

P~openY antler
rapi~al leases <8'v 608 1p59 1889 1,55a 2.5]]

Total Wpital asses S 6S9I 594 7090]33 2458564 2206850 8]S6.t58 028]863

Commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2012, related to governmental and business-type activities
construction in progress totaled approximately $3.8 million and $182 millioq respectively. Additional
information about the City's capital assets can be found in Note III.D. to the fnancial statements.

General Fund Bonded Debt limit

The Ciry Charter limns bonded indebtedness for General Obligation bonds to 15 percent of the total
assessed valuation of all real and personal property within the City. The total assessed value on the City's
2071-2012 tax roil was $124.438 billion, which results in a net total debt capacity of $18.666 billion. As of
June 30, 2012, the City had $460.7 million of General Obligation bands outstanding.

General Obligation Bands and Other Bontl Ratings

The City continues to receive high general credit ratings from all three national rating agencies despite
the dit(icWt financial and economic conditions nationally and locally. in March 2012, Moody's Investors
Service ("MOOdy's") downgraded the City's general obligation rating from Aaa to Aat citing amulti-year
erosion of the City's General Fund reserves and the City's management being significantly challenged to
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manage retirement costs. in April 2012, Standard & Poofs ("58P") also downgraded the City's general
ohligation rating from AAA io AA+ retlecting Tong-term s~mctural budget challenges. These downgrades
follow actions from Fitch Ratings ('Pitch"j in 2011 when Filch downgraded the City's generel obligation
rating from AAA to AA+ reflecting a reduction of fund balance in the General Fund following 5everai years
of sUUCtural imbalance, high and rising pension and retiree healthcare costs, and reduced expenditure
flexibility following significant labor concessions and service reductions already implemented.

During the year, Standard 8 Poor's reduced its ratings on the Airport Bonds from A to A-and revised the
outlook from negative io stable. As of June 30, 2012, the Aifpod's bond relings were A2 from Moody's,
A-from Fitch and A-from Standard & Poor's.

Subsequent to June 30, 2012, the Airport Revenue Bonds were downgraded by Fitch Ratings from A-
with anegative outlook to BBB+ wph a stable outlook.

Outstanding Debt

The Citys debt service obligations include general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, lease revenue
bonds, and special assessment and special tax bonds.

During 2011-2012, the City's gross outstanding long-term debt decreased 6y $1.854 billion to $2 961
billion, comprised of governmental activities ($1 465 billion) and business-type activities ($1.495 billion).
The balances at June 30, 2011 were $3.705 billion for governmental activities and $1.110 billion for
business-type activities, for a total of $4.815 billion. The decrease of $1.854 billion is primarily due to the
transfer of $2.313 billion of long-term debt of the former Agency [o SARA but was offset by the issuance
of the 2011 Airpoh revenue bonds. Far more intorcna~ion on the dissolution of the former Agency, please
refer to the financial highlights of this MD&A and the Notes to BasigFinancial Statements on page 54.

The table below identifies the net changes in each category (in thousands)

As of As at Net

June ]0. 3013 June ]f1.20N C~anpe

Gwetmmen~al A<Mipes:

Generalo~ligalion EOntls 5 G60,6]0 480.340 UB,650)

HU~Setlion lOB loan 20.803 21.8]] (10]0

San Jose Flnencing AuOOnry

LadSB ~evnnue hontl9 859,98 669,233 (9.655)

~aa s~a.e~~e eonas wnn
re6mn~r:emem agreammi izs,ozo - +zs,ozo

fterenue bonds wiN

pledge agreement 35.105 - 35105

Specal assessment bonds wl~ Ilmlled

gowmmen~al commitment (60.310 163.900 17.594)

ReOevobpmon~Agenry 2.39.515 127685]51

Sub~la~al 1985 <BB A~04809 (P Y39I2]~

9u91n¢Ba-TyPe AClivities:

Revenue bonds 1,668,]05 1,Ui9,125 3BB,580

Slate of CF-Nevolving FUntl Loan 26,]06 30.851 (3.9451

Su64Wa1 1995,451 1p09,9]6 305675

Tidal: 3 2960.9W 9,819.885 ft853,]481

Additional information about the City's long-term obligations appears in Note IILF. of the Notes to Basic

Financial Statements.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

• The City completed 201 L2012 with better operating financial results than expected when the
2011-2012 Adopted Budget was developed. Although the economic indicators in phis region
appear to have stabilized, the City still faces fscal challenges on a longterm basis as the local
economy continues to work its way out of the Great Recession. A set of 2012-2013 budge
balancing sUategies were developed through a comprehensive community outreach process and
Ciry Council SWtly Sessions including a Council Priority Setting Study Session. In June 2012, the
City Council approved a balanced General Fund budget for fiscal year 2012-2013, with a
projected surplus of $9.0 million, a significant change compared to the $115.0 million shortfall
addressed in the 2011-2012 Adopted eudgeL

Due to the improved forecast, the City does not face further service cuts in fiscal year 2012-2013.
Instead, reductions are limited to areas where alternative service delivery models can reduce
costs and enhance service levels In addition, the $9.0 million projected surplus will be used to
meet projected shortfalls in future years.

• The insuKcient property tax revenues to pay enforceable obligations of the former Agency is
projected [o be $24.4 million in 2012-2013. As a resWt, it was assumed that City funds would be
used to ensure adequate funding for SARA obligations for which tha City was obligated. This
resulted in a $19.0 million transfer from the General Fund, with the General Purpose Parking
Fund and the Community Development Block Grant Fund addressing the remaining shorlfa~l.
More information on SARA is provided in Note IV.C.1-6.

• As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Police and Fire Department
Retirement Plan ('PF~RP") had an 84.0 percent actuarial funded ratio for pension benefits. The
actuarial accrued liability for pension benefts was $3.196 billion, and the acWarial value of assets
was $2.686 billion restating in an unfunded acNarial accrued liability ("UAAL") of $570.3 million.
As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Federated City Employees'
Retirement System ("FCERS") had a 65 0 percent actuarial funded ratio for pension benefits. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefts was $2.770 billion and the actuarial vaWe of assets was
$1.789 billion, resulting in a UAAL of $981.6 million.

The adopted 2012-2013 operating budget projects retirement ws~s at $187.7 million in the
General Fund and $246.5 million in all funds, based on analysis provided by Cheiron, the City
Retirement Boards' actuary. Compared to 2012-2013 levels, City retirement contributions for all
funds are forecasted to grow approximately 27.0 percent by 2016-2017.

• As noted in the Trust and Agency Funds section of this CAFR, the PFDRP's net assets
experienced a decrease of $46.0 million in 2011-2012 following a $372.5 million increase in net
asses in the prior year primarily as a result of the depreciation of the fair value of inveslmeNs
caused 6y a short-term deterioration of the equity investment market. The FGERS's net assets
experienced a decrease of $109.0 million in 201 L2012 following a $275.3 million increase in net
assets in the prior year primarily as a result of the depreciation of the fair value of investments
caused 6y a short-term deterioration in the investment market.

Far 2072-2013, the City's contribution rates for pension benefits, as a percentage of payroll, are
as follows: far police and fire members of PPDRP, 56.6 percent and 58.4 percent, respectively,
and 44.5 percent for FCERS members. For 2012-2013, the City's contribution rates for health
and denial benefits, as a percentage of payroll, are as follows: for police and fire members of
PFDRP, 9.0 percent and 6.6 percent, respectively, and 7.9 percent for FCERS members.

On June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted ordinance No. 28332 amending Chapter 3.36 and
328 of Title 3 of the San Jose Municipal Code to provide the City with the option to make lump

18



City of San Jose
Managements Discussion and-Analysis (Concluded)
(Required Supplementary Information - Unaudited)

June 30, 2012

sum prepayments of City required contributions for pension benefits and postemploymeM
healthcare benefits to PFDRP and FCERS. The lump sum prepayment for 2012-2013 was
calculated to be acWarially equivalent to the biweekly payments that would otherwise have been
the City's required contributions to the beneft pension plans and the postemployment healthcare
plans. The Boards of Administration far PFDRP and FCERS approved the actuafially determined
prepayment amount of $7202 million and $121.0 millioq respectively, paid by [he City in July
2072.

• Contributions to the Pos~employment Healthcare Plans are made by both the City and the
participating members. Contributions to PFDRP for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 for Fire
memhers of PFDRP were based on the Board's 10-year cash flaw funding policy. The Police
members of PFDRP and the bargaining units representing the FCERS's members entered info
Memoranda. of Agreements ("MOA") with the Ciry io increase the contribution rates for retiree
health and dental in order to phase-in to full funding of the GASB Statement No. 45 annual
requiretl contribution (ARC) over 5 years beginning fiscal 2009-2010 and ending 2013-2014.
Effective June 26, 2011, the Fire members entered into an MOA with the City to phase-in io full
funding of the ARC over a fve year period with fscal year 2017-2012 as the frst year of the
phase-in.

• As of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the PFDRP was 6.D percent funded
for other postemployment benefits. The actuarial accrued liability far benefits was $1.004 billion,
and the acWarial value of assets was $60.7 million resulting in a UAAL of §943.1 million. As of
June 30, 2011, fhe most recent actuarial valuation date, the FCERS was 12.0 percent funded for
other poshemployment benefis. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1.145 billion and
the actuarial value of assets was $135.5 million, resulting in a UAAL of $1.001 billion.

All of these factore were considered in preparing the City's budget for 2012-2013.

REQUEST FORINFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our residents, taxpayers, wstomers, inves[ore, antl creditors
with a general overview of the City's fnances. Questions concerning eny of the information provitletl in
this report or requests for additional financial information shoultl be adtlressed io the Director of Finance,
200 E. Santa Clara S~ree~, San Jose, CA 95113.
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City of San Jose
-- Statem¢nt of Net Assets

June 30, 2012
($000's)

Govemm¢nlal 6oslmss-Type
- /cllvi~ies Ac~ivili¢s Total

ASSETS

Equity in pooletl cash and investments

M1eltl in Ciy Treasury $ 568.62] 389,120 95],]4]

Receivables (net of allowances

for uncolleclibles) i4p 028 13,405 15),033
due kom nNSitle agencles 3,133 66 3,199

Inlemal balances (5,245) 5,205

Imemm~es 1,214 1,178 2,393

Loans receiveole (net of allowances

for pnmlledibles) 321,045 250 321895

Advances and tleposlls 298 5,331 5.629

O~Fer asses 41,233 191 41.4P4

RestnGetl assets:

Equity In pooletl cash antl Investments

field in Ciry Treasury 40.054 118,5)5 158,628

Cash entl investments heltl with fmcal agent 253,193 231,51] 484,)ID

Other wsM1 antl investments 5,]10 - 5,]io

Receivables (net of allowances

(or uncollec~ibles) - 3,6]2 3,6]2

Deferretl bantl issuance costs

(ne~of accumuletetl emotlizalion) 14,919 1],]03 32,622

Long-term receivables from SARA 22],826 - 22],826

Capital assets (net of accumula~atl

tlepreciation).

Nondepreciable 533,490 21],96] ]51.457

Depreciable 6,064,104 1960.59] 8.004J01

Tota~asse[s 8214029 2,944818 11,158.84?

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 33339 10,838 48.ti6

Hccmetl liebililles 14,6]8 1,663 16,341

Interest payable 10,]53 26,139 36,892

Due ro SARA 850 - 850

Oue to outside agencies 45] - OSl

Short-term noes payable 45.348 4],93] 93,285

Uneametl revenue 15.124 5,4]0 20,594

Advances. tleposils, antl reimbursable credits 9,649 5.163 14912

Long~~erm payables-SARA 28(1 - 280

OlFer liabill(es 24,012 - 2p,g12

Long-term obligations'

due wilM1in one year 69686 29,08] 98,]53

due in more tM1an one year 1896,596 1,49],>20 3,394,31fi

Total llaGlities 2,121,152 1,628.Ot8 3.748.170

NET ASSElS

InveS~etl in capital assets, netoRelaletl debt 5.350666 859,392 6,210,58

Reshicletl tor:

~ebl service 5D 305 24,062 74,]6]

Capital projects 358,319 103,899 n62,218

Community services 526,442 - 528442

Public sa~e~y 4003 ~ 4,443

UnresVicletl (192298) 329,04] 131,]69

Total net asses $ 6,092,8]] 1,316,800 ],409,fi]]

The Notes to Basic Financial S~a~ements are an Integral paM1 o~ ~M1ls sla~ement.
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City of San Jose
Statement of Activities

For the Year Entletl June 3D, 2012
($000's)

No~~E~Oense~Pavanue antl
CO angel In Ne~ASSe~s

r„~m~o~:rv,oy~am. e.o~~:r:

Fca; Fin¢5.
:m enn.ses m.

ser~me:

Opo m~ing
c~..m~:oe
comnemio~:

Capital G~antb
nm

comno~no~:
co.e~~memai
animne:

e~:me::.rroe
anrvm.: romi

Govemmen~al aniWl@s

Qene ml gavemme nl S I11 BM 1~I.Ipt 171 ~ ~W.099) ~ ~8>~089)

Public lately <9g02 33.099 Y1.)P - ~<16611) - ~0O6~6tSJ

Community services 10] 518 9q J5} ~p,SRV ~EG.>9) IB6lJ]1

Senllallon I]55<3 1v16an 85 X6196 16]Bfi

Capi~sl malnlenan¢ <l>6]< 5?3115 J~E00 R26G0 (M].3B1) - 1~6I3H1)

Inge rest and (¢cel c~e~ges II3698 ~II].696) IRJ 8901

Total governmen~a~a0HV111 ¢e 1.583.BBY 80.90} 31,839 ry~095 ]591 fl.0833591

B unna¢8-Type adinlies;

Norman Y. Mlnela $an Josh

Into ~nalbnel Rlryo~ 2Wii90 150.P9 6i0 ~ - ~d)i69B~ (31.SG8j

was~ewemrrremmem synem gas aeo isnea - ~ni zi na zi na

MY~%Ipal Wpl¢~SYbI¢m 3B R60 3B,5R - 120 - 1599 ~509~

Pdlking Syvlem 6,R0 3195 1285

Tobl Business-typo aclivlllen JBl.910 ]6;6A fi]0 10A99 P1.118) ~f0~118~

Taal S 1.9)1.)19 >W.555 fE1A99 ]Jp08 ~1.OBSp 59) ~W.]18~ X1.11 U.0i~

Goneral revenwa.

Taxes en0lrana11ce 19e¢:

v~opeM antl ether nixes

U lillly

RancMSe

1a~:iem oo~~oa~q
e~:~~e.. ~a.e:

Saks texas s~amtl reoenue

Stale of California ~n lieu

Vnrestrlc1e41nle call en4lnveslment Income

ONenevenua

imns~e~s

To~el g¢ne n~rtven uaa entl ba ns(a re

[U~aoNlnarygain ~loss)LOm

CFa n gei net esse6

Nel asse~s~0eglnning

Nel assets ~enEing

The Notes ro Basic Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement.
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aOa, P]] ~ <OJ Bi]

110.9II fl0,912

61109 ~ a1.i09

22451 32.951

n,i3a avae

154,016 - 150.436

36ll 2811

fi,950 J553 10.513

2L10] 21]0]

~ 36] (3 3b ])

809,334 205 809A 19

2,W53)9 Q3$28) '1 Wt 051

1,]89~25< ~38~011) t~t6t~113

__,i~30363J 1.3b.&1 5.6~8.<6d
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City of San Jose
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

($000's)

Retlevelopmenc Housing
General Funtl Agency Activities

ASSETS
Evuily in 000letl cash ana investments

heltl In City Treasury $ 18].J81 ~ 4,313
Receivables (net of allowance
for unwlledibles) 50,540 ~ 26J1

Doe ~~om ootsitle agencies 3,090 -
Duetromo~M1erfuntls 1438
Loans ~ecelvables (net of allowance
(orunwllea~lblea) 2,241 - 81,121

Ativances and tleposits 252 - -
Reslrided assets'.

Equity in pooled casM1 and investrnen~s
heltl in Cdy Treasury 726 - 1348

CasM1 antl invesimen6 haltl with 9scel agent 11 - 3

other cash antl invesMenls - - -
AtivancesloofM1erlunds 3,297 - -
Ativancwrecelvable-SANA - ~ -
o~ne~as:ate

Total assess 8 249,3]s 6945b

LIABILITIES AN0 FUND BAIANGES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8 9,651 - 9fi2

Accrued salaries, wages, antl payroll taxes 12,096 - 28
Due to o~be~ funtls -
Due to SFRH 124 - )26
Due to other agenrves 45> -
SM1otl-term notes payable - - -
Deferretl revenue 4,322 - 23.009
Ativances, tleposi~s, antl ~eimbmsable cretli~s ] - -
Advances~mmo~herfunds 1820 -

Lon9-cerm ativances from SARA -
Olherliabilities 21 p91

Total liabilities fi6,348 24,]25

Fund balances:
NonspenEable 13 - -
Resvinetl 392 - 44]31
CommlXed 69014 - -
Assigned ]0,236 - -
Unasslgnetl 493]3

Total funtl balances 183,028 40,>31

Total liebilllies anJ funtl balances $ 249.3]6 69,45fi

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of phis s~aiement.
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San JOSe
AROrtlable Special Finandng Nonmajor To WI
Housing Assessment Au~botlty Debl Govarnmen~al Govammental

Investment FUntl DisVicts Service Funds Funtls

36.058 - - 31945fi 54],608

1.436 53,250 ~ 35,90J 143,801
- - - 43 3,133

- 10,29] 11 ]35

253,4]] - - 4,6W 321,065
5 41 298

825 - 3],355 00,054
130,062 59,]3 63.414 253,193

ia,os~ ~s,aee as,oaa
85,371 - - - 65,3)1
20,]]1 20,462 41233

3P1,113 183.9d2 ]3.]99 512940 1,46fi,fi25

41 ip00 91 20,415 32.560
110 23 - 2.000 14,257
- - 103 N 833 11.936

B50
45]

- - 45,340 - 05.348
],448 52,885 - 14.995 102659
- 4,138 - 5,504 9,849

14,091 - 3,297 2,500 30,88
280 280

2.921 24 412
21,9]0 SB,dAB 48.839 60,168 280,496

5 - 20.503 20,521
]55,163 125 491 24,955 3]x,844 921 556

- - 28 928 91.942
- - 52.673 Y02.909

(P2) 49,201

355.143 125,496 24.955 d52,]]fi 1,18fi,t29

3]].113 183.942 ]3.]94 512.944 1466.625
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City of San Jose
Reconciliation of [M1e Govemmen~al Funtls Balance SM1eet

to the SUtemen! of Net Assets
June 30, 201]

(8000's)

Total iuntl balancesyovemmental tuntls (Page 25) $ 1196,129

hmo~nts reported for govemmenlal activi~ias in iM1e statement of net assets are JiRerent
bewuSF

Capital assets usetl In governmental ac~iNlies are not (mancial resources antl

Iherefo~¢d~e not repodetl in lFe tuntls. These asses consis~of.

Lantl 463]26

Cans(rvction in progress 89,]64

Infraslmclvre assets 11,365,408

OtM1er capital assets 1,]58,091
Hccumula~etl depreciallun ],066.0]8

Total capital assets 6 590,891

Long-term receNables ere nod available to pay (or cu~ren~ periotl axpendiiures antl,
0eretore, are deferred on the motllfetl accmal basis. 36 fi50

LonB'~erm receivables associatetl wiiM1 lease and pletlge revenue agreements
from IM1e private-W ~POSe ims~ funtl are not curten~ fnancial resources antl
IMerebre are not repoRetl in ~M1e governmen~dl funds 162,455

Bond Issuance costs are expentletl in govemmen~al funds when paitl,
however, such wsis are capitalized and amotlizea over the life of the
wrres0onding bontls for Outposes of fie statement of net assets. 14 919

Special assessments are repotletl as revenue when levletl in govemmeni-wide
financial stalemenis. In governmenfa~ funtls, these assessments are repotletl as
tleferred revenue (a llabllily) since obey are nod available. 52,885

Interest payable oolong-term debt does not require IM1e use of currenl9nanclal
esouroes antl. ~M1ere~ore. in~eres~ payable is generally no( aarued as a liabllily
in IM1e balance sM1ee~ of governmental Nntls. (10,)53)

Inlemal service luntls are usetl by management to charge the cost of public
works supPOq employee benefls, antl stores, vehicle, maintenance antl
operations to lntllvltlual (untls. The assesantl llabllities are Included
in govemmenlal activities In iM1e statement of net assets. p¢ 635

Long-term liabilities are not tlue and O~Yable in Ne current periotl antl iM1erefore are not repoM1etl
m me m~a:. rnose ramnre: oo~s~s~ oe

eooa: a,m nose: nayaoie ~i oss,ssi ~
nmre~ea mieresi o~ ~epnai aaarac~aron novas ~sio~
nccruea vacation, sick leave and comoensa~o~y iimc ~so,aza7
Eslimatetl liability for selr-insurance (139]20)
Nel o~ber poslemploymenl Lene9ls obllgelian (292,244)
Other (B 5]i)

Total long-berm Ilabili~ies (t 962 936

N¢t assets of goaemmental activities (Page 22) $ 6092,8]7

The Notes to Basic Financial S~a~emenls are an inte9~el patl of this sla~emen~.
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City of San Jose
Statement oT Revenues, Expenditures

antl Changes in Funtl Balances
Governmental Funtls

For the Year Endad June 30, 2012
($OUO's)

REVENUES
'faxes ana special assessments
Licenses, permits, antl Mes
In~ergovemmen~al
CM1arges for Curren(services
Rent
Imeslmenl Income
OlM1er revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunenl:
General govammen~
Pub~lc safety
Community semces
Sanitation
Capital maintenance

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal
Inleres~antl fiscal charges

Total expentliWres
Cxcess (tlefdency)oi revenues

over ~vnder)expendlmres

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES
Proceeds ~mm sale of capital asses
Reclassification of demand bonds to shotl-term liabuiry
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total otM1erfnancing sources (uses)

EAraortlinary gain pnss)fmm dissolution o~Ybe

Retlevelopmen~ Housing
General Pontl Agency Activities

$ 581,088 E].662 -
62.19]
24,Gfi4 26 23,594
35,405

353
4.681 29] 1.891

33,839 1.5]] 9,556
]21,8]4 89,915 35,041

]1.897 1,520 -
044,336
114,048 - 38,398

849
36,6]1 16,192
35)I 98

10)4 74,955 -
536 56,350

672,888 149.113 30,398

48.886 (59198) (3351)

969 11288
- (08,600) -

12,6~5 25.156 1].532
(2],293) (19.]201 (3]Q286)
(13,fi59) p1,8967 (552)59)

Retlevelapment Agency (18 ffi0) ]0.4]8 (6.883)

Net change in fund balances 16,407 (80 Bi 6) (J62 9]4)

Fund balances- beginning ifi6.fi41 60,616 407705

Wntl balances~anding $ 183028 44,]51

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an Integral part of lM1is siatemen~.
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San JO52

AHOrdabie Special Flnandng Nonmajar Total

Housing Assessment A~iM1ariry Oeb~ Govermmental Governmental
Investmen(FUntl Districts Service Funtls funtls

- 14,645 ~ 128,9]0 ]92,365

- - - 62,19]
- - 1,831 62,054 112.189

- ~ 192.11] 22].522

- - 20,81] 20,9]0
],401 554 509 146] 16,800

6.013 416 4,880 56281
13,414 i5,fii5 2,360 410,105 1288.304

- - 19,968 98.385
- - ~ 1,454 465,]90
4318 - - 57,955 214,]19

- - - 133,059 133,908
- 65 - 107.418 160,346

2),926 - 21439 53,038

- 3.59a 11,305 19,650 110,5>8
10,135 25,984 20,333 116,338

4,318 41]20 3],289 3]9,2]fi 1,323,102

9,096 (2fi,105) (34,949) 30,829 (34)98)

- 12.23]

- - ~ - (88,600)
3C60J] 16 34,500 40,382 4]6.238

1103) (581 (54.]32) (0]2.112)

346.04] 1127) 34.442 (14.351 (]229])

44.]95

355,143 (26,232) (50]) 16,4]9 (fi2,300)

151,]28 25,062 d36,29~ 1,248429

355,143 125496 24,955 452,]I6 1.186.129
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City of San Jose
Reconciliation of Me CM1anges in Fontl Balances of Govemmen~al Funds

to the Statem¢n[ of Activitlex
For IAe Year EndeU June 30, 2011

(5000's~

Nel c~anga In IUnE balance[-bfal goeemmen~al luntl5 (Page 2A)

animlies In ~M1e s~elemen~ of ec~hMles ne 41Xe~en~ bemuse.

CaplleloNlays am ~apoRCJ as expentliWms In gowmmenlal(unaa. However NlFe

:miom~m orn~nwne:, me Posy omopnei asses: is ano~iee o~ennee r:rma~ea
~..~miu~:n: aeere~mro~e.pe~:e. mm~o~R~m ninon m~.~~mo~m:air

cao~~ai o~nay
oee~~~a~m~e.ce~:e
Excess a14eprecialion expense wvrtapXaloWlay

Tie nel eXect olvanous miscellanaous lransacfonc lmoNing capllal axuls

o.a. saiea, ~=e~e~ms, eaa~ms, m~airo~s)
oonaiea as.ms
Pm~'ae45 ROm sale of wplal e¢scle

Galn an tllaposol o~assc~a

Bontl iss e}pentle]In gov niel lunES wM1en peld ~oweve[ e

fap11o1heE end amo~lxetl over ~~e Itte of the w~recpon~ing ~onJS b~0c pwpmes

a11M slalemvn~ o(adivi~iev.

RapaYmen~al lonB-~e~m abllge~ion 0~~^~~Pel is re~tletl ee en expenLnme In

gocemmenlel W nES eM, thus. des Ike efledof re0uclnq land Eslarcz Cewuse

ant financial raswrcan have been used ForiM1e gmerrvnenLwlEe stelemenn,

nowwa~, one o~~~~~oei oavme~m ree~~e one naminie:mme :u~emem o~~ei
axn ana ao nm resmun an amen:e m me s~e~emem otecim~aes. me crys

io~e.~e~ oeipaeo~s were rae~rQamG~.e ra~~mai aavmoms..,e meae ~o
eo~anoiners Ana Huo.

A¢ne41n1e restexPonae on longiami tleb~IS PoponeJ in lie yovemm¢nLwltle

Sbl¢m¢p101 at11Mlea, bul tloes nol re0uMe lM1e uSe MCUnen~fnendal resomres.

Amo~lm4on ol~on0 premiums. dlswunls an0 Eekrtetl amoun~6 on mWnEing

:noma ee e,ce~~ea a• a w~m+o~em onmeres~ e.pense omne a~memem or
a~m~re. mi. amo~m repmema ixe ~e~a«r~ea mieren e.oe~ren~e me
monmanoo of eom oremmm:. a.:.A~mi aye a~ie~~oa amo~ms ~~ ~ew~ame

nol repo~eG in gawemmC0181 NOtlS:

CNM Isle Baal an capllel apprecia~ron bonEs

m~ree.~ ma~~~~ea m~eres «.,oe~:e
amonewro~maemr~oa amo~m., mAm~~~m. ~~e msw~ms
romi ~enmere:~eapa~se era emom:euo~om~o~~vwam~~m

e~a~:e:ome ~o.a~~oa womenee wi~eaea ro~~emi mo~ma aeenne any:
ecczyaa~a~a:,oieyareoot co~ime~ea ~a~auaeie~re.e~~e a~aareaomRaa
m gee eovemmenuuunas. ozkrrea revenuos maeacea W ie~: amoom inrs yez~.

ime~~aiumoe m~e:are sea ny ma~aaemem m~na~au m~~F~m P~nn~.on:
s uppoR employee be nefib. antl wM1iGe,m entl ope mlrons to lntlioNUel

lu ntl ¢. TM1e c~a nge In nal acae~5161ntJUtleE n'govemmenlal aGlN( 51n ~M1e

s~olamen101 dcliv llles.

some ~~m: ~eoa~ee m one i~a~eme~mi a~imiues ao ~m rea~irP m~ Aso ornem n~e~~~ai re:o~r~e: era marero~a are ~m ~ar~n~e a. ~roe~mmre5
grovemmenlel luntls. TM1ese ec~lvilln wn51510l:

Nel Increase In ne~OPEO oEABallon

Nel decease In va~'a6oq 51G leaoe, antl compensalorylime

ueu~o,e..e menummee uadrp m~sen-msmenae

rveme~rea:e m Omer nanuitie:
renal amwo~ai A.ae~a~w~es

e.pemn~res reponea m ma eore,~ma~~ei m~ao em ~m m e~~e~~memai anwaa: i~~wae
ie~ia::n~aro~oi aoma~a oo~as io snoa~a~oergeuons

LonB'~¢im asses were nol fmanelel rewuecee ol~pe (o Rnc~Pgenry an0lM1e longi¢~/n

IlnMlpioa wo~B OO~tlYB enO peyobl4 en0 as 5uo~~~e tran stars of ~M1ose fie ~1116es In e[va ss

of assets to SPRP are not reco~0etl'n IM1e governmental lnntln.

Cha nBe ~~ ~vl aeaaR of gove ~~TBnOl agivili¢5 (Page 23)

TM1e Notes to Basic Financial 5htemenls ere an lnleB~al patloflMS slatomenl.
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City of San Jose
Statement of Funtl Net Assets

Pmptletary Funds
June 30, 2012

15aoa s~

Enterprise Funtls
Hormen Y. Minem

Sdn JOSP WdS~ewa~C~ MUnlclpal IMemdl
International Treadnen[ Wa(e~ %~kin8 Servl<e

Airport System System System Total Funtls
PSSETS
Cu«ant assets.

Equl~y in pooled rssM1 antl investments
hell in Gty Treasury $ B6.ip9 271,326 18,]81 iJ,904 389,120 21,019

Receivables (net of allowance
0r uncollegibles) 8.54% 1,981 2,661 216 13,405 22]

Due from outsitle aAencies ~ fifi - - 66 -
Duefmm atherfwtls - 37] - - 3]] -
Prepaitlexpensas, ativances anO tleposils 186 ~ ~ - 186 -
invenmries i,P9 Ln9 t?ia

Total unreslriGetl current assets 96.842 2]4,929 21492 1 _120 409.303 22.460

Restricted assets'
Equlry In pooletl wfi antl Investments

M1eltl in Clry Treasury 63.081 53 J51 - 2,03] 118,5)5 -
Cashandipveslmenis~elawiNfiSCala9enf 22491] 6,600 - - 231,51] -
Receivables(netofallowances
br VnCO1leIXibles) 3,fi]2 - - - 3,6]2 -

Prepaitlexcenses, ativances antl deposits 5 5

Total restncletl wrrent assets 291,681 60051 2,03] 353,]69
Total wrrent asses 308,523 339,980 21,442 i5,t5> 958.12 22,460

Noncurrent asuls:

(oe~ot eecumuleled amortlza0on) 9,166 63] - - 1],903 -
~oanreceivabie 25~ ~ - - 250 -
HtivarresantltleposiK 5,331 - - ~ 5,931 -
HtivdnCCStoo~M1ertuntls ~ 5099 - ~ 5.44
Capital assets (reel of acamuletetl
tlepreciation7:
Nondepreciable 117,]49 BOp2> 6~5 19596 21 ],9fi]
Depreciable 1,365.496 466.)84 66.843 41 Bi4 1,94059] 6)03

Total nonwrren~asse~s 1,505992 551992 6],448 6i C60 2ie6892 6.7W
Total asses y 1,892,515 886,9)1 88,890 ]6,61] 2,994,994 29,163

The Notes to Basic Financial Sta~emen~s are an integral patl of this statement.
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City of San Jose
Statement o/Fund Ne[ Assets

Proprietary Funtls
June 30, 2012

($000's)

EnMrOrise iuntls
Norman V. Mine~a

San JOSe Wactewa~er Municipal Internal
In~e~mllonal IIeaMent Wa~ei Pa~Ming SBrvICe

Airport System System System Total Funtls

LIABILITIES
Cvrrenuiabnifes.

Acmunls payable $ 3.5]0 7,25] 1.852 ln5 14424 ]]9
Nwuetl Ilabiftles 4]] 1.082 69 35 1,663 42t
Inleresl payable D 2]> - ~ 285 -
~ueto oNer lands ~ ~ 176 ~ 178 -
Short-term notes payable 4),937 ~ - - ~ 47.93] -
ACGO2E VM21iDO, SIfE IEd~2 d~tl

mmpensalory time 153fi 2,230 15> ]7 4,000

Eslimaletl liability for sel4insurance 560 L30~ 126 - 1,986

Ativances antl deposits payable 1.483 - - 0B 1,1]1

Unearnetl revenue 3,885 - - - 3.885 -

LoansOayable - 3.9]] - - 3,97] -

Pollulionremetliationobligalion 330 330

Total curren11ia0illlres mrestnctetl 59.306 16,123 3.380 945 79834 1,200

Curtent liabilities payable

rmm resmnetl assets.
Accomts payable antl a2mea llabilllies at5 - - - a15 -

InlereslpaVable 25,fi15 239 - - 25,B5d -

Unearnetlrevenue 1,SB5 - ~ - 1.505 -

Currentpotllono~bontlspayable 13,296 5,114 ~ - 18,410 -
PoIlWionremetliationodlgalion 384 384 _ -
Tolal corzenl liabllilles oava~le from
reslricletlassels 41 295 5.353 46.6E8

Total current llabllilies 10~.fi81 2149fi 3,380 9E5 126482 1200

NOnWltBnt IIBblliliBS.
AccrVed vacation, sick leave and

ompensalory time 510 6Cd - - 1 154 3,328

Eslimatetl liability for sell-insuranw 1,0]1 1.939 - - 3,010

Ativance conMbutions from participating -

ager~cies - 282] 2.82] -

Ativances. tleposils and reimbursable
cretlps - - 1,165 - 1.165
Loans payable - 22.]69 ~ - 22.]fi9

BonUS payable (net oY premlvMJlscounl

anE tle~ertetl loss on reNntling) 1399,159 13,64] ~ - 1642,006
Ne~o~M1er postemploymenl benelils oblgallon 9964 16,261 1223 533 2>,9H1

Totalnmcurrenl liabllitias 1.410.]04 88,081 2,388 533 1501)12 3,338

l o~a111a~IliOes 1.511.385 1 9,563 5,]68 1,4]8 1628,19E 4528

NET ASSETS

Imesletl in ca0ilal assets. net of
relatetl debt 24I,IIi 482,]13 6),448 61 n60 059.392 6703

ResVicle4 for de0l service 16,1]6 6,209 - 203] 24963 -

ftes~nUetl b! W pill pfOjEC~S dntl o1M1¢!
agreements 53,1]4 50,]25 - - 103,899 1368

UnresMCietl G4.009 23).911 15.6)4 1~64I 32809] ifi.5G4
Total net assets 8 381,130 ]]].4W 89,122 ]5,139 1,316.800 24,635
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City of San Jose
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, antl Changes in Funtl Net Assets

Proprietary Funtls
for the Year Entletl June 50, 2012

~$000's~

En~erpns¢ Fmtls
Norman Y. Mineta

San JOSC Wastewater Munl<Ipal Internal
International TreaMenl Wader Parking Sorvlce

_ Alroort System Svetem SYStem Total Pontls
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for serviws ~ 46.101 140.968 284]2 11,585 3P.16G 113223
Rentals antl wncessons 80,835 32<8 ~ - BA.083
Coslomer transpotla~ion fees 10,13] ~ - 10.13] -
Service connec~loR ¢n9ineerin9

antl inspecllon - 3.150 ~ - 3.150 -
ConVibutions - iC,38] ~ - ta,3W
Ober 5 908 5 908

1"oral opeating reeenues 13],113 tai bbl 284)2 11,585 0a4,831 ~t3,223

OVERRTING E%PENSES
Operations antl maintenance 804]6 100415 25,554 3,112 189,555 ID5612
General antl edminisVelire 18,328 21]38 1,26] 3,5]8 00911 -
DeprecWlionanaamotlKation 52.130 24,]38 2.d38 2485 et ]91 3,552
Melanals and supplies - 286 - 115 401
Other expenses 359

Total operzling expenses 130,832 14],17] 20,259 9290 316658 ID9,518
OperatNg income (loss) 8,181 20.484 OB]~ 2295 2B,t]3 3.705

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Passenger (aclllry cM1ayes 16,]8] - - - i6)8I
Operating grants 6]0 - ~ - 6I0
Inveslmen[income 221) 1,193 98 54 3.562 $~i
Interest expBn50 (09,438) (2,654) (1) ~ p2003~ -
ConViOUtions refuntletl horn patllcipaiing

agenues - (i C6) - - (1C8) -
Lossontlisposalofcepite~assets (10) (3) - ~ (13) -
Ot~ar~evenues,nel 813 122 ]D 1,005

Ne~nonopera~ing revenues(expanses) (48.961) (t 488) i6J 54 ~W,228~ 231
Income (loss~betore cepl~al conlribNiorts,
Iransters, eneetreoMinary loss (@,]BO) 18,996 (620) 2349 (22055) 3,936

Capital conVibuGons ],399 3.3>t 128 - 10.899 -
Transfemin ~ - _ _ ~Ty
Teensfers oN (118) p.980) (608) Q54) (3.35]) (820)
EMraorEinary loss from tlissolution olt~e

Retleve~opmenl Hgancy (13528) (13.5281
CM1anges in net essals (35.d96) 2038] (999) (11,933) (28.041) 3227

Nei arses- beginning 41fi.fi26 ]5],022 8q 121 01,0]2 1344841 21608
Nel asses- entling $ 381,130 J]],g09 83,122 ]S.119 1316.800 24,635

The NMes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral patl of this statement.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Recelpls from ws~omen antl usarc
c.m ra~mae from mian~~a ~rvme: e~•~aea
Payme nos to supPllers
PaVmenls to employees
OlM1ae receipts

Net cesM1 provltleO by operaling atllalles

CASH PLOWS FflOM NONCPPITAL

FlNANCING I~CTIVRIES
T2nale~~mm otM1er Nnds
Trancler to oNer lands
(AOVenC¢s lob /payments lmm a~M1erfuntls
Subsltlrealrom opero~irg grants
AEVancesaM deposlls recelvetl

Nel paM1 pmvNntl by ~usetl in~noncapllal

aM rela~etl financing atlNllles

CLASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALANO
RElATEO FINANCING AC11VrtIE5
Pasunger ~ecllity c~eryes receivetl
Reluntletl Pomm¢lCldl paper
PrOce¢tl5 VOm issuance b EoMs
wymom mr reeemptio~ of eooe:
Principal 0eyment on Comm e~cial paper
Subsltlies hom capital grants
A[q uisltion aM wnslructun of Gpl~al .~ssels
Principal paltl on Eebl

Bond Issuance msl paitl
miens pale o~eee~
Atlo9 M.¢5 d~tl tle pos ids received

Nel cax~ use~in ca pilal
e ntl lelaletl lnen [Trig activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
P~p[¢BOS ImT salsa and maW~i~l e[ of

os~men~s
Purchase of lnaeslm¢nIs
Inle rest R¢IVetl
Tana a~a swans remain

Nel casM1 provltlea ~y (useJ ln)Invealing ac~rvlYree

Nel c~angel ca5~ dntl CdSF equivd lB016

CaS~antl CdbM1 equivalanl5-begin nine

CaSM1 entl CeSM1 equivalents - ending

City of San Jos€
Statement of CasM1 Flows

Pmprie[ary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2012

IS000's~

Enlaiwi6e FunEs
Norman Y, Mlnela

San Josh Wastewater Munlnpal Internal
Inle rnalio n al Tte almen~ Wa~ar VarXing Se rvlce

AlrOOn _ 5 ey hem_ System Syzlam Total Funtls

13]111 i5J,549 2]915 it561 330,136 -
ni~w

(fi5~2d9) (BPpB9) (21.3]6) (4 450) (147.531) (BI.500)
(25,912) (6<02fi) (6,2]0) (2p89) (9fi,3W~ (18.235)

LROtl 10 43] ~ - 15,645

5I,ll0 41496 2269 4,91< ia5953 A,9]4

ifl
ry 15) (1,800 (50B) p5f) ~3,J5]) (030)

1~Od5 ('I,Wp) (1,801) ~i.fii6) -
tao pao

9 17

625 19x51 It,9811 12.4351 10 2ael p091

16,]35 .. 10,]35
(354,250) ~ ~ - (350,250 -
50<pOt 500 OQf -
(92p851 (92J85) -
p,89P1 - ~ p,092)
6,197 :1,482 1op58

(10 Ji i) (10 0&) (4V 1) (02) (93,106 (1,510)
(I1915~ (8 050 ~ - (30]65 -
(6 ]]5) - - (6 ]]5)
(61 ]]8) (l 568) - ~ (64,3d5) -

59~ - 594

_,(35.`331 R152p 13411 (82) ryI<Oi) 11.510)

285,21] 5.460 ~ ~ 290,6]]
(J00,489) (6.2G 0) (308,]1])

1,057 t J55 90 :q 2,x56 231
79 79

X10195) 648 90 Sd (13,005) 231

8041 19.6]fi 627 2051 30.]95 2984

3P~216 J05,053 10,159 12.49 864 ]t3 18005

8 376$5] 325,49 18,]01 14.941 885,tOB 2L019

The Notes b Basic Finantial Stalemenis are an Integral pah of lM1ls stalemenl.
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City o/San Josc
Sla~emen~ of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Endetl June 30, 2012

(SOOa•sj

San JOSE Waslewa~er Municipal In~¢mal
International ireatm¢nt Water Pocking Service

Airpotl SVAem Svslem System iolal PonOs
aeconciliellon oloDe~aling in me (loss~b

net casM1 pmNtletl by opcee~ing
ec~IVlOes:

Operatin8lnwme (loss S 6101 20 <04 p0]~ 2 295 ]8J i3 3 >OS
AtljuiMenlc to rewncile opere0ng

m¢ (Ime) b net waM1 Omvitletl Ly

operalin9 atlivJies:

Oeprede0on antl amotlizalion 52140 2q]30 Pg9B 2.485 81 ]9t 3,552
ONer nonopeating revenues 013 @ ]0 ~ 925

Oec se (lnvease)In

Nvnunb rewlvaNe (595 234 (636) (3M1) (1011) 932
Oue Imm outside agencies - S] q]
Inventories - (3]) - (3)) 1982)
Pr¢paltl eXp¢neea, ativanwsaM tlaposils 3 - - - 3 -

se~tleo se)innc(ea ee
A~zounls payede entl aoceueJ fieblfAlea I~.i>v7 (]884) ]B3 (4) (10,699) (f iB09)
PCGUetl vBCelim, eiM IedM

antl wm~nsaloryllme (2]0) (BAB) - (ID9) (1220) (9t2)
Eelime~eE llab Alty lo~SClLlnsum n<0 (6]J~ (929) 3 ~ (1,800) -
Oneerretlrevence 912 912
Adver¢¢s antl tlapoails payable t5 - 86 tOt -
ONerl'ubllilies 2459 SA50 COB 184 8,0]6

io~al aJjuslmen~c 50997 31012 3,056 2,fi 19 i],890 126]

Nal cas~provitletl by opemling aviiWlies 5 5].1]4 41.498 2,268 0910 105,853 0,912

Reconclliatlon of waM1 anU wsM1 equlvalenls
~o ~~e statemmto(nal ess¢IS:

Eauiry In paoletl cash antl Imec~men4s
~eIE'm CIIy Treasury

Unrealridatl $ 86,109 2]1326 18.>8t 12,9W 099,tID 21019
ResingeE 63089 55p5t ~ 2037 fl8,P5

CasM1 antl lnvesMen~5 M1aNl wpM1 fiscal agent 3349P 6.6W ~ - 1JL59
~.~: m.e:~mem: ~m meewp

the tlefnitron o~cesM1 equrvelen~s 13].0561 (fi 2<BI (49.tOp)
Cas~enE CasM1 equlvalen6 3 J3G.29 325.II9 10101 14891 695,108 21019

Nancas~ nonvappal, ca0~~a~anE relaleE OnanNng,
entl inve[~Ing ectivlliea:
m:s a~aiwo~roroapuai a:~~: s Uo) (a7 - - rya) -
Aw~~:mop of ~puei e..a~: o~ awounu
papnw a~a xccmea fzeaale: igos - - tpos -

Capnalconln~ulionslmm devHOpers 069 129 ~ 99p
Nmotllmlpn of tlelertetl cM1arg¢e antl olA e~charges D]3 ia9 - ~ 6R -
CM1Ungeinlai~valuoo~inv¢simenlx 9fi1 $59 - ~ 1.220
E traortlinary loss on wnte~oX o1 SEMFaMance - ry3528) (i ),5P8) -

The Notes to Basic Rnancial5tatemenis are an Integral patl oRFis stalemen~.
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City of San Jose
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assels

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2012

(5000's)

ASSETS
Curzenl assets:

Equity In pooled cash antl investments heltl
in City Treasury

Cash and investments
Inveslmenis of retirement plans:

Imes~man~s, exclutling securities lentling wlla~eral:
FxeE income
Global antl tlomestic equity
Pooletl international equity
Private equity
Imernational currency contracts, net
OppoMUnistic
Real assets
Real estate

Severities lending cash collateral investment pool
Total investments of retirement plans

Receivables:
Accmetl invesiman[income
Employee conhibutions
Employer coninbu~ions
Due from the Ciry of San Jos€
Other

Raslrictetl cash and investments
Totel current assets

Nonwrren~ assets:
Advances to the Ciry of San Jos4
Loans receivable, net
Deposits
Deferretl charges, net
Pmpetly heltl for resale
CaD~~al assets:

Nontlepreciahle
Depreciable, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Pension
Trust Private Purpose Agency
Funtls Trus[Funtls Funtl

104 1,896
6,965

1,308,]42
1,488,100
486.819
220.941

941
2]],885
447,805
199.118
239 396

A.6]1,]4]

12,908 2
2,623
3,583

aso
6,003 519

153,999
4,696,844 162,43] 1,698

280

31.2]5

155

30,940

22,4]4

35,581
92.895

213,600
S 4 G9fi,8C6 3]6,037 1 698

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral patl of this statement.
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City of San Jose
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

fiduciary Funtls
June 30, 2072

(s000•s~

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities'.

Oue ro brokers
Acvuetl in[eres~paya0le
Pass Nmugh payable ~o @e County of Santa Clara
Uneametl revenues
Securities lentling collalerel, tlue to borrowers
OfM1e~llablli~i¢5

Total current llabililies

Long-tem~liabililies:
Due within ona year
Due in more Than one year

Total nonwrrent IiaGilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFIgTS~
Heltl in Ims~foc

Employees pension benef~s
Employees' postemployment heel~hcare benef~s
Retlevelopment tlissolution antl other puryoses

Total net assets (tleficitsj

Pension
Trus[ Private Purpose Agency
Wntls Tmst FUntls Funtl

18,873
41.682 -
15.]19
2.390

241.8]5 -
].60] 2.320 1,698

268.355 62.061 1.698

258.149
2.119.105
2,3]7,254

268,355 2,439,315 1,698

4.22],713
200.]76 -

(2.W32~81
$ 4.428.689 (2.083.2]B)

The Noes to Basic Financial Sta~emenis are an inle9~al part of this statement.



City o(San Jose
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Entletl June 30, 2012

($000's)

Pension Private
Tmsf Propose

ADDITIONS Funtls Trusl FUntls
Retlevelo0mentproperty tax revenues $ - 82,23]
Inves(men~ income'.

Interest ]3,268 t55
Divitlentls 4A,609
Nel rental income 6610 322
Nel change in fair value of plan investments (218,025) -
Inveslmenlexpense5 (1],986) -

Totalimestmentinwme(loss) (111529) 4~9

Securities lending income:
Secun~ies lentling income 3,109 -
Secun~ieslentling rebates antl expenses p]4) -

To~al securities lentling income 2,335
ConVibulions.

Employer 255,130 -
Employees 56.369

Total wnVibutions 311,499
Other 5]8

Total atltliilons 202,310 83,292

DEDUCTIONS
General and atlministrative 9,2V 96]
Project expenses - 816
Pass @rougM1 amomtsblM1e County of Santa Clarz - B.1]]
Loss on fdi~v2luB 0f prOpa~y M1¢Itl tot resale - 2],41]
~eprecialion - 2,040
Interest on tle01 - 45,401
HeapM1 insurance pr9miums 61,556 -
Reluntlso(cnn~ribWions 4.121 -
Reliremen~ and other benefits:

Death benelils 16,081 -
Reliremen~ beneRS 268,315

Total tletloctions 35] 290 84,918

ExlraoMinary bss from tlissolulion of the
Retlevelopmenl Agency (2,061$51)

Change In net assets (154,980) (2,063,3]])

Nel assets heltl in Ir~s~ for pension,
postempl0ym¢n~ heallM1Care benefls
antl oihet purposes.

Beginning of year 4,583,4fi9 99
Entl o(year $ 4,428,489 (2,063,2]8)

The Notes to 9asic Financial S~alemenls are an integral patl of tM1is statement.
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City of San Jose
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2072
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City of San Jose
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2072

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The Ciry of San Jose, California (the "City"), was chartered on March 25, 7850, and has operatetl
under aCouncil—Manager form of government since 1916. The City has defined its reporting entity
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ('GAAP") in the United States of
America, which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations, and
functions should be included in the reporting entity. In evaluating how to define the City for financial
reporting purposes, management has consideretl ali potential component units. The primary
criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's
fnancial accountability. A primary government is financially acwuntable if it appoints a voting
majority of a component uniPs governing body and it is able to impose its will on the component
unit, or if there is a potential for the component unit ro provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specifc fnanciai 6urtlens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be
financially accountable if a component unit is fscally dependent on the primary government
regardless of whether the component unit has a separately elected governing board, a governing
board appointed by a higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board. Based upon the
application of these criteria, the following is a brief description of each component unit included
within the City's repohing entity. Ail such wmponent units have been "blendetl" as though they are
part of the primary government because the component units governing body is substantially the
same as the City's primary government, and/or the component units provide services entirely, or
almost entirely, to the City or othervvise exclusively, or almost excursively, benefits the Ciry, even
though it does not provide services tlirectly to ii.

• Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jose —The Redevelopment Agency of the City of
Jose ("Agency") was established in 1956 by the City Council as a public entity legally separate
from the City. In January 1975, the City Council declared itself the Agency Board, replacing a
separate board. Until June 28, 2011, tha Agency had the broad au~horiry to acquire,
rehabilitate, develop, administer, and sell or lease propetly in a "Redevelopment Area"
Redevelopment projects are developed in cooperation with private developers. Public
redevelopment projects are also developed under cooperation agreements 6ehveen the
Agency and the City or other public entity that will own the project.

On June 28, 2011, Assembly Bill Xi 26 ("AB Xt 26°)was enacted. This legislation is referred to
herein as the Redevelopment DissoWtion Law. On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme
Court upheld the cons~itutionali~y of AB Xi 26, and all redevelopment agencies in California
were dissolved 6y operation of law effective February 1, 2012. The legislation provides for
successor agencies and oversight boards that are responsible for overseeing the dissolution
process and wind down of redevelopment activity. Al the City's meeting on January 24, 2012,
the City Council affirmed its decision to serve as the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment
Agency of the City of San JosA ("SAftA"), effective February 1, 2012, and as such is a
component unit of the City. Also, upon dissolution, the City Council elected to retain the
housing assets, functions and powers previously performed by the former Agency.

• Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Josh — Tha SARA
was created to •serve as a custodian for the assets and to wind down the affairs of the former
Agency. The SARA is a separate public entity from the City, subject to the direction of an
Oversight Board. The Oversight Board is comprised of seven-member representatives from
local government bodies: two City representatives appointed by the Mayor; Iwo County of
Santa Clara (County) representatives; the County Supenntentlent of Education; the Chancelbr
of California Community Colleges; and the largest special disVict taxing entity in the Merged
Project.
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City of San JosB
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

In general, the SARA's assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at
the dale of dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to
legally enforceable contractual commitments). In future fiscal years, the SARA will only be
albca~ed revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the estimated annual ins[allmeM
payments on enforceable obligations of the former Agency until all enforceable obligations of
the former Agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. Based upon the
nature of the SARA's custotlial mle, the SARA is reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose
tmsHUnd).

Parking Authority of the City of San Jose —The Parking Authority of the City of San JosA
(the "Parking ANhority") was created by [he City Council to provide funding through debt
issuance for parking facilities constructed on City-awned land_ Certain members of the City
Council are also members of the Parking Authoritys Board of Diradors. On May 8, 2012, the
City Council suspendetl the Parking Authority as there was no foreseeable need to finance the
construction of additional public parking in the San Jose Downtown area [hmugh the Parking
Authority.

• San JosA —Santa Clara Clean water Financing AuthoHty —The San Josh —Santa Clara
Clean Water Financing Authority (the "Clean Water Financing Authority") was created pursuant
to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the City and the City of Santa Ciara. The
purpose was to fnance the acquisition of, and adtlitions and improvements to the existing San
Jose —Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant (the "PIanP'). The gean Water Financing
Authority is governed by afive-member Board of Directors, three are members of the San Jose
City Council and two are members of the City Council of the City of Santa Clara. The Clean
Water Financing Authority and the cities of San JosE antl Santa Clare subsequently entered
into an Improvement Agreement, which requires each city to make base payments that are at
least equal to each city's allocable share of debt service requirements of the Clean Water
Financing Authority's outstanding revenue bonds.

City of San Jose Financing Authority —The City of San Jose Financing Authority (the
"Financing Authority") was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers AgreemeN between the City
and the former Agency. The Financing Authority was crea~etl for the purpose of facilitating the
fnancing of public improvements and facilities within the City and is authorized to issue bonds
far this purpose. The Financing Authority is governed by an it-member Governing Board,
which consists of the members of the City Council.

• San JosA Diritlon Development Authority —The San Josh Diridon Development Authority
(the "Diridon Authority") was created in March 2011 by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
between the City and the former Agency. The Diridon Authority was created for the purposes of
overseeing the development of properties within the Diridon area of the City, and is authorized
to issue bonds for this purpose. The Diridon Authority is governed by an 11-member Governing
Board, which consists of the members of the City Council

Separate fnancial reports for the fiscal year 2012, containing additional in(orma~ion and more
detailed information regarding financial position, changes in financial position, and, where
applicable cash Flows, are available from the City's Director o/ Finance, 200 East Santa Clara
Street; 13~~' Floor, San Josh, CA 95113-1 90 5, far the following:

Fetlereted City Employees' Retirement System (the "FCERS")

Police and Fire Depatlment Retirement Plan (the "PFDRP")

• Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jose (for the period July 1, 20V lhmugh
January 31,2012)
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Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Jose (for the period
February t, 2012 through June 30, 2012)

Norman Y. Mineta San JosA International Airport (the "Airport")

San Jose —Santa Clara Clean Wader Financing Authority

• San .lose Diridon Development Authority

B. Financial Statement Presentation

GovernmenRwide Financial Statemen[s. The govemmen4wide financial statements, i.e. the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities, display information about the primary
government and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. For example, the tlirec~ expense charges based on actual use are not
eliminated, whereas indirect expense allocations made in the funds are eliminated. These
statements distinguish behveen the governmental and business-type activities of the City.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues and
other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant eMent on fees charged to e~c[ernal parties.

The s~a[ement of activities presents a comparison befrveen direct expenses and program revenues
for each business-type activity of the Ciy antl each function of the City's governmental activities.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associatetl with a business-type activity or
governmental function and; therefore, are clearly identifable to a particWar activity or function.
Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational
or capital requirements of a paAicular program. Revenues that are not classifed as program
revenues, including all taxes, are instead presented as geneal revenues.

Fund Financial Sfa[emenfs. The fund financial statements provide information about the City's
funds, inclutling its fduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category, such as
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary, are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements
are on the major governmental and enterprise funds of the Ciry and are reported separately in the
accompanying financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported
as non-major funds in the accompanying financial statements.

Fund accounting is designed to demons~ra~e legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate
accounting entilywith aself-balancing set of accounts.

The City repotls the following major governmental funds:

The Genera! Fund is the City's primary operating fund, it accounts far all revenues and
expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the City that are nod
accounted for through other funds.

The Retlevelopment Agency Fund is a capital projects /und that accounts for the activities of
the former Agency for the seven months ended January 31, 2012.

The Housing Activities Fund is a special revenue fund that accounts for 20 % retlevelopmen~
property tax revenue until February 1, 2012 and all of the City's aROrdable housing activities
funded by federal and state grants. Prior to the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, the
Housing Activities Fund accounted for all of the City's affordable housing activities, including the
20% redevelopment property fax revenue (i.e. former tax increment) se4aside for low and
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moderate income housing and related expenditures. Upon dissoWtion of the farmer Agency and
the City Council's election to retain the housing activities previously funded by the former Agency,
the City created a housing successor fund (Affordable Housing Investment Fund) and transferred
the assets and affordable housing activities.

The Af/ordable Housing Investment Fund is a special revenue fund that was created to
administer the housing assets and functions related to the Law and Moderate Income Housing
Program retained by the City following the dissoWtion of the former Agency. On October 16,
2012, the ANordable Housing Investment Fund was renamed to Low and Moderate Income
Housing Asset Fund to comply with the requirement of Assembly Bill 1484.

The Special Assessment Districts Fund is a capital projects fund that accounts for the capital
project and debt activities related to debt issued to finance public improvements benef~ing
propeRies against which special assessments or special taxes are levied.

The City of San Jos€ Financing Authority Fund is a debt service fund that accounts for the
debt activities related to capital projects funded with Financing Authority debt.

The Ciry reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Norman Y. Mineta San Jose International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the
City owned commercial service and general aviation airport.

The Wastewater Treatment System Fund acwunts for the financing, construction and
operetions of the Plant and the regional water reclamation program.

The Municipal Water System Funtl accounts for the operations of the five water system
operating districts: North San Jose, Evergreen, Coyote, Edenvale, and Aiviso.

The Parking System Fund accounts, for the operations of the parking garage facilities, parking
IoGS, and parking meters located within the City.

The City also reports the following types of funds:

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the public works support services provided
to City-wide capital programs; the cost of operating on automotive maintenance facility used by
other CiN departmeNS; and employee benefits including medical, vision, dental, and
unemployment insurance costs on a wsl-reimbursement basis.

The Pension Trust Funtls account for the accumulated resources to be used for retirement
annuity and postemployment healthcare payments to members of the FCERS and the PFDRP,
collectively, the "Retirement Systems".

The Private Purpose Trust Funds acwunt for the custodial responsibilities that are assigned to
SARA with the passage of Ae Xi 26, and for the resources legally held in trust towards support
of the EMQ Families First Agency (a.K.a. EasHield Ming Quong).

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of the
San JosB Arena.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The hasis of accounting determines when transactions are reported on the financial statements.
The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary funds (excluding agency funds) financial
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
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accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the rela~etl cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
exchange, include property and sales faxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accmal
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenues from sales and use, transient occupancy and utility user tax are recognized when the
underlying transactions take place. Revenues from grants, en~itlemen~s and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eli9ibiliry requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental funds are repoded using the current fnancial resources measurement focus. This
focus is on the determination of, and changes in fnancial resources, and generally only current
assets and wrrenl liabilities are included in the balance sheet. These funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which
they become both measurable and available to finance eependitures of the fiscal period. for this
purpose, the City consitlers revenues as available if they are collected within sixty days of the end
of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred.
However, principal and interest on long-term debt and certain estimated liabilities, such as
compensated absences and self-insurance claims, are recorded only when payment is due.

In governmental funds, revenues from taxes, franchise fees, investment income, certain state and
federal grants and charges for services associated with the current fscal period are all considered
to be susceptible io accmal and so have been recognized as revenues in the current period. All
other revenue items are wnsidered measurable and available only when cash is received by the
City.

Proprietary funds distinguish behveen operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operetions. The principal
operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers (or sales and services.
In addition, Wastewater Treatment System Fund wntributions from other participating agencies for
their allocation of the Plants operating and maintenance expense are also included as operating
revenues. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the Cily funds certain programs by a combination of specifc
cosFreimbureement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, when program
expenses are incurred, there are hoth restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the City's policy to frsl apply restricted wst-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, followed by restricted categorical block grants, and then by unrestricted generel
revenues.

Private-sector standards of accounting and fnancial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both governmen4wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent ghat those standards do not wn¶ict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Acwunting Standards Board ("GASH"). Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

D. Use of Estimates

A number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of revenues,
expenditures/expenses, assets and liabilities, and the discbsure of contingent liabilities were used
to prepare these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United Sates of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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E. New PronounCement5

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the
financial statements for the following GA58 Statements:

In November 2010, GA58 issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Service Concession Arrangements. The objective of this s~atemen~ is to improve financial reporting
by addressing issues related to seniice concession arrangements ('SCAB"), which are a type of
publio-private or public-public partnership. This stalemen~ requires discbsures about an SCA
including a general description of the arrangement and information about the associated assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows, the rights granted and retained, and guarantees and commitments.
Application of this statement is eRective for the Ciry's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No.61, The Financial Reporting Entity.' Omnibus – an
amendment o/ GASB Statements No. 74 and No. 34. This statement modifies certain requirements
for incursion of component units in the fnancial reporting entity. The requirements of this statement
result in fnancial reporting entity financial statements being more relevant by improving guidance
for including, presenting and disclosing information about component units and equity inleres~
transactions of a fnancial reporting entity. Application of phis statement is effective for the City's
fscal year ending June 30, 2013.

In Decemher 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Cotli/ication of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pie-November 3Q 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The
objective of this statement is to inwrpordte into the GASB's authoritative literature certain
accounting and financial repotling guidance that is included in the following pmnouncemenls issued
on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conFlict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

L Financial Accounting Standards BoaN ("FASB") Statements and Interpretations

2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions

3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants'
("AICPA") Committee an Accounting Procedure

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the "FASB and AICPA
pronouncements." This statement will improve financial reporting by contributing to the GASB's
efforts to codify all sources of generally accepted accounting principles for stale and local
governments so that they derive from a single source. Application of this statement is effective for
the City's 5scal year ending June 30, 2013.

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred OuMlows of
Resources, Deterred Inllows o/ Resources, and Nef Position. This statement provides financial
repohing guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. This
Statement also amends the net asset repotling requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and ManagemenYS Discussion and Anarysis—for Sta[e and Local Governments, and
other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources into the defnilions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming
that measure as net position, rather than net assets. Application of this statement is effective for
the Cry's fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities, which is intended io clarify the appropriate repoding of deferred ouHlows of resources
and deferred inFlows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. Application of this
statement is effective for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections – 2012-an amendment
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o/ GASB Sfafements No 70 antl No. 62, to resolve conflicting accounting and financial reporting
guidance that could diminish the consistency of fnancial reporting. This statement amends
Statement No. 10, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of a sate and
local governments risk financing activities to the general fund and the internal service funtl type.
This statement also amends Statement No. 62, Codi/icafion o/Accounting antl Financial RepoRing
Guitlance Containetl in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, 6y modifying
the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a siraigh4line
basis, (2) the difference beRVeen the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal amount of
a purchasetl loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees relayed to mortgage loans that are sold
when the sta~etl service fee rate diNers signifcantly from a current servicing fee rate. Application of
this statement is effective for the City's fscal year ending June 30, 2014.

In June 2012, the GASB issued two new standards, GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting
for Pension Plans-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25 and GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment o/ GASB Statement No. 27 to
improve the guidance for accounting and repoding on the pensions that governments provide to
their employees.

Key changes include:

• Separating how the accounting and financial repoding is determined from how pensions are
funded.

Employers with defned benefit pension plans will rewgnize a net pension liability, as defined
by the standard, in their government-wide, proprietary and fduciary fund fnancial statements.

Incorporating ad hoc cos4of-living adjustments and other ad hoc pos[employment benefit
changes into projections of benefit payments, if an employer's past practice and future
expectations of granting them indicate they are essentially automatic.

• Using a discount rate that applies (a) the expected long-term rake of return on pension plan
investments for which plan assets are expected to be available to make projected benefit
payments, and (b) the interest rate on atax-exempt 20-year AA/Aa or higher rated municipal
bond index to projected beneft payments for which plan assets are not expected to 6e
available for long-term investment in a qualified lmst.

• Adopting a single actuarial cost allocation method —entry age normal — rather than the
current choice among six actuarial cost methods.

Requiring more expensive note disclosures and required supplementary information.

The statements relate to accounting and financial reporting and do not apply ro how governments
approach the funding of their pension plans. At present, there generally is a close wnnection
between the ways many governmenLS fund pensions and how they account for and report
information about them in audited financial repotls. The statements would separate how the
accounting and fnancial reporting is determined from how pensions are funded. Application of
Statement 67 is effective for financial statements for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 2074.
Application of Stalemenl68 is effective for the City's fscal year ending June 30, 2015.

F. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted and unrestricted pooled cash and investments held in the City Treasury and other
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unrestricted investments, invested by the Ciry Treasurer, are considered cash equivalents for
purposes of the statement of cash flows because the CiVy's cash management pool and funds
invested by the City Treasurer possess the characteristics of demand deposit accounts. Other
restricted and unrestricted investments with maturities less than three months at the time of
purchase are also considered cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

2. Equity in Pooled Cash antl Investmen4s Held in City Treasury

Most cash balances of the City's funds and some of its component units are pooled and invested by
the City Treasurer unless otherwise dictated 6y legal or con~racwal repuiremen~s_ Income and
losses arising from the investment activity of pooled cash are allocated to the participating funds
and component units on a monthly basis, based on their proportionate shares of the average
weekly cash balance.

3. Deposits and Investments

Investments are acwunted for in acwrdance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments antl /a External Investment Pools, as
amended

This statement requires governmental entities to report investments at fair value in the statement o/
net assets or balance sheet and to recognize the corresponding change in fair value of investments
in the year in which the change occurred.

Pooled Cash antl Investments heltl in City Treasury. The City reports its investments held in
City Treasury at fair value. The fair value is based on quoted marked information obtained from
fscal agents or other sources. Income from some investments is assigned to the General Fund.
The assignment of the income from these inveslmen~s is supported by legal or contractual
provisions approved by the City Council. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the total
investment income from these investments assigned and trensferretl to the General Fund was
approximately $228,000.

Retirement Systems. The Retirement Systems' investment policies authorize various types of
investments. These investments are reported a[ fair value. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price on the Iast business day of the
fiscal year at current exchange rates, if applicable. Investments that do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value basetl on the most recently available investor reports or
audited financial statements issuetl by the manager of those funds. The fund manager provides an
estimated unrealized gain/loss of the fund based on the mast recen~ty auditetl financial slafemen~s
antl other fund information. The fair value of separate real estate properties is based on annual
independent appraisals. In addition, per the Retirement Systems' Real Estate Investment
Guidelines, mohgage loans at (air value on the separate real estate properties are not allowed to
exceed 50% of the pmpertys fair value. Purchases antl sales of securities are reflected on the
date of trade. Investment income is recognized as earned. Rental income from real estate activity is
recognized as earned, net of expenses.

Other Investments. Non-pooled investments are generally carried at fair value. However,
investments in investment agreements are carried at cost. Income from non-pooled investments is
recoNed based on the specific investments held by the fund. The investment income is recorded in
the fund that earned the income.

4. Inventories

Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (frst-in/first-out) or market.
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5. Specia/ Assessment Dlstric[s

Special assessments are recorded as receivables when liens are placed on properties. Special
assessments not considered available are recorded as receivables and offset 6y deferred revenues
in the governmental fund financial statements. In general, special assessment and special tax
bonds are fully secured by liens against the privately owned properties benefited by the
impmvemenls for which the bonds were issued. There is no reserve far delinquent receivables
since priority liens exist against the related properties and hence the City's management believes
(ull value will ultimately be received by the City. SurpWS funds remaining at the completion of a
special assessment district project are disposed of in accordance with fhe City CounciYS resoWtions
and with the applicable laws of the State of California. A liability is recorded for the balance
remaining until a final legal determination has been made.

8. Advances and Deposits

Amounts deposited in connection with eminent domain proceedings and special assessment
surpluses are reported as advances and deposits. In the governmental fund statements, non-
current portions of these are offset equally by either a deferred credit or a fund balance in the
nonspendable, restricted or committed account to indicate they do not constiWte expendable
financial resources 2vailable for appropriation.

7. Ofher Assets

Other assets primarily consist of real properties acquired outright and/or through foreclosure in
connection with the housing reha6i~ita~ion progrem and a leveraged asset associated with New
Market Tax Credit Financing Program. At June 30, 2012, the City reported other assets in the
amount of $41,233,000_ Of which, $20,771000 is for the housing rehabilitation program,
$19,610,000 for the New Markel Tax Credit Financing Program, and $852,000 for economic
development programs. These assets are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable
value.

8. Bond Issuance Costs, Original Issue DiscounLS and Premiums and
De/erred Amounts on Refundings

In the govemmen4wide fnancial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund s~alement of net assets. Band premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance casts, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount and deferred amounts on
refundings. Bond issuance costs are deferred and are amortized over the term of the related debt.
Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 7993, are
deferred and amohized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For
governmental activities, gains or lasses occurring from advance refundings are deferred and
amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to June 30, 2001.

In the fund fnancial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Restricted Assets

Assets that are restricted for specific uses by bonded debt requirements, grant provisions or other
requirements are classified as resirictetl because their use is limited by applicable bond wvenanis
or agreements.
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f0. Capita/ASSetr

Capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, vehicles and equipment, infrastructure, and
all other tangible and intangible assets that are used in operetions and that have initial useful lives
in excess of one year. Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activity columns in the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary funds' statement of
net assets, and the private-purpose trust fund. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial
individual cosh of more than $5,000 for general capital assets and $100,000 for major infrastructure
assets, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost if purchased or wnstmcted. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the
time received. Capital outlay is recorded as expentliNres of the governmental funds and as assets
in the government-wide financial statements to the eMeN the City's capitalization threshold is met.
interest incurred during the consfmction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
reFlected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested
proceeds of tax-exempt debt over the same period. Amotlization of assets acquired under capital
leases is based on the shover of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset and is
included in depreciation and amortization.

0uildings, improvements, infrastructure, vehicles and equipment, and furniture and fxtures are
depreciated using the sUaighbline method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 5 — 40 years

Improvements, other than buildings 10 - 50 yeare

Infrastructure 25 - 50 yeare

Vehicles and equipment 2 -40 years

furniture and fxtures 70 years

Capital assets which are used for general governmental purposes and are not available for
expenditure are accounted for and reported in the government-wide fnancial statements. Capital
assets that meet the definition of the major infrastructure networks or extend the life of existing
infrastructure nehvorks are capitalized as infrastructure. Infrastructure networks include roads,
bridges, drainage systems, and lighting systems.

it. Compensated Absences — Accrued Vacation, Sick Leave, and Compensatory Time

Vacation, sick leave, compensatory time, and related benefts are accrued as determined by the
agreement behveen the City and [he respective employees' collective bargaining group. For
governmental funds, compensated absence obligations are recorded in the appropriate
governmental funds when due. The portion not currently due is recorded in the governmen4wide
fnancial statements. For proprietary funds, compensated absences are expensed when earned 6y
employees. At year-end, the awrued but unpaid compensated absence obligations are recorded as
current and non-current liabilities in the appropriate proprietary funds.

Vacation hours may be accumulated up io two times the annual accrual rate, not io exceed a
maximum of 400 hours for non-sworn employees and 360 hours far employees represented by the
San Jose Police Officer's Association ('SJPOA"). Employees represented by the International
Association of Firefighters, Local 230, may accumulate vacation hours up to 400 hours for
employees on a 40-hour workweek and 576 hours for employees on a 56-hour workweek.

Generally, employees in the FCERS who retire with at lean 15 years of service or 20 years for
police officers and firefghters in the PFDRP may be eligible to receive, upon retirement, sick leave
payouts based on percentages of accumulated unused sick leave hours as determined by the
respective collective bargaining agreements. Cedain bargaining unit employees in the FCERS are
no longer eligible for a sick leave payout effective January 1, 2012.
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72. Interlund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided, reimbursements and/or transfers.
Loans and balances related to unsettled service trensactions are reported as receivables and
payables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation of similar fund types, and are
refereed to as either "due toRrom other funds,' i.e., the current portion of intertund loans and
unsettled service transactions, or "advances toRrom other funds,' i.e., the non-current portion of
intertund loans. Any residual balances outstanding behveen the governmental activities and the
business-type activities are reported in the governmenLwide fnancial statements as "internal
balances".

Services provided are deemed to be at market or near market rates and are ~reatetl as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are defined as when one fund incurs a cost, charges
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces iGS related cost as a reimbursement AEI other inteAund
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
netled as part of the reconciliation to the governmenbwide presentation.

13. Sel/-Insurence

The City is selbinsured for workere' compensation, general liability, auto Iiabiiiry, and certain other
risks. The City's workers' wmpensation activities are funded antl accounletl for sepaately in the
fund financial statements based upon the activities of each fund. The current poAion of claims
liability is accounted for in the General Fund and the enterprise funds on the basis of settlements
reached or judgments entered within the current Tiscal year. In the governmen4wide fnancial
statements antl the enterprise (und financial statements, the estimated liability for all self-insurance
liability claims is recorded as a liability.

14. Net A55eG5/Fund Equ(ty

The government-wide and proprietary fund fnancial statements utilize a net assets presentation.
Net assets are categorized as invested in capital asses (reel of related debt), restricted, antl
unrestricted.

• Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Relatetl Debt -This category groups all capital assets,
including inirasimcWre, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of tlebt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Assets —This category represents net assets that have external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contri6u~ors or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constiWtional provisions or enabling legislation At
June 30, 2012, the govemmen4wide statement of net assets reported restricted assets of
$939,509,000 in governmental activities and $128,361,000 in business-type activities. Of
these amounts $380,952,000 and $67,400,000, respectively are restricted by enabling
legisla~ioa

• Unrestricted Nef Assets —This category represents net assets of the City, not restricted far
any project or other purpose.
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15. Fund Balances

Untler GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund TyUe De/initions,
the fnancial statements reposing for governmental funds classify fund balances basetl primarily on
the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which those
funds can be spent. Fund balance for the Gity's government funds consist of the following
categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balence — inclutles amounts that are not in a spendable form, such as
inventories, prepaid items, and long-term loans and notes receivables. It also includes amouNs
that are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact or required to be retained in
perpetuity, such as the principal of an endowment fund.

Restncfed Fund Balance — includes amounts repotled as restricted when constraints placed on
the use of resources are either (1) eMemaliy imposed by creditors (such as through debt
covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govemmeNS; or (2) imposetl
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

• Committed Fund Balanca — includes amounts that have been limited to specifc purposes as
defined in the City Charter or through adoption of an ordinance by the City Council, the highest
level of decision making authority of the Ciry. These commitments may be changed or lifted, but
only by the same formal action that was usetl to impose the constraint originally. City Council
action to wmmi~ fund balance must occur within the fscal reporting period while the amount
wmmived may be subsequently tletermined.

Assignetl Funtl Balance — includes amounts that are intended to be used by the Ciry far specific
purposes through City Council budgetary actions. Intent is expressed by (a) the Ciry Council or
(b) a body or official to which the City Council has delegated the authority to assign amounts to
be used for specific purpose.

• Unassigned Fund Balance — inclutles amounts within the General Fund, the residual resources,
either positive or negative, in excess of what can be properly classifed in one of the other four
fund balance categories. Unassigned amounts are technically available for any purpose. Other
governmental funds may only report a negative unassigned balance that was created after
classification in one of the other four fund balance categories.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance categories, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned.

16. ExbaordJnary Items

Extraordinary items are both i) unusual in nature (possessing a high degree of abnormality and
clearly unrelated to, or only incidentally related to, the ordinary and typical activities of the entity)
and 2) infrequent in occurrence (not reasonably expected to recur in the foreseeable future, taking
into account the environment in which the entity operates).

The dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California quell{es as an extraordinary
item since this state-wide dissoWtion was both unusual and infrequent. Accordingly, the transfer of
the former Agency's liabilities in excess of its assets as of February 1, 2012 from the City's
governmental activities to the SARA fiduciary fund was recorded as an extraordinary gain in the
City's government-wide financial statements and as an extraordinary gain or loss in the
governmental and proprietary funds. The receipt of these liabilities in excess of assets was reported
in the SARA fiduciary fund fnancial statements as an extraordinary loss. In addition to the transfer
of the former Agency's assets and liabilities, the transfer of cash out of the Housing Activities
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Funtl's Low and Moderate Income Housing Program to pay enforceable obligations of SARA in the
amount of §6,863,000 was also recorded as an extraordinary loss.

AB Xi 26 specifically invalidates existing agreements between the former Agency and the City,
except far 1) those enteretl into at the time of issuance of debt, far the purpose of securing
repayment of such debt; and 2) loans or advances from the Low and Moderate Income Housing
Fund. Therefore, on February 1, 2012, AB X1 26 invalidated the following City loans previously
reported as long-term receivables from the former Agency (1) City of San Jose Parking Fund Loan
($13,528,000); (2) Ciry of San Jose Parkland Fees ($8,112,000); (3) City of San Jose Autumn
Street Property ($630,000); and (4) the portion of the City of San Jose Supplemental Education
Revenue Augmentation Fund Loans ("SERAP Loans") and its relatetl accumu~aled interest and
fees that were funded from sources other than the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund
($10,078,000); and (5) invalitlation of accrued interest with SERAF Loans in excess of the LAID
rates pursuant to AB Xt 26 as amended with Ae 1484 in the amount of ($2,940,000).

The components of the extraordinary gains and losses recorded in the fnancial s~atemenis are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Governmental adlNties:
Pormer Agencys transfers of net assets at January 31.2012'.
Trans@rs wtoHOrmer Agency Wntl assets $ (ifi4,@0)

Transfers out of former Agency PunE liabilities 234 d98
Eatraortlinary gain repotletl In the former Agency Funtl ]0,4]8

Transfers out of the former Agencys capRal assets (180,407)

Transfers out of the former Agencys otM1er long-term assets (60.84])

Transfers aal of the farmer Agenq's long-term tleb(nel deferred amounla ?224,]31
iransfersoul of the loaner Agencys in~eresi payable entl other longterm liabilities 50.14]

E~IraorOinary gain(mm imnsfers of the Pormer Agency liabilities in excess of asses P,ID4,~02

irensfers out of HOUSIng ACtivities FUnds cas~lo pay SARA's enforceable obligations (6,863)

Invalitlalion of loans antl interest beMeen iM1e forcner Agency and IM1e City:

Loans funtletl an0/or asaumetl by the General Funtl (18,820)

Acuued interest on SERAF Loans in excess of the LAIF rate (2,940)

E~1rao~0inary lose from invalitlation of loans antl Interest (21?fi0)

Extraordinary gain from dssolution of the loaner Agency- governmemal activities 2,~15,3]B

Business type aclivilies:
Invalitlation of loans antl interest between the former Agency antl the Cily.
Loans funtletl from Ne Parking System Funtl (13,528)

EN~aoMinary loss from tlissolu(ion of the former Agency- business-type activities (13.528)

Ea1raoMinary gain (mm tlissoWGOn of the ~ortne~Agenry- primary govemmen~ $ 2,U61,B51

17. Property Tazes

Property taxes are collected on behalf of and remitted to the City by the County of Santa Clara (the

"County"). The amount of property tax levies is restricted by ARicle 13A of the California State

Constitution (commonly referred to as Proposition 13).
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The County assesses propetly values, levies, bills, and collects the related property taxes as
follows'

Secured Unsecured
Valuation/lien dales January 1 January 7
Levy tlates October 1 July 1
Due dates (delinquent after) 50 % on November 1 (December 10) July 7 (August 31)

50 % on February 1 (April 10)

The City has elected to participate in the "Teeter Plan" offered 6y the County whereby cities receive
100% of secured property and supplemental properly taxes levied in exchange for foregoing any
interest and penalties collected on the related delinquent taxes. Accordingly, properly taxes levied
for the fiscal year are recorded as revenue when received from the County.

General property taxes are based either on a flat 1 %rate applied to the fiscal 1976 full value of the
property or on 1 % of the sales price of the property on sales Uansactions and construction that
occur after the fscal 1976 valuation. Assessed values on properties (exclusive of increases related
to sales and constmction) can rise at a maximum of 2% per year depending on increases in the
consumer price index.

The Citys net assessed valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was approximately
$1202 billion, an increase of approximately 0.8 % from the previous year. The Cirys tax rate was
approximately $0.188 per $100 of assessed valuation, which inclutletl the t% basic levy and
additional levies for general obligation hoods Measures "O" and "P" (2000) and Measure "O"
(2002).

18. Wastewater Tmatment System

The Wastewater Treatment System is an enteryrise of the City and is comprised of the Plant,
including South Bay Water Recycling, and the San Jose Sewage Collection System.

The Plant provides wastewater treatment services to the City and to six other sewage collection
agencies. The Clean Water Financing Authority was establishetl to provide fnancing far the capital
programs of the Plant including the regional water reclamation program. The City's sewer service
rates pay for the City's share of the Plant operetions, maintenance, and administration and capital
costs.

In 1959, the City and the Ciry of Santa Clara entered into an agreement to jointly own antl operate
the Plant. Untler the agreement, the City serves as the administering agency and is responsible for
operating and maintaining,the Plant. The cities share in the wpilal and operating costs on a pro
rata basis determined by the ratio of each city's assessed valuation to the sum of both cities'
assessed valuations. Annually, these percentages are determined and applied to the capital and
opereling costs on an accmal basis. For the fiscal year entled June 30, 2012, the Ciry's portion of
the capital antl operating costs was approximately 82.8% and, based on operations through the
fscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City's interest in the net assets of the Plant was approximately
82.9%.

II. Stewardship, Compliance, antl Accountability

A. Deficit Fund Balance antl Net Assets

A deficit fund balance of $172,000 was repotled in the non-major capital projects Fiber Optics
Development Fund. It will be eliminated with future transfers from the General Fund.
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The Public Works Programs Support Internal Service Fund also repohed deficit net assets of
$969,000. The deficit is expec~etl to be eliminated in future years through rate increases for its
services provided to the City departments.

Prior to February 1, 2012, the California Redevelopment Law provided tax increment fnancing as a
source of revenue to redevelopment agencies to fund redevelopment activities. Once a
redevelopment area was adopted, the former Agency could only receive tax increment to the extent
that it could show on an annual basis Thal it has incurred indebtedness iha~ must be repaid with tax
increment. Due to the naWre of the retlevelopmeN fnancing, the farmer Agency liabilities exceeded
assets. Therefore, the former Agency historically carried a deficit, which was expected to be
reduced as fuWre tax increment revenues were received and used to reduce its outstanding Iong-
term debt. This deficit was transferred to the SARA on February 1, 2012. At June 30, 2012, SARA
has a deficit of $2,063,382,000, which will 6e eliminated with future redevelopment properly tax
revenues distributed from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund adminis~eretl by the
County's Auditor-Controller.

B. Deficit Unrestricted Nel Assets — Governmental Activities

At June 30, 2012, the City reports a defcit unrestricted net assets in its Statement of Nel Assets —
governmental activities in the amount of $197,298,000. This deficit is primarily due to .the City's
accrual of certain long-term liabilities, such as compensated absences and estimated claims, that
are recognized as expenses under the accrual basis of accounting as the liabilities are incurred;
however, these expenses are not budgeted (funded) until the liabilities are anticipated to come due;
and the City's recognition of other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations for OPEB costs in
which the actuarial annual required wntributions are greater than the amount funded into the
OPEB plans to date. Pursuant to the City's latest agreements with its bargaining units, the funding
to fully fund the OPEB's annual required contributions is being phased in aver a fve year period
with varying ending dates (see Note IV,A.).

111. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Cash, Deposits and Investments

As of June 30, 2012, total Cily cash, deposits and investments, al fair value, are as follows (dollars
in thousands):

rm~a.ry r~~a:
COVpmmov~al Buslnesclype Penslan PoralaPUryox Cerryinq

Ac~lvllles AglvllltY Tmsl Trvsf 

p9eni

Value

Egv~lym pooled ves~enE lnveslmenls 5 S60 GP 5 389.40 5 ~ S ID< 5 696 5 959,51]

OlM1er cesM1 end lnoas~ma~6 - - fi,965 ~ 6,565

~(vletl lnm5Men15.

REQUih ~~U~IeE <xs~anJ lneeslmm~s 14459 118,95 ~ - X56.@9

vnlh PoCelegegi 25]193 231?1] - 153999 - 6d8 ]OB

OIM1e m¢.1eM inwsMenlx ~ ~ -
Inwxmensolreti~emenlplani <,6]1_4_

idMtlepasl~s an~noaxlmenls S P6; 50< 5 ]3900 b <B]I ]<] S ifi1,WB 5 1696 b 6.991.J0i

OepoSitsl (ONSUnCinp n[ms) E ~L$30j

Inveilm¢nIS 6<0289]

Tolpl tlo0osl~s end lnreslmen6 5 fiCtldO)

Pooled Cash and investments Held in Clty Treasury. The Cily maintains a cash and investment
pool that is available for use by all funds and certain componeN units. Each fund's portion of this
pool is displayed on the accompanying governmental fund balance sheets and proprietary fund and

fiduciary fund statement of net assets as "Equity in pooled cash and investments held in City
Treasury."
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Other Cash and Investments. The City has other inves~men~s outside the City Treasury that are
invested pursuant io various governing band covenants, San Jose Municipal Code or Galitornia
Government Cade provisions.

Other cash and investments consist primarily of deposits and invesimen~s with ~mstees related to
the issuance of bonds and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These investments are
made either in accordance with bontl covenants, antl are pledged for payment of principal, interest,
and specified capital improvements or in accordance with trust and grant agreements.

Investments of Retirement Systems. The Retirement Systems' funds are invested pursuant to
policy guidelines established by the respective Boards. The objective of each investment policy is
to maximize the expected return of the funds at an agreetl upon level of risk. The Retirement
Boartls have establishetl percentage guidelines for types of investments to ensure the porHolio is
diversi(etl.

Investment Risk. The investments are subject to ceKain types of risk, including interest rate risk,
credit quality risk, concentration of credit risk, custodial credit risk and foreign currency risk. These
risks are addressed separately for the investments related to governmental and business-type
activities and those related to the Retirement Systems, as follows:

1. Governmental and Business-Type Activities

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment Generally, the longer the time of maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Additionally, the fair
values of the investments may be highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. One of the ways that
the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a comhination of shorter-term
and longer-term imes~ments and by timing the cash flows from the maWrities so that a portion is
maturing or coming close to maturing evenly aver time, as necessary to provide the cash flow and
liquidity needs for operations.

The City has the ability to hold investments until their respective maturity dates; however, the
Investment Policy does not prohibit the sale of securities prior to maturity. The average maturity of
the City's pooled cash and investments as of June 30, 2012, was approximately 387 days.
However, any portfolio restmcturing requires prior conceptual approval in writing from the Director
of Finance. Section 17.2 of the Investment Policy further defnes the parametere with respect to
restructuring the poMolio.

Credit duality Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This risk is measured 6y the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. The City's Investment Policy has mitigated credit risk by
limiting invesimen~s to the safest type of securities, by prequalifying financial institutions, by
diversirying the portfolio and by establishing monitoring procedures.

Investment in Local Agency Investment Funtl. The City is a voluntary participant in the
California Local Agency Investment Fund ("LAIF") that is governed by the California Government
Cade under the oversight of the Local lnvestmen~Advisory Board ("Board"). The Board consists of
fve members as designated by stake statute. The fair value of the City's investment in the tAIF
pool is reported in the accompanying financial s~atemenis at amounts based upon the City's pm-
rafa share of the fair value provided by tAIF, for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that poMolio). The balance available for withdrewai is based on the acwun~ing
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis, which is different from
the fair value of the City's position in the LAIF pool.

As of June 30, 2072, the Cry's pooled and fscal agent investments in LAIF was approximately
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$333,172,000. The weighted average maturity of LAIF was 268 days at June 30, 2012. The total
amount recorded by all public agencies in LAIF at June 30, 2012 was appmxima~ely $21 9 billion.
LAIF is part of the State's Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA). PMIA has a total of
approximately $60.5 billion antl of that amount, 96.53% was invested in non-derivative fnancial
products and 3.47%in slmcWred notes and asset backed securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of bss atiributetl m the
magnitude of a governments investment in a single issuer. The City's investment policy sets forth
the policies regarding concentration of credit risk.

The Ciry Council adopted an investment policy (the "Policy") on April 2, 1985, as last amended on
August 30, 201 t, related to the City's cash and investment pool, which is subject to annual review.
The Policy specifcally prohibits trading securities for the sole purpose of speculating or taking an
un-hedged position on the fuWre direction of interest rates. Perthe Policy, the investments conPorm
to Sections 53600 et seq. of the California Government Cade and the applicable limitations
Contained Within the Policy.

The following table identifes the investment types that are authorized by the Policy as of June 30,
2012:

Authorized Investment Type
Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage or dollar

of PoMOlio

Maximum
Investment in
One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None Nona
U.S. Government Agency Issues Syears None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 20% ̀ 5%'
Insured Time Depasi~s 3 years' $tO million' 5%'
Uninsuretl Time Deposits iB months" $tO million' 5%'

Commercial Paper 270 days 20% " 5 % ̀

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 180 days' 20%' S%'

Repvrohase Agreements 92 days' 50%` 10%"

Reverse Repurchase Agreements 30 days •
Lesser of $25 million

None
or 20 % ̀

Corporate Noes 3 years' 20%' S%'

Local Agency California Investment Fund None State Treasurer Limit None

Money Market Mutual Funds None 20% 10

Municipal Bonds - Category t (City) 5 years iD%' S%'

Municipal Bontls - Category 2 ~S~ate of CA) 5 years 5% ' S%

Municipal Bontls - Category 3 (CA Issuers) 5 years 5% ' S%

Municipal Bootle- Category4(Other495tates) Syears 5%' S%'

Investment Agreements None None None

Mohgage Backed Securities (MBS) antl
5 years 10%' None

CollaFeral¢ed Mortgage Obligations (CMO)

Asset Basetl Securities (A85) 5 years 5% ̀ None

Regesenls wM1ere tM1e Q"ty's imesMenl policy is more resVidive than Ne Call~omla Gowmment COCa.

Other restrictions on investments are summarized as follows:

Purchases of United States government agency securities are limited to issues of

Federal Farm Credit Banks, the Federal Home Loan Banks, Federal Home Loan

Modgage Corporation, and the Federal National Modgage Association.

Purchases of Bankers' Acceptances("BAs") are limited to issues by domestic U.S.
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or foreign banks, which must be rated by Fitch Ratings ("Filch") as follows: an
issuer rating of "B" or better for domestic U.S. banks, "C" or better far California
banks or "A/8" or better for foreign banks. Additionally, foreign BAs mush be in LL5.
Aollat denominations. BAs eligible fob investment must be rated "Pi, At, Fi" or
better from two of the three nationally recognized rating services; Moody's
InveSlors Service ("MOOdy's"), Stantlard 8 Poots ('S&P"), or FtCh, respectively.

Deposits up io the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") limit may be
invested in, but are not limited to, banks and savings and loans with offices heated
in the San Josh area and deposits shall not exceed the net worth of that
depository. Uninsured lime deposits are limited to issuances from banks and
savings and loans with oRices located in the San Jose area and deposits shall not
exceed the net worth of lha~ depository. Additionally, concerning uninsured time
deposits, depositories must have an issuer rating of "B" or better by Fitch and he
collaterelized in a manner prescribed by state law far depositories.

Commercial paper eligible for investment mush be rated "Pt, Al or F1" or betler by
hvo of the three nationally recognized rating services; Moody's, S8P or Fi[ch,
respectively. Issuing coryorations must be organized and operating within the
United States, have total assets in excess of $500,000,000 and shall issue deht,
other khan commercial paper, if any, that is rated "A3, A- or A-" or higher,
respectively, by Moody's, S8P or Fitch.

Negotiable certifcates of deposit are limited to banks and savings and loans with
an issuer rating of "A/B" or better by Fitch and may not exceed the net worth of the
issuing institution.

Repurchase agreements are to be exewled onry with primary dealers of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York and Manciai institutions, which have entered
into [he City's Master Repurchase Agreement and any subsequent amendments to
the Master Repurchase Agreement. Securities accepted as collateral for the
repurchase agreement are limited to U.S. Treasury or U.S. Federal Government
Agencies permitted under the Policy. The market value of the securities that have
been accepted as collaterel shall, at the time of transfer, equal at least 102 percent
of face value of the repurchase agreement. For other than overnight investments,
the securities transferred shall be marked to market on a daily basis and
maintained at a market value to at least 102 percent of the repurchase agreements
face value.

• Reverse repurchase agreements under the Policy are limited to the lesser of
$25,000,000 or 20% of the portfolio value and to those occasions where
unanticipated short-berm cash requirements can 6e met more advantageously by
initiating a reverse repurchase agreement than by selling a security into the
secondary market prior to maturity.

• Corporate notes eligible for investment must be rated "A3, A- or A-" or better by hvo
of [he three nationally recognized rating services; Moody's, S8P or Filch,
respectively.

Funds invested in LAIF, a State of California managed investment pool, may be
made up to the maximum dollar amount per separate legal entity in conformity with
account balance limits authorized by the California State Treasurer. The current
maximum amount authorized by the State Treasurer is $50,000 000,

• Investments in money market mutual funds are limited to those funds registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and for which either one of
the credit criteria are met: (1) obtained the highest ranking or highest letter and
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numerical rating provided by no less than two nationally recognized rating services
or (2) retained an investment advisor registered with the SEC or exempt from the
SEC registration requirements with no less than five years experience investing in
securities and obligations authorizetl by California Government Code Section
53601 and managing money market mutual funds with asses under management
in excess of $50,000,000. Investments by the funds are restricted to U.S.
Treasury and U.S. Government Agency backed securities permitted under the
Policy and mush be maintained al no less than $1.00 per share.

Municipal bonds under the Policy are limited to a total of no more than 20 % o(the
portfolio value. The Policy establishes four municipal bond categories: (7) bonds
issuetl by the City or its agencies (as defined in the Policy), (2) by the Slate of
California, (3) by other California local agencies, and (4) by any of the other 49
slates, respectively. Eligible securities must be rated "A3, A- or A-° or be~[er by two
of the three nationally recognized rating services; Moody's, S&P, or Filch.

• Investment agreements may be used for the investment of band proceeds in
accordance with the permitted investment provisions of the specific bontl
indentures and in accordance with other safeguartls outlined in the Policy to reduce
the risk associated with a provider's inability to meet its coniradual obligations.

• Mortgage backed securities and collateralized moRgage obligations must be issued
by a United States government agency and must be AAA-reled or better by a
nationally recognized rating service.

• Asset backetl securities must 6e AAA-rated or better by a nationally recognizetl
rating service. The issuer of any asset backetl security must have an "A3, A- or A-"
rating or better by Mootlys, S&P or Fitch, respectively, of its underlying debt.

The Policy permits the Director of Finance to authorize investments that depart from the Policy's
numerical limits if such an action is in the best interest of the City and is otherwise consistent with
the Policy and applicable City, state and federal laws. Whenever a deviation or exception to the
Policy occurs, it must be reported to the City Manager within 3 business days and to the City
Council within 10 days of its discovery.
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The fallowing schedule indicates the interest rate risk, credit quality risk and concentration of credit
risk of the Cry's investments, as of June 30, 2012. The credit ratings listed are for Moody's and
5&P, respectively. Certain investments, such as obligations, which are backed by the full faith and
credit of the Uni~etl States Government, are exempt from credit rating disclosures (dollars in
thousands):
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Custodial Cretli~ Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
a depository fnancial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not 6e able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk
for investments is the risk that, in the event of the faiWre of the counterparty (e.g., broker - dealer)
to a hansaclion, the City will not be able io remover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code requires
that a fnancial institution secure its deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collalerai pool held by the depository regulated under state law (unless
so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged governmental securities
antl/or first tms~ deed mortgage notes held in the collateral pool must be at least 170 % and t50%
of the City's deposits, respectively. The collateral is held by the pletlging financial instiWlion's trust
department and is considered held in the City's name. The investments held by the City were not
suhject to custodial cretlit risk at June 34, 2012.

Concentration of Cretlit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the failure of any one
issuer would place an undue financial burden on the City. The City mitigates the wncentretion of
credit risk by diversifying the poMolio and limiting investments in any one issuer to no more khan
5 % of the total portfolio other than the investment types discussed in the above table. Investments
issued by or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds,
extemai imes~ment pools, and other pooled investments are exempt from (his requirement, as they
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are normally divereified themselves.

As of June 30, 2012, the City's pooled investments in the City Treasury have investments in U.S.
Agencies that represents 5 % or more of the total pooled investments in the following:

Federal Farm Credit Banks 1224

Federal Home Loan Banks 1928

Fetlerel Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 25.07

Fede21 National Mortgage Association 21.71

In adtlition, the following major funds hold investments with trustees that represent 5 % or more of
the funds' investments outside the City Treasury as of June 30, 2012'

Special Assessment Oisiricts
Federal Home Loan Motlgage Corporation 5.72

San Jose Financing ANhority Debt Service:
Federal Home Loan Bank 48.24

Airpan:
Federal Farm Credit Bank ifi.83%

wastewater Treatment System:
Federal Home loan Mortgage Corporetion 94.67

Foreign Currency Risk. The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. As of June 30, 2012, the investments in the City's investment pool were not
subject to foreign currency risk.
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2. Retirement Systems

Investment Policies — The City's Municipal Code delegates authority to the Boartls of
Administration of FCERS and PFDftP (the "Retirement Boards") to invest moneys of the respective
plans as provided in the Municipal Code. The .Retirement Boards have adapted detailed
inveslmen~ guidelines consistent with the limitations set forth in the Municipal Code. In fiscal year
2010, each Re~iremeN Board approved new asset allocations to target higher expected returns ai
similar risk levels by changing the asset allocation to a more diversified structure Thal includes
commodities, absolute return, and opportunistic investments. In December 2011, the Retirement
Board of PCERS aligned its asset alioca~ion to the expected returns to the liabilities as determined
in the June 30, 2071 valuations by increasing the level of asset albcalion to absolute return
strategies and real assets and reducing the allocation io equity and fixed income. The Retirement
Systems' investment asset allocations are as follows:

T40e oflmesM¢nt Policy Limns antl 0¢scnp00n5

PFORP Equity - Target of 40% Minimum of 30°o antl maximum of 50%of Ue fair value of
Ne aggre0ate portldlo.
U.S. Large Cap- Target 18Yo
U.S. Small Cap - Target 5°0
Non U.S. Oevelopetl McMels- Targe112%
Non U.S. Emerging Markets- Target 5%

Rxed lncome~Targel o~25% Mlmmum o115%antl madmum o~35Yo of llie fatr value of
Pe aggregate po~lofo.
Core Rxed Income- Targel5%
LL5. Treasury In0a0on PrMecteC Securities QIPS) - Target
10°/n
Long Duration Fixetl Inwme - Target 5%
Opportunistic C~etltl - Targel5%

Nlernative Asses ~ Tarye~ of 35% Minimum of 10%antl maximum of 60k of Pie fair value of
IM1e aggregate pon~dio.
Untler allocaletl asset cld5u5 M1ave b¢¢n lempoarily
mves~etl in o1M1er asset Gasses.

Private Equity - Target 5°h
Heal Esie~e ~ Ta~ge110
InOdliM-linketl Assets- Taryet l0°/a
HLSOIOIe Realm - Target 5%
Oppo~unis~ic ~ Target 5%

FCEftS Global Equity- Targe~45%e

Fixetl InCOme - Tagel 10

AbwWte ReWrn sVat ales. iar9et 25Ye

Real ASS¢~s-Targe120ryo

As of June 30, 2012, PFDRP's separate real estate properties include: office buildings in O'Fa~lon,
MO, and San Josh, CA. In fiscal year 2012, PFDRP sold its apartment complexes in Houston, TX
and Colorado Springs, CO; office buildings in Denver, CO, near Chicago, IL, antl in Anchorage, AK;
and warehouses near Minneapolis, MN. As of June 30, 2012, the office building in O'Palion, MO
had a mortgage loan payable of approximately $9,014,000, which does not exceed 50% of the
assets as allowed in PFDRP's Real Estate Investment Guidelines.

On June 26, 2012. FCERS sold its warehouse located in Northern California.
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At June 30, 2012, the Retirement Systems held the following investments (dollars in thousantls)'

Securities and olhec
Fixed income:
Domestic fixetl income
Intemalional fixed income

Collective shotl-term investments

Corporate convertible bontls

Poo~etl fixed income bond funtls

Total fixed income

Global equity

Oomeslic equity

Pooled inlernalional equity

Private equity

Intemationai curtency contracts, net

Opportanislic

Real assets

Real estate

Securities lentling cash collateral investment pool

Total inves~men~s

PFDRP FCERS Total

$ 6i 3,111 $ 165,906 $ 779,017

45,852 2,180 17,832

83,959 249,347 333,306

73,068 51,234 124.302

18,660 35,625 50,285

804,450 504,292 1,308,742

516,505 353,2t'I 869,716

678,384 - 618,384

- 488,819 488.819

125,463 95,478 220,941

489 452 941

t94,009 83,876 277,885

280386 167,419 447,805

105,253 93,865 199,778

239,396 239,396

$ 2.884.335 $ 1,787.412 S 4.671.747

Investments are subject to certain types of risks, inclutling interest rate risk, wslodial credit risk,

credit quality risk, foreign currency risk, and concentration of credit risk. The following describes

those risks:

Interest Rate Rfsk-The fair value of fixed income investments Fluctuate in response to changes in
market interest rakes. Increases in prevailing interest rates generally translate into decreases in fair
value of those insUUmen[s. The fair value of interest sensitive instruments may also be aNected by
the creditworthiness of the issuer, prepayment options, and other general interest rate conditions.
Cetlain fzed income investments have call provisions that could result in shorter maturity periods.
The Retirement Systems do not have a policy regarding interest rate risk.

As of June 30, 2012, PFDRP's investments include $12,215,000 of bank loan securities and
wrporate bonds that were floating rate securities tied to the 1 and 3 month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR).

As of June 30, 2012, FCERS's investments include $12,215,000 of bank loan securities that were
floating rate securities lied to the 1 and 3 month LIBOR. FCERS also had exposure to interest rate
risk on its fully collateralized infrashucWre swaps. The PCERS invested in infrastructure
swaps with a notional amount of $74,047,00 at June 30, 2012, in which i[ receives the dotal return
S8P Gio6al Infrastructure Index, net of the 3-month LIBOR plus 50 to 55 basis points. The FCERS
also invested in commodities swaps with a notional amount of $226 788,000 al Juna 30, 2012, in
which it receives a rotal reWrn of the United States three month treasury bill rate plus 10 to 12 basis
points
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The following tables provide the Segmented time distribution for fxed income investments based on
expedetl maturity as of June 30, 2012, concerning the fair value of investments and interest rate
risk (dollars in thousands):

~r,~
Darn

aGme~mn~.
ose..

uiaml

_die~ Leo
Wm 5lia llxe0lnwme ?BN SJBB 1~50d0~ 0].593 ~)faB

6<5 ~Spxx

~5 059 B9

Cee vevo e~m ime ~s J~B59]9)6

ieulfimJ~n~ame i ~ ~15 g

..i~e.~u.~+•.~na=. s s ~ s ~ s - s

zoeo~i~~a
us 

ias'mm~
- @,9It RO53E

ioiilmmxue lnMmmme t.J99 OS .9Aa ISBI03

}lib ?e]

Poobtl 4veL nVmme~EOnO~unOs

Teul McOmwme i ~~~~~~3 39~S O1 5~ 5 I~BB9E66

Custotlial Credit Rlsk —The Retirement Systems do not have a policy regarding custodial credit

risk. As of June 30, 2012 all of the Retirement Systems' investments, excluding invested securities

lending collateral, are held in the Retirement Systems' names, and/or are not exposed to custodial

credit risk. Securities lending collateral are invested in the lending agenPs investment fund (see
discussion on securities lending below).

Credit Quality Risk — PFDRP's investment policy dictates that all domestic and international bonds

and notes in which PFDRP's assets are invested, and which mature one year or more from the

dale of original issues, are required io carry a rating of "BBB° or be~ler by two of the following three

rating services: Moody's, S&P, or Fitch. In the event that ratings are prwidetl by only two agencies

and the third is non-rated, the more conservative (lowest) rating will be assigned. If only one

agency assigns a rating, that raking will be used', or, if unraled, the security shall be of equivalent

quality in the judgment of the investment manager to a similar domestic issue. Inveslmen~

managers may, with prior written authorization from PFDRP, invest a maximum of 20% of their

fixed income portfolio in hoods or noes that are rated B or 86. if bonds are downgraded below the

minimum credit quality allowable in the PFORP's investment policy at the lime of purchase, the

investment manager is permitted to hold up l0 2% of the PFDftP's portfolio managed by the
individual manager, using the lowest of Moody's, S&P, and (itch's rating in [he event of a splihrated

sewri~y.

FCERS's Investment Policy dictates that assets shall generelly be invested in investment grade,

marketable, fxetl-income securities. Domestic fixed income investment grade shall be defined as

being rated Baa(B88 or better by Moody's or SBP. "Yankee' bonds issued by foreign countries

and denominated in LL5. dollars are allowed so long as they are rated Baa/BBB or beer by
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Moody's or S&P. If a security is not rated by Moody's or S&P, the equivalent rating tle~ermined by
the investment manager's research department will be used. Should a current holding fail below
this standard, the manager shall notify FCERS o(~he downgrade antl confer with FCERS s~aH as to
whether the security will continue to be held or disposed. Up to 10% investment in BB or B
securities will be permitted with written authorization of the FCERS's Board. The investment
managers employed to manage fxed-income securities will have discretion in the day-to-day
management of the funds under their control.

The Retirement Systems may hedge a9ains~ the possible adverse effects of currency fluctuations
on the Retirement Systems' portfolios of intema~ional fxed income obligations when it is considered
appropriate. This is typically achieved using forward currency conUacls. Short-term investments
may consist of commercial paper rated at least At or P1, repurchase agreements, short-term U.S.
securities, and other money market investments.

The fallowing fable provides information as of June 30, 2012 concerning credit risk of fixed income
investments (dollars in thousands):

S8P quel~ry
Ra~inB

P.4A
PA
A
BBB
BB
B
CCC 8 below
Nol ~a~e0

Taal imeslmen~s exposed to cretll Viik

PFDflP
Failvalue ea a

~oir.ea ~~~ome
Fair Value ves~men[a

$ i5,:W1 33%
]0529 16.0%
90,988 190°h
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1.]26 ~d%
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8 465,]04 1UU U%
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%ol lixetl inceme
FaV Velue eslmeMa

$ "2696 0>%e
o.ov

8800 23We
15,559 0]%
15,186 40%
10083 26°h
1 ]1B 050

d25,]J6 BS.BY

S 3]9,822 100.Oh

Foreign Cwrency Risk— This is the risk ghat changes in the exchange rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. To mitigate this risk, the Retirement Systems' investment policies
permit individual investment managers to defensively hedge currency to mitigate the impact of
currency fluctuation on the underlying asset value.
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The following tables provide information as of June 30, 2012, concerning the fair value of
investments and foreign currency risk (dollars in Ihousantlsp

PFDRP

Pending
foreign

P~ivale fixed Currency TO~aI

Currenry Name CasM1 Equity Equity Income Exchanges Exposure

Australian Uollar 8 t4G 8 - S 26.2]] Q - 8 79 5 2fi.50~

Brazilian Real 186 - 8.896 35 - 9,117

erllsh Pauntl Sterling 594 - 95.834 - 90 96,512

Canatllan Dollar 82 ~ C1.626 ~ 24 41,]32

CM1ilean Peso 41 - 1.985 ~ - 2,026

Colomhian Peso 4] - 789 - ~ 836

DanisM1 Krone 3 Jp5] ~ 3,060

Eum Currency 2.]64 - 105,118 ],OB9 352 113.]23

Hong Kong Dollar 230 - 22,282 125 - 22,63]

Intlonesian RupiaM1 3fi - 2.301 - - 2,37]

Israeli 5beke~ i - 300 - 301

JaOanese Yen 1,1@ - B],318 ],ea6 (48) 96.W8

Malaysian RinBBM1 11 - 1.363 - - 1.380

Mexican Peao 5 - 5d1 ~ 546

New Taiwan dollar - - 16 16

Norwegian Nrone 80 - 3,]89 ~ 61 3,930

PM1ilipO~~e Pesa - - 480 ~ ~ 480

PolisM1 Zloty ~ ]W - ]OI

Singapore Dollar 126 - 8,]04 2,651 - 11,481

Sou1M1 HMCan Rand e - 4,644 ~ - 4,652

South Korean Wan 154 ~ 16,]98 - 16,952

SwedlsM1 Kmna 125 - ],989 1,556 (9) 9,fifii

Swiss Franc 166 - 23,W7 - - 23,243

TM1ailantl BaM1I 21 - 1 6t9 - - i fi40

TurklsM1 Ure 21 2438 ?459

Total $ 5,953 $ $ 465,986 $ 19,662 $ 489 $ 492,0]0

Cortency Name Lash
an~aie
EpuiN Equity

r'~.ea
Income

Foreign

currency
EmhanBes

ro~ei
Exposure

Auslrafan dollar 8. 19 5 - 5 10014 5 - S 39 $ iQ~]R
B~i~IS~POUntl Sletling 685 - 43,251 - 82 '40424
Canadian dollar (2fi) - 5,]5] - 31 5.]82
DenisM1 Kmne 245 3203 9.448
EurO CUrrenq 640 9,252 36,P05 5016 285 51$98
Hong Kong Dollar 93 - a.526 125 - 9,)44
Israel SM1ekel 2 - 3BA 388
Japanese Yen 405 - 30,855 5,536 (31) 49,)65
New Taiwan Duller - - ~> »
Norv+egian Nmne 91 - 4,3)1 43 4,505
SNpapore Dollar 30 ~ 3.389 1,835 5.35d
SWeOISh Kona 114 - 0$9A 1,100 (B) 58~~
Swiss Franc 238 - 15,536 - - t5,>)2
TutkisM1 Lida 1 1

Total 5 2.535 $ 9Z52 5 1]0,291 5 13812 S 452 8 196,142
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Concentration o/Credit Risk — PPDRP's investment policy tloes not limit the amount that can he
invested in a single issuer. However, it limits the aggregate amount that can be invested in each
class of investments, limits the portion of the total PFDRP assets that a manager can hold in a
single security with the exception of government backed securities antl real estate equity to 5%,
and limits PFDRP assets placed with an investment manager io represent no more than 10% of
that manager's total asses. FCERSs investment policy limits investment managers to no more
than 10 % of FCERS's asses under their management to be invested in securities of any single
issuer with the exception of U.S. Government and its agencies.

Derivatives —The Retirement Systems' investment policies allow for investmeNS in derivative
instruments that comply with the Retirement Systems' basic objective of achieving the highest
return on investment funds, consistent with safety, and in accordance with accepted investment
practices. Due to the level of volatility associated with certain derivative investments in general, the
Retirement Systems specifcally prohibit investment managers from using derivative or synthetic
securities that expose the Retirement Systems to potentially high price volatility or are leveraged, or
whose marketability may become severely limited. Derivative investments are reported at fair
value. Derivative instruments traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
repohed sales price on the last business day of the fiscal year at current exchange rates, if
applicable. Investments that do not have an established market are reported ai estimated fair value
based the most recentty available investor reports or audited financial statements issued by the
manager of those funds. The fund manager provides an estimated unrealized gain/loss of the fund
based on the most recently available audited finanGal slatemen~s and other fund information. The
fair value of derivative investments that are not exchange traded, such as swaps and rights is
determined by the Retirement Systems' custodians basetl on the base market value of similar
instruments. Futures contracts are marked-to-market at the end of each trading day, and the
settlement of gains or losses occur on the following business day through variation margins. As a
result, futures have no /air value as of June 30, 2012. The fair value of international currency
forwards represents the unrealized gain or loss on the related conUacts, which is calculated as the
difference between the specified contract exchange rate and the exchange rate al the end of the
reporting period.

The fair values and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding as of June 30, 2012,
classifed by type, and the changes in fair value of such derivative ins~mmen~s for the year then
ended as repotled in the fnancial statements are as follows (amounts in thousands)'
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Derivative investments are subject to certain types of risks, including counterparty cretlit risk (nory
exchange Uadetl), interest rate risk, antl foreign currenq risk. The following describes the risks
applicable to the imestmenl derivative instrumeNS lha~ are reported as of June 30, 2072:

Counterparty Credit Risk —The Retirement Systems are exposed to cretlit risk on derivative
instruments that are in asset positions and non-exchange lradetl-

As of June 30, 2012, PFDRP held rights and warrants with a fair value of approximately $5,000 and
$36,000 with notional value of $5,000 and $18,000 held by unreted coumerpar~ies. PFDRP's
inves~men[s in forward currency contracts bear credit risk in that parties to the contracts may fail to
perform according to the terms of the contract. As of June 30, 2012, total commitments in forward
currency contracts to purchase and sell international currencies were $62,324,000 and $62,324,000
respectively, with fair values of $fi2,574,000 and $62,085,000, respectively, held by counterpadies
with an 5&P rating of at least AA-.

FCERS entered into infrasUUCture and commodity swaps with national amounts of $74,041,000 and
$226,788,000, respectively, held by counterpatlies with S8P ratings of A FCERS's investments in
forvvard currency contracts hear counterparty credit risk in that parties to the wniracis may fail to
peAorm according to the terms of the contract. As of June 30, 2012, total commitments in forvvard
currency wntracts to purchase and sell international currencies were $46,207,00 and $46,207,000
respectively, with fair values of $46,424,000 and $45,979,000, respectively, held by counterparties
with an S&P rating of al IeastA and above.

Interest Rate Risk —FCERS had exposure to interest rake risk on its fully collateralized commodity
and infrastructure swaps. The fair values of the commodity swaps were marked-to-market daily
based on their applicable indices, with unrealized gains and losses collateralized to minimize
counterparty risk. As of June 30, 2012, PFDRP did not hold wmmodity swaps. As of June 30,
2072, FCERS invested in infraslmcture and commodity swaps with notional amounts of
$74,041,000 and $226,'!88,000, respectively. FCERS receives the total realm S8P Global
Infrastructure Index, net of the 3-LIBOR plus 50 to 55 basis points. FCERS also receives the total
return United Slates three month Treasury bill rate plus 10 to 12 basis points for the commodities
swaps. FCERS's infrastructure swaps were executed in December 2011 and April 2012 and
mature in December 2012 and April 2013 with a quaRetly rate reset frequency. The wmmodity
swaps were executed in June 2012 and matured August 2012 with a monthly rate reset frequency.
FCERS does not have a policy regarding interest rate risk, however, the Retirement Systems do
settle on a transaction plus one day basis (T+~), therefore limiting Retirement Systems' exposure to
counterparty risk.

Foreign Currency Risk— This is the risk that changes in the exchange rates will adversely affect
the fair value of underlying investments. To mitigate this risk, the Retirement Systems' investment
policies permit individual investment managere to mitigate the impact of currency 9uctuation on the
underlying asset value. The Retirement Systems' investment managers enter into international
forv✓ard currency contracts, which are commi~meNS to purchase or sell staled amounts of
international currency. The Retirement Systems utilize these conUacis to conUOl exposure and
facilitate the settlement of international security purchase and sale transactions. At June 30, 2012,
the Retirement Systems' net position in these contracts is recorded at fair value as international
currency contract investments. The fair values of international currency contracts are determined by
quoted currency prices from national exchanges. The Retirement Systems' mmmilments relating to
forward currency conUacts are settled on a net basis.
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The following fables provide information as of June 30, 2012, concerning the fair value of forward
currency contracts and foreign currency risk (dollars in thousands)'.

Pending Foreign Currency Exchanges Rights
Currency Name PFDRP fCERS Total FCERS

Australian Dollar $ ]9 $ 39 $ 118 $
British Povntl Sletlinq 94 ffi 176 -
Canatlian Dollar 24 32 56 -
EoroCurrency 352 279 631 39
JeOanese Ven (128) (31) (159) -
NewTaiwanD011ar 76 11 27 -
Norvuegian Krone 61 41 102
Swetllsh Kmna (9) (B) (17) _

Total $ 489 $ 445 y 934 $ 39

Securities Lending. The Municipal Cotle and the investment policies, adopted by the Retirement
Boards permit the use of a securities tending program with its principal custodian banks
("Custodians°). The Retirement Systems do not have a threshold for securities lending activities.
The investment policy of FCERS requires that loan maturities cannot exceed one year, and no
more than 15% of the portfolio cen be lent longer than siz months. The custodial agreements with
the Custodians authorize them to lend securities in the Retirement Systems' investment portfolio
under such terms and conditions, as the Custodians deem advisable and to permit the lent
securities to be trensferred into the name of the borrowers. The Retirement Systems 2ceive a fee
from the borrower for the use of the lent securities. As of June 30, 2012, the Retirement Systems'
had no exposure to borrower credit risk related to the securities lending transactions as the
Custodians were responsible for the replacement of the lent securities with other securities of the
same issuer, class and denomination, or if such securities were not available on the open market,
the Custodian was required to credit the Retirement Systems' account with the market value of
such unreturned lent securities if the lent securities were not returned by the borrower. Securities
lending collateral represents investments in an investment pool purchased with cash collaterel, as
well as securities collateral that may not be pledged or sold without a default by the borrower. All
securities lending agreements can be terminated on demand within a period specified in each
agreement by either the Retirement Systems or borrowers.

Securities lending trensactions collateralized with securities that cannot be pledged or sold without
borrower default are not reported as assets and liabilities in the fiduciary statement of net asses.
The Retirement Systems do not match the maturities of investments made with cash collateral with
the securities on loan.

PPDRP authorized State Street Corporation ("State Street"J to invest and reinvest cash rollateral in
State SheePs Quality DShort-~ertn Investment fund, which, effective December 3, 2010, consists of
a liquitliry pool and a liquidating account known as the duration pool. The durationpool was
established and allocated the assePbacketl securities (regardless of maturity) and securities of any
type with a remaining maWrity of 97 days or greater. Each duality D Fund investor owns a specified
percentage interest in the tluretion pool, which is redeemable only in-kind, not cash. The Quality D
duration pool will no[ make additional investments. The liquidity pool investment policy guidelines
provide that the Slate Street Investment Manager shall maintain the dollar-weighted average
maturity of the fund in a manner that the Investment Manager believes is appropriate to the
objective of the fund; provided (a) in no event shall any eligible security be acquired with a
remaining legal final maturity (i.e., the dale on which principal must be repaid) of greater than 18
months (b) the Investment Manager shall endeavor to maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity
of the fund not to exceed 75 calendar days and (c) the Investment Manager shall endeavor to
maintain adollar-weighted average maWrity to final of the Quality D Fund not b exceed 180 days.
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At the time of purchase, all securities with maWrilies of 13 months or less shall be rated at Ieasl At,
P1 or Fi by at least any lwo nationally rewgnized statistical rating organizations ("NRSROs"), or be
determinetl by the Investment Manager to be of comparable quality. Securities with maNrities in
excess of 13 months shall be rated at least A-, A3 or A- by at least any hvo of S&P, Moodys, or
Fitch, or be determined by the Investment Manager to be of comparable quality. The fund may
invest up to 10% of its assets at time of purchase in commingled vehicles that conform with the
State S~ree~'s Investment Policy Guitlelines. As of June 30, 2012, the cash collateral pool for the
duration and liquidity pool ~o~aled $1.4 billion and $15.1 billioq respectively. The weighted average
maturities for the duration and liquidity pool were 40.32 and 35.93 days, respectively. The cash
collateral dura~i0n pool included asset backed securities (99.54%) and other securities (0.46%).
The liquidity pool included asset backed securities (17.84%), certificates of deposit (34.33%), bank
notes (2.49 % ), commercial paper (19.70 % ), repurchase agreements (22.62 %)and other securities
(3.02 % ). As of June 30, 2012, the underlying securities loaned by PFDRP as a whole amounted to
approximale~y $257,596,000. The cash collateral and the non-cash collateral totaled $241,875,000
and $18 572,000, respectively, at carrying cost. The net asset value (NAV) of the cash collateral
pool at June 30, 2012 was at $1.01 or $211,526,000 and $0.9177 or $27,870,000 for the liquidity
and duration pools, respectively on a mark to market basis. The NAV of Tess than $1.00 for the
duration pool is due to the decline in the fair value of assets held by fhe cash collateral pool. The
NAV of $0.9177 of the duration cash collateral pool results in an unrealized loss of approximately
$2,499,000 for PFORP. PFDRP's investment in the liquidity and duration cash collateral investment
pools are presented in the statement of net plan assets at their respective NAV or $239,396,000.
The unrealized lass of $2,479,OW for the duration pool is reflected in the severities lending inwme
earnings line of the statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. PFDRP is exposed to market risk
including the possible loss of principal value in the cash collateral pool due to the fluctuation in tha
market value of the assets held by the cash collaterel pool.

The lent securities as of June 30, 2012 consisted of U.S. Treasury securities, domestic corporate
bonds, domestic equity securities, international corporate bonds, and international equity securities.
In return, PFDRP receives collateral in the form of cash or securities equal to at (east 102% for
domestic and 705% far international of the market value of transferred securities plus accrued
interest for reinvestment of the collateral.

FCERS authorized The Northern Trust Company ("Northern TrusY') to invest and reinvest cash
collateral in Northern TrusTs pooled investment vehicle, which must have a weighted average life of
60 days or less. Securities with ma~uri~ies of 13 months or more mush have a rating of A or better.
Securities with maturities of less than 13 months must be rated at least P-3. In August 2011, the
PCERS exited the Northern Trust securities lending program
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The following ta61e provides inPormation on PFDRP's securities lent and collateral receivetl as of
June 30, 2012 (tlollars in lhousandsg

Type of Investment Lent

For Cash Collateral:

US. treasury notes antl bonds g 58,421

Domenic corporate bontls 45.050
Domestic equity securities 95,501
In~emational equity severities 40,541

Total Lent (or Cash Collateral 239,513

For NomCash Collateral:

U.S. treasury notes antl bontls 1],278

Domestic equity securities 805

Total Lent for Non-Cash Collateral 18,083

Total Securities Lent $ 257,596

Type of Collat¢ral Receivetl

Cash Collateral ̀ $ 239,396

Non-Cash Collateral:

For lent U. S.treasury notes antl bontls 1],]51
Portent tlomestic equity secuti~ies 821

Total Non-Cash Collateral 18,5]2

Total Collateral Receivetl $ 25],968

Amount represents (he mark~to-market value of the cash collateral pool al a 100. 0% for the liquitlity
poMOlio and 91.77°o for the tluration poMolio for fiscal year 2012.
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B. Receivables, Net of Allowances

At June 30, 2012, receivables of the City's major individual funds and nonmajor funds taken in
aggregate, including the applicable allowance for uncollectible accounts are as follows (tlollars in
thousands):

AfloNeLlo
Nouiing Spocnl Total Inlemal

Pecelvvllef- General Nousing Imaslmen~ Pssessmenl ma~W
NFUnOe

Servl[e Govemmenlal
4ovemmenlel Agivi Fund Activities Fund ~ISWCIS Pontls Adlvilbs
Tares S J? ]13 S S 8 S 5.249 S 5 ]1.992

tl lnl¢rts~ 308 58 1]9fi 12 1]70 $0 3.91<
E~S~ 9]QO 4155

Speci9 essesemunk 5$885 5Z 805
OPe~ YO.Jflt 165 50 39 13,561 5316fl
lesa: al ce lw unwlleclibles OP5 101 q ]16 ~3~ ry] fii1~
TolalnwlraLle¢, net E 50.5<0 5 3.671 b ~JYr S `v3.$50 5 95 BW 5 2P 5 190028

Norm enY Mlnola
S an JOa! Muniai09 ToUI

Inhmallonel Tne~moM Wab~ Pe Ming s¢-type
BuAClbl4ofBubinnsAVpe R[Iiv Xlea: AIPO~ SVSIem Sva~am $~~e le_

PctwMS 5 0,950 5 ipBa S Jp68 S 210 5 15p fa
Mwue4 inlemsl 9R6 18 850
Gnn4 2303 683 2,885
Le55: allwenue for unuollecEEln (]]61 510 BR6j f0 1~2

Tolalmmivebles. net S 8218 5 1981 5 1661 5 218 5 2N)

Special assessment receivables in the amount of $52,885,000 are not expected to he collected
within the subsequent year.

C. Loans Receivable, Net of Allowances

The composition of the Citys loans receivable balance for governmental activities, net of the
allowance for uncollectible accounts, as of June 30, 2012 is as follows (tloliars in thousands):

AXOeJe~le

sln9 Dial
General ¢Inp

'nVFUnE ̂1
mat or

„FUnJS
Cora 

"TYPoOl loan FunO Ac1lNties AClm llle6
Housing Prog~em OevebPo[ reM1abililatlon,

uontl moM1gage antl mlaallon bans S ~ S 5 5'A Ofi2 E 4 554.063
l.aans lunaed ~y ~etlerelgmnn - 80.3<6 - 7 912 88.288
ec000mm ae~reioeme~l rez~ e:~me aeoeiw~r
antl olM1ar loans P,2p1 50,013 165 53,<10
Less: ellowence lOr unmllec~iblas (q9 2381 1~40585~ ~3,gB11 199.300)
Total bens, net E ? 241 5 fit, R1 5 253p]] S 0,80 5 331445

Prior to effective date of the Retlevelopment Dissolution Law, California Community
Redevelopment Law required that at least 20 % of the incremental tax revenues generated from
cetlain redevelopment project areas be used to increase, improve, and preserve the affordable
housing stock for families and individuals with very low, low, and moderate incomes. In response to
this former requirement, the City established its 20% Housing Program to offer financial assistance
to qualifad developers, families, and individuals by providing loans ai "below market" rates. Upon
dissolution of the former Agency, the City assumed the housing activity function of the former
Agency. All loans receivable relating to the Low and Moderate Income Housing Program have been
transferred from the Housing Activities Funtl to the AHordabie Housing Investment Fund, which was
established as of February 1, 2012 (subsequently renamed the Low and Moderate Income Housing
Asset Fund in October 2012 in compliance with AB 1484). As of June 30, 2012, loans receivable
relating to the Low and Moderate Income Housing Program totaled approximately $253,477,000,
net of allowance for uncoilectible accounts.
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The City will continue to use these funds as well as other state and federal funding sources to offer
financial assistance to qualified developers, individuals and families by providing loans at "below
market" interest rates.

Typical loans and related terms are summarized as follows:

n̂^ TvRg In Pr c Rata Liyg

New Construction antl Permanent OP 4 % up to 55 years

Mvl~i-unit rental rehabilitation 3% Sor more years
Take-ou~((irsi time homebuyer) 4% ]to 4~years
Homeimprovement 3-6% 1IO 30 years

Loans are secured by first, second, third or lower in lien-property deeds of trust except for take-out
loans, which are all secured by second deeds of trust Interest and principal are typically due in
installments, except for take-out loans, which tlo not require payments until their maturity dates.

The Ciry has also inves~etl in multi-family rental housing projects serving low 10 moderate income
individuals lhmugh subordinate loans with terms of up to 55 years. Generally, these loans are to be
repaid through fxed payments or net cash flow payments from project operations and the term and
potential risk of each loan varies. Because of the net cash flow feature of these subordinate loans,
[here is greater risk of variability in the timing of payments and, potentially, a lower probability of
eventual repayment on these subordinate loans than on other loan types.

Tie Ciry maintains a valuation allowance against loans receivable comprised of an allowance far
risk and an allowance far present value discount. The allowance for risk is maintained to provide for
losses that can be reasonably anticipated. The allowance is based upon continuing consideration of
changes in the character of the portfolio, evaluation of current economic conditions, and such other
factors that, in the City's judgment, tleserve recognition in estimating potential loan losses. The
allowance for risk takes into consideration maturity dates, interest rakes, and other relevant factors.

In accordance with City policy, loans are funded at below market rates of interest and include
amortized net cash flow deferced repayment terms. This policy exists to enhance the well-being of
the recipients or beneficiaries of the financial assistance, who, as described above, are very low,
low, or moderate-income individuals or families, or developers of housing for such individuals or
families.

Accordingly, for financial statement purposes, the City has established an allowance account
against the loans receivable balance containing a present value discount. The preseN value
discount gives recognition to the economic cost of providing loans al interest rates below market,
and represents an estimate of the present value of projected net cash flows to the Cily from the
loan portfolio. The present value discount attributable to the loans will be recognized as interest
income only as such loans are repaid in full because of the deferred nature of the loan portfolio and
the high level of uncertainty relating to the likelihood that cash Oows will occur as projected. The
difference between the individual outstanding loan balances and the calculated net present value of
the loans results in the allowance for present value discount. Losses are recognized as an addition
to the allowance and. any subsequent recoveries are deducted imm the allowance.

The Citys management believes the combined amount of the aforementioned risk and present
value discount allowances is adequate to reflect the net realizable value of the Community
Development Block Grant ("CDBG") loans, Home Investment Partnership Program ('HOME") loans,
and Affordable Housing Investment Fund loans receivable as of June 30, 2012.

In the normal course of operations for housing programs, fhe City has outstanding commitments to
eMend credit, which have been encumbered as of June 30, 2012. These commitments involve
elements of credit and interest rate risk similar to those described above for ouls~anding loans
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receivable. As of June 30, 2012, amounts committed to extend credit under normal lending
agreements loialetl approximately $72,189,000.

D. Capital Assets

i. Summary Schedule

The following is a summary of capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (dollars
in thousantls):

ea~ance eaiance
~~ivtzmi aaaumns oeiorons ttereien sane oa. zaiz

Gov en~al activities:
Capital ssels, no~OeLg tleprecla~eP.

Lantl $ 5Z8,fi05 5 ],P19 S 6,062 S (66,036) $ C63I25
Canslmtllan In pmgr¢55 68,813 3].590 3]91~ 68]60

Tolalcapital asses, not being ~Precie~etl 590,418 64809 8,803 11 °o,B~ 533,<90
Gapi~al asses, bein94epreciafeE'.

Bulldin8s 1516,489 1332 19 (100,SJtl) 102],PC
Impmvemenls. o~M1e~~han builtlings 2W,9J3 tP1 - - 20],080
InhasWCture ti 3•v2,90~ 6,639 - 5,082 11385,<~8
VeM1icles aM equlpmeM iW,e]8 5,965 ],26E (1,145) 1W,St2
FumiWres antl ONUres 86,50] - - - 26,50)
Properly antler rappel leases 15,3]8 13,3]9

Total capital assMS, being depretlatetl 13,233.113 14.3] ],285 (B5,]2~ f3,id0,t40
Less accumulele0 tleprena6on tor.

Builtllnpx 365,Y5~ 44,088 iB (15,1]5) 390,146
Impmwmen6, NM1er ~M1an buil01ng5 12,595 5,501 - Q23) 1],961
Inhes~rvcWre 6245,053 3,549 - - 8,55189]
Ve~ICles an0 epulpnenl 89,W0 ],I25 ],235 (950) BB,610
Fumilures anE fNUrea 15,88] 2,655 ~ ~ 16.542

PmpeM uMer<epital leases 12,691 193 i4,88d

Total accumuNiftl tleprecla0on 6,]aU.)B6 382.]94 ],254 X16 Y98Z ],400,040

Tohl capital assets, being tlepreclate0, net 6,490,31 ̀v (308)0!1 31 ~]9.9~ 6,066,100
GowmmenUl adivilies cap~al asse6, net $ ],0909J3 S (303.898) 5 8830 51~0040I) S 6,58'/,594

Buslness~~ype Activities:
Capital assets, not being rlepreclaled.

Lrntl $ 134,936 S - S - $ ~ S 134928
In~aig101e asses 12882 ~ ~ - 11882
Conslu6on in progress 68,368 25,830 -~ ]0,159

Tolel wpi~al easels, not being tlaprecia~etl 2f6,t]6 25,93 ~24.099~ 2b.96]
Ca011s1 anse~s, being tleprecia~ed

Ouildligs 1,61 f,iS5 BBO i8 >9J9 t620,p15
Imp~ovemeMS, other lean buildings 1052637 4,551 - 13,893 1,0]0481
VeM1icles antl equipment 213,9]0 1689 2,205 2IW 216,256
Pmperry uMe~ceplel leases 13,406 13,406

Total capital asset; Eeing tleprenolM 2,891,208 ],135 2,226 24,039 2,920p58
Less accumulalM tleprecialion loo

Builtlin9s 3Y3.J4Y 92,930 18 - 3fi8358
Imp~ovemen~S, uNee lM1an Wlltllnpa 038,0>9 28?W - - 966,23)
VeM1ides aeM epuipmenl 11],016 9,800 2,193 - 135,@3
P~opMy untle~ca0~~al lrasas H619 430 11 g4]

Total accumula~ea tlepreciellon 900.959 81318 2.211 9]8,561

Total capital assvls, bring tlepreaaleq ncl ~990,95f pq,1031 13 Y4.039 L9945W
Business~tyFe activifies ca0ilal easels,net 5 22W.93~ $ (49,3531 E 13 $ E 2.158.584
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Upon dissolution of the former Agency pursuant to AB X7 26 (See Note I.F.16.), capital assets in
the amount of $180,407,000 previously recorded in the farmer Agency's records were transferred io
SARA on February 1, 2012.

2. Depreciation

Depreciation expense charged to various governmental and business-type activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended June 3Q 2012 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Govemmerrtal aclivRi¢s:

General govemrreM $ 10,527
Public safety 8,]32
Capitalmantenance 310,258
Cnmrrunity services 29,675
Caplal assets held by Gtysintemaiserdcefunds 3,552

Total tlepretia~ion expense-go~mmenlai aaiNlies $ 362,744

Busi ress-type aclivkiw:

Portnan Y.Mnem San dos€Intema~ional Airpoh $ 51,65]
Wasteweler Treatrnent System 24,]38
4Mnicipal Water System 2,438
Pargng System 2,485

TWaldepreciation expance- buvnesstype activiAes $ 61.318

3. Capitalized Interest

Interest costs that related to the acquisition of huildings and improvements and equipment acquired
with tax-exempt and taxable debt are capitalized for business-type activities. The amount of interest
to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing
until completion of the prgecl, with interest earned on invested tax-exemp(deb~ proceeds over the
same period. Capitalized interest cost is prorated to completed projects based on the completion
date of each project. There was no capitalized interest cost for the year ended June 30, 2012.

4. Construction Commitments

Commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2012, related to governmental and business-hype
activities conshuction in progress totaled approximately $3,787,000 and $18 221,000, respectively.

E. Leases

1. Operating Leases as Lessee

The Cily has commi~menis under various operating lease agreemeNS requiring annual rental
payments, which are descrihed as follows:

Governmental Activities

The City has ongoing commitments under operating lease agreements (or business equipment,
office facilities and land necessary for City operations, which expire at various dates through 2017.
Each governmental fund includes the expenditures related to such lease agreements. There are
both cancelable antl non-cancelable lease agreements. Rental expenditures reported by the
General Fund and the Nonmajor Governmental Funds untler these operating lease agreements for
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the fscal year entled June 30, 2012 amounted to approximately $1,992,000 and $473,000,
respectively.

The future minimum lease payments anticipated under the existing lease commitments, as of
June 30, 2012, are as follows (tlollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Nonmajor Total

Entling Governmental Govermental

June 30, General FUntl Funtls Activities

2013 § 1,781 $ 201 $ 1982

201A 1,13 116 1.246

2015 356 20 3]6

2016 214 20 234

2017 93 20 113

Totals $ 3,5]4 S 3]] $ 3,951

Business-TVOe Activities

Airport Gas-Poweretl Buses. In December 2007, the City entered into an operating lease and
maintenance agreement for fourteen compressed natural gas powered buses far the Airport. The
term of the agreement is from August 1, 2008 to July 31, 2015. In September 2009, the agreement
was restated to add len buses for the period of June 30, 2010 to May 31, 2017. In.May 2012, the
restated lease was amended to allow the early termination of the lease term pertaining to the first
14 buses with City's payment of $4407000. To relieve its lease commitment, the City
simultaneously entered into an agreement to relinquish the use of the 14 buses to a third party for a
total price of $3,400,000. Rental expense for the Airport buses for the year ended June 30, 2012
was approximately $1,720,00,

Future Minimum Payments. The future minimum payments anticipated under these commitments
for the 10 remaining Gas-Powered buses, as of June 30, 2012, are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Fiscal rear

Entling Operating

June ]~, Lease 

52013 5 94]

zoia sso
zois ssz
2016 955

2011 e]]

Total $ 4681

2. Opereting Leases as Lessor

The City also leases building space, facilities, and/or the privilege of operating a concession to
tenants and concessionaries restating in the receipt of annual rents, which are described as follows:

Governmental Activities

In October 1991, the City entered into a 15-year agreement (the "initial berm") with the San Jose

77



City of San Jose
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Arena Management Corporation (the "Manager"j, an unrelated entity, regarding the management,
operations, and maintenance of the San Jose Arena, and use of the San Jose Arena by the San
Jose Sharks, a franchise of the National Hockey League. The agreement was subsequently
amended on December 19, 2000 e#enAing the agreement for an additional 10 years (the
"extentled term"). The initial term commencetl on October 24, 1991 antl terminated on July 31,
2008. The extended term commenced on August 1, 2008 and terminates on July 31, 2018. As part
of the amended agreement, the Manager is required to pay the City annual minimum rental and
hockey rental payments of $1,642,000 and $1,460,000, respectively, as defined by the agreement.
Amounts in addition to the annual minimum rental payments include reimbursements for repair and
maintenance expenditures and other fees, which fluctuate based on the level of annual activities.
In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City received approximately $5,836,000 from the
Manager. As of June 30, 2012, leased assets had a total historic cost of approximately
$178,114,000 and accumulated depreciation of approximately $50548,000.

Business-Tvpe Activities

Airline-Airport Lease and Operating Agreements. The City entered into an Airline-Airport lease
and operating agreement with various passenger and cargo airlines ("Signatory AiAines") serving
the AirpoA. The aitline lease agreement, which took effect on December 1, 2007, was scheduled to
expire on June 30, 2012. In August 2011, the City Council authorized the Director of Aviation to
extend the term for five years through June 30, 2017, which allowed the airlines the ability to
continue to conduct operations and occupy leased space tM1rough the extended term. The existing
rates and charges structure, as well as all other terms and conditions, will remain unchanged.

The key provisions in the airline lease agreement include compensatory rate making for the
tertninai cost center and residual rate making for the airfield cast center The airline lease
agreement also includes a revenue sharing provision to evenly divide net unobligated Airpoh
revenues between the AirpoR and the aitlines currently operating at the Airport after each fiscal
year. In any 9scal year in which there are net unobligated Airport revenues and all requirements of
the City's Airport fnancing documents have been satisfied, the remaining net unobligated Airport
revenues are to be evenly divided between Ne City and the airlines. If net revenues exceed the
projected levels outlined in the Airport Forecast identified in the new airline lease agreement, then
the airlines share of the difference will be deposited into the Rate Stabilization Fund up to a cap of
$9,000,000. Once the Rale Stabilization Fund has keen fully funded or in the event that the actual
net revenues do nod exceed the projected net revenues, the airlines share of net revenues shall be
applied as a credit to the airline terminal revenue requirement for the following fiscal year, thus
reducing terminal rental rates for the following fiscal year. The first $1,000,000 of [he Ciry's share of
any net revenues shall be retained by the Airport in a discretionary fund to be used for any lawful
Airport purpose. The remaining balance of the City's share shall be applied io the capital costs of
the Airyort's Master Plan Program. Far the fscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Airpotl's revenues
as tlefnetl in its lease agreement exceeded its expenditures and reserve requirements by
approximately $30,643,000. The surplus received during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 will
be tlisVibuted in accordance with the revenue sharing provisions of the airline lease agreement,
and/or used in the budget balancing actions for fiscal year 2014.

Other Leases. The Airport also enters into leases with concessionaires, airline carriers, and other
business entities for building space and/or the privilege of operating a concession at the Airport.
The terms of these operating leases range from one month to 26 years. The leases with
concessionaires are generally based on the greater of a percentage of their sales or a minimum
annual guaranteed amount. Rental revenues from [he operating leases were $78,227,000 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
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The future minimum rentals to be received from the operating leases, as of Juna 30, 2012, are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Vear
Entlin9

June ]0, Amount

2013 5 88,458

2014 90,844

2015 87,893

2016 BB,6Ba

201] 89 605

20182022 135,013

2023202] 1139]0

2028-2032 112,338

2033-203] H1,281

2038-2041 ]1016

ToWI $ 988,918

These future minimum rentals are based upon annual rates and charges agreed to by the airlines
and other tenants. As of June 30, 2012, leased assets had historic costs of approximately
$7,031,260,00 and accumulated depreciation of approximately $107,478,000.
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F. Long-Term Debt and Olher Obligations

1. Summary Schedule of Long-Term Debf

The following is a summary of long-term debt of the City as of June 30, 2012 (dollars in thousands,
unless otherwise noted):

~_m s. ~_

i;~i~oz 2m,...~, P.m.. wum semen moma ~~~a.~.r mvi
P'wo:'s:~nvia ae~.~~~ >z

osniw.~n am v.m,t
o, w.M .m~

`,H:~ ̀v":M.ioe nee,
~,~~zaa ~o.eo~s.~.im cemm~..vr,.~~~~ s.000 ocnanoos ~A~aa~s ..oas.aw. n

~~o~ ~. ~uc~ E.~,em~~«.w. zs.s,o ov,oaoos oe~o~aoz. ~..,e~. ~~o-n

F.am~~ac=amen. a.
me~Fw, uweuie.00-.gi.na~ munMFemmu
xB !Gene cemerara~enl o.))s

~5>.uo
~n{ceninism~awm~
mn(ctlecemarcmka~l
]µFeucTienmv~exn~esl
~lcw.ecenie~
.~ICno ceme~Garzgel
Bx ICMe Gemo~Ge~e9e)

09C ~14yesMwien) 005
W O p~vde) playev Naexlen~
e-i n...eK~ o.~c~,~~
e.~o...ere~nac.m,.~

~ z~.r.9aq n..e nw.am~~
Nayw~cm m.qwlmna mei

~~ICOnum~Im Cenla) aNUMmg 189pW o]IOV3W~ oebvxolrz a~6SOOw. 6i41!ID IxB,@a

seM53lq~PpN 66m FmeMOPUkmg Faulny~ PaNig Fan4ly ~hWS dnW]o0i osmvmxz t@SS¢5x few 

~imnm aovunmenumemmnmem.
speuaru n~:m~~Be~mw~

+a m.iirna~~n
+a rzoo. w.viaM~a n.m~amo~ ~.a~e.~~e n.m~emg ~~a.o o.iovzoo: oamvx~s Sao.. pax oaz+.m issso`;eom~
~u~w em,a,...vn.~ox.io

s ~c~..i o.~sRO.~.es
srea~rmg +o,~
~o m,.. a.a

s~~. ~o„wo.:~s~~n`,~.q we~~.. i.o~„~~,.,e ~o, ~~s diimon asA,no.o ~oo.a mw o,..

n lml lmemrvon ryan.

unvryCOnWtllnn b

oic ~nMn
°in~un,~

'.~.., wni.~
s=ue, m~ie r..~~.oi~c n~am an~rza~~ aya~i~~.~ ~oob~su oo~ v_;a'~

u~nemr

kM: nem.a~~g zi rso oiizsaoo~ ~~i~yzo~a ~~o. s~su a.oas:
°_eB~p

"~~.,ma, r.~~i~m. rasbs o~a.~~as. o.io~iza~s ~,.a,,, v~.~a~
....~... rn.an~~v.e~,n..~e yea. >...ue



City of San Jose
Noes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

2. Debt Compliance

There are a number of limitations antl restrictions contained in the various band indenWres. The
City believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and reslric~ions.

3. Legal Debt Limit antl Margin

The City's legal debt limit (as defined by Section 1216 of the City Chatler) and debt margin as of
June 30, 2012, are approximately $78,665,770p00 and $18,205,100,000, respectively.

4. Arbitrage

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 institutetl ceAain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of
tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arblirage regulations deal with the investment of all tax-
exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders.
Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can 6e reUOactively rendered taxable if applicable rebate
liabilities are not repoRed and paid to fhe Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") at least every five years.
During the current year, the City performed calculations to determine the rebate liabilities for the
City's tax-exempt bond issues listed above. However, as no bond issue with a positive rebate
liability was due for a fRh-year payment, the rebate amount calculated has been recorded as a
liability repotlable to the IRS. The rebate liability amount is recorded as a liability in the
Governmental Activities column of the government-wide statements in the amount of $48,000.

S. Special ASSessmen[ and Special Tax BOnds with Limited Ciry Commitment

All obligations of the City under the Special Assessment and Special Tax Bonds are not considered
general obligations of the City, but are considered limited obligations, payable solely from the
assessments/special taxes and from the ceAain funds pledged therefore under the Paying Agent
Agreement or Fiscal Agent Agreement. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of [he Ciry,
or any political subdivision thereof, is pledged to the payment of the bonds. The City is nod
obligated to advance available surplus funds from the City Treasury Io cure any deficiency in the
Redemption Fund for these bonds; provided, however, the City is not prevented, in its sole
discretion, from so advancing funds.

As of June 30, 2012, the City has recorded approximately $52,885,000 of deferred revenue and
related special assessments receivables in the Special Assessment Districts Fund. These balances
consist primariy of property lax assessments and/or special taxes to be collected in the fuWre by
the County of Santa Clara for future debt service of the special assessment districts and the
community facilities districts.

The City issued Special Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2071 (Convention Center Expansion
and Renovation Project), which are secured by a frst lien on the Convention Center Facilities
District No. 200&1 special tax revenues and any of the Available Transient Occupancy Tax
(Available TOT) as defined in the bond documents that is appropriated by City Council as part of
the City's annual budget process Io pay debt service. The Base Special Tax and Additional Special
Tax (as defined in the band documents) are property-based taxes levied on hotel properties within
the Convention Center Financing District and remitted to the City on a monthly or quarterly basis in
the same manner as the City's Transient Occupancy Tax. The es~imatetl deferred revenue of
$52,885,000 as of June 3D, 2012 noted above does nod include special faxes associated with the
2011 bands because these special taxes are calculated based on occupancy and a percentage of
room rent and therefore the amount is undeterminable. Please refer to Note IILF.B. for further
discussions on the 2011 bonds.
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6. Conduit Debt

The City has issued mWli-family housing revenue bonds io provide funds for secured loans to
builders of multi-family housing projects. The purpose of the program is to provide needed rental
housing for low to moderate-income households. To comply with IRS requirements in order to meet
the tax-exempt staNS, the owner is required to set asitle a certain percentage of all units built for
low to moderate-income households. The bonds are payable solely from paymeNS made on the
related secured loans. These tax-exempt housing bonds have maturity dates that are due at
various dales through January 1, 2047. As of June 30, 2012, the outstanding wndui~ multi-family
housing revenue bonds issued by the City aggregatetl to approximately $534,401,000.

In the opinion of the City's officials, these bonds are nod payable from any revenues or assets of the
City. Neither the faith antl cretlit nor the taxing power of the City, the State, or any political
subdivision thereof are pledged for the payment of the principal or interest on the bonds.

7. City of San Jose Financing Authority Variable-Rate Demand Lease Revenue Bontls

Inclutled in long-term debt is $232,270,000 of variable-rate demand bonds issued by the Financing
Authority. The Financing Authority issued these bonds to provide variable-rate exposure io the debt
portfolio and to provitle additional flexibility with respect to restructuring or redeeming the debt
issued for certain prgecls. The Financing Authority has entered into credit facilities that support the
variable-rate demand bonds. Untler the reimbursement agreements related to these credit facilities,
the trustee is authorized to draw an amount sufficient io pay the purchase price of bonds that have
been tendered and have not otherwise been remarketed. The schetluled retlemp~ion of these
bonds is incorporetetl in the Annual Requirements to Maturity schedules (see Note III.F.9.).

The credit facilities that support the Financing Authority's variable-rate bonds as of June 30, 2012
are as Follows (dollars in thousands):

Balance
June 30, Cretlit Facility ~escriptian
3012 Provitler Expiration Dale

Clly of San JosA Financing Aulhonry'
Lease Revenue Bonds'.
Series 2D08A (Civic Center) $ 56.92 Union bank t0IRll2013
Series 20088 (CiNC Cen~e~Garage) 33,815 Bank of Fmerica, N.N.IUnIOn Bank 1 012112 01 3
Series 2008C (Hayes Mansion) ~ 10,915 U5. bank 1 0121 2 0 1 3
Series Y0080 (TarcaLle) (Hayes Mansion) 41 300 U.S. Bank 1 012 114 01 3
Series 2008E (Taxable)Qre Centre) 23,]3U Bank of America. N.H.IU.S. dank 1 0 2112 01 3
Sene53008F Qaxa~le)(Lantl ACquisilion) 65,590 Bank of America,NA. 0 510 212 01 4

Total variable rate lease revenue bontls $ 232,2]0

The Financing Authority's variable-rele demand lease revenue bonds are payable upon demand of
the bontlholder at a purchase price equal to principal plus accrued interest. The Financing
Authority's remarketing agents are required to use their best eRorts to remarket the bonds antl, to
the e~etent that bonds are not remarketed, the Financing Authoritys trustees are authorized to draw
on the credit facilities in the amounts required to pay the purchase price of bonds tendered.

The Financing Authority's repayment of unreim6ursed draws made on the credit facilities bear
interest at varying rates with the principal amortization amounts and periods ranging from 3 to 5
years: The interest rate arid principal amortization schedule of an unreimbursed draw are
determined by the take-out provisions of [he applicable reimbursement agreement, which will
remain in effect until all principal of an unreimbursed draw is amortized. For example, if a drew
occurs on June 30, 2012, then the Take-out provision will remain in effect until June 30, 2015 or
June 30, 2017, depending on the agreement. If the unreimbursed draws represent a signifcant
portion of the outstanding debt, the principal will generalry be amodized over multiple years
because, under State law, lease payments may not exceed the fair rental value for the leased
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propetly. Per the terms of the reimbursement agreements, the providers of the credit facilities have
the right to require an appraisal of the applicable leased property to increase the amount of the rent
payable.

The Financing Authority is required to pay the credit facility providers an annual commitment fee
ranging from 1.10% to 125% for each credit facility basetl on the terms of the applicable
reimbursement agreement and the outstanding principal amount of the bonds suppotled by the
credit facility. As of June 30, 2012, the letters of credit supporting Series 2008 ABCDE had an
expiration date of October 21, 2013 and the Series 2008E had an expiration date of May 2, 2014.
There are no unreim6ursed draws made on the credit facilities supporting Series 2008 ABCDEP
bonds at June 30,2012.

8. Summary o~Changes in Long-term Obligations

Governmental Activities -The changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2012
are as follows (dollars in thousands):
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As discussed in Note LF.16-EMraortlinary Items, the former Agency transferred its long-term debt
and other obligations to SARA. Please refer to Note IV.Q3 for a summary of the bonds issued by
the former Agency and detailed discussion on these bonds.

General Obligation Bonds are issued pursuant to atwo-thirds majority w[er aNhorization. In
2000 and 2002, San Jose voters approved three ballot measures (Measures O and P in 200 and
Measure O in 2002) that aulhonzed the total issuance of $598,820,000 of general obligation ("GO")
bonds for library, parks and public safety projects. GO bonds are secured by a pledge of the City to
lery ad vabrem property taxes without limitation of rate or amount The atl valorem property tax
levy is calculated for each fiscal year to generate sufficient revenue to pay 100% of annual debt
service net of other available funding sources. As of June 30, 2011, the Cily of San Jose had
issued $589,590,000 of 60 bonds with proceeds split for three purposes: library projects
($205,885,000), parks and recreation projects ($228,030,000), and public safety projects
($155,675,000). Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds as of June 30, 2012 is
approximately $723,773,000, with the final payment due on September 1, 2039.

The City did not issue any GO bonds in fiscal year 2012; however, it plans to issue the foal series
of GO bonds in fiscal year 2013. A total of $9,230,000 of the authorization remains un-issued for
the library and public safety programs. The proceeds of those bonds would be used to fund a
portion of the library and public safety projects approved by voters in November 2000 and March
2002. The timing, size, and purpose of the bond issue will depend upon the expenditure and
encumbrance needs of the various projects to be financed.

Lease Revenue/Revenue Bonds are issued primarity to finance various capital improvements to
be leased io the City and are secured by lease rental revenue from "lessee" departments in the
General Fund, Nonmajor Governmental Funds, and SARq. The lease rental revenue for each fiscal
year is generally equal to 100% of annual debt service net of other available funding sources. Total
principal, interest, and accreted value remaining on these bonds as of June 30, 2012 is
approximately $7,249,922,000, with the foal payment due on May 1, 2042.

The amount remaining on these bonds includes payments for the 2001A and 2001E bonds, which
are payable through a pledge agreement (200tH) and a reimbursement agreement (2001 F) by the
former Agency, which were assumed by the SARA. Prior to the dissolution of the former Agency,
the City eliminated the in~erfund balances between the Agency and the Financing Authority for
financial repohing purposes pursuant to GASB Statement No. t4, Upon the Agency's tlissoWlion,
the City re-established the receivable balance from SARA and the related bonds payable, which
totaled $162,455,000 and $164,125,000, respectively, al June 30. 2012. A description of these
bonds is as follows:

Revenue Bonds with Pledge Agreement. In March 2007, the Financing Authority issued
Revenue Bonds, Series 200'IA in the amount of $48,675,000 to fnance the construction of the
4~" SVeet and San Fernando Parking Facility Project. The farmer Agency entered info an
Agency Pledge Agreement with the Financing Authority, which was assumed by the SARA,
whereby the payments are payable from and secured by surplus "Agency Revenues". Under
the terms of the Agency Pledge Agreement, SARq's payments are limned in each year to an
amount equal to the annual debt service due on the bonds minus surplus revenues generated
by the parking facility. Surplus Agency Revenues consist of (i) estimated tax increment
revenues, which are pledged to the payment of the former Agency's outstanding tax allocation
bonds and deemed to be "Surplus" in the current fiscal year in accordance with the resolution
or indenWre pursuant to which the outstanding tax allocation bonds were issued; plus (ii) all
legally available revenues of SAR4.

SARA makes payments on the Financing Authority Series 2001A bonds pursuant to Exhibit A
of the Agency Pledge Agreement by and between the former Agency and the Financing
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Authority. However, the Ciry records debt payments pursuant to [he annual debt service
schedule, which resWls in a timing difference in the amount of $1,670,000 balances
outstanding as of June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2012, the Financing Authority's bonds payable is
$35,105,000, whereas the corresponding receivable from SARA is $33,435,000.

• Lease Revenue Bontls with Reimbursement Agreement. In connection with the issuance of
the 2001 F Convention Center Refuntling Bonds, the farmer Agency. and the City entered into
the Second Amentletl and Restaffed Reimbursement Agreement, which was assumed by the
SARA, under which the SARA is obligated to use redevelopment property tax or other revenues
to reimburse the City for lease payments made to the Financing Authority for the project. The
Series 2001E bonds (tax exempt) mature in 2022 and have an outstanding balance of
$129,020,000 as of June 30, 2072.

Special Assessment and Special Tax Bonds are issued by the City to finance public
improvements in special assessment or tax tlisiricts established by the City and are secured by
assessments or special taxes levied on properties located within the special districts. The
assessments and special faxes, as applicable, are calculated for each fiscal year to generate
suffciant revenue to pay 100% of annual tleb~ service net of other available funding sources. Total
principal and interest remaining on the bonds as of June 30, 2012 is approximately $319,882,000,
with the foal payment due on May 1, 2042.

Special Hotef Taz Revenue Bonds, Series 201 i. was issued by the City on April 12, 2011 to finance
the costs of the ConveNion Center Expansion and Renovation Project (ihe 'Pmjecf'). The Special
Hotel Tax Bonds are secured by a frst lien on the Convention Center Facilities District No. 2008-1
special tax revenues and any Available Transient Occupancy Tax (Available TOT) appropriated by
City Council as part of the Ciy's annual budget process to pay debt service. The Base Special Tax
and Additional Special Tax (as defined in the band documents) are properly-based taxes levied on
hotel properties within the Convention Center Financing District and remitted to the City on a
monthly or quarterly basis in the same manner as the City's Transient Occupancy Tax. In summary,
the 2011 Bonds are generally payable from three sources of funds: (i) revenues generated by the
levy of the Base Special Tax; (ii) Revenues generated by the levy of the Additional Special Tax;
and (iii) Available Transient Occupancy Tax to the extent appropriated by the City Council for this
purpose. A full description of the sources of repaymeN can be found in the Offcisl Statement of
the 2011 Bonds.

Other Long-Tenn Obligation payments are primarily made from general revenues recorded in the
General Fund.
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Business-Type Activities ,The changes in long-term obligations far the year ended June30,-
2012 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Airport Revenue Bonds are issued primarily to fnance the consUUCtion of capital improvements at
the Norman Y. Mineta San Jos@ international Airport. Pureuant to the Airports Master Trust
Agreement, the City has irrevocably pledged the general airport revenues and certain other funtls
held or made available under the Airport's Master Trust Agreement, frst to the payment of
maintenance and operation costs of the Airport, and second to the payment of principal and
premium, if any, and interest on the bonds. General airport revenues generally include ail revenues,
inwme, receipts and monies derived by the Cily from the operation of the Airport with the exception
of cehain expressly excluded revenues. The net revenues available to pay debt service in the
current (scat year totaled approximately $120,566,000, which is composed of $61,649,000 of net
general airport revenues and $58,977,000 of other available funds. Band debt service payable from
generel airport revenues in the current fiscal year totaled approximately $59,389,000, which is net
of $21,336,000 of bond debt service paid from the accumulated passenger facility charges ("PFC").
The City has covenantetl in the Master Trust Agreement ghat net revenues available io pay debt
service for each fiscal year will be at least 125 % of annual debt service for such fscal year. Untler
the Master Trust Agreement, "debt service" means for any specifed period the sum of (a) the
interest falling due on any then outstanding current interest bonds, assuming ~ha~ all principal
installments are paid when due, but excluding any interest funded from the proceeds of any series
of bontls antl applied toward payment of interest on such bands, and (b) the principal installments
payable on any then outstanding bonds. Under the Master Trust Agreement, annual debt service
excludes Available PFC Revenues, as defned in the Master Trust Agreement, for such fscal year.
Total principal and interest remaining on the bonds as of June 30, 2012 is approximately $2.9
billion, with the final payment due on March 1, 2047.

Ambac Indemnity Corporation (Ambac), a subsidiary of Ambac Financial, has issued a reserve fund
surety bond of $4,250,000 that expires on March i, 2018 and is on tleposit in the General Account
of the Bontl Reserve Fund, securing the Series 1998A, 2001 A, 2002A, and 20026 Airport Revenue
Bonds. The reserve requirement in the General Account is also satisfed, in part, by a $6,600,000
surety bond from National Public Finance Guaranty Corporation ("NPFG'), as successor to the
MBIA Insurance Corporation. The ratings of Ambac and NPFG were reduced or withdrawn
subsequent to the deposit of the respective surety bonds to the Generel Account. The Master Trust
Agreement does not require that the rating of any surety bond held in the General Account be
maintained after the date of deposit.
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The Ambac surety band expires on March 1, 2018 and the NPFG surely bontl expires on March 1,
2016. Accortling to the Master Trust Agreement for the Airport Revenue Bonds, in the event ghat
such surety bonds for any reason terminates or expires, and the remaining amount on tleposit in
the General Account is less than the Required Reserve (as defined in the Master Trust Agreement),
the Airport is to address such shortfall 6y delivering to the ~rus~ee a surely bond or a letter of credit
meeting the criteria of a qualified Reserve Paciliry under the Master Trust Agreement, or depositing
cash b the Generel Account in up to twelve equal monthly installments. See node below regarding
Ambac's fling for bankruptcy protection.

San Josh-Santa Clara Clean Water Financing Authority Sewer Revenue Bonds are issued
primarily to finance the construction of capital improvemenGS at the Plant and the City has pledged
its net systems revenues as security for its obligations under the improvement agreement to make
base payments and additional payments with respect to the outside revenue bonds. The net
system revenues available to pay debt service in the current fiscal year totaled approximately
$46,537,000. Bond debt service payable tram net system revenues in the current (scat year totaled
approximately $71,419,000. The City has covenanted in the Improvement Agreement that net
system revenues will be of least 115 % of its allocable percentage of annual tlebl service. The City's
allocable percentage of annual tlebt service is arrently 100%. Total principal and interest
remaining on the bands as o(June 30, 2012 is approximately $57,004,000, with the foal payment
due on November 15, 2020.
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9. Annual Regalremen[s fo Ma[unty

The annual requirements to amortize all bontls and noes outstanding as of June 30, 2012 are as
follows (dollars in thousands)'
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For govemmentai and business-type activities, the specific year for payment of estimated liabilities
for the Hayes Mansion construction loan, arbitrage lia6i~ity, accrued vacation, sick leave and
compensatory time, accrued landfill pos4closure costs, estimated liability for self-insurance, the net
OPEB obiiga~ion and the pollution remetlialion obligation are not practicable to determine.

70. Impact o/the Ambac Flnancia/ Group Inc. Bankruptcy Filing

On November 9, 2010, Ambac Financial Group Inc. (Ambac Financial) filed for bankruptcy
projection under Chapter 17 of the Bankruptcy Cade in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of New York. Ambac Financial is a holding company whose affiliates provide
financial guarantees and fnancial services to its customers.

Ambac Assurance Corporation (Ambac Assurance), a subsidiary of Ambac Financial, has issued a
reserve fund surety bond ghat is on deposit in the General Account of the Bond Reserve Fund,
securing the Series 2001A and 2002A Airport Revenue Bonds and the Series 2011A-1 and the
Series 2011A3 Airpod Revenue Bonds. According to the Maser Trust Agreement for these bonds,
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in the event that such surety bond for any reason terminates or expires, and the remaining amount
on deposit in the Generel Account is less than the Required Reserve (as defined in the Master
Trust Agreement), the Airport is to atltlress such shortfall 6y tlelivering to the trustee a surety 6ontl
or a le~ler of credit meeting the criteria of a ~ualifed Reserve Facility under the Master Trust
A9reemenl, or depositing cash to the General Account in up to twelve equal monthly installments.

Ambac Assurance has also issued a reserve fund surety bontl that is on deposit in the reserve funtl
es~abiished for the City of San Jose Financing Authority Revenue Bontls, Series 2001A (4'" and
San Fernando Parking Facility) (the "CSJFA Series 2001A Bonds"). According to the Indenture of
Trust for the CSJFA Series 2001A Bonds, prior to the expiration of the surety bond, the Financing
Authority is to (1) replace the surety bond with a new Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument
(as defined in the Indenture of Trust) or (2) deposit or cause to be deposited with the trustee an
amount of moneys equal to the Reserve Requirement (as defined in the indenture of Trust), to be
derived from Revenues (as defned in the Indenture of Trust). In the event that the Financing
Authority fails io do either of the above, than the lrus~ee is to draw on the surety band before such
expiration io provide moneys to fund the reserve in the amount of the Raserve Requirement.

It is still uncertain at this time whether the Ambac Financial bankruptcy will cause the reserve fund
surety bonds to lapse or expire as no event has occurred during the fscal year. If such an event
does occur, it is uncertain whether and when the AirpoA or the Financing Authority would be
required to take one of the actions described above in order to maintain compliance with the
respective band indenture.

11. New Deb[ Issuances and Short-Term Debt Acfivitles

City of San Josh Financing Authority lease Revenue Commercial Paper Notes Payable

The City's Commercial Paper ("CP") Program utilizes a lease revenue fnancing structure. Under
this program, the Financing Authority is able to issue commercial paper notes ('CP Notes") at
prevailing interest rates for periods of maturity not to exceed 270 days. The CP Notes are secured
6y a pledge of lease revenues from various City assets and additionally secured by a direchpay
letter of credit ("lOC") provided by State Street Bank and Trust Company ("State StreeP') and the
California State Teachers' Retirement System ('CaISTRS") (together, the "Banks"). The current
Letter of Credit Agreement between the Financing Authority and the Banks expires on January 27,
2073. Per the berms of the Letter of Credit Agreement, the Banks are severally but riot jointly
responsible for payments on the draws made on the LOC. The respective obligations of the Banks
are: State Street Bank al 75 % and the CaiSTRS at 25%. State Street serves as the agent for the
Banks.

The current Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreement specifies an annual commitment fee
equal io 125 % per annum of the daily average Stated Amount and Unutilizetl Commitment of the
Leiter of Credit in eNect from time to time for the period from January 27, 2010 to and including the
Letter of Cretli[ Expiration Date; provided, however, that in the event that the long-term unsecured
general obligation debt ratings of the City are downgraded by two or more rating agencies, the
annual commitment fee shalt increase by 15 basis points (0.15%) per annum for each raking
category (including each "+" or'=" or numerical designation) below the "AaT' category by Moody's
or the "AA+" ~y~ygory by Fitch or S8P through the "A2" category by Moody's or the "A" category by
Fitch or S&P and by 20 basis paints (020 %)per annum far every rating category (including each
"+" or "" or numerical designation) below the "A2" category by Moody's or the "A" category by Fitch
or S&P (and if such ratings are withdrawn or suspended, for purposes of this provision, such ratings
shall be deemed to be downgraded below the "Baa2" category 6y Moody's or the "BBB" category
by Fitch or 58P).

Interest on any Principal Advances (draws under the Letter of Credit that are nod reimbursed by the
City on the same day) are calculated at various increasing interest rates depending on the number
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of days the Principal Advance remains outstanding ranging from the rate of (i) the Al~ernalive Basa
plus 0.75 % per annum for the period from the date of the Principal Advance to and including the
dale thiRy tlays thereafter to (ii) the Alternative Base Rafe plus 225% per annum for the period
from the date ninety-one days after the Principal Advance and lhereafler.

Interest on any Default Advances (draws that are nol reimbursed by the Cify following the Letter of
Credit Expiration Dade or if an Event of Default has occurred as defined under the Letter of Cretlit
and Reimbursement Agreement) are payable at [he ~efaul~ Rafe from the date of such Default
Advance until payment in full, payable in arrears, upon demand, and the unpaid amount of each
Default Advance is due immediately upon demand by the Banks, but if no demantl is matle, Shen on
each Quarterly Date in an amount equal to the then fair rental value with respect to the
Components subject to the Sublease for such quatledy period; providetl, however, that the unpaid
amount of each DefaWt Advance shall be paid by the Financing Authority in each year only to the
extent of the then fair rental value with respell to the Components subject to the Sublease for such
Base Rental Period. The Defaui~ Rate means, on any particular dale, a rate of interest per annum
equal to the Alternative Base Rafe in eRect on such dale, pWS 325 % per annum. The Alternative
Base Rata means, for any day, the higher of (i) the Reference Rate (prime rate), in effect on such
date plus 3%, (ii) the Fed Funds Rate, plus 3%, or (iii) the LIBOR Index Rate plus 3%; provided,
that at no lime shall the Alternative Base Rate be less than the Floor Rafe p% per annum) nor
higher than the Maximum Rate (10% per annum).

The Financing Authority issues the CP Notes under Stake law pursuant to an Amended and
Restated Trust Agreement behveen the Financing Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association (as amended and supplemented, the "Trust Agreement") and an Amended and
Restated Issuing and Paying Agent Agreement between the Financing Authority and Weiis Fargo
Bank, National Association. Barclays Capital Inc. wrrenHy serves as the dealer for the CP Notes
pursuant to an Amended and Restated Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement. The Cily has leased

- to the Financing Authority venous Ciry-owned facilities pursuant to a Site Lease, as amended (the
"Site Lease"). The Financing Authority subleased these same facilities back to the City pursuant to
a Sublease, as amended Qhe "Sublease") in exchange for the rental payments, which support
repayment of the CP Notes. The facilities subject to the Site and Sublease (pursuant to the Third
Amendments to the Site Lease and to the Sublease, both dated March 7, 2077, which substituted
leased asses) are: the Tech Museum, the Animal Care Center, Fire Station No. 1, and the South
San Jose Police Substation.

As of June 30, 2012, $26,255,000 of tax-exempt commercial paper notes was outstanding at an
interest rate of 020% and $19,093,000 of taxable commercial paper notes was outstanding at an
interest rate of 0.50%. The changes in commercial paper notes during the fscal year ended
June 30, 2012 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

July 1, 2071 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
$46,645 $136 $1433 $45,348

This program was initially established on January 13, 204, whereby the City Council and the
Financing Authority each adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of the Financing Authority
tax-exempt lease revenue commercial paper notes in an amount not to exceed $98,000,000. This
commercial paper program was initially established as a mechanism for financing public
improvements of the City including the oRsite parking garage for the new Civic Center and non-
construction costs for technology, furniture, and equipment and relocation services for the new
Civic Center.

On June 27, 2005, the City Council and the Financing Authority each adopted a resolution
authorizing the issuance of taxable lease revenue commercial paper noes, under the same
$98000,000 not to exceed limitation as the tax-exempt noes. This subsequent authorization



City of San Jose
Notes [o Basic Financial Statements

June 3Q 2012

permits the Financing Authority to issue taxable wmmercial paper notes to pay for expenses
otherwise authorized under the commercial paper program, but ineligible to be paid from ~ax-
exempt commercial paper proceeds. The City Council and the Financing Authority approved an
expansion of the capacity of the lease revenue commercial paper prog2m from $98,000,000 to
$116,000,000 on November 15, 2005.

2011 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Nole

On July t, 2011, the City issued ashort-term note for cash flow borrowing purposes to facilitate the
prefunding of the employer retirement contributions. The Initial Note Potlion of $100,000,000 was
purchased by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. on the closing date of the financing, July 1, 2011. At
the Ciry's discretion, atlditional borrowings were permitted to occur under iha terms of the 2011
Node and the Note Purchase Agreement; specifically, at any time up to the Commitment
Termination Date of June 30, 2012 and up to the Unutilized Commitment amount of $25,000,000.
Security for repayment of the 2071 Note is a pledge of the Cily's 2012'secured property tax
revenues (excluding property taxes levied (or general obligation bonds) and sales tax revenues
received during fiscal year 2012 plus all other legally available General Fund revenues of the City, if
required. The City repaid the $10 ,000,000 2011 Note on February 2, 2072.

easiness-Tvoe Ac£v'ties

Airport Commercial Paper Notes Payable

The Airport Commercial Paper Notes program was established in November 1999, pursuant to City
Council Resolution 69200, to provide interim financing for Airpod capital needs in anticipation of
issuance of Airport revenue bonds that would replace the short-term notes with perrhanent long-
lerm fnancing. Airport commercial paper notes are debt obligations backed by Net General Airport
Revenues and are subordinate to Airport senior lien debt, also backed by these revenues.

Under the Airport's Commercial Paper Notes program, the Airport is able to issue commercial
paper notes at prevailing interest rates for periods of maturity not to exceed 270 days. The
Commercial Paper Notes program is also secured by Letters of Credit ("LOC") summarized below
with each provider securing designated series of outstanding commercial paper noes (dollars in
thousands):

Credit Facility Description
Provider LOC Capacity' Exp tat on Date

Bank of America, N.A. $ 50,000 01H 1/2013
JPMOrgan Chase Bank, N A. 50,000 01/11/2013
Wells Fargo, N.A. 75,000 01/13/2014
rotas s i~s,000

1. fte{Iecfs pnnclOsl camponenloR~elOL Canmi~menl.

The terms of each bank's credit facility are specified in the respective LOC and Reimbursement
Agreement (the "Reimbursement Agreement'). In general, the bank agrees to advance funds to
the Issuing and Paying Agent in an amount sufficient to pay the principal and interest due on
maturing commercial paper notes in an amouN not to exceed the stated amount of the related
LOC. in the event that the commercial paper dealer is unable to fnd investors to purchase
commercial paper notes to repay the advance from the bank, the Cily must pay interest to the bank
based on a formula specified in the Reimbursement Agreement. Additionally, each bank has a
separate Fee Letter to specify the commitment fee payable 6y the City and the other fees and
charges imposed by the bank related to the issuance of its LOC. The initial facility rates were
established based on the underlying credit rating on the Airport's bonds. As of June 30, 2012, the

9t
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facility fee rates are 1 65% for BANA, 1.60% for JPMorgan, and 1.40% for Wells Fargo Bank.
These facility fee rates can increase at any time when a rating is wilhdrawq suspended or
otherwise unavailable and upon occurrence of an event of tlefault or rating downgrade. In July
2012, Fitch Ratings downgraded its rating with respect to the outstanding Airpoh Revenue Bonds
from "A-" with negative outlook to "BB6+° with stable outlook. As a result, the facility rate charged
6y Welis Fargo bank increased to 1.65 % effective July 20, 2012.

The outstanding balance for the Airport commercial paper notes as of June 30, 2012 is summarized
in the fable below (dollars in thousands):

Ou~s~antling as of
LOC Provider JVne 30, 2012 Interest Rate

JPMOrgan CM1ase Bank, NA. 5 2,319 0 47

WeIIS Fa~go,NA. 28,620 ~~~9~
Total $ 47,937

The change in Airport commercial paper notes payable during fiscal year 2012 is as follows (dollars
in thousands):

June 30, 2011 Atltlitions Deletions June 30, 2012
$410,079 $0 $362,142 $47,937

2011 Airport Revenue Bontls

In July 2477, the City issued Airport Revenue Bonds Series 2011A-1 and Series 2011A-2 in the
amounts of $150,445,000 and $86,380,000, respectively. The Series 2011 A-1 Bonds were issuetl
to (i) refuntl certain variable rate subordinated commercial paper notes originally issued to refund
the Airport Revenue Bond Series 2004A and Series 20046, (ii) to refund all of the outstanding
Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 7998A, (iii) to make a cash tleposit to the General
Account of the Bontl Reserve Fund, and (Iv) to pay a portion of the costs of issuing Series 201 to
Bonds. The bonds were issued with interest rates ranging from 2.00%to 625% and wilt mature in
March 2034.

A portion of the Series 2011A-1 proceeds antl the remaining balances in the t998A principal antl
interest acwunis totaling approximately $6,700,000 were used to pay the redemption price of the
refuntletl Series 1998A Bontls. The refunding achieved approximately $363,000 in aggregate debt
service savings or $303,000 on a present value basis.

The Series 2011A-2 Bonds were issued to refund $85,625,000 aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding Series 2001 A, and to pay a portion of the costs of issuing the Series 2071A Bonds.
The bonds were issued with interest rates ranging from 2.00% l0 525% and will mature in March
2034. The refunding achieved approximately $7,861,000 in aggregate debt service savings or
$5,425,000 on a present value basis.

In December 2011, the City issuetl Airport Revenue Bonds Series 2718 in the amount of
$277 820,000. The Series 2011 B Bonds were issued to (i) refund certain subordinated commercial
paper noes that were originally issued to finance and/or refinance the costs of designing and
constructing cetlain improvements to the Airpoh, (ii) pay a portion of interest to accrue on the
Series 20118 Bonds through March 1, 2014, (iii) make a cash deposit to the 2011 B account of the
bond reserve fund, and (iv) fund an increase of the rolling coverage amount, and pay the costs of
issuing the 20118 Bonds. The bonds were issued with interest rates ranging from 1.00 % to 6.75
and have a fnal maturity date of March 1, 2041.
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12. Landfill Posaclosure Costs

The City has fve closed landfills for which post-closure and monitoring services may be required for
approximately a 30 year periotl, which began in fscal year 1996, coinciding with the closure of the
last landfill. An estimated liability of $7,440,000 relatetl to the cbsed landfills is recorded in the
government-wide financial s~atemenis as of June 30, 2072. The City's Environmental Compliance
Officer performs an annual evaluation of the aforementioned liability. Actual costs may be higher
dua to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The City does not awn or
operete any open landfills at this time.

13. Estimated Liability /or Sel/-Insurance

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, errors and omissions, general liability,
injuries to employees, unemployment claims, and employee health and dental insurance. During
fiscal year 2012, the City maintained an all-risk property policy including boiler and machinery
exposures, coverage for loss due to business interruption and Flood. The City did not carry
earthquake insurance as it was not available at reasonable rates. A summary of insurable
coverega for the policy period October 1, 2011 to October 7, 2012 is provided below:

Coveraues Limit per OCCUrence oetluctible Per Ocarrence

Property, including Business Intarmption $i billion $100,000

$i5 million par occurrence antl 5%ol values al risk ($l million
Flootl ZOna, Special Flootl Hazartl Area annual aBHrega~e minimum tletluctible)

$25 million per occurrence antl 2%of values at risk ($100000
Fiooa zooms a~~~ai aee~~a~a mm~m~m eeaucuoie~

$t 00 million per occurrence
Flood, Other Locations antl annual aggregale 5100,000

During fiscal year 2012, for the policy period of October 1, 2011 to October 1, 2012, the Cily
maintained an airport liability policy covenn9 the AirpoR including operation of vehicles on
premises, which provides a limit of $200,000,000 wmbined single limit far bodily injury and
property damage subject to a deductible of $D each occurrence and annual aggregate, with a
sublimit of $50,000,000 each occurrence and in the annual aggregate for personal injury and a
sublimit of $100,000,000 each occurrence and in the annual aggregate for war liability. During the
past three years, there have been no any instances that the amount of claim settlements exceeded
the insurance coverage. A separate automobile policy provitled coverage for the oH-premise
operations of Airport vehicles including shu~~le bus Fleets. Coverage included $1,000,000 per
occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury antl property tlamage and no deductible.
Physical damage coverage was available for the Airpod Shuttle Bus Fleet and is subject to a
$25,000 comprehensive and collision deducible. Settled claims have not exceeded the
wmmercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. As paA of general suppoA services, the
City charges the Airport for the cost of general liability coverage.

Claims liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. The result of the process to es~imale the claims liability is not an
exact amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inFlation, changes in legal doctrines,
new discovered information and damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically
to wnsider the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement trends (including frequency and amount

of pay-outs), economic and social (actors, newly tliswvered information and changes in the law.
The estimate of the claims liability also includes increases or decreases to previousry repotled
unsettled claims. The workers' compensation estimate includes allocated loss adjustment
expenses, which represent the direct cost associated with the defense of indivitlual claims as well

as unallocatetl lass adjustment expenses, which represent the costs to administer all claims to 5nal
settlement, which may be years into the future and have been discounted Fo their present value
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using a rate of 3.5% far the amounts recordetl.

With respect to the general liability accrual, the City has numerous unsetlletl lawsuits filed or claims
asserted against it as of June 30, 2012. The City Atlomey and, with respect to workers'
compensation claims, the City's Risk Manager have reviewed These claims and lawsuits in order to
evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City and to arrive at an estimate of the
amount or range of potential lass to the Cily. The City has includetl a provision for losses in ids
claims Iiabiiity for loss contingencies that are bath pmba6le and can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the reported liability during the past two years are as follows (tlollars in thousands)

Liability as of June 30, 2010 $ 739,234
Claims and changes in estimates during 2011 31,273
gaims payments (p~,g7g)

Liability as of June 30, 2011 149,028
gaims and changes in estimates during 2012 73 923
Claims payments (20,235)

Liability as of June 30, 2012 $ 142,716

Owner Controlled Insurance Programs - On March 31, 2004, the City bound certain liability
insurance coverage far the major components of the North Concourse Project through an owner-
conirolled insurance program ("OCIP") with Chartis, formerly American Intemalional Group ('AIG"),
AIU Holdings, Inc. and AIU LLC ("AIU"). An OCIP is a single insurance program that provides
insurance coverage for conslmction jobsite risk of the project owner, general contractors and all
suhcontractore associated with wnstruction at the designated project site. The North Concourse
Project has been completed and the policies expired December 31, 2008. Closeout procedures on
the North Concourse Project are in process. All remaining work associated with the opening of the
facility is covered by the Terminal Area Improvement Project ("TAfP") OCIP, as described below, or
is addressed in the contracts far work not covered by the TAIP OCIP by requiring the contractors
performing such work to provitle insurance coverage naming the City as an additional insured.

The City was also required to establish a claims loss reserve for the North Concourse Pmjecl in fhe
aggregate amount of $3,900,000 available in a cash working fund. The full amount of the claims
loss reserve had been deposited with the insurance carrier antl was recorded as advances and
deposits in the accompanying statement of net assets. The claims loss reserve funds the
deducible of up to $250,000 per occurrence io a maximum lass exposure to the Ciry of $3,900,000.
As of June 30, 2012, the balance of the North Concourse reserve fund is $1,028,000. Chards will
continue to hold the remaining funds in the claims loss reserve fund until such time as the exposure
to risk of claims ceases or the City opts io cash out the remaining funds in exchange for accepting
responsibility for potential fuWre claims.

On March 15, 2007, the City purchased additional liability insurance through another OCIP for
major wmponenis of the Airpoh's TAIP OCIP through Chartis. The coverage for [his program as of
June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Terminal Area Improvement Projects
Coverages Limits Oetluctible Per Occurrence

General LiabilTy $2 million pe~occurrencel $250.W~
$0 million aggregate

Workers'Compensation Statutory $250,000

Employers' Liability $1 million pereccitlen~ $250,00

Excess liability $200 million None
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The liability under the TAIP OCIP is based upon an estimated payroll of $92,500,000 for the
covered projects and a construction period of 57 months, commencing on March 15, 207 through
December 37, 2010. The term of the TAIP OCIP was subsequently extendetl to June 30, 201 i. The
terms of the TAIP OCIP require the City to fund a claims loss reserve fund with Chatlis in [he
amount of $8,900,000. The claims bss-reserve fund is available to Chartis to pay claims within the
Cirys deductible subject io an aggregate maximum loss exposure within coverage limits to the City
of $8,900,000. The City was able m negotiate a reduction in funding to 74% of the claims loss
reserve and interest generated remains in the fund. As of June 30, 2009, the full amount of
$6,500,000 was deposited with Chards and the balance at June 3Q 2072 is $4,303,000. This
deposit is recorded as ativances and deposits in the accompanying statement of net assets.

14. Net Other POStemployment Benefits (OPEBJ Obligation

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
(or Postemployment Bene/ifs Other Than Pensions, prospectively and as such, the City did not
have a net OPEB obligation at transition, July 1, 2007. The PPDRP antl FCERS ca~cula~ed a net
OPEB obligation in accordance with GASB 45 as discussed in Note N A2. The Cily initiated a fve-
year phase-in to fully pre-fund the annual required coniri6ulion for retiree healthcare benefits
pursuant to memoranda of agreement with the majority of its employee units beginning in fiscal
year 2070 through fiscal year 2014, and with the members of the San Jose Firefghters Union
(International Association of Firefghters, Local 230j beginning in fiscal year 2012 through fiscal
year 2016. The phase-in plan will continue to result in an incremental increase in retiree healthcare
contributions for both the City and ifs employees over the term of the respective memoranda of
agreement. Phasing-in to fully pre-fund retiree healthcare benefls does not mean that the existing
obligation is paid off immediately. It is projected that it will take approximately 30 years io pay ofl
the existing unfunded retiree healthcare liability. At June 30, 2012, the City recorded net OPEB
obligations totaling $320,225,000 in the government-wide financial statements, of which
$292,244,000 is in governmental activities and $27,981,000 is in business-type activities.

15. Pollution Remetliation Ob/igaflons

The City is wrrently responsible for the management and cleanup of polWtiodremediation activities
at several Cily sues including five active leaking petroleum storage dank sites: Fire Stations #5 and
#16, las Plumes Warehouse, Family Shelter, and the Airport, as discussed in Note IV.C.1.
Although the Cily has signifcanl experience in estimating these types of cleanups, the calculation
of the expected outlays related to this polWtion remedialion is based on estimates provided by both
City engineers and consultants hired by the Ciry. The amowl of the estimated pollution remediation
liability assumes that there will be no major increases in the cost of providing these cleanup
services. As of June 30, 2012, the government-wide statement of net asses reported a net
pollution remediation obligation in the amount of $1,083,000 in governmental activities, and
$714,000 in business-type activities.

95



City of San Jose
Noes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

G. Interfuntl Transactions

The composition of intertund balances as of June 30, 2012, with explanations of transactions, is as
follows (dollars in thousands):

1. Due /roMDue to other /untls

Receivable Fund Payable Funtl

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funtls

Nonmajor Govemmenlal Fwtls

Wastewater Treatment System

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
San Jose Financing ANhority

Nonmajor Governmental W ntls
Municipal Water System

$ 1438 (1)

10.194 (2)
103 (2)

201 (3)

176 (4)
$ 12.112

(7) $1,151 represents accrual of gas tax transfer and S28] represents accmal of constmclion and
conveyance tax transfer.

(2) Represents shoMlertn borrowing for working capital.

(3) Represents shotl-term portion of loan for Fiber Optics Contluit protect.

(4) Represents shorbterm potlion of loan for Fhe North Coyote Valley Water Project.

Z. Advances to/Ativances from other /ands

Receivable Funtl Payable Funtl Amount

General FUntl San Jose Financing Authority $ 3,29] (1)

Sen JosA Financing Authority Affordable Housing Investment Fund 14,091 (2)

Nonmajor Governmental Funtls Nonmalor Governmental Funtls 2,500 (3)
Generel FUntl 13,156 (4)

Wastewater T~ealment System General Fund 5,044 (4~

$ 38,088

(i) Represents a loan to support the Rancho Del Pueblo golf wurse.

(2) Represents pmceetls of the commercial paper notes loanetl to tie Attortleble Housing InvesMent Fund io
replace the 20% retlevelopment property tax revenues set aside to make Ne SERAF loan to the former
Agency.

(3) Represents s loan for the Roberto Antonio Balermino Palk Project.
(0) Represents SERAF loan amounts assumetl by the General Funtl per the term of the SERAF loan

agreement and payable in 2016-2015.
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3. Advances Rece(vable /rom SARA

At June 30, 2012, the City has advances receivable from the SARA as follows (in thousands):

Receivable Fund Purpose Amoun[

Affordable Housing Investment Funtl SERHF principal $ 64,816
SERAF interest 555

$ 65,371

In Jury 2009, the Slate LegislaWre passed AB X4 26, which required redevelopment agencies
statewide to deposit a total of $2.05 billion of property tax increment into the county held
SupplemeNal Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund ('SERAP") to be distributed to meek the
S~a~e's Proposition 98 obligations to schools. The former Agency's SERAF obligation was
$62,200,000 in fiscal year 2009-201 and $12,800,000 in fiscal year 2070-2011. Payments were
made by May 10 of each respective fscal yeas

On May 4, 2074, the former Agency and the City entered into a loan agreement where the City
agreed to loan the former Agency through hvo separate payments (May 2010 and May 2011) with a
combinetl amount of $74,816,00 b make the SER4F payment. Sources of the loan were from the
City's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund ($64,816,000), which was specifically authorized
by the legislation, and idle moneys from City special funds ($10,000,000).

As tliscussed in Note I.F.i6, pureuant to AB Xi 26, the Ciry retained the $64,816,OOD SERAF Loan
made from the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund in fiscal year 2009-t0 and 2094-71 and
the interest accrued ai the LAIF rate associated with this loan in the amount of $555,000 at
June 30, 2012. Under the loan agreement, SARA has the option to make interest payments on an
ongoing basis, or to pay accmetl interest upon fna~ payment of the SER4F Loan in fscal year
2075-16.

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the SERAF Loan made from the Low
and Moderate Income Housing Fund and the interest accrued are valid enforceable ob~iga~ions
payable by SARA under the requirements of the AB X1 26. A podion of this receivable is
questioned in the County Auditor-Controllers report as discussed in Nole IV.D3. However, since
the Cowry Auditor Con~mller has no legal authority under AB X1 26 to enforce [his determination,
the Cily has not made adjustments to the fnancial statements to reflect this view. It is reasonably
possible that a determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate State or judicial
authority that would resolve this issue unfavorabty to the City. The City has nod made adjustments
to the fnancial sta~emenis due to this unceRainty.

4. Due fo SARA

The former Agency entered into Annual Cooperation Agreements to assist in funding various
projects consUUCted on its behalf by the City and to reimburse the City for the actual salaries and
fringe benefits of City employees who work under the supervision of the farmer Agency's Executive
Director or designee, as well as other City stall in providing support services [o the former Agency.
As of June 30, 2012, the City has a payable amount of $124,000 to recognize the total
reimbursements due to SARA. The City's Housing Activities Funtl is also due $72fi,000 to the
SARA for reimbursement of prepaid housing administrative expenditures at June 30, 2012.
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5. Long-term Advances from SARA

The former Agency advanced a pohion of a loan made by the City's Housing Department to a third
party far a transitional housing project. The former Agency is entitled to 24.5% of the dotal loan
repayment or $280,280. The advance will be repaid to SARA in part in FY 20t2-13 antl fuWre
payments will be made to SARA as the loan is collected by the City's Housing Department.

8. Transfers in?cans/ers out

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service and
subsidies of various City operations. The following schedules summarize the City's transfer activity
with explanations of transactions (dollars in thousands):

Between governmental and business-type activities:

Transfers hom Tansfers to

Alrpor~ General FUntl

wastewater Trealmenl5ystem

Municipal Water System

Parking System

General FUnd
Nonmajor Govemmenlal Funds

General PUntl
Nonma~or Governmental Funtls
San Jost Financing AWM1Onty

General Wna
Nonmajor Governmental Funtls

Amount

5 115 (1)

25fi (2)
1.724 (3)

242 I4)
117 (v7
149 (6)

506 (Z)
248 (8)

5 3,357

(1) Trens(er ~o Generel funtl for Human ResourceslPayroll System upgrade.

(2) Transfer to General Funtl for Human ResourceslPayroll System upgratle.

(3) Transfers of $1,6]1 for City Hail tlebt service payments ana $53 for the householtl hazardous waste
(aciliry.

(4) Trens(er of $1] [o Generel Fund for Human ResourceslPayroll5ystem upgrade and $225 for
administrative services.

(5) Transfer for City Hall debt service payments.
(6) T~ans(er for debt service payments.
(]) Transfer of $910 General Fund for Human Resources/Payroll System upgrade and $497 miscellaneous

non-downtown receipts.
(8) Transfer of 5168 for City Hall tlebt service payments and $80 for the Downtown Property and Business

Improvement 0is~rict.
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eenveen governmental activities

Transle~a Vo Tanslen ro Am m[

02.395General FVntlm San JOSe Financing AUtFOnry E (1)
Nonmajor GOVemmenlal FUntls 29,81] (2)
In~emal Service Pontls 111 (3)

ReOevelopmenl N9enry General FUnO 35] (4)
Housing ACtiNties 1],532 (5~
San JOSE FinandnB AU~M1Ori1y 1681 (6)
rvonme)or GOVemmental FUntls 150 p)

Housing AClivilies NHOrtlable Housing lnves~meni FUntl J0600) (B)
Generel FUntl 26 (9)
rvonm.~or co.emmemai F~~a~ ~n ~io~
San JOSC FInencing AUlM1on~y 136 (11)
ReEevelopment Agency 23,350 (f 1)

Nonmalor GOVemmenGl FVntls Geneal Fund ID,352 p2~
Nonmejor GOVemmenlal FUntls II,3J5 (ll)
Sen JOSC Fnannng ANM1OnN 30,338 (16)
ReOevelopmeni Hgency i eoe (15)

San JOSC FlnenclnO AUlhonry Nonme~o~GOVemmenlal FUntls 42 (i6)
Spenel Assessment ~ls~nds i6 (1])

Special Assessment Olslncls General FUntl 143 (18)

Internal Service Funtls Geneal rand 608 (19)
Nonmalor GOremmen~el FUntls 2H (30)

E 612 992

(1) Debt service payments of $1 490 kr the 20D]A bond series and $80510 replenish the Financing

Au~horiry.
(2j Transfers (or various debt service payments, loan repayments, operations antl subsidies.
(3j Transfers of $9 to increase flexible spentling account antl $i p2 for vehicle antl fleet replacement.
(4J Trans~et (or San Jose Arena pass-through payment.
(5) Trensterof20%lormer Agency propetly tax increment revenue required antler the former California

Community Retlevelopment Law prior to the tlissoWtion of the former Agency.
(6) Pletlgetl obligation payment (or 41h Street and San Fernando parking facility.
(]) Trdnsters Por HellyervPierq Assessment District improvements pursuant to the terms of the improvement

tlishicls.
(8) Transfers for tie establishment of the AROrtlable Housing ~~vesiment Funtl, as Housing Successor of the

former Agency.
(9) Transfer to General Pontl for Human Resources/Payroll System Opgratle.
(10J Transfer for City Hall tleb~ service payment.
(11) Transfers (or various tlebt service payments.
(12) Various transfers for protect savings, operations, interest earnings, antl capital pmjec~s.
p3) Various transfers for debt service, operations, capi~ai projects, entl project savings.
(14) Various hans(ers for debt service payments.
(15) Transferfor HUD 1081oan payments.
(i6) Transfero~iibraryprolect completion surpNS.
(17) Return of issuance cost related to the Special Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds.
(18) Transfer ~o General Pontl for atlministrative services.
(19) Transfers of $15 for the Human Resources/Payroll System Upgratle, $5 interest earnings, $88 for Plan

and Specific Programs, $200 overcollected funds antl $300 for opere~ions.
(20) Transfers 0($202 for tlebt service payments and $iD to the Civic Center Construction Funtl.

m'
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H. Governmental Fund Balances

As of June 30, 2012, dotal fund balances for the City's major and nonmajor governmental funds are
as follows (dd~ars in ihousantls):
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City Reserves Policy. The City adopted the Reserves Policy in October 2004. Il formally sel asitle
amounts for use in emergency situations or when revenue shortages or butlgetary imbalances
arise. A contingency reserve fund was setup in the General Fund to account for one-time purposes
or as part of multi-year financial plan to balance the budget and avoid operating defci~s. In addition,
a cash and emergency reserve funds were established by the Ciry Charter to address known but
unspecified expenses and emergency needs. The minimum requirements for each fund were also
established accordingly.

The Contingency Reserve Fund was created to meet unexpected circumstances such as a
General Fund revenue shotltall. The policy establishetl a minimum of three percent of the opereling
budged as the reserve balance. As of June 30, 2012, the contingency amount accounts for
$30,000,000 of the unassigned funtl balance.

The Cash Reserve Funtl was created for the payment of any authorized expenditures of the City
for any fiscal year in anticipation of and before the collection of taxes antl other revenues of the City
for such fiscal year, and for fhe payment of authorized expenses of the City for any fiscal year
which became due and payable antl must be paid prior to the receipt of tax payments and other
revenues for such fscal year. A reserve shall be built up in said fund from any available sources
other than resUicted sources in an amount which the Council deems sufficient far said purposes. As
of June 30, 2012, the cash reserve amount accounts for $5,000 of the unassigned fund balance.

The Emergency Reserve Fund was created for the purpose of meeting any public emergency
involving or threatening the lives, property or welfare of the people of the City or property of the
City. A reserve shall be built up in said fund from any available sources, other than restrictetl
sources, in an amount which the Council deems desirable. As of June 30, 2012, the emergency
reserve amount accounts for $3,000,000 of the unassigned fund balance.
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IV. Other Information

A. Definetl Benefit Retirement Plans

A. 1. City Sponsored Defined Benefit Pension Plans

1. Plan Descriptlon

The City sponsors and administers lwo single employer defined benefit retirement systems, the
Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan ('PFDRP") and the Federated City Employees'
Retirement System ("FCERS"), and collectivety, "the Retirement Systems", which together cover all
full-time and cetlain part-time employees of the Ciry. The Retirement Systems provide general
retirement benefits untler single employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, as well as the
Postemploymenl Healthcare Plans. The Retirement Systems are accounted for in the Pension
Trust Funds.

The separately issued annual repotls of PFDRP antl FCERS, together with the City's Municipal
Code provide more detailed information aho~t the Retirement Systems. Those reports may be
obtained from the City of San JosB Department of Retirement Services, 1737 North First Street,
Suite 580, San Jose, California 95112.

The Defined Benefit Pension Plans provide general retirement benefits including pension, death,
and disability benefits to members. Benefits are based on average final compensation, years of
service, and limited required cos4oi-living increases. The Defned Beneft Pension Plans are
administered by the Director of Retirement, an employee of the City, under the direction of the City
Manager and the Boards of Administration for the Retirement Systems. The contribution and
benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by the City Charter and the City's
Municipal Cotle.

The current membership in the Defined Beneft Pension Plans as of June 30, 2012, is as follows

PFDRP FCERS

0¢firietl 8en¢N Pension Plans:

Retirees and beneficiaries currtMty receiving benefls 1,910 3,fiB0

ferminatetl vested members not ye~receivinq beneNS 168 969

Active members 1,]18 3W6

Total 3,]94 ],733

The Retirement Systems are not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, a federal law that sets minimum standards for most voluntarily established
pension and health plans in private industry to provide pmtec[ion for individuals in these plans.

2. Funding Policy

AcWarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates and assumptions about the pmbabiliry of
occurrence of events far into the future. For pension plans, the assumptions include future
employment trends, mortality rates, level of salary increases, and investment gate of return.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Retirement, Systems' Boards
policy is to obtain actuarial evaluations every year beginning June 30, 2010. The most recent
valuations were completed as of June 30, 2011 and included in the valuations was the Retirement
Systems Boards' adopted funding policy of establishing the annual required contribution to be the
greater of the dollar amount reported in the actuarial valuation or the dollar amount determined by
applying the percentage of payroll repohed in the valuation to the actual payroll for the fscal year.
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The City fully funded the fiscal year 20t b2012 annual requiretl contribution amount on Juiy 1, 2071
as reported in the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuations.

The contributions to the Defined Benefit Pension Plans from the City and the participating
employees are based upon an actuarially determined percentage of each employee's base salary
suNicient to provide adequate assets to pay benefts when due.

On June 24, 2008, the City Council adopted ordinance No. 28332 amending Chapter 3.36 and 328
of Title 3 of the San Jose Municipal Code to provide the City with the option to make lump sum
prepayments of City required contributions for pension benefits to PF~RP and FCERS. The lump
sum prepayment for fscal year 2012 was calculated to be actuarially equivalent ro the bi-weekty
payments that would otherwise have been the City's required contributions to the pension plans.
The Boards of Administration for the PFDRP and FCERS approved the acNarially determined
prepayment amount to be paid by the City on July 1, 2071.

The contribution rates for the Defned Beneft Pension Plans for the City and the participating,
employees for fecal year 2012 were established in accordance with actuarially determined
requirements computed through actuarial valuations dated June 30, 2010, except for the period
June 24, 2012 through June 30, 2012, which were based on the June 30, 2011 valuation. The
contribution rates in effect and the amounts contributed to the pension plans for the flscai year
ended June 30, 2012 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

PfDRP FCERS
Cit ~~ Varticlpan6 Total Li_~) ! Patllcl0an~s Total

AGVanel Re[e'.
~¢(inetl 8¢n¢02 Pensim Pldn:

]/Uffl1-&23/12 (police membE~s) <929% 1046%
]/01Ht-6R]/12 (TR m¢mbers) 5105% 10'/6V

1I011fl -823/12 28.39H 4.68°b
6Q0H2-6/30/@(pollG¢ members) 565]h F~ 11.15%

8129112 -6130114 (9re members) 5B 43h a~ ttYtNo
enanz-snonz nn nsw ~'~ s.za~

nnnoai aensmn comaeuoa~
Delmetl 9eewlit Pension Plan $~21p~9 S 19,305 5 140354 $ 8],082 $ 10$55 $ 9),63]

~~~ The acNa1 conVibu~ion rates paid by Ue Giry (or ~M1e fscal year entleE June 30, 2012 ditlered due io Ne Cily footling

Ike annum required conlnbution amount Dasetl on the greater o(Ihe dollar amount repotled in Ine acluanal valuation or
the dollar amount determine0 by applying IM1e percentage of payroll repotlea in IM1e valuation to IM1e acWal payroll, if
acWal payroll exceeds the actuarial payroll fob IM1e fiscal year.

«~ The resoW~ions atlop~atl by ~M1e Retirement Plans Boards seVing ~M1e con~nbWlon rates for (scat year 2012-2013

provide t~a~ IM1e Gily's Bu08e~ O~fce may adjust iM1e employer's mninbu~ion rates in order to achieve a minimum dollar
con~nbu0on lorilscal year 2012-2013.

102



City of San Jose
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

3. Annua! Pension Cost antl Nef Pension Obligation

The following is three-year trend information for the City's Defined Benefit Pension Plans (dollars in
thousands)'

F6ca1 Pnnual P¢¢¢p[ N¢t

year Pension APG Pension

entletl Cost (APC)~~~ GonlribWetl Obligation

PFDRO 6130/ID 5 52,315 100% 5 -

fi130H1 ]],918 100%

6/30/12 121,008 t00%

FCERS 6130/10 SC,566 100% -

613~111 59,180 100h -

6I30/12 B],082 100%

~~~ These amounts reD~esent lbe annual Denson cost ~actonng In lM1e City's elec~etl lump-sum prepayment.

4. Funded Status and Funding Progress

PFORP's Funded Status antl Funding Progress. As summarized in the table below, as of
June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, PFDRP was 84% funtled for pension
benefits (an increase from 80 % in the June 30, 201U valuation) representing the diRerence between
the actuarial value of assets and the ac[uanal accrued liabilities ("AAL") resulted in an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL") of $510,286,000. The UAAL does not re9ect the impact of
approximately $58,000,000 of accumulated deferred investment lass resulting from unfavorable
investment returns from fiscal yeare 2008 antl 2009. PFDRP's actuarial valuation uses a fve-year
smoothing method for investment returns. This means that, for actuarial valuation purposes, the
annual gains or losses, as calculated at year-end, are smoothed (amodized) with the net gains and
losses resulting from the prior (our years. As of the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation date,
PFDRP's AAL decreased by approximately $34,449,000 due to favorable demographic experience
and changes in actuarial assumptions as recommended by the PFDRP's Board's actuary in the
June 30, 2011 experience study. PfDRP's UAAL decreased from approximately $653,751,000 as
of June 30, 2010 to $510,286,000 as of June 30, 201 t.

The net change io the UAAL was primarily the result of:

(a) 14 % reduction in the number of active members;

(b) 24 % reduction in expected payroll;

(c) increase in amortization period for changes in methods and assumptions from closed 16-year
periods to closed 20-year period beginning with the valuation date in which they are effective;

(d) 115% reduction in average pay;

(e) reduction in the discount rate from 7.75%, net of expenses, to 7.50%, net of investment
expenses'''; and

(f) reduction in wage growth assumption from 425% to 0 % for two years and 3.5%thereafter.

"rne ~~~~ ao, zmi ~awaro~ ~oomne: me eoa~a aoa~o~ea mo aowan's re~omme~aanoo m m~wee aamm~:vaime
expenses and supplemental retiree benefits reserve (SRBR) costs as additions to normal wst (values at 33 o million
for aCminislrative expenses and 022 % o~ the marked value of assets for ~M1e SRBR). SRBR is a reserve requVed by the
Municipal Cotle to be set aside from investment earnings to provide supplemental bene0is io retirees.
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The annual required contribution tlelermined for PFDRP in the June 30, 2010 valuation for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012 was the greater of $121,009,000 (if paid al the beginning of the fiscal
year) or 51.05°/a for fire member antl 4929 %for police members of acWal payroll for the fiscal year.
PFDRP's payroll for fiscal year 2012 of $184746,000 was less than the actuarial payroll of
$251, 58,000 restyling in an annum contribution of $121,009,000 as of July 7, 2011, including year
end contributions receivable and prior year conUibution atljus~ments.

FCERS's Funtled Stalus and Funding Progress. As summarized in the table below, as of the
June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation date, FCERS was 65% fundetl on an acWariai basis for pension
benefits. PCERS's UAAL of $981,567,000 does not reflect the impact of approximately $28,000,000
of accumulated deferred investment bsses resulting primarily from unfavorable investment returns
in fscal years 2008 and 2D09. FCERS' actuarial valuation uses afive-year smoothing method for
investment realms, This means that the current year's gains or losses, as calculated at year-end,
are smoothed with the results from the prior four years.

As of June 30, 2011, FCERS's most recent actuarial valuatioq the funded staWS of FCERS
decreased from 69% to 65%. The decrease in pension funding status was primarily due to
actuarial assumption changes as recommended by the FCERS Board's actuary and adopted by the
Board for the June 30, 2011 valuation.

FCERS's June 30, 2011 acWarial valuation includes the following acWarial assumption changes:

(a) a decrease in the investment return assumption from 7.95%, net of expenses, to 7.30%, net
of investment expenses only";

(b) a decrease in the payroll wage inflation assumption from 3.90 % to 325%; and

(c) a decrease of 74 % in the number of active members and decrease of 24 % in the expected
payroll.

'''The June 30, Zoit valuation indutles Ine Board aoP~ovetl actuary's recommendation ro include aominisVelive

expenses and supplemental retiree bene0is reserve (SRBR) costs as additions to normal ws~ (valued a10 ]0% of

payroll tot atlminislra4ve expenses and 035% of (M1e ma~ke~ value of assets fm tM1e SR88). SRBR Is a reserve

required ny me Munitipal Coda to De sal aside from investment earnings ro pmNtle supplemental Oenefils to

retirees.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans' Funded Status and Funding Progress Summary

Actuarial UML as a

Atluarial AcWerial Ac<ruad Annual Pemen[age

Valuation Value at Llabllity Pvntletl Loveretl of Covered

Oate Assets IML~ IIML Patlo Payroll Payroll

PFORG 6/30If1 S 2,685121 8 3,198,00] E 510,286 $ O<°b 5 190.726 5 388A

FCEftS 6/3011 1]BB,6fi0 3]]022] 9B1be9 65% 2289]6 42Bk

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information ('RSI')

following the Notes to Basic Financial Statements, presents multiyear trend information about

whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the

actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual

revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about

the fuWre.

In fiscal year 2010-201 t, the Retirement Systems' Boards approved an establishment of a "floor

funding method" for payment of annual required contributions ("ARC°) for pension benefits to

address unexpected shortfalls in contributions that may result when payroll does not grow ai the

rate assumed by the actuaries. The "floor funding method" interprets the ARC as the greater of the

annum dollar wnVibution amount established in the valuation, or the ARC ~ha~ would result from

applying the employer contribution rate determined from that same valuation to the acWal emerging
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payroll of Retirement Systems members throughout the fiscal year. Therefore, the resolutions
adopted 6y the Retirement Systems' Boards setting the contribution rates for fiscal year 2012-213

provide that the employers contribution rakes may be adjusted in order to achieve a minimum dollar
contribution for fiscal year 20722013.

The annual required contribution determined for FCERS in the June 30, 2010 valuation for fscal
year ending June 30, 2012 was the greater of $86,888,000 (if paid at the beginning of the fiscal
year) or 2834 % of actual payroll for the fscal year. The actual payroll of FCERS for the fscal year

of $224,742,000 was less than the actuarial payroll of $318,544,000 resulting in an annual
contribution of $87,082,000, including year-entl contributions receivable antl prior year contribution
adjustments of $194,000.
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5. Actuarial Methotls and Assumptions

The significant actuarial methods antl assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined
PFDRP's annual requiretl contributions and the funded status are as follows:

OescrioHOn

Valuation tlate

AcNa~ial cost meUOtl

Amortization method for

actuarial accrued liabilities

Remaining amortization

periotl

Aquaria) asset valuation

method

Investment rate of return

Post-re~trement mortality

Active service, wiNtlrewal,
death, disability service
retirements

Salary increases

MethotllASSUmption

June 30, 2011

Entry age normal cost methotl

Level percentage of pay, closeQ layered:
equivalent single amortization period
13.6 years

(1) Outstanding balance of the unfuntletl
accrued Ilabillty calcvlaletl through the
June 30, 2003 valuation amortizetl over
next 6 years', (2) Prior service cosh for the
FeCruary 4, 1996 benefit improvement
amortized over the next 6 years; (3)
Actuarial gains antl losses antl plan

changes are amortizetl over i6 years
from the tlate of each such event,
beginning with the June 30, 2005
valuation; and (4) AcWarial methotls and
assumption changes are amoniva over
20 years from the dale of each such
event, beginning with the June 3q 201t
valuation.

5 year smoothetl market with a 80 h to

120% Market Value Corritlor

7.5%per annum ~ne~ of imesMent
expenses)

RP-20W Male Combinetl Healthy
Mortality Table with no collar atljusMen~,
projectetl 1D years. (set hack 3 years)

RP-2000 Female Combined Healthy
Morlaliry Table with no collar adlustment,
prolectetl 10 years.

RP-2000 wmbined healthy male
mortality table with no collar adjustment,
pmjectetl 10 years, Set back 2 years.

Basetl upon the June 30, 2011 AcWarial
Experienw Analysis.

0.00 % for FY 2013 antl 2014, and 3 5
thereafter. Merit component addetl ~asetl
on an intlivitlual years of service ranging
from 8 00 % to 225%.

106

MethodlASSUmption

June 30, 2010

Entry age normal mst method

Level percentage of payroll (assuming a
4?5%~o~al payroll inuease), closed,
layeretl; equivalent single amortization

periotl of 15 years

(1) Outstantling balance of the unfuntled

awmed liability calculated thmu9h the

June 30, 2003 valuation amortized over

next 7 years; (2) Prior service cost for the

February 4, 1996 benetil impmveman~

amortized over the next ]years; and (3)
Future actuarial experience gains and

losses. changes in assumptions, antl
bene0t improvements amortized over i6
years lmm the dale of each such even,
beginning with the June 30, 2005
valuation.

5 year smoothed market with a 80% io

120°o Market Value Corridor

]]5 % per annum (net of adminisVative,

SRBR antl inveshnent expenses)

(a) Service: RP~20~0 Male Combinetl

HealtM1y Mortality Table with no collar
adjuslmen~, pmjectetl 10 years. (set back

4 years)
ftP-2000 Female Combined Healthy

Morlaliry Table with no wllar atllus~ment,

projectetl 10 years.

(b) Disability: RP-2000 combined healthy

male mortality fable with no collar
atljuslmen~, projectetl 10 years, set back 1

year.

Based upon the June 30, 2009 Actuarial

Experience Analysis.

9.]5 % for the first 5 years of service,

6]5%for 6-] years of service, antl 6% for

8~ years of service. The dotal salary
Increase of 425% is for combinetl inflation

antl real across-the-boartl salary increase.
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The signifcant actuarial methods and assumptions usetl to compute [he actuarially determined
FCERS's annual required contributions and the funded slaws are as follows:

De6tdotlOn
Valuation date

Actuarial cost methotl

Amortization methotl for unfunded
acwarial accruetl liabilities

Remaining amotlization periotl

A<Warial asset valuation mePiotl

Investment rate of realm

Poslretiremeni motlaliy

Active service, withdrawal, death,
tlisabilily service ~eliremen~

Salary inueases

Projected total payroll increases

MethatllASSUmotion
June 3D, 2011

Entry age normal cosh method

Level pe¢enla9e of payroll

20-year IayereQ closetl, level
percentage of payroll with the June
30, 2009 UAAL amotlized over a
closed 30-year period.

5 year smootM1etl mallet

].SOW per annum

Far M1ealihy annuitants, the male
and female RP-2000 combined
employee end annuitant mortality
tables projected to 2015 an0 set
back two years. For tlisabled
annuitants, the CaIPERS ortlinary
disability table from Neir 2000-
2004 sWayfor miscellaneous
employees.

Tables basetl upon current
experience

The base annual rate of salary
is 3 25%inflation ~a~e

plus a rate increase for
merilllongevity for years O l01Y
years of service ranging from
4.50%to 0 25 % al the 141h year of
service.

3.25

A. 2 Postemployment Healthcare Plans

1. Plan Description

McMOtllASSUmo[ian
June 3Q 20ID

Entry age normal cost melhotl

Level percentage of payroll

20-year layered, closeq level
percentage of payroll witM1 the
June 30, 2009 UPA~ amotlizetl
over a dosed 30-year period.

5 year smootM1etl mallet

7.95%per annum

The 1994 Group Annuity
Mortality Table set back Three
years br males and one year (or
females was usetl for healthy
retirees antl beneficiaries. The
tlisaelea motlaliry table usetl was
the 1981 Disability Motlaliry
Table.

Tables based upon current
experienw

The base annual ate of salary
increase is 3.90% inllation rate
plus a rate increase for
merilllangevity brthe first 5
years of service rangin8 from
5]5%to 0 25% at tha 5th year
of service.

3 90°h

In addition to the Defnetl Benefit Pension Plans, the Cily also sponsors and administers two single
employer postemployment healthcare plans, the Police and Fire Department Postemployment
Healthcare Plan and the Federated City Employees' Poslemployment Healthcare Plan, which
together cover eligible full-time and certain part-time employees of the City. The Poslemploymen~
Healthcare Plans are accounted for in the Pension Trust Funds.

The separately issued annual reports of PFDRP and FCERS, together with the City's Municipal
Code provide more detailed information about the Postemployment Healthcare Plans. As stated in
Section IV.A.'I of this note, those reports may be obtained from the Cily of San Jose Department of
Retirement Services.

The Postemployment Healthcare Plans provide medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees and
their beneficiaries. Benefits are 100% of the premium cost for the lowest priced medical insurance
plan and 100% of the premium cost for a dental insurance plan available to an active City
employee. The PostemploymeN Healthcare Plans are administered by the Director of Retirement,
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an employee of the City, under the direction of the City Manager and Boards of Administration far
the RetiremeN Sys[ems. The conUibution and benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by the City's Municipal Code and Memoranda of Agreements (MOAs).

The .current membership in [he Poslemployment Healthcare Plans as of June 30, 2012, is as
follows:

PFpRP FCERS

Postemployment Healthcare Plans:

Ref~ees antl beneficiaries wnen~ty reviving benefits 1,852 3062

Terminatetl vesretl members not yet receiving beneRS 5 111
Active members 1,718 3,0]6

Total 35]5 8248

2. OPEB Funtling Polity

As stated above in the Defined Benefit Pension Plan section of this note, Retirement Systems'
Boards policy is to obtain actuarial evaluations every year beginning June 30, 2070. Actuarial
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates and assumptions about the probability of
ocwr2nce of events far into the future. For Postemploymen~ Healthcare Plans, the assumptions
include those about future employment trends, modality rates, level of salary increases, healthcare
cost Uend, antl investment rates of re[um. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations antl new estimates are made about
the future.

Projections of postemployment healthcare beneLt costs for fnancial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan as understood by the employer antl plan members, and include [he types of
benefits provided al the lime of each valuation antl the historical pattern of sharing of beneft cons
dehveen the employer and the plan members to ghat poiN.

On June 24, 2008, the Cily Council adopted ordinance No. 28332 amending Chapter 3.36 and 3.28
of Title 3 of the San Jas€ Municipal Code to provide the City with the option to make lump sum
prepayments of City required contributions for postemployment healthcare benefis io PFDRP and
FCERS. Tha lump sum prepayment for fiscal year 2012 was calculated to be actuarially equivalent
to the biweekly payments that would otherwise have been the City's required contributions to the
postemployment healthcare plans. The Boards of Administration for PFDRP and FCERS approved
the actuarially determined prepayment amount to be paid by the City on July t, 2071, respectively.

Contributions to the Postemployment Healthcare Plans are made by both the City and the
participating members. Contributions to PF~RP for periods prior to June 26, 2011 for Fire
members and June 28, 2009 for police members of PFORP were based on the Board's 10-year
cash tlow funding policy. Effective June 28, 2009, the police members of PFDRP entered into a
MOA with the City to increase the contribution rates for retiree health and denial in order to phase-
in io fully funding the GASB Statement No. 43 ARC over the next 5 years; fiscal year 2012 was the
third year of the phase-in: The MOA between the City and police members of the PFDRP further
provided that the PFDRP member conUibution rate shall no( have an incremental increase of more
than 125% and t.35% of pensionable pay in each year for the police members and Ciy,
respectivety. Additionally, the MOA with PFDRP members provided that if the retiree healthcare
contributions exceed 10% of police member and 11 % of City contributions, respectively, (excluding
the implicit rate subsidy) the parties shall meet and confer on how to address the contributions
above 10%and 11 %. Effective June 26, 2011, the Fire members of PFDRP entered into a MOA
with the Ciry to fully fund the ARC over a fve year penotl subject to the same limitations specified in
the MOA with police members. Fiscal year 2012 was the first year of the phase-in for fire members.

The MOA between the City and the bargaining units representing the members of FCERS provided
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that (he five-year phase-in of the ARC will nol have an incremental increase of more than 0.75% of
pensionable pay in each fiscal year for the FCERS members or the City; the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 was the third year of the fve-year phase-in. Notwithstanding these limitations on
incremental increases, the agreements with members of FCERS further provide that by the entl of
the five-year phase-in the City and the memhers shall be contributing the full ARC in the ratio
currently provitled in the relevant sections of the San Jos@ Municipal Cotle.

The contributions are no4 currently suHicienl to provide adequate assets to pay benefits in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 43. The contribution rates for the
Postemployment Healthcare Plans for the City and the participating employees for fiscal year 2012
were based on actuarial valuations dated June 30, 2010, except for the periotl June 24, 2012
through June 30, 2012, which were based on the June 30, 2011 valuation. The conUibution rates in
effect and the amounts contributed to the PFDRP antl the FCERS for the fscal year ended
June 30, 2012 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

p'rORP FLERS
Cif Partici0anls Total Cif PaNicipaMS Total

AcWarial Rate:
Pos~¢mpl0ymen~ H¢dI~M1t2re Plan:

]/011it- fi/23Ii2 (p0liCp mem~¢t5) ]61°0 7.01%

]101111 -8 2 3 /12 (lire membns) 5.Y)h 6.88%

]/01111.623112 ].18%e 8.52%

62//iL 8130112 (pollen mem~era) 8.96%j°~ B28°/n

BIP41II-6/30/12 (1I~e mem0ets) 683h ~~~ 6.11°/a

BIPIlt4~6/30H2 ]Bf °k ~a ]2fi%

Annual OPEB Contribution
Posl¢mpbymenl H¢dI~M1WR PIdn: S 21205 E Yr 4]4 $ 32678 E 25,834 E 19995 $ 40,6P9

~~~ The actual contribution rates paitl by ~M1e Gity for ~M1e fsrel year entletl June 30, 2012 aiXeretl due to tie Gity tootling

IM1e annual requiretl conlribulion amount Lasetl on Ne B~Qeter of IM1e tlollar amount repotled In Ike actuarial valuation or
Ibe Eolla~ amount tlelermined Ly applying tie percentage of payroll repotletl in ~M1e valuation to tie actual payroll, if
acNal payroll exceetls the actuarial payroll (or Use fiscal year.

~~~ The resoluliona aJOpletl by Ne Retirement Plans' Boa NS sellin8 ~M1e mntn~u~ion rates !or fiscal year 2012-2013

proNCe Thal Abe Ci(y's Butlgel ORrw may atllust the employer's conlnbulion rates in ortler io acM1ieve a minimum tlollat
wnhlbu0on for flswl year 20t Z20t 3.

3. Annual Other POSfemployment Beneflf (`OPEB %Cost antl Net OPEB Ob/lgation

The City's annual other postemployment benefit cast and net OPEB obligation for PFDRP antl
FCERS as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, were as follows (dollars in thousands):

PFDRP PCERS

Annual required conlnbotion $ 6:1,824 5 66,991

Inler¢5l on ne~OPEB O011gation 8,]53 5,235

Atljuslment to anwal reQUire~ conlnbution (].220) (a.622)

MnuaI WEB COSH fi5.35) 6].404

Conlribulions matle (21 205) (25.834)

Impllcl(re~e subsitly (4]30) (4,382)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 39,422 3].188

Net OPEB Obligation — beginning of year 154,105 89,510

NetOPE~obllgatldn —entl of year $ 193,52] $ 126698
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The following is three-year trend information for the City's single employer Postemployment
Healthcare Plans (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal gnnual Total
year OPEB Employer

endatl Cosl Contnbutlons

PFORP &30110 $ 38,536 $ 15,994
6130/11 6,108 17,05]
6130/12 65,35] 25,935

FCERS 6130/10 39,414 21,585
6130/11 48,529 21,608
613/12 6],404 30,216

4. OPEB Funtletl Sta[us antl Funding Progress

Percent Net
Annual OPEB COSt OPEB

Contributed Obligation

42% $ 107.054
2]% 154,105
40°/a 193.52]

55% 62,589
45% 89,510
45% 126,698

As summarized in the table below, as of June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
PFDRP and FCERS was 6% and 12% funtled, respectively on an actuarial basis for OPEB,
respectively. Changes to the UAAL were primarily the result of changes in the actuarial
assumptions including the expected rete of return on plan investments, payroll growth assumption,
and healthcare trend assumption changes to reflect curtent experience and the actuary's
expectation for the future. The specific funding status for each OPEB plan is summarized in the
table below, as of the June 30, 2011 valuation date (dollars in thousands):

AcW aria) UAAL as a
ActuaNal AcWarial Accrued Annual Pe¢enWge
Valuation Value of L~abiliry Funtl¢tl Cove~etl of Covered

Oe[e Aeaeb ~AAI~ UMl Ratlo Payroll Payroll
PFORP 6/30@OH 5 fi0,]~B 5 1003,]95 5 9<J,09fi 6% 5 190.P26 494°h
FCER$ 6/30/1p~t 135.459 1145.358 1008,905 1]k 248,836 Gdt°h

The Scttedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI fiollowing the Notes to Basic Financial
Statements, presents information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefts. Actuarially detertninetl
amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future.

In fiscal year 2010-2011, the Retirement Systems' Boards approved an establishment of a "floor
funding method" for payment of the annual required contributions ("ARC") for postemploymenl
healthcare benefits to address unexpected shortfalls in coniribNions tM1at may result when payroll
does not grow at the rate assumed by the actuaries. The "floor funding method" interprets the ARC
as the greater of the annual dollar contribution amount established in the valuation, or the ARC that
would result from applying the employer contribution rate determined from that same valuation to
the actual emerging payroll of Retirement Systems members throughout the fscal year. Therefore,
the resolutions adopted by the Retirement Systems' Boards setting the contribution rates for fiscal
year 2012-2013 provide that the employers conlnbulion rates may be adjusted in order ro achieve
a minimum dollar contribution for fiscal year 2012-2013.

5. OPEB Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
eHec~s of short-term volatility in actuarial accrual liabilities arid the acNarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The contributions rates for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012 were based on the acWarial valuation pertormed as of June 30, 2010,
except for the period June 24, 2012 through June 30, 2012, which were based on the
June 30, 2011 valuation.
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The significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined
PFDRP's OPEB annual required contributions and the funded status are as toilows:

Desc_
Valuation dale

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method for acNarial

accrued liabilities

Remaining amotlieetion period

Actuarial asset valuation method

Discoml rete'

InOation rate

Pmjec~etl payroll increases

Heal~ncare cost trend rate'.
Medical

Dental

Melhotl/ASSUmotion
June 30, 2011

Entry age normal ws~ method

30 years, level percentage of pay

30 years as of June 3D, 211, open

5 year smoo~hetl market wi[~ a 8D%
l0 120Yo Market Value Corridor

5]

3.5%

0.00%for FY 2013 and 2014, and
3.50% ~hereafler. Meru component
added based on intliv~tlual year's of
service ranging tmm 8.00 % to 2 25%

Future metlicai inflation assumed to
be at 9.17%per annum graded down

to 4.5 % over a 15 year period for
metlicai-pre age 65 and 6.83 %per
annum graded down io 4.5 % over a
15 year period for medical-posh age
65.

4 50% 9~atletl down to 4 % over a
three year period.

Method/ASSUmotion
June 30. 2010

Entry age normal cast meNOtl

30 years, level percentage of pay

30 years as of June 3D. 2010,
open

5 year smoothed marked with a
80%to 12~% Market Value
Corridor

63Y

3.5%

4 25°k (includes across-Ihe-
boartl salary increase of 0.75%j.

Projected premiums for FV2010-
2~11 and 9]5% beginning
PY2011-2012, decreasing by
0.50 % for each year for 10 years
until it reaches an ultimate rate of

5°0.

Sq

Determined as a blended rake of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets arid on the

Ci~ys Imesimen~s, based on the pohion of (he ARC contributed by the City for the tiswl year.
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The significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to compute the actuarially determinetl
FCERS's OPEB annual required contributions and the funded status are as follows'

Description
Valuation tlate

AcWarial cost method

Amotliea~ion method for acWarial
accruetl liabilities

Remaining amortization period

Actuarial asset valuation method

Discount rate (nap'

Inflation rate

Salary increases

Projectetl payroll increases

Healthcare cost trend rate:
Medical

Genial

MethotllASSUmotion
June 30, 2011

Entry age normal cost method

Level percentage of payroll

20-year layeretl, closetl, level
percentage of payroll with the
6130/2009 UAAL amoNizetl over
a closetl 30-year periotl

Market value

6.10

325°0

The base annual rete of salary
increase is 325% inflation rake
plus a rate increase fot
meriVlongevity for 0 to 14+ years
of service ranging from 45% to
025 % at the 15th year of
sQryit2

3.25

The valuation assumes that
future metliwl inflation will be at
a rate of 9.17°o per annum
greded down to 9.5%per annum
over a 15 year periotl for
metlical-pre age 65 antl 6.83%
to 4.5Yo per annum 9retled down
over a 15 year periotl for
metlical-post age 86

Dental inflation is assumetl to be
4 5% gradetl tlown to 4 % over a
three year period.

MethotllASSUm t
June 30, 2010

Entry age normal cost methotl

Level percentage of payroll

20year layered, closed, level
percentage of payroll with the
6 /3 012 0 0 9 OAAt amortized over
e closed 30-year period

Market value

6.]i

3.90%

The base annual rate of salary
Increase is 3.90% inflation rate
plus a rake increase for
meriNOngevity for the first 5
years of service ren9ing from
5]5 % to 025% aLihe 5th year
Of SBfviG2

3.90%

The valuation assumes they
future medical inflation will be at
a rate of 9.5 % per annum gratletl
tlown l0 4.5%per annum over a
15 year period for metliceFpre
age 65 antl ] 0 % to 9 5%per
annum graded down overa 15
year periotl for medical-post age
65.

Dental inflation is assumetl to be
5 % graded down to 4 % over a
four year period_

De~erminetl as a blentletl rate of the expected long-~ertn investment returns on plan assets and on the
City's investments, based on the funded level o~ the plan at the valuation date.
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A. 3 California Pu61ic Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS)

Plan Description. The Mayor and members of the City Council are eligible to participate in the
Public Employees' Retirement Fund ("Fund") of the State of California's Public Employees'
Retirement System ("CaIPERS"J, a wst-sharing multiple-employer plan. CaIPERS acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for various local and state governmental agencies
within the Stale of California. The Ciry's CaIPERS plan is under the CaIPERS Miscellaneous 2 % at
55 Risk Pool. The Fund provides retirement, disability and death bene9~s basetl on the employee's
years of service, age and float compensation. Employees vest after fve years of service. Benefit
provisions and other requirements are established by State statute and by City resoWlion. On
January 24, 2012, the City Council voted to terminate its conUact with CaIPERS. The Ciry
su6sequenHy delivered a resolNion of its intention to terminate its contract with CaIPERS and is
currently awaiting a termination valuation repoA from CaIPERS for determining the potential liability
for any deficit in funding relating to current participants earned bene9ts CaIPERS issues a
separate comprehensive annual financial report, copies of which may 6e obtained from the
CaIPERS Executive ONices, Lincoln Plaza East, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Policy. The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined amounts necessary to
fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted
by the Fund's Board of Administration. The requiretl employer contribution rate for the year ended
June 30, 2012 was 15.526%. The contrectual employee cost sharing is 7.0% plus a fee of $0.93
per bi-weekly pay period pay period for the 1959 Survivor Bene9t program, ws4o41iving
adjustmeMS are 2.0% per year, and benefis are based on a foal average compensation period of
36 months. The total contribution requirements for local agencies are established and may be
amended by CaIPERS. The Citys contributions to CaIPERS for the years endetl June 30, 2012,
2011, and 2010 were $117,000, $108,000, and $127,000, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

113



City of San Jose
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

B. Commitments and Contingencies

7. Norman Y. Mineta San Jose International Airport

Purchase Commitments. As of June 30, 2012, the Airport was obligated for purchase
commitments of approximately $9,600,000, primarily for the remainder of the costs for Terminal
Area Improvement Program (TAI P) projects. Additionally, the Airport has projected that it will
expend or encumber approximately $105,100,000 on proposed capital projects during the next five
fscal years. It is anticipated that funding for such capital projects will be providetl primarily by
proceedsfrom PFCs, federel grants, bond proceeds and other Airport revenues.

Fuel Storage Facility. In 1985, the Airport and a fuel supplier with a fuel storage facility adjacent to
[he City who owned a fuel tank farm facility, discovered a fuel leak whereby petroleum products had
been released into the soil and ground water from either or both of the City ownetl /acility and/or the
other fuel supplier facility. The Airport and a fuel supplier with a fuel storage facility adjacent to the
City owned facility agreed to share the costs of a study to develop an acceptable cleanup program
for the contaminated site. The cleanup program submitted to the Santa Clara Valley Water District,
the responsible regulatory authority, was approved and the cleanup program commenced during
the fscal year entled June 30, 1991. Under an opeating agreement, the Airport implemented a
groundwater extraction system b control the migration of the contamination and begin efforts to
remediate the contamination. The agreement expired but the fuel supplier continued the work.

In November 2009, the Cily entered into an agreement with the fuel supplier for coordinated
corrective actions al the existing fuel tank farms at a cost to the City not to exceed $1,000,000 and
authorizing the Director of Aviation to approve additional expenditures in excess of $1,000,000
subject to appropriation of funds by City Council. The agreement provides fora 50-50 cost sharing
responsibility for actual future costs until successful closure of the site. The agreement also
required the City to pay its 50% share of the past costs that the fuel supplier has incurred during the
period after expiration of the prior agreement and before the new agreement was in place. During
the year ended June 30, 2012, the Airport paid its share of the remediation cosLS totaling $109,000.

The fuel supplier is responsible for administering the new agreement including retaining a corrective
action contractor. The agreement is also structured to facilitate potential reimbursement from the
State Water Resources Control Board Underground Storage Tank Commingled Plume Fund (the
"Plume Fund"). Reimbursement from the Plume Fund is potentially available up [o $7,500,000 for
each party. Due to the proximity of the closed Ciry jet fuel farm to the adjacent fuel supplier jet fuel
farm that was still active, and the apparently stable contaminant plume, the regulators approved a
waiver to allow the City hanks io be left in place until such time as a completely new fuel farm could
he built, lherehy allowing the fuel supplier site to be closed, and imesli9atioNremediation to be
done on both sites al once. The new jet fuel farm was constmcled off-Airport across Highway 101
and was placed in service in December 2009. The fuel supplier fuel farm was subsequently closed
upon commencement of the new fuel farm.

The fuel supplier has recently demolished its fuel farm and removed its Underground Storage
Tanks ("LISTS") during fiscal year 2010. The City removed its USTs in September 2011. The fuel
supplier is currently starting the site's interim remedial action approved by the County in February
2012. The approved plan is a fixed area remedial excavation to remove the secondary source
materials heneath and adjacent to the former USTs.

With the adoption of GASB Statement No. 49, the Airport has accrued $7t4 000 as of June 30,
2012 to cover the estimated remaining costs of its portion of the interim remediation system. Latest
estimates of costs to fudher investigate and cleanup this site is between $1400,000 and
$2,000,000 depending upon the method of accomplishment and actual remediation requirements.
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Master Plan. The Airport Master Plan consists of a program of facility improvements designed to
fully accommodate commercial aviation demand (passengers and cargo) projected for the future,
with development phased as demand warrants and is determined to 6e financially feasible. The
Master Plan was originally adopted by the City of San JosA in June 1997 and approved by the FAA
in December 1999. In June 2006, the City Council approved revisions to the Airpotl Maser Plan
regarding implementation of the TRIP. Most of the program elements of Phase 1 were completed
as of June 30, 2012. Ongoing projects include a common use lounge, Terminal A/A+ space
refurbishment, building system upgrades, Terminal A baggage system ceiling protection, and
completion of the northeast area (formerly the rental car fueling and wash site). The northeast area
will provide for a fuel ~mck maintenance facility, shuttle bus staging and storage, a taui staging
building, and adjacent employee parking. Construction of the Phase 2 projects is contingent upon
satisfying specified activity-based triggers. In June 2010, the City Council approved an additional
amendment ro the Master Plan that updated projected aviation demand and facility requirements,
and modified specific componeMS of the Airport Development Program. Pursuant to fhe amended
Master Plaq the former interim long-term public parking and employee parking lots on the
northwest side of fhe Airport (which have been relocated to the east side terminal area) will be
gradually wnvertetl to new general aviation leasehold facilities. A request for proposals for a
second full service fxed based operator was issued and is anticipated that a lease will be approved
by the City in fiscal year 2013. Funding for Maser Plan projects is from several sources, including
granLS, PfCs, aitline rates and charges, airpotl revenue bonds, and subordinated commercial
paper proceeds.

2. San Jos€ —Santa Clara Water Pollution Control Plant

For fiscal years 2013-2017, the Five Year capital improvement program includes approximately
$17,884,000 for tha South Bay Water Recycling ("SBWR") project, a regional water reclamation
program to recycle highly treated wastewater (or irrigation and industrial uses in the cities of San
JosA, Santa Clara, and Milpitas, California. This program is part of an action plan, developed by the
City and other agencies tnbu~ary to the Plan[ and adopted by the Regional Water Quality Coniml
Board ("RWoCB"), b control the amount of effluent discharged by the Plant into San Frencisw
Bay.

The SBWR distribution system includes approximately 60 miles of pipe, a four million-gallon
reservoir, a transmission pump station, and two booster pump stations. These facilities were
constructed between 1996 and 1998 at a capital cost of approximately $740,000,000 funded by the
tributary agencies, grants, and bond proceeds.

In June 7997, the RWQCB and the City approved the Proposed Rev'~sion to the South Bay Action
Plan, which described the projects necessary to reduce average dry weather effluent flow from the
Plant to below 120.000,000 gallons per day and protect salt marsh habitat for endangered species
in the Sough Bay as required by RWQC6 Order 94-117. These projects include expanding the
Phase Inon-potable reuse system by extending additional piping, placing greater emphasis on
water conservation programs, reducing infltration inflow, augmenting stream flow, and crewing
wetlands. The estimated cost for implementing these projects was $127,500,000. In April 2010, the
City approved construction of the $14,777,400 Phase 1C facilities including an additional nine miles
of pipeline. As of June 30, 2012 an amount of $120,201 000 has been expended or encumbered.
These estimated costs are to be funded by the City and other tributary agencies ~hrough a
combination of State Revolving Fund Loans, Sewage Treatment Plant Connection Fees, federal
grants, and cash contributions.

3. Retirement Systems — Un/unded Commitments

As of June 30, 2012, the PF~RP had unfunded commitments to contribute capital for private equity,
direct lending, and real estate investments in the amount of $115,934,000 and FCERS had -
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unfunded commitments to contribute capital for private equity fund investments in the amount of
$105,377.000.

4. Federal Financial Assistance Prog2ms

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, primarily with the HUD, the
FAA, the Department of Trensporlation, the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of
Labor, the Depatlment of Energy, and the Department of Justice. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.

Although the City's grant programs are audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single
Audit Acl Amendments of 1996 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, these programs are still
subject to financial and compliance audits by Federal auditors, and to resoWtion of identifed
findings and questioned costs. At this time, the amount of expenditures, if any, which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined.

5. Encumbrances

The City uses encumbrances to control expenditure commitments for the year and to enhance cash
management. Encumbrances represent commitments related to contracts not yet pertormed and
purchase orders not yet flletl (executory contracts; and open purchase ordere). Commitments for
such expenddure of monies are encumbered to reserve a portion of applicable appropriations.
Encumbrances still open at year end are not accounted for as expenditures and liabilities but,
rather, as restricted or committed govemmentai fund balance. As of June 30, 2012, lofal
governmental fund encumbrence balances for the City are as follows (dollars in thousands):

General Fund $ 20,444
Housing Activities 1,484
Affordable Housing Investment Fund 10,705
Special Assessment Districts 72,779
Nonmajor govemmentai funds 35,610

Total governmental funds $ 141,022

C. Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Josh

1. Cash and Investment Held by SARA

A summary of SARA's cash and investments at June 30, 2012 is as follows (dollars in thousands)

Type of lnveslmen~
Crealt
Rating Under 30

McWtlry
3t -i80

pn aeys)
18t -365 366103years

Fair
Value

State o~Ca~OOmla
fowl AgencL lnveslment FUnd Wraletl S ~ $ - 8 2Q6i5 $ - $ 26,615

LL S.Treasury Notes Naa - - - 8200 8,280
Money Market MUWal FUntls Rae 92,310 3,438 95,]48

Sub~o~al $ 92,310 S 3E38 3 26,615 $ 8280 130,643

CeNfifates of Deposit 8,251
Re54igetl deposit in Vansll b fiscal agent 16.630
Bank deposits 5,940

Thal wsM1 and lnveslmanis $ 160.966
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2. Property Held for Resale and Capital Assets Heltl by SARA

Property Heid for Resale is recordetl as an asset at the lower of cost or net realizable value. SARA
reclassifies capital assets originally received from the farmer Agency to property held for resale
upon the State Department of Finance approval of a Long-Term Property Management Plan or
when the conversion of property for cash is necessary to pay SARA's enforceable obligations when
due.

During the fve-month period ended June 30, 2012, SARA reclassified 4 properties with a book
value of $49,891,000 from capital assets to property heltl for resale and wrote down these
propedies in the amount of $27,417,000 to their lower of cost or net realizable value.

SARA holtls the following capital assets as of June 30, 2072 (dollars in thousands)'.

Capital assets, not Eeing tlepreciated

Lantl

Conslruc~ion in progress

Total capital assets, not being tlepreaaletl

Capital assets, GeinB tlepreciated'

Builtlln9s

Bulltling an0 o1M1er Mprovemenis

Equipment

TMaI cappal assets, being tleprecia(e0

Lesa accumulatetl depreciation for:

BuilGNgs

BuilOing antl other improvements

Equipment

Total accumulaletl tlepreGa~ion

To(al rspi~al assets, being tleprecia~eq net

Pnva~e-PUryose Ttus~ Fund capital asses, net

Recalegorizetl

Feburaryl, to Property HelO June 30,

4012 Atltlitlons W~ftesale 2U12

$ 66.036 $ - $ (31.432) $ 34.861

e~] 8»

6],013 (31,432) 35,581

109,089 ~ (20,510) 8&58]

19,399 18.399

i.M5 1.1a5

120.841 (20.5101 109.131

12.892 1.426 (2A5tJ 1226]

2.a05 53fl - 2,9aa

950 75 1,025

16,247 2,040 (2,051) 16,238

113,394 (Y OaO~ (18p59~ 92,895

E 180.40] $ (2,040) & (49891) $ 128.4]6

Parcels of the former Agency-owned land with an aggregate book value of $19,30Q000 were used

to secure the Letters of Credit ("LOCs") obtained from JPMOrgan Chase Bank (JPMOrgan)
supporting the former Agencys 1996 antl 2003 Revenue Variable Bonds. In addition, as additional

security for the LOCs, the City executed and recorded for the beneft of the JPMorgan a Deed M
Trust against the City owned California Theatre. As security for payments due to the County under
the Settlement Agreement executed in March 201 t, the former Agency also (i) exewled and
recortled for the benefit of the County Deeds of Trust subordinate io JPMOrgan on those same

pa¢els of former Agency-owned land (except for the California Theatre), (ii) assigned to the County

one-half (1/2) of the former Agency sales proceeds from the sale of fhe North San Pedro properties
under two separate Disposition and Development Agreements with private developers, and (iii)

executetl and rewrded for the benefit of the County a Deed of Trust against theNorth San Petlro
properties, with an aggregate book value of $18,300,000.

In addition, the Jose Theatre and three other properties were usetl to secure HUD Section 108
loans obtained from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
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3. Summary o(SARA k Long-Term Debt

The following i5 a summary of bonds and loans payable of the SARA as of June 30, 2012 (tlollars
in thousands, unless otherwise notetl):
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Tax Allocation Bonds (Senior TAes) are issued primarily to finance redevelopment projects and
are sewretl primarily by a pledge of retlevelopment property tax revenues (is. former tax
increment), consisting of a portion of taxes levietl upon all taxable propetlies within each of the tax
increment generating redevelopment project areas constituting the Merged Area Redevelopment
Project, and are equally and ratably secured on a parity with each TAB series.

Variable-Rate Demand Bonds (Subordinate)

7996 Merged Area Revenue Bonds — In June 1996, the former Agency issued the 1996 Merged
Area Redevelopment Project Revenue Bonds, Series A and B, for $29,500,000 each, to provide
adddional proceeds to finance various redevelopment projects in the Merged Project Area. The
1996 Bonds are subordinate io the 1993 Merged Area Refunding Tax Allocation Bonds. The 1996
Bands have a variable rate of interest and Series A bears interest at a weekly rate while Series B
bears interest at a daily rate. The rate modes (daily, weekly, monthly) may be changed al the
SARA's option.

The daily and weekly rates are the rates that result in the market value of the bonds being equal to
100 % of the principal amount outstanding. The average interest rate for the daily and weekly retes
for June 30, 2012, was D.18 % for the 1996 Series A and 022 %for the 1996 Series B, respectively.

2003 Merged Area Revenue Bonds — In August 2003, the former Agency issued Merged Area
Revenue Bonds Series A and Series 8 aggregating $60,000,000. The proceeds of the bonds were
used mainly to finance redevelopment projects within the Merged Area. The 2003 Merged Area
Revenue Bonds are ratably and equally secured by a pledge of the subordinated revenues and
subordinate ro the debt service payment o! Senior Obligations of the former Agency.
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The 2003 Merged Area Revenue Bonds have a variable rate of interest at a weekly rate, until
converted to bear interest al another variable rate or fxetl rate at the option of the SARA. The
weekly rates are the rates that result in the market value of the bonds being equal to 100 % of the
outstanding principal and accrued interest. The rates for June 30, 2012,were 0.18% for the 2003
Series A and 022%tor the 2003 Series B.

The former Agency issued these bonds to provide variable-rate exposure to the debt portfolio and
to provitle additional flexibility with respect to resVUCWring or redeeming the debt issued for cedain
projects. The former Agency has entered into credit facilities that support the variable-rate demand
bontls. Under the reimbursement agreements related to these credit facilities, the lms(ee is
authorized to draw an amount suR~cient to pay the purchase price of bonds that have been
tendered and have not otherwise been remarketed.

The cretllt facilities that support the SARA's variable-rete bonds as of June 30. 2012 are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Balance
June 30, Credit Fadlily Oescnptlon
2012 Provider Expi2tion Oale'

Revenue Bonds'
Senea 1986A (Merged Area) $ 23,000 JPMOrgan Chase Bank, N.A. 3/1/2013
Series 19960 (Merged Area) 23,000 JPMOrgan Chase Bank, N.H. 3H 2013
Series 2003A (Taxable) (Merged Area) 32655 JPMOrgan Chase Benk, N.A. 3/1/2013
Series 20038 (Merged Area) 15,000 JPMOrgan Chase Bank, N.A. 3/112013

Total variable-rate revenue bonds $ 93.655

" E~ira~ion dale of these cretllt htlll~ies were edentletl by tie JPMOrgan Chase Bank.

These variable-rele revenue bonds (1996 arid 2003 Bonds) are payable upon demand of the
bondholder at a purchase price equal ro principal plus accrued interest SARA's remarketing
agents are required to use their best efforts to remarket the bonds and, to the e~ctent that bonds are
not remarketed, SAR4's hontl imstees are authorized to draw on the credit facilities in the amounts
required to pay the purchase price of bonds tendered.

The former Agency obtained four letters of credit (LOCs) as credit facilities from the credit facility
provider, JPMorgan Chase Bank (JPMorgan), for the 1996 and 2003 Bonds. On August 7, 2012
JPMOrgan agreed to eutend the term of the LOCS to March 7, 2013.

In the event the LOCs are not renewed or a subs~itu~e LOC cannot be obtained from another
financial institution the full amount of the outstanding 1996 and 2003 Merged Area Revenue Bonds
becomes "due and payable". In the event the LOC is not extended and insufficient funds exist to
pay the amount due arid payable, the interest rete on the 1996 and 2003 Merged Area Revenue
Bonds increases to a tlefaul~ rate of 71.5%.

The SARA is required to pay the credit facility provider an annual commitment fee for each credit
facility ranging from 2.7 % to 3.0%, based on the terms of the applicable reimbursement agreement
and the outstanding principal amount of the bonds supported 6y the credit facility. In addition, in
fiscal year 2010 the forcner Agency made the required deposit with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., a
liquidity reserve in the amount of $5,0~0,00~ as an added source of security of the bank. Parcels of
the former Agency owned land and the City's California Theatre were also used to secure the
Letters of Credit.

Housing SeFASide Tax Allocation Bonds (comprised of Series 1997E, Series 2003 J 8 K, Series
2005 A 8 B, and Series 2010 A-7, A-2 & B, and the 2070 Subordinate Series 2010Q collectively
the "Housing TABS") are issued to finance affordable housing projects and are secured by a pledge
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of and lien upon the 20% redevelopment property tax revenue (i.e. former tax increment) se4aside
for the low and moderate income housing subfund.

Housing Set-Aside Tax Allocation Bonds (Subordinate). On April 29, 2010, the former Agency
issued $93.000,000 in Taxable Subordinate Housing Se4ASitle Tax Allocation Variable Rale
Bonds, Series 2010C. The 2010C bonds were to (1) refinance the Bank of New York Term Loan
and (2) finance and refnance the City's gap loans made or to be made in connection with certain
affordable housing developments. The 2010C bonds are secured by 20%housing se4asitle tax
allocation revenues on a basis subordinate to the senior bonds. The 2010C bonds were issued as
mWti-modal, variable rate bonds with a taxable interest 2te that resets weekly. The 2010C bonds
have a single maturity anticipated to be no later than August 1, 2035, but with a scheduled
mandatory lender date in three years arid mandatory sinking fund redemption paymenLS on August
1 of each year.

The Series 2010C were directly purchased by Wells Fargo Bank. Because the bonds were diregly
purchased, the bond indenture does not require a credit facility to support the debt service
payments until the bank's tender date of April 29, 2013, or such other date agreed to in writing by
the SARA and Wells Fargo Bank. On June 8, 2012, Moody's Investors Service downgraded the
former Agency's Senior Obligations Rating to below "Baal", which triggered a Special Termination
Event under the Continuing Covenant Agreement of the Series 20tOC Bonds. The SAR4
requested that Wells Fargo Bank forbear from exercising its rights, including without limitation, its
rights to accelerate the obligations. For the period commencing on August 15, 2012 and ending on
November 15, 2012, Wells Fargo Bank has agreed to forebear from exercising and its rights and
remedies under the Bond Documents in respect to the existing default. Al June 30, 2012, the
balance of $88,600,000 is classified as an obligation due within one year. Negotiations are
presentry under way to eMend the forbearance agreement. The SARA cannot predict the outcome
of the negotiations.

The Series 2010C bears an interest ate at 1-month LIBOR, N+o London Business Days before the
1'~ day of each month plus 250 basis points, with a final maturity date of August 1, 2035. The
average weekly interest rate for the Series 2010C as of June 30, 2012 was 3.05%.
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A summary of the changes in long-term debt during the period from inception (February 7, 2012)
through June 30, 2012 follows (in thousands):
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4. SARA's Contluit Debt

In August 1997, the forcner Agency served as the conduit issuer of $10,595,000 in MuWfamily
Housing Revenue Bonds in order to provide funds (or a mortgage loan to a private developer for
rental housing project on the former Agency-owned land in the Japantown Redevelopment Area.
The former Agency has no obligation for these bonds as they are secured primarily by fully
modifed pass-through mortgage-backed securities guaranteed as a timely payment of principal and
interest by the Government National Mortgage Association. The bonds were issued far the
purpose of expanding the communitys supply of low to moderate-income housing. Additionally, the
loan is secured on a nonrecourse basis and is insured 6y the Fetlerel Housing Authority pursuant to
and in accordance with the provisions of Section 221(4) (4) of the National Housing Act. As of June
30, 2012, the outstanding balance was $9,26Q W0.

5. City's Commitments to SARA

In the event that future redevelopment propetly tax revenues are not suRicien~ to cover the SARA's
enforceable obligations, the Cily has commuted other sources of funding to cover costs related to
the following obligations: the City of San Jose Financing Authority Lease Revenue Bonds, Series
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200tF (Convention Center Refunding), City of San Jose Financing Authority Revenue Bontls,
Series 2001A (4'" Siree~ & San Fernando Parking Facility Project), Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) 108 loans, Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) loan payments,
and the SARA's annual administrative budget antl City Support Service expenses.

6. Commitments and Contingencies Related fo SARA

Tax Sharing Agreement with Me County o/Santa C/ara

1983 and 20U1 Settlement Agreement

In 1983, the former Agency arid the County entered into a tax sharing agreement under which the
former Agency would pay a portion of tax increment revenue generated in the Merged Area and
part of the Rincon de los Esteros Project Area (the "County Pass-Through PaymenC). On
December 16, 1993, the Agency, the County, and the City entered into a Settlement Agreement,
which continued the County Pass-Through Payment.

On May 22, 2001, the County, the Ciry, and the former Agency approved an Amended and
Restated Agreement (the "Amended Agreement'). In addition to the continued Pass-Through
Payment, the Amended Agreement delegated to the County the authority to undertake
redevelopment projects in or of beneft to the Merged Area, and requires the Agency to transfer
funds to the County to pay for such projects in an amount of 20 % of the proceeds of any bonds
secured by 80 %tax increment (excludes refinancing bonds) (the "Delegated PaymenP).

March 18, 2077 Settlement Agreement

In September 2009, the former Agency informed the County that due to the SERAF requirement
and insuKcient tax increment revenues, it did not have suRicient unrestricted funds to make the
fscal year 20 9-2010 pass-through payment. The former Agency further informed the County ghat it
had reserved restricted funds for the fscai year 2008-2009 pass-through ($21,300,000) pending
negotiations regarding the payment. On August 20, 2010, the County submitted an invoice io the
former Agency in the amount of $45,200,000, which included the fiscal year 2006-2009 pass-
through amount of $21,3 0,000, the fiscal year 2009-2010 pass-through amount of $19,200,000
and interest of $4,700,000.

On March 9, 2011, the County fled a lawsuit in the Santa Clara Superior Court against the Agency,
City, and San Josh Diridon Development Authority (the "San Jose padies") to recoup these
payments. On March 16, 2011, a Settlement Agreement was reached and entered into between the
County and the San Jose parties. The following terms and conditions have been wmpieted'

1. The Agency paid the County $21,500,000 in resMcted tax exempt bond proceeds.
2. The Agency paid the County an additional $5,000,000 in unrestricted funds.
3. The Agency acquired from the Ciry title to the Old City Hall property and transferred it to the

Count' for a credit of $10,000,000 against the debt; [he Agency transferred certain parcels it
owned, valued at $10,~00,0~0 in exchange far the Old City Hall.

The following obligation remains outstanding with the County as of June 30, 2012:

L The Agency will pay the County $23,600,000 in 5 equal annual installments ($4,720,000 per
installment plus interest accrued as of the payment date) no later than June 30 of 2014, 2015,
2016,2017 and 2018.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the farmer Agency and SARA did riot have sufficient tax
increment revenues to make the fiscal year 2011-2012 pass-through payment. The amount o/
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pass-through payments due to the County at June 30, 2012 is $15,719,000. The interest rate for
any lade pass-ihwugh payment for fiscal years 2071-2012 and beyond will be as follows: (a) tha
rate of return earned by the County Treasurer Investment Pool for the relevant time period ("County
Pool Rate') for the frst year the payments are overdue; (b) the County Pool Rate plus 3%
additional interest rate penalty for the second year the payment is overdue; (c) the County Pool
Rale plus 6% additional interest rate penalty for the third year the payment is overdue; and (tl) the
County Pool Rate plus 9% adtlitional interest rate penalty for the fouAh year and any additional
years fhe payments are overdue, provided however that in no event shall the interest rate exceed
10% in any year.

Ambac Bankrupfcy

On November 9, 2010, Ambac Financial Group Ina (Ambac Financiaq fled far bankruptcy
protection under Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Code in the United Sales Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of New Vork. Ambac Financial is a holding company whose affiliates provide
fnancial guarantees and financial services to its customers. Ambac Assurance Corporation, a
subsidiary of Ambac Financial, has issued a fnancial guaranty insurance policy for payment of
principal and interest when due antl a reserve fund surety bond for the former Agencys Series
1999 antl 2005 8 lax allocation bonds and the Series 2006 O tax allocation refunding bands.
According to the bond indenture for each of these bonds, in the event that such surety bond or
insurance policy for any reason lapses or expires, the SARA must immediatery (1) deliver a letter of
credit, or (2) deliver to the trustee a surety band or an insurance policy, or (3) make the required
deposits to the bond reserve fund.

It is unclear, if such an event were to occur, whether the SAR4 would be required to take out one of
the three actions documented above in order to maintain compliance with the bond indenture.

Dissolution Legislation "T~ue up" Process

The provisions of AB 1484, which was a trailer bill to the FY 2012-2013 State budget, required that
the County Auditor-Controller determine if the tax revenues received by the former gqency in
January 2012 (before dissolution) were in excess of the amount spent by the former Agency and
SARA on enforceable obligations as defnetl by the Redevelopment DissolNion Law during the
period from January 1 through June 30, 2012. If there was an excess, SARA must remit the
residual amounts to the County by July 12, 2012, for allocation to the faxing entities. This is
referred to as the "true up" process. Due to the manner in which some of the former Agency's bond
obligations were categorized on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ("ROPS")during this
period, the County AudilorvContmller's calculations indicated that there was a $39,300,000
"overpayment' of lax revenues to the former Agency. On July 6, 2012, the Oversight Board of
SARA approved corrections io the previously approved ROPS to clarify ~ha~ there were no residual
tax revenues to distribute to the taxing entities from the Redevelopment Property Tax Tmsl Fund
("Trust Fund°)administered by the County's Auditor-Controller.

SARA has been working with the State Department of Finance ("DOF") to document why the
perceived $39,300,000 "overyaymeni' is incorrect. However, pending resoWtion with DOF and per
the legislation, on July 9, 2012, the County Auditor-COntmller submitted an invoice to SARA in the
amount of $39,300,000. SARA has not paid [his invoice. The legislation provides that if SARA
does not pay the amount owed, the State Board of Equalization will be directed to withhold the
City's sales fax revenues until the amount due is paid. On August 27, 212, SARA received a letter
from DOF indicating that they do not intend to pursue civil penalties or a sales tax offset.
Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel and the DOF, that the invoice far the
"overpayment" is erroneous.

123



City of San Josh
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

D. Subsequent Events

1. Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes

On July 2, 2012, the City entered into the Node Purchase Agreement with U.S. Bank under which
U.S. Bank agreed to purchase [he City's shorb~erm notes up to a maximum amount of
$~25,000,0~0 in accordance with the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement for cash flow
borrowing purposes to facilitate the prefunding of employer retirement contributions. Pursuant to
the Note Purchase Agreement, the City issued and U.S. Bank purchased the Ciry's notes in the
amount of $100,000,000 (the "Initial Note") at a fixed interest rate of 0.952%. Under the Noie
Purchase Agreement, at the Ciys discretion, the City may issue subsequent notes at any time up
to the Commitment Termination Date of December 31, 2012 and up to the Unutilized Commitment
amount of $25,000,000 at a variable interest rate calculated pursuant to the terms of the Note
Purchase Agreement. Security for repayment of the Initial Note and any subsequent notes
(collectively, the "2012Notes") is a pledge of the Ciry's 2012 securetl property tax revenues
(excluding property taxes levied for general obligation bonds) and sales tax revenues received
during fscal year 2013 plus all other legally available Generel Fund revenues of fhe City, if
required. The final maturity of the Initial Note is February 14, 2013. The foal maturity of any
subsequent note is June 28, 2013.

2. New Retirement Benefit Tier

On June 5, 2012, the San Jose voters enacted the Sustainable Retirement Ber~e(ts and
Compensation Acf (Pension Acf). The Pension Act amended the City Charter to change benefts
for current employees, establish different benefits for naw employees, and place other limitations
an beneflis.

Section 1508-A of the Pension Act applicable to new employees was adopted on August 28, 2012
by City Council Ordinance No. 29120 to provide Tier 2 pension benefits for new FCERS members
hired on or aHer September 30, 2012. The new tier includes significan! beneft changes from the
existing Tier 1 plan including, but not limited to, a decrease in the benefits multiplier from 2.5%per
year to 2.0%per year, an increase from 55 years to 65 years of age for re~iremeni eligibility at full
benefts, a consumer price index driven cosAOf-living increase with a maximum of 1.5%instead of
the existing annual fixed 3.0% increase, a decrease in maximum benaft to 65% of foal average
salary from 75%, no survivor benefits for death after retirement unless the member elects a
reduced benefit, pensionable compensation to be based on base salary only, rather than base
wmpensa~ion plus premium pays; members to contribute 50% of the total Normal Cosh, any
accrued unfunded actuarial liability antl administrative costs of the FCERS; year of service credit to
require 2,080 hours of work rather than 1,730 hours of work and foal average compensation basetl
on the highest consecutive 3 years of compensation compared to highest 1 year. Significant
potlions of the Pension Act applicable to existing employees and effective June 23, 2013 a2
currently suhject to legal challenge by memhers of the FCERS. Additionally, various bargaining
units representing members of the FCERS have fled unfair labor prectice charges with the
California Public Employment Relations Board related to the Pension Act.

3. Successor Agency to the Retlevelopment Agency of the City of San Jose

Fintlings o1 [he Agreed-Upon Procetlures Report

Pursuant to the California Health and Sa(ety Code section 34182, the County Auditor-Controller
was responsible to cause the performance of procedures to establish the former Agency's assets
and liabilities, to document pass-through obligations, and to document the amount and terms o/
indebtedness incurred by the former Agency. The County issued its Agreed-Upon Procedures
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Report ("AUP") on October 5, 2012 and submiftetl it to the State Controller's Office ('SCO") and the
DOF. Other than as a reference for the DOF and the State Controller's Office, the AUP has no
consequence in the dissolution process. The report identified the following issues, which are
disputed by the City and SARA:

SERAF Loan —The AUP questions a portion ($54 million) of SARA's total SERAF obligation
funded by the former Agency's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund, staling ghat it should not
be classifed as an obligation to the Cry's Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund. The City's
position is that cash was usetl to fund the SERAF loan, therefore the obligation for repayment of
the $54 million remains. As such, the City's Affordable Housing Investment Fund has not removed
these receivables nor has SARA removetl these obligations from its financial statements at
June 30, 2012. The DOF has reised concerns with the SERAF loan in its review of housing asset
transfers based on previous discussion with the County Auditor-Controller. This is now the subject
of a meet and confer meeting behveen the City, SARA and the DOF.

Unencumberetl Housing Cash — In February 2012, a cash transfer of program income, which
consists of loan repayments, development deposits and lease revenues, in the amount of $102
million was made from the Low and Moderate inwme Housing Funtl held by the Ciry to the Ciry's
Affordable Housing Investment Fund. The Ciry asserts that the $102 million transfers of program

- inwme represents Housing Assets and therefore may be transferred to the City's Affordable
Housing Investment Fund as the Housing Successor. To date, the intlependenl accountant
approved by the County Auditor-Controller has not finalized its "due diligence review" required by
Health and Safely Code Section 34179.5 used to determine the balance availahle for transfer to
SARA from the Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund held by the City. As such, neither the
City nor SARA has included this transfer hack from the City to the SARA in the respective financial
statements at June 30, 2072.

Property Transfers —The County Auditor-Controller also sated ghat numerous pmpetlies
transferred to the San JosA Diridon Development Authority in the amount of $29.1 million and the
City in the amount of $109.7 million in early 2011 are subject to being orderetl transferred back to
SARA by the SCO as required under Health antl Safely Code Section 34167.5. To dale, the SCO
has not finalized its final review of asset transfers made by the former Agency. As such, neither the
City nor SARA has included these transfers of property back from the Cily to SARA in the
respective fnancial statements at June 30, 2012.

Due to uncertainties with the ftedevelopmenl Dissolution Law, the ultimate outcome of these issues
cannot presently be determined, accordingly, no provision for any liability that may result has been
recorded in the fnancial statements.

4. Airport ~e6t Refunding

City of San Jose Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2072A - On November 8, 2012, the City
refunded the City of San Josh Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A in the amount of $49,140,000.
The Series 2012A bonds were purchased as fxed rate direct placement with Bank of America
Public Capilai Corp with an interest rate of 1.53%. The refunding provides approximately
$1,000,000 of debt service savings through the final maturity in 2018.
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(Continued)

128



City of San Jose
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

June 30, 2012

AiforOahle Housing lnvesunem Funtl
ScM1edule al Revenues, Expentlimres antl Changes in Funtl Belence 9utlget antl Actual

For IM1e Yaar En~etl June ]0, 20II
~SY00's)
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Schetlule of Funding Progress
1E000's)

Police antl fire Deoartmenl Retirement Plan - ~efinetl Benefit Pension Plan

Unfuntletl
Actuarial AAA as a

l cluarial Actuarial ACCNPtl Unfuntletl Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability (OVertuntletl) Fundetl Coveretl of COVeretl

Date Assets ~1~ (AAL~(2) AAL Ratio Payrop (3~ Payroll
6I30IW 5 2.569,569 S 2963482 5 393913 0]% § 2d3,t96 t62%
6/30IID 2,5]6,]5 3230956 653751 80% 222699 290%
6/30/11 2.685]21 3d96.OW 510286 84% 190]16 466%

Fetleratetl Clly Emolovees' Retirement Svs[em - Definetl Benefit Pension Plan

Untuntletl
Acharial AAL as a

Pctuarial Mtuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuallon Value of Liability Unfuntletl Funtl¢tl Coveretl Of COVerBtl

Data Fssels (l~ I~L~~2) ML Ratlo Payroll (3) Poyroll
&30N9 $ 1]56,588 5 2A8G,155 S 72956] 71% S 3oB 69] 236%
N30110 1,]28,914 2.5ID.358 780944 69% D5.869 283h
6I30tl1 1]88,86 2,]]0,22P 98158'! BS% 228936 429%

~1) Exclutles acwvMS peyeole, poshmployman~ M1eaXhcare plan assets, supplemental retiree benafl reserve.
(2~ ExGUtles pos~employmen~ bedl~bcare liability.
~3) Annual coveretl payroll represents tM1e actuarial estimate of annual wveretl payroll for Ike subsequent year (or June 30.2011

veludlion. TM1¢ din W0~ preun~etl b~ IM1e June 30, 2009 antl 2010 valud~ions represents acWal annual cove~etl Osy~oll.

Police antl Fire Department Retirement Pian - Postemolovment HealMCare BeneFl[ Plan

Unfuntletl
Actuarial AAl asa

ACtua~ial AGtua~ial Pccruetl Annual Pe~cente9e
Valuation Value of LiaEility Unfuntletl Funtletl Coveretl of COVeretl
Oate ASSets (AAy AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

6/30N9 $ 55.618 $ J6tfiO4 $ ]05.986 ]% $ 2d3.i96 290%
6130/10 58,586 966.348 BB],922 66 222699 399%
8/30/11 60,709 1.00J.]95 993086 6W 190.J26 d90Yo

Fetlera[etl Cify Employees' Retirement System - Postemploymenl Healthcare Benefit Plan

Unfuntletl
AcNarial AAL es e

Actuarial Actuarial Accruetl Annual Percentage
Valuation Valeof Liability Unfuntletl Funtletl Covered of COVeretl

Oa[e Assets (ML) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

6I30p9 $ 84560 5 ]96448 $ ]10880 11% 5 30869] 230°k
6I3~/ID 10B4Ot1 9260]1 0183fi0 12% 2]5,869 29]%
6]30/11 135,459 1195359 1.0099 5 126 228936 001%

(Continued)
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I. Budgetary Information

The adopted budget represents the financial and organizational plan by which [he policies and
pmgrems approved by the City Council will be implemented. It inclutles: (1) the programs, projects,

'services and activities to be provided during the fiscal year; (2) estimated revenues available to
finance the opere~ing plan; and (3) the estimated spending requirements of [he operating plan. The
City Charter requires that the City establish a butlgetary system for general operations and
prohibits expending funds for which there is no legal appropriation.

The annual appropriation ordinance adopts the budget at the appropriation level by expenditure
category (personal services, nonpersonal) within departments. Accordingly, the lowest level of
budgetary control exercisetl by the City Council is the appropriation level within a department. The
City's legal level of budgetary control is so tletailed that ii is not practical to demonstrate
compliance within the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report itself. As a result, the City prepares
a separate repotl to demonstrate compliance with its legal level of budgetary control.

Annual budgets are prepared for the General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds. Capital project
budgets are based on a project time frame rather than a fiscal year time frame. Debt Service Funds
appropriations were adopted by the Council when the fomnal bond resolutions were approved.
Therefore, Capital Project Funds and Debi Service Funds are not reported on budgetary basis.

II. Budgetary ResWts Reconciled to GAAP

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP°) basis. The results of
operations are presented in the accompanying budget and acNal comparison schedules in
accordance with the hudgetary process ("budgetary basis") to provide a meaningful comparison
with the budget.

The major differences behveen the budgetary basis actual and GAAP basis are as follows:

• Year-end encumbrances are recognrzed as the equivalent of expenditures in the budgetary
basis financial statements, while encumbered amounts are not recognized as expenditures
on GAAP basis until the equipment, supplies or services are received.

• Certain loan Vansactions are recognized as expendiWres for the budgetary basis but not for
the GAAP basis. When these loans are made, they are recorded as receivables on a GAAP
basis and as expenditures on a budgetary basis. When loan repayments are received, they
are recorded as reductions to receivables on a GAAP basis, but are recognized as revenues
on a budgetary basis.

• Net decreases were made to certain GAAP basis loans receivable to reflect carrying amounts
at a discounted present value and allowances (or bad debts. The discount is treated as an
expenditure on a GAAP basis and is not included in the budgetary basis fnancial statements.
In addition, the allowance far bad dehts is not included in the budgetary basis fnancial
statements, but isan expenditure on a GAAP basis.

Certain accounts such as the change in fair value of investments included in the City's GAAP
basis amounts, for which no formal budgets are prepared, are excluded from the budgetary
basis financial statements.

(Continued)
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• The Community Facility Revenue non-major special revenue fund has been blended to
include the financial operations of the Dolce Hayes Mansion. Formal budgets are nod
prepared for this financial activity and is excluded from the butlgetary basis financial
statements.

• Certain line of credit transactions are recognized as expenditures in the hudgetary basis
fnancial schedules but are recorded as an asset in the GAAP basis financial statements.
When the outside agency draws down on the line of credit, the City records an asset,
ativances to other agencies, in the GAAP basis financial statements and an expenditure on
the budgetary basis fnancial schedules. When the outside agency pays down the line of
credit, the City records a retluc~ion to its assets in the GAAP basis fnancial statements and
revenues on the budgetary basis financial schedules.

Certain grant revenues receivetl in advance are recognized on the budgetary basis fnancial
statements, bud are deferred and not recognized as revenue on the GAAP basis financial
statements. This process normally creates a variance in recognized revenue from the prior
year to the current year.

Certain New Market Tax Credit Financing transactions are recognized as expenditures in the
budgetary basis financial schedules but are recorded as an asset in the GAAP basis financial
statements. When the Cily extends the leverage loan to outside agency "Chase Investment
Fund", the City records an asset, in the GAAP basis financial statements and an expenditure
on the budgetary basis fnancial schedules.

EMraordinary losses/gains restated from dissolution of the former Agency are included in the
City's GAAP basis fnancial statements. However, formal budgets are nod prepared for this
event, and as such are excluded from the butlge~ary basis fnancial schedules.

III. Budget Revisions

On October 16, 2012, the City Council approved certain fiscal year 2012 budget revisions that
increased appropriations for various expenditure categories. The budges amounts presented in
the accompanying schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget
and actual reFlect such budget revisions.

(Concluded)
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City of San Jose
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Govemmen[al Puntls
June 30, 2012

($000's)

ASSETS
Epoity in pooletl cash and investments Feld

in CiN Treasury
Receivables (net M allowance
far uncolledibles)

Due from wtsitle agencies
Oue from otM1eriuntls
Loans receivable (net)
AMances antl tle0osits
Fesitictetl assets:

Equity in pooletl cash and investments heltl
In Clry Treasury

WsF antl Invaslmenls M1BIJ with fecal agent
Omer cash antl inves~mems

AtivdnfR610 other funds

o~na~ aase~s
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
llabill~les:

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, wages, and payroll taxes
Due to WM1er hods
Deferretl revenue
AOVances, tleposlls, and reimburseEle credits
Ntivances from otM1tt ~untls
Other liabilities

Talsl llabiliYes

Funtl balanw6:
Nonspentlable
Resmdetl
commncea
Assignetl
UnassiBnetl
Total fund balanws

Total fabilitles antl Wntl balances

Total NOnmajor
Special Revwue Oebf Service CaplGl Project Govemmen~al

Funtls Funtls Funtls Funtls

2]6,090 - 43$6fi 319,456

32514 83 3,30] 35.900
19 24 43

3,t9J - 7,103 ID29]
0606 - ~ 4,fi06

3 3B 41

34250 105 3].355
- - 6J,414 63.414

5,710 - - 5,110
t 4856 - - t5,fi5fi
20 062 20,4fi2

$ 358?50 37.35) 11),333 512,944

$ 17.812 204 2,399 20.415
+sse ~ ias z,oao
4,632 - ],201 11,833
14,995 - - 14,995
5,504 - - - 5$Od
2 soo - z,sao
2.921 2,941

50,222 20h 9,]42 fi0,168

30465 - 38 20.503
245288 3),153 88,4W 3]0,860
38,928 ~ - 2B,9R8
13.351 - 19,322 32,6]3

38.032 3],153 10],591 152,]]6

$ 358154 3],351 14,333 51294A
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City of San Josh
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Entled June 30, 2012

($000's)

Total Nonmajo~
SpecialAvenue Deb~Servlce Capital Project Governmental

Funtls F~ntls Funtls Funtls
REVENUES
Taxes antl special assessments $ 68,452 42A80 tB4O28 128.9)0
Intergovernmental _ 46.35] ~ 15,69] 62,054
CM1arges for wrren(services 184.409 - ],708 192.11]
Rent 20,61] - - 20,61]
Investment Income 8fi1 128 4]8 1 46]
Other revenues 3.it0 i,~e2 a880

ToWlrevenues 323,814 42 618 43,6]3 410,105

EXPENDITURES
Current'

General government 14,968 ~ - 14.968
Public safety 1,054 - - 1 650
Community services 57,955 - - 5].855
Sanila[on 133,059 - - 133,059
Capi~sl maintenance 81.1]6 - 26,242 107.418

Capital outlay 10,1]0 - it 269 21,439
Deb~sarvice:

Printipal _ - 19,650 - 19,650
Interest antl (scat charges 23,333 23,333
Total expentliwres 298,782 42,983 3),511 3]82]6

Excess (tlefitiency)oi revenues
under (over)expendlWres 25.032 (365) 6,162 30,829

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transle5 in 1],230 21,156 1996 J0,382
T~ansters out (2I 463) (19,]9p p,4]8) (54732)

Total otM1erfnancing sources (uses) X10,233) 1,365 (5,a82) (1 E.95a)

Net cM1anga in Nntl balances 14,)99 1,000 680 1fi 4]9

Fund balances ~ bee~nning 293,233 38,153 me,911 436.297

Funtl balances- ending S 308,032 3],153 10],591 452,]]6
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City of San JosA
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenu¢ Funtls
June 30, 2012

(8000's)

Workforce San JOSx
PruscM1 Inv¢SMen~AC1 Arena

Memorial Park Giry Trust (FUntls EnM1ancement
(iuntls 131,151) ~FUnd 139) T90-29E. 3991 IPontl 30p

ASSETS
Equity in pooleE CasM1 antl imesMen6
M1eltl In Ciry Treasury E 336 3,533 - J

Receivables (net of allowance
for uncolledlbles) - 8 3.]8] -
Due~mmov~sitleagenues
Due lmm o~M1er funtls - - -
Loansrecelvable(nep - ~ - -
Ativancesandtle0oeils - -
ReaNC1eU assets:
Ol~e~casb entl investments - -

Ativancw~oo~M1er~untls - - -
omerasset:

Total asses S 336 3,SYt 3,]8] 3

LIABILITIES
Nccounts payable $ - 42 1,5W -
gamedsale~ies, waHes entl payroll laves 5 1 127 -
ouetoalherlonas - ~ t,12e
OMerted revenue - _ _
Ndvances, tleposi~s antl reimbursable cre0ils - - -
HtlVanLPSffOma~M1erluntls - - -
Ol~erliabililies ~ _

Total llabililies 5 43 2)58

FUND BNLANCES
Nonspendable - _

Resicic~eE - - 1,029
Committed 331 - -
Assigned 3.88 3
Total Nntl balanras 331 3,488 1, 29 3

Total llablllfies dntl Nntl bale0ces $ 338 3,Sd1 3,]8J 3
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Special
Assessment 1903 Gas Tax
Maintenance Ng SM1Inq GUng Constmction Maintenance 1964 Gas Tar
OisVicfs LapiWl Subtlivision anO Property antl Malnfenance antl

~FmES 302, 351469 Maintenance Park Trust Conveyance Tax Construction Conctmction
3]L3~4 W6) (PUntl ]03~ ~FUntl 395) (funds ]]T3981 IFUntl 449 ~FUntla Ct4it1~

18.610 60 66,393 78096 -

165 - 2,]]] 3,025 397 ]54

13 fi38

18,]]5 60 82,808 81,121 3W - -- ]50

96 - 4]3 t 348
12 - 46 11]
- ~ - 281 39] ]5E
92 - 2.727 -

- - 2.500 - -

20~ 3,246 4,252 39J ISG

18.5]5 ~ ]9,562 ]6,869

60
185)5 EO 79,562 ]6.869 ~ ~~

18,]75 60 82,808 et t21 39P ]54

(COnGnuetl)
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ASbETS
Equity in pooletl casM1 and Inveslmen~s
M1eltl In City Treasury

Receivables (net o~ allowance
for uncolledlbles7
Due hom oNSitle agencies
Due hom otM1erfuntls.
Loans rewivabla (net)
Advances and tleposils
ReaViti¢tl dsse~s'.
Olher rasM1 and InvesMenls

AOVences la older Wnds
INher asses

Total asses

11A81LITIES
Accounts payable
Accmetl sdld~lES, wages antl payroll taxes
Due to other funds
oetenea revenue
Advances, eeposits antl relmouaab~e cretliis
R~vances from alM1er tUnds
OlM1erliabllities

Total faMlilies

FUN06pLNNLES -
Nonepentlable
Reslrlctetl
CommiVetl
Assi9neE
Total Nnd balances

Total llabllill¢5 entl luntl balances

City of San Jose
Combining Balanc¢ Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funtls
June 30, 201 i

(g000's)

Sform Supplemental
Drainage Local Law Undergrountl Sate drug

Fee Enforcement Utility Forfeiture
~FUnda Ct], d2i~ (FUntl 0161 IFUntl dl6j ~FUntl CPS

5 38] 2,100 2,64 1,5]5.

1 2 293 2

S 3B8 2,182 2,3A 1,5A

$ 9 f]0
5

1 992

9 2.162 3

3I9 20 2,354 157]

9]9 20 2.J54 1.5]7

5 380 2,i8I 2.35] 1,577

~Q~



R¢sitlential
Construction Arterial Community In~egra~ed

LiCrary Parc¢I FetleralDrvg Tav antl Major Faclliry Was~c
Tax PorteiNre Coninbution Collectors RevenU¢ Managem¢nl

IFUnd 418 (iuntl 019 ~FUntl 420 (FUntl Cap (FUntls 623,63T,03B1 IFUntl 63J)

],16a 2541 1,261 ip80 0,196 22191

6 3 1 t 9W 12,38f
0

2 016

].t]4 2,544 1262 1.081 11.181 54.182

84
8~

1 340 1q]03
898 1B3

18 7,332
B6a 4,694

1G5 t 2,066 22,862

19,610
].009 2.544 - - -

- - 1262 1,080 ~ tt ]ID
9,115

),0~9 2,544 1,264 1,080 9,115 31320
].t]d 2.544 1.262 1.081 11181 54.i B2

(Canllnuetl)
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City of San Jose
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2012

(SODO's)

Builtling anJ
SVUCturea CommuNty

TaEacco ConsVUC~ion ~evelopm¢n~ Development
SaVlement Tax EnM1ancement Block Grant
(FUntl 416) (FUntl 0191 IFUntl 439 (FUntls 441,3041

ASSETS
Equity In pooled cash antl investments
held in City Treasury S ~ 13,283 655 148

Remivables (net of allowance
far uncollec~ibles) - 2,2p2 - 1 ]g5
due fmm ouisiGe agencies - _

due from otM1er fantls ~ 3.194 -
Loans recelvabk (net) - - 20 4 511
Htivancez antl deposits - 3 -
RP6VIC~¢E dS 6P~6'.
omer casn ana imesimenis - - s

Advances ~o o~~erfunds - _
OtFer assets - 852

Todl asses E 18682 1,52] 6459

LIA9ILITIE4
Axounls payable $ ~ 956 - 510
Accruetl salaries, wag¢5 entl payrollfaxes ~ ~pq q5
Due ~o other luntls - 2,068
DeferteC revenue - - ~q4g
Ativances, de0oslis entl reimbursable cretliiz
AEVances from otM1er luntls -
OIM1erliaLililies _ _

Total liabilities 480 6,a]C

FIINO BALgNCES
Nonspendable - 3 852 -
ResVicled - 18,188 - 2,305
Commitled _ _ _
NssigneJ 6]5
Total funtl balances 18,202 152] 2,385

To~sl liabililias and fvntl balanws 5 18,682 1,52] 8,959
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Ewnomlc
Development Storm Drainage Transient Etlwartl Brown Municipal
Adminisna~ion Service Occupancy Lake Memorial Golf

Loans Use Charge Tax Cunningham Justice Courses
~PUnd 4H) ~FUntls 666,6691 (FUntl 4611 (FUnJ 4621 Ifuntls 0)0,6>i) (Fimtl 518)

73 36,005 2,188 B15 344 40d

332 1,91fi 9
15

]5

148 36,352 4,504 824 344 404

1,489 60 17 ~ 27
1 226 1) 2

3C0

1 1.]15 ]I P 302 2]

14] 3465] ~ 2
4.42] BW J)]

14] 39.83] 4 42] 807 2 J]]

14A 35,352 4,504 B24 344 40A

(COnlinue0)
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City of San Jose
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajo~ Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2072

(8000's)

ASSETS
Equity in pooletl cash antl lnves~menis
~altl In City Treasury

Receivables (nel of allowance
for uncollec~ibles)
Due kom outsitle a9e~~~ies
Ouefrom olM1er luntls
Loans receivable (net)
AtivancesanU tleposits
Restricletl assets:
O@er cesM1 and imeslmenis
na.ances io omer moss
Omer assets

LIABILITIES
Flccounis payable
Hcauetl ealanes. wages antl payroll lazes
ore m ome~m~a~
Oelertetl revenue
Advances, tleposils antl reimbursable cretlits
Ativancesirom o~perfunde
Other liabilities

Total liabililles

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restrictetl
Commilletl
Pssi9ned
Total Nntl balances

Total liabllill¢s and land balances

144

Co~.ention
ana

cmwrei
Facilities

(FUntl 536 4911 Total

5,905 2]6.090

1,890 32,514
19

3,194
4,606

5,405 5)t0
15,fi56
20,462

5 13.500 358,254

5B0 1),812
20 1,858

4,632
1,045 14,985

5,504
2 500

2.921 2.921

6,566 50,222

20,465
2452eB

8,930 28,928
1].351

8,934 3~8,~32

$ 13.500 358.254
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement o! Revenues, Expenditures antl Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Vear Endetl June 30, 2012

($OOU's)

REVENUES
taxes ana special assessments $
Intergovernmental
Charges for wrrenl services
Renl
Investment inwme
Omer revenues

Total revenues

E%PENDITURES
CVfrene

General government
Public sefery
Communly 6ervlce5
Sanitation
Capital malMenance

Capital outlay

Total expentliWres

Excoss (aelcieiwy~ot revenvea
over ~unaep expentlimres

OTHER iINANGING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transkrs out

Total other financing sources fuses)

Net change in Nnd balances

Funtl balances - beginning

Funtl balances - ending

Workforce San JOSC
Prusc~ Investment Act Arena

Memorial Park GlftTmst (FUntls EnM1ancemen[
~FUntls 131, 151) ~FUntl 1391 190390.3991 IFUntl J011

138]5

]]
1 2t 2

646 8H

78 66] 13,895 80

104 449 13,929

104 448 13,929

(26) 2t9 (54) 90

66] 991
(t 0]8)

88] IB]7__

(26) 886 (54) 3

35] 2,6II 1083

$ 331 3498 1,029 3
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SOecial
Nssessmenl 1903 Gas Tax
Maintenance Ng SM1ing Gung Consimcllon Maintenance 1964 Gas Tax

Districts Capi(al Subtlivision antl Property antl Maintenance antl
~FUntls 302, I51J69 Malntenanca Park Trusf Conveyance Taa Construction Cons~mction

3]id16 J161 IFUntl JWI IFUnd 3)51 (FUntls ~]]-J981 IFUntl 4W1 IFUntl5410dii1

8,]73 - - 258]9 ~ -
- - t 293 G)02 ].992
- - 12261 - -

60 - 24] 145 - -
110 2 ~ 900 - -

0,863 2 t2,50B 2),21] 6,702 ],882

9.422 - 9.4>8 21.16 6.]02 ).992
1.244 2.903

x.332 10.82 24,063 6]02 ],992

(3]9) 2 1 ]87 3,t 54

852 3 - 948 - -
(811) I6 089)

B52 3 (B 12f ___ (SA3fi)

0]3 5 B]5 (1,982

18,102 55 ]85W ]8851

18,5)5 fi~ ]9.562 ]6,069

(COnlin~ed)

147



City of San Jose
Combining Statement of Revenues, Ezpentlilures antl Changes in Funtl Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(5000's)

REVENUES
Taxes antl special assessments
Intergovernmenlel
Charges for current services
Rent
Inves~menl income
Other revenues

Totel revenues

E%PENOITURES
Curtan~:

Generalgoremmen~
Public safety
Community services
Sanitation
Capihl maintenance

CaD~~al outlay
Total expendlWres

Excess (tleficienty) of revenues
o er (untler)expenEiWres

Storm Supplemental
Drainage Locaf Law Untlergrountl Sta(e~rvg

Fee Entorcemenf Utility Forfepure
IFUntls 013.991 ffuntl Ef 01 fFUntl 016) IFUnd Ef ]~

0 Z]5
1B3

504
a

8 6
36

190 ]85 516 q2

803

35 312
6

35 809 312

155 p4~ 204 02

OTNER FINANCING SOURCES (USES
T2nsters in _
Tlen9f¢IS Ou( (p~ (yq~

Tolel other fnantlng sources (uses) f4) @p~

Nel change In Nnd balances 151 (24) 180 42

PonC Balances- beginning ~~8 44 2,194 1535

Funtl balances-entlin8 $ 3I9 20 2 354 i5P]
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Resitlential
Consfmctlon Atlerial Community Integratetl

Library Rarce~ Fetleral drug Tax antl Major Facility Waste
Tax Forte~Nre Con~tlbu~ion Collecrors Revenue Management

(FUntl 4101 IFUntl Ci 9~ ~FUntl 4201 IFUntl C49 ~FUntls 43t 0.R 4001 IFUntl 6101

7,460 - 2B0 - - -
B5

_ P 12.168 124,980
- - - 2.843 -
23 ID 5 4 3] ]3

229 OP

],483 239 285 21 15,825 124.938

14,Bfi0
080

4 86]
- - - - ~ 111,808

1 965 - 12] 53 2,533 -
s6a

6,64 3B0 t2] S3 t],383 112.7]2

8)1 (t 4th t58 (32) (1 588) t2,i66

- - - 5,500 63
169) (6) (4 3421 (2 1fi0)

1691 (6) t,t 58 (2 09])

802 (141) 152 (321 (410) 10.069

620] 2,685 1,110 1112 9,525 2t 251

7.008 2.544 1,262 1080 9,115 31.320

(COnEnued)
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Ciry of San JosA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expentlitures antl Changes in Funtl Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funtls
Fm the Vear Entletl June 30, Y012

($00~'s)

Bo ttling dfltl

StrYCFYre6 COTTUniry

Tobacco ConsFmction development Development

Settlement Tax EnM1ancement Block Grant

IFUna 41~_ (FUntl OY91 1FUntl 4391 IFUntls 441,3041
REVENUES

Taxes and spacial assessments $ - 11,593

InlerBO~emmental - 6.392 ~ 9,463
CFarges for current Services -

Rent

imes~ment income (s1 so z
olber revenues - 51 - -

Totalrevenues (6~ 19,086 2 9,463

EXPENDITURES
Gurrenc

General government 10B - - -
Publicsafety - - - -
Communityservices ~ - 20D ]282
5anitalion
Caplial maintenance ~ 14,525 - 1,532

Capital outlay 346] 500
Total expandiWres 148 17,992 200 9,314

Excess (defcienry~of revenues
a er (untler)expentliWres (114) t,09J (1881 1<9

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ~USES~
Transfers in _ -
TranefersoN p50) (436) 08067

Total o~hee financing sources fuses) p50) (0357 (1,8081

Ne~cM1enge in hintl balances (B64) 659 (19Bj (1,65])

Funtl balances - beginning 864 1],543 1 J25 4,042

Fontl balances- entling $ 18202 1,527 2.385
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Econwnic
Development Sbrm ~minaBe T~anslent EtlwaM brown Municipal
AtlminisVation Service Oc<upanry Lake Memorial Gol(

Loans Use CFa~ge Tax Cunningham Justice Courses
ffuntl 0001 (FUntls 0E6. 0691 IFUntl 4611 IPUntl 0641 IFUntl54i4 J)]) IFUntl 5181

t 3.46J
~ 269

a2AG9 >30 - 542

11fi 13 2 t 2
zoa ss

2 32.1]5 13680 ]32 270 5]9

2]i
53 - 6,863 - - 5
- 21$51 - -
- 4.423 ]9 3]4

999

53 264]3 6,863 ]9 y1 3]8

(5p 5,702 6.821 653 ~p 200

- - ~ ~ - 1,800
(5087 (6,406) ~52fi) - _ ~t,9~

(5081 (fi 4067 (5261 (1321

(51) 5.194 415 127 (1) 68

198 29,903 4,012 600 3 309

tag 3a.839 4.42] eo'/ 2 3)]

(Continued)
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expentlitures antl Changes in Funtl Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For [he Vear Entled June 30, 2072

($Oa0's~

canven~io~
a~a

cultural
Facilities

~FUntl 536.481) Totel
REVENUES
Taxes and syecial assessments g - 68,452
Intergovernmental - 4fi 35]
Charges forturreni services 1665 184.409
Ren! 1]]3] 20.61]
Invesimenl Income 2fi Bfit
OlM1er revenues - 3, fl8

Total revenues 19.428 323,814

E%PENDITURES
Currant'.

General government - 14,968
PUblic sa(ey - 1g5C
Commmily services 2C 446 57,855
$anitdtion - t33A5B
cannai mam~e~a~ce yea atns

Gepilel oo~lay 8] t0.i ]0
To~el ex0antlitpres 252]5 298,]82

Excess (d~cienty) of revenuee
over (untler)expentliWres (5 80]) 25 032

OTHER FINANCING SOORCES (USES)
Transfers in 6 606 1],230
Transfers out (521) (2]4631

Total o~M1er financing sources(uses) 5.685 tl0 233)

Ne~cFange In funtl balances 38 14,)99

Pond balances- beginning B,B96 293233
Pontl balances- entling 5 8,934 308.032

l52
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Clty of San Jose

Combining ScAetluie of Revenues, ExpenCilures antl

Changes In Funtl Balances - Butlget antl Actual

Nonma7o~ Special Revenue Funtls

For lM1C Year Entletl JUne 3~, 3012
($000's)

ccM1
Mem Gltt irvsl

~Wntls 131P151~ Funtl DBE

Bv4geUry Ve~lence gutlgelary
VOcer~9an6 Over Be[I5

9u4Ae1 Ndual IUnde~1 BuLp el Atlual Vntle~~
REVE NII ES

~~
n. a eePa~ .smem. s - - -
miareoro ~mi - _ _ _
cxa~oe+ro, ~~rrem:er~~~ - - - -

n n
..:~mem iMOme - i i - is
gna~naewes 10]9 6a8 (9BI

Total revenues ]] )B 1Nl G50 (Ji]1

EXPEND R~10.E5
Current.

Gene~el gove~nm enl - ~ ~ - -
Publicselely ~ ~ - - - -
Communityservl[es 1sS iM I51) 3.64J 450 ~3]9l)
Sanitation - - - -
Upnalmalnlenanae _

cnv~i+~ omuy
Total oapcn0lWras 155 1W 1511 18<9 050 (11931

Exre55 (tlelmlency) of revenues
ove~(uMe~~ex0e~tllluref ]8 (]L 52 13,6101 110 3,830

OiXEF FINANCING SOOPCR ~VSES~
imrelert In - - ~ 1 88> fibs
Tan slcrs out

Total ollrertinenGnB ~omcea fuse sj J Wl fiN

N e~aM1anBe i~~~u nE Oalances 5 (]B) (tfi) 52 X280] 8]] ~gtl9

Funtl balen¢5- beginning 35> $,531

Pnoi yea~encumLte ncea - 1

Pons palanws-eMInB 5 ]91 5 7399
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Wadlorce lnveslmo nl Act

IFU nES 39 b39<. 3991

BWge~ary Weunce

Baa Ove

oueoei newel m~eep

Sen Joai <~ena Ennancemenl

9 uE0e~ary Variance

Bai Ove

e~evb naoai wae~

Spacial Aazossmanl Mainh nano O'nRitlz

(PonE~dOR 351 d89 2i b0]9 3]61

Butlge~ary Variance

Butlgel Swl (Untla~

B ]OB 8,]]] 5

20,10] 13.8]5 (61]2) - _

- a z ua fax Ind

BB 08 I10 110

001m 13,8)5 (80]2 BB W p 8,88E 8.925 O

1],9]5 13, PG8 (M1OR81

- - ~ 1]800 1g515 (3,085)

1 Z9>5 O,9<9 (<036 11600 II,515 2085

2fi2 pd) 102<6) B8 90 R (] ]18 b$901 2.48

991 991 - B52 85Y
10] 10'~ (1.0]8) (10]8) I15Z - 16

__ (10~ 1~9 (8]1 18] 8J) Bfi2 16

R Q6B (]9) @.f 0.11 1 0 3 8891 (i39J 1.143

I,W] ~ 1fi,886

t,iW

S I.W9 8 J 4 q,J3a

(COntinueE)

X55



P EVEN U ES
Taxes entl speoal e5se5ameMs
Inle~BOVemmenlsl
COa~Bes bi wimnl servrces
Renl
ImesMen~lncwne
ONer revenues

Total mvenuea

EXVEN DIiURES
Cunene

Gen ai goo mend
Pu0l~vlery m
Communiiyurvmes
S anllation
ceoxai m~mm~a~~e

Capiml outlay
To~sl evpentliWma

Excess (tle11ckncy~IN revenues
a~re~w~eep e.oe~awre:

OTXER FINANCING SOUPC ES ~USES~
IIan[k ~s
Tancle ~s oW

Total ol~e~Onenpnp sources (u ¢es)

Nelc anGO In tuna ~agnwb

Fund ~alanevs- Oeglnning

Peurym crcumenn~ex

Wntl ba hncec ~ entling

S

city of San Jose

Combining ScM1edule of Revenues, Expentli~ures antl

CFang¢s in Funtl Balances - Budget and AcNal

Nonmajar Special Revenue FUntls

Far the Year Entletl June 30, 004
(E000's)

Ng SM1Ing GUnp CapIGl Malnhmnce Subtllvlsion Perk Trnst
FunO JO] Funtl 3]5~ _

Butlpelay Ve~ience u~go~ary
B asls Over a Bas¢ VOVei~

Bu0.ye1 PcWel (UntleQ Butloel Ptlual (Untle~

].L d] 12281 BB14

18I fOd
3 Z

I 1 3«> 1R 40tl 8999

02,090 15,105 (2B 9B9f
1.3H 1 E<4
43330 Ifi,3l9 IR8.9B9~

2 2 (39 8911 (]903) 95.088

J J
1I, 1151 OJRI Jd

J ] 1151 10d1R1 3]

8 3 5 1 aJ E3s ~]L5) 36,OP

65 65 ~9~

b 80 5 6080
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Lonalmgion anO Vra peM ~o^~pYa nce Tax 19<]GaS Tdv MalTa mnco antl LOns~mcllan 1960 Ge5 Ta~Mainlona nvy antl GOns Iraq ion

(FUn OZ b]J9fi ~FUntl iU9~ ~F Untla 910LH_

Butlge~ary Va~ianw Bud pelary Ve~ienre gutlg e~ary Venerice

ea:i: over oa:~: o.e~ ea:~: o.ar
B uJge ptluel IVnge~L 9Wgv1 Rdual NnC ml Butlge~ Atluel ~Vn~e~)

21025 ]5,8]9 905< ~ ~ -

050 YB9 (161) ],065 8~)6$ (dfi3) 0,143 ;993 (151)

>9 ]9 - - _

1258 900 13121

23.531 2I1 3,620 1,Ofi5 6ID4 363 03W ],99R (351)

6J9B5 25,fi94 (]i ]01) ].065 6.]OR (389 830 ], 99] (351)
3,003 3.90]

6ft2BB 48,SW pi ]0¶ ]065 6.]02 1383) B,$<D ],9W 151

(d2 ]6] 1«6 41.331

1.OP1 1008 2,02]

6R1~ 16.0091 149

(5,189) 12838 1554

@],X561 (1 OB4) dJ,B]0 - -

]0688

)9fl0

$ ]4588 5 5

(LOnlinuaJ)
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Ciry a(San Jost

Combining Scbetlule of Revenues, Expentll~ures antl

COan9es In iuntl ealanres ~ Butlget antl AcNal

Nonmaio~ Special Revenue Funds

For ~M1e Year Entletl June 3~, Y0t4
1Eaao•z~

sro~or.mae•F:e s~nci.m.~~m m~.u.w E~m,~.mam

e~avm~a vana~re e~oeem,v waa~irQ
e.:.. o.e~ e~.is o.er

o~aoai amei ~u~aan e~aoe~ an~ai
R[VENUEb
saxes an450eGelessemman~s S ~ ~ - -
In~e~govemmenlal d Q - 1$85 1,560 ~5)
LOagec lot vunenl servrce5 fOJ 189 00 - -
RCn

oni - 2 Z - 5 5
dM~reaerrva¢

~Tolalmv¢nues 107 IB9 02 y565 1,585

E%PEN ITV RES

Culre

General gav¢mmenl - -

Vublicsa~aly ~ - ],gW 2~d3 ~]]Q
Com mlY aerva¢c

Snnne~lon _ _ _

Ca pllal mein~e nenm 59 57 (1) ~ ~ -
Ceplleluulley g 6

Tolal expentliWrex 59 $l 2) R B13 2039 ]]4

Exwv(tlaGCkncV)ol revert uea

ove~lunEeQeWenJ Ures d0 1d2 04 11.2481 10]0 ]i0

OTHER FMANLIXG SOU RG ES (OS ES)

Tmnsle is _ _ _ _

T2ns~e~s aul _~ p 1

io~sl olM1Or ~lnentlng sa ue[es (u res) (5 (61 1

Nel cM1ange In luny gala ncoc S 07 48 85 112P (qq) 7]d

Fu ntl Eele nces~EOylmm~g y5 305

>no, ro. o~~~me,a~~: - sort

F~~a eeia~~e~-e~a~oq s asa s ns
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Un tle ig ~o unE Ull liN Slale ~mg FOKellure LlbnryPartel Tai

BuEgcl¢ry Valance pntl9e~ery Variance BuEgolary Va~ienca
o::~s o.ai e,n: o.A~ e..m o~~

xuaoe~ nowai ~ooeer~ _ owaci n~wm rv~ee, auaee~ naum _ un( eel

].151 > 060 209
]30 500 (236) _

4 d

- 5 5 10 0 ~8) - 1G 16
3d 3i 3

]30 51] Rf] I4 (3) 1351 ].00 Pp5

1985 311 (1.P10) R]93 1, Bi5 (818

15 3f0 1fi13 .._ B]B9 6.62] 21]]1

(I 1B5 d01 1.39b 131 ._ ~1 NB) 8q9 339]

30 (241 6 p181 IB9 d9

Ra 6 (1101 (B91 49

(I, $151 1]] fiO3 Al (3) fl.666) 700 R<06

2,1]0 1$32 6.1fiG

92

S A~~ 5 1,5]3 5 6,916

(COn~inuetl~

X59



P EVEN UES
Ter¢a antl spedal assesamenla
In~aryawm menlel
cnoreo: o,w~m.a~.~~es
Rent
Inveslmenl iteoma
Olney revenues

Tolel~nanuea

E %VENORU RES
Cm~

Gere~al9oveenmen~
Publlc safely
Com unify ae ¢e¢
Sanl~alpn
cacnm memie~.~~

ceVltal oulky
Toh1 ¢MOe~ilores

Excess (tlellnpnry)ol revenuef
000gvnaep eceneimea

OiXER FINA NCING SOURC ES ~VSES)
Trsmlers
T~'an¢fertout

Total ol~e~llvndng somws(u sex)

Nel o~enpa In ~wJ Oalences

Fund Celanya. Le9innlnp

Pear year encumbrzwos

rwia oma~~~. e~ao-~q

clry al san Jos€

Combining ScM1edule of Revenues, Expentli~ures antl

CM1anges in Funtl Balances ~ 8utlgel antl Actual

Nonmafor Special Revenue FUntls

For the Year Entletl June 30, ]Ot]
(5000'x)

5

vm..m o.~e Foneiwra

a~aae~:ry
Bails VOue~~

e~eaa~ au~m m~ao,

Resitlmtial COncbucOOn Tax COnlribution

B oEg elery Va~6nw

Bas Ove

e~aam n~wai io~ea~

R 200 208

15 > (B) 2 3 1
I6] 129 81

182 236 44 283 2]9

440 3B0 ~80~

. - e+fi 1T] Ofel

<W 780 160 946 19 019

8621 1144 110 (8021 95B

16~

,_ _ {j (e 1

5 R63 rya<~ 110 80B 16~ 9W

2,6]9 1 10]

$ 25]5

~s~

S 135]



anormi ~~a m.ior coue~mR ~~uy raamy a.~e~~~
IPo ntl <9 omlFUntl6 R3<R qB

Butlgelmy e Butlgela Vat n

Balls VOm~e Be skry Ovxr~

Bu4q et qoW al IUndei) Bu4ne~ pclual (floe erl

li P

- 2 003 2,8~] -

3 ] 28 30 1

G~9 812 169

10 20 ~RBO 3.«5 185

3,DOR ~q69 (1.5)d)

718 1W (p 15) 2)01 1532 (259j

aie ioe ass s,eaa __,q om ne~z

1318) X831 DS (R 5531 1556 1B9)

1 Z

2 121

Id 1 B) (B RI 277

1099

15

5 1026

5.50 5,500 -

(9.792) 15]92 _

(3892 (0,89]1

Ie n4fi1 (d~«BJ 1pW

0 38]

S 385

~6~

nlegialetl Weah Me nege moM

BuOg elary anon¢

easie VOw~

6Wpe~ Acluel Ontler

]6fi BS (281)

1<fi 418 1J].518 (8 900)

185 ~a IBfI

N6,9a9 19]6]] (092

15],106 151,$93 (5.BSl)

9~< 98<

I~B f 10 153 R9 15 B53

n 161 114.5801 (3A 101

6] 63

(R 1601 31fi0

(209] IR.~B]~

pb 268) 118.0 ]J 1],4191

119W

4,BB6

S a 383

~COntinuea~



REVENUES

Taxes antl special assexxmamn

Inle~govemmen~el

C~aegea for curteni se rv¢n

0.¢nl

Ino en inwm

O~~ee evenun e

Total revenues

E Y PENDIiVRES

Curt

(:ens al 9ovemmenl

Public salery

C mmunpy zervlc¢f

San Nation

C aO~sl mainlena nce

C epi~al oNlay

rams e.o=~e~wa:

x ss lueede~glm am~uAv
ove~(unaep a.p.~a'iw,os

OTH ER FINANQNG SOU ROES ~U SES)
nsle~y

Tra osiers oul

To~el nl~e~linanciy mmcea ~usas)

Nel change In Nntl Lalance5

fund ~alanai- beginning

Pn o~year eiwumWances

Funtl ~alancxs~nnaing

Ciry of San dose
Combining ScM1etlule of Revenues, Expentli0ures and

Changes in Funtl balances - Butlgel antl PcNal
Nonmajor 5pocial Revenue Funtls
For the Yeah Entletl June 30, 2012

(SOOO's~

mo.ao s.mem.m a~na~~s aoa s~,~owre: co~nr~~uo~n.

ButlgeUry ar ¢V Ianc Bvtlgebiy Vary

Be[b Over Besli Over

Du4Ae1 Aclual VnOee Buagel gcNal IVntle~)

5 - - - 10,500 12583 R4B3

- - - 15,09] 6.302 (8.BB0)

2]5 33 R41)
800

~ 

800 qB 51 J

fi00 600 85,905 19,W8 ~fi6]1

1~0 fOP _

- 39.]3B 18,408 p1,9501

10B lOB ~3$OS 21,]53 IH.054

__ice <9P 600 (],J001 ~06B5 4,615

_~~ tsnz~ ~aast +m
Q501 ]W ~b99 <35) IQ)

S 1058 X369) 800 np°2~ ~J,100) <lII

f4] t3>82

111

5 8 ip ]BB
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Oeve to pm en~En La nvem¢M Cammunlly 0aeelopmanl BlooM Gre n~ Ecan om io Devalapm enl 4Emin lsba Dan Loena
IFUnL OJ9f ~4untic O<1 3001 ~FUntl aapl_

BuEgelery Varlenoe BuQge lary e BuEAelery Varlan~
e~V o.e. ea:i: o.or sass o.a,

0utlgel gcloel NMeq ButlOe~ duel Nndx BuJOeI Acluvl __(UMefj

- - 10161 8 ]19 (44 ~1 14 p !2)

Z 1

- Z 1 10,181 8.]I9 4@ 13 (2)

B50 300 (G50) 1201Y 91<B (2.880) 120 61 (68J

2, 50t 2229 198) ~ -
50~ 500

850 200 (6501 IS,OW 11.9]R (3163 1$0 BI X591

1850 _ 1196) 652 (O B)31 Q,15T 2iID ry061 5]

__ 1f 6C8) IBW

118W) pBOfi

IB 50) (t OB) B52 (6619) X9,959) 2]20 Idfi) ~<9) 9

esi e.im ~za

1.863

5 BS] $ SB10 S ]1

(GOn6nveJ)
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PEVENUES

re.e: aye:or=ini~sso:..menu
In le ~gaveenmenlal

C~a gas lo~curtenl Se MCes

Rem
veclmanl lnwme

pl~e newnu¢¢

*oni,e.e~~e:

exvevortuaes
c~~

Oeneml qov menl

Pu~Ilc mlely m

commumry aeri~ec

se mmllon

cao~ni maimeoa~~.
C¢Oi~el outlay

To~el expeMiWms

[,ce:z teen~eii~yl o~re.en~e:

o.ei wneep e,v.~anwa.

OTN EP FlNANCMG SOURCES ~VSES~

iranahrt

Lamlers out

iolal ol~ar Mendng soumec ~uces~

Net cM1enBe'm ~untl helancae

FUna balenm¢- Oeglnning

Pepryaa~ancump mnces

FmJ balantea~entling

City o(San Jose

Combining ScM1atlule of Revenues, ExpentllWres antl

Chanfles in Funtl Balances - Butl9e~ antl AcNal

Nonma~Or Special Revenue FVnds

Far the Vear Entled June 30, 2012

(§000's)

51orm Om nags 5ery eUSe C~a~ge Te my iae

91e~FUOEC<61~Ifuntls ld6[969~

Butlgelary Vsianw Butlgelery Va~iana

Be5i5 Basis Over

OupAei Actual IVnJetl BuaQel Actual _(Una_

5 - ~ - 12,455 131W 1.012

]1900 R,~59 259 ~ - -

31 ]3 92 9 B

zoe zoa
areal azua aoi ~z ass useo tzzs

8.61 OW9 118421
26.193 23.864 10.8591
t i,R'/5 6.0&3 1111091

8H9 999

444W 30.]09 IfI D50) 8901 6.WB 1628

(1]Si6 1]Bl 10859 ]BN 6701 3.907

062) (6081 349 I6i01fi1 18.~W) ID

0531 (SOBj 39C (601 G1 Ifi 491 10

% (13.3281 1 RI5 14,603 p.56d) 285 289

25,]<9 3 B48

0,09d I]6

5 ]Q B85 b 0299

~6Q



Leka CUnning~am EOwa~p 8iown Memotlal JUSl icc Municl OaI GOII Courses

FuM 163 Fun05 ~]<Ip ~FUntl 518

BuEg e~ary Variance gudgelary Ve rience Butlgelary Varunce
sari. wer o.R, Dail: o~~

o~eom aowai a~aan e~aaei A~mm m~een e~aa~~ n~wai w~een

- - s5a za0 Iry -
fi3< ]JO 106 - 546 562 (4~

z T ~ i a CZ)
ie as v

fi20 i3R 108 ]89 Y6~ 56] PO fl

- - fiR SOG (66) ~ ~ -

15 5 (f 01

]95 154 (141) 910 3]P 1~)

]95 f5G 11911 84 516 188) 6$5 91B (i6)

9]B 5]B 249 119] 65 W2 189_SJVOj

- - - - - 1,840 iB00
15p8 15281 fl 1 IW3 ry B331 1

(Si6 516 _____ ryd31 (13]1 1

(19>) 67 249 ~9<8) (d0df 66 B 6l SB

BOfi BB 301

92 ffiR

5 id0 5 6] S 375

(Conlin uetl)
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City of San Josc

Combining ScM1etlule 4f Revenues, Expenditures and

CM1engas in Funtl 9a~ances ~ BuOge[ and Fctual

Nonma~o~ Special Revenue Funtls

For the Year Endetl June 30, 2012
(§000'5)

ComenUOn aM Cul\unl Poclll~les

fiuJge~ary Valence
Bas Ove

ButlBe~ IvAUaI QInOm
0.EVExUES
IDss en cial ac oscmanla E - ~ -
Inlegooemmenlal -
Che~ges~ormrrenlservims 986 1685 ~Y)
Rent IB,000 1].I J1 Rfi9j
Invaalmenl'mmme - 17 V
Mher menuaz

iolal rewnuas 10,988 19,<19 d31

E%P EN~IiUAES
Cw renl'

G ene~al govemmenl - -
Publicselely - - -
CdnmunilYSenlme 34,]39 R4~J9] (1<R)
Sanl~elpn - - -
Gaplialmalnl¢nance 110i 1,35] Q3])

Capital oulky 8) 0]
Tolxl gxpeMlW res 28930 258N 18]01

e.~.:.laerK~e~~vl one~e.~e:
o~,t~~aep e,ceoa~m:: nsaa ~s soz ipso

OTHER FIN A NLING SOURCES ~U 9E3~
Tre v~en in 6.9pb p,00B -
r~a~s~ersow ~ssa <ni ao

rmei mne~n~n~c~s =art=. a.a:) sesz saes sa

rve~ma~ae i~~+~~u naie~o~ a zoso ~sm~ ~naa

Pontl belancea- Lepinning B.8]8

P~io~yee~encumb~enms p95

Fnntl Lalances- entlinB 5 9.52fi
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City of San Jose
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2012

($000's)

z000 sere: e
camae~ co eo~as
Park Parks, Libraries City

Refuntling &VU~lic Safety Hall
~FUntl 4031 ~FUntl 2W) (iuntl 310j Total

PSSETS
Receroam~:loe~oranowa~~es
for uncolledibles) $ - 81 2 83

ore room om:me aee~=~e~ sa - za
ae:vmiaa asses:

Equity In pooled cash aria Inveslmenls
M1eItl In City Treasury - 35,096 2.154 3],250

Total assets $ 35201 2,156 3],35]

LIABILRIES
Accowts payable 8 - - 204 204

FUND BALANCES

ResincleE for debt service 35,201 1,952 3J.153
Total liabllifes and fund balances $ 35,201 2.156 3],357
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Cily of San Jose
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Funtl Balances

Nonmajor Oebt Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 50, 2017

($000's)

1000 Seriese
Gamtlen GO BOntls
Park Parks, Libraries Ciry

ReNntling BPUbIic Safety Hall
~FUntl 20J1 IFUntl 2W~ ~FUntl 2f 0~ To(al

REVENUES
Pmpetly razes 5 - 42,490 - 42,490
InvesMent income 85 v3 RB

Total revenues 425)5 03 42618

E%PEN~ITURES
- Oeb~ service'

Principal - 19,850 - 19,650
Interest entl liscal cM1arges - 22,249 1084 23,333

Total eKpentlilures 41899 1,084 42,883

Excess (defciency~at revenues
ovequndep expentliWres fi]fi ~1 001) (365

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES BUSES)
Transfers in ~ - 2ti56 21,156
Trana~ers aut (t00) (fi43) (i B4O08) X19,]91)

Total otM1er Mancing sources fuses) (100) (643) 2,108 1365

Net Nange in funE balances (1~0) 33 ip6] 1000

FunO balances beginning 100 15,168 885 56,153

Funtl balances- en0ing 5 35,201 1952 3>,153

169



i ~o



177



City of San Jose
Combining 9alance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Project Funtls
June 30, 2012

($000's)

conso-ucuon
F100~ EFCiBv
Optics CB piWI ROA Lepi~dl Tdx

Oevelapment ImpmvemcnR CiWC Center Pmjecb (Funds d66,]69,L6<
~F U ntl 00]1 (FUntl5 J08 EP4 <]61 (F Untl 015) (PonC G50~ 965 d]0 ~]B d80)

ASSETS
Eqully In pWletl wsh antl invPSlmenis

M1 eltl in Cily Treasury 5 29 9]9 p0 d08<0
R¢c¢N001¢S (nC1INdllOwdnca

10t unwlletlibles) - ~ - J,303
due lmm olhertm~05 - ] 0~0
AEVB M4580tl tlEp09i15 - Q - 3d
RBS~nGeC assets:

EqullyN pooletl rash antl imeslmen~a
p¢Itl 10 CIIy TlfT6ory ~ - - 105

CaeM1 antl investments heltl wills
psc¢l e9em - - 522

Tolel ecse~z 5 Z9 CBO 512 d1 51,YB3

LINBIlRIES
Pccounts payable 5 - 28 - ~ 1J0]
N¢metl mlanes. waBeS anO pay mli taxes - ~~p
Due ~o other Wnas 201 - 23] -

iMalilablfrlies 201 ZB YP 1501

FUND BRLANCES
NonspaMade 4 3a
Reslncictl ~ d52 285 d1 30 602
N%vl9n N 19.ID5
Unas5i9nW (t ]2)

TWal luntl balenUS (Pp) C56 285 41 i9 )Bi

Total lla~lli~ies and land ~alenwe g R9 484 522 dt SLiB2
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e~a~~n xe~eneomooa sa~aose
VaMa eonO llbretles Svwtlly Financing Dlritlon OIM1et
P~ojetla Bontl P~ojetls Bond Pmjecls Aut~onty Aul~only Capi~el

~FUnE dN~ ~PonE <]21 IF~ntl d]5~ .(FUntlf 858d59L IFUntl C83) Pro eqs Tolal

1.800 ~ - - 1]8 - d3,]Gb

0 - 3.001
- lOJ - - ).10~

]B

145

' 32600 fl.85J 90P 28]0 ~ ~ 63,Ltd

NA90 1;85] ea]> 2 9I3 1]8 117,3]]

19 516 a55 - - - 2,998
5 B W 1 144

5 998 ]65 ~ - ~ 7,201

18 6522 12d0 9.742

36,C]P fl ]35 0,343 2,9]3 - - BBAOJ
1]] 19,322

____ Its

dd A~2 113J5 n'ta9 79/l P] iW.5H1

]d 080 f].859 9II] 2,9]3 VB 11 ],]J]
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Ciry of San Jos€
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures antl CM1anges in Funtl Balances

Nonmajor Capi[al Project Funds
For the Year Entled June 30, ]012

~5000's)

co~stmaio~
Flb¢~ EW.i90
Optics Gpllal ROA Capital iaz

Development Improavmenls Civic Center Pro~ecls ~FUntls )<B.J<9,486
~FUntl 00]I (FUntl5008 G3<6]fi~ ~funtl 4351 IFUntl 65~_ <65.0]O.d]8-0801

REVENUES
lams 5 ~ - - iBp28
Integwemmental - - 15.69]
CM1at9es for carem services - ~ - ]JAB
Inaeatmenl i~rume - 2 3 1 99
q~er revxnues - 29 ~ ~ 1,531

To191 revenuer 31 J ~~ 1 40.id3

EXPENOITIIflES
Curtenf

Capital maintenance - 29 5 1$d0 244II
Ceplal ou0ey - - ~ 80 514

TMel eapendW~es 29 5 1.610 24.936

Excess (CeGUanry) W revenues
ow~~unde~)expen011ure5 2 1P) (f fi09) f02P

OTHEF FINPNCING SOORCES ~USES~
Tran9enin 50 i0 t50
TanAers oN ~ (1) - (3) (4,589)

Total MM1erManun9 sourms~uses) so ry) t0 1d] ~a SBB)

NM Uange in luntl balances 50 1 8 ~t A63) 13639

FunE balances ~ h ginning X222) p55 2]] 1,50J 36153

FunE ~alem¢x- ¢ntling 5 (1]2) 456 205 99,]81
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e~e~rn ume~eomooa sa~~asa
Paris eona unra secueiy s~~a ems o~~~eo~ aver
Pmjecb Bond Prc~acls Bontl Proj act¢ Pulhomy AulGOrlly Capital

~FUntl C]p ~FUntl <]EI IFUntl G]5~ ~FUnds 858~BSB1 (FUntl 0831 Prolec~e Total

15.69]
~vae

iaa ~e sa is i fi) aie
. - - 202 - 1762

143 ]8 5] 19 207 (1) 13,6]3

L]OB
Z

0,862
130

<.10]
~ 26 ~ 16102

fl RG9

i ]OB E,B6G 0,]<5 26 J"/,5fl

_. 11 563) 14 7881 1<.2B21 19 t7] tll 6.16E

~A10
-

366
(]C B)

~
~

-
(t~]01) - (C3])

199fi
(]~d]8)

1.420 102) (1 701) (4]]) 15482)

(1<3)

3g615

(b ifi 8)

1653

(L,p9p)

125]5

X1.682)

q,655

17]

-

(q 3B)

<38

680

f08,9fl

3[,d]2 11,335 9$<9 ?.9)3 1]7 10].591
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City o(San JosA
Combining Statement of Funtl Net Assets

In[emal Service Funds
June 30, 2012

~$000's)

Stores, VeM1icle
Gublic Works Employee Maintenance

Programs Support 6enetits antl Operations
Ifuntl 1501 IFUntls 155-ifii~ (FUntls 551-551 Total

ASSETS
Cwrent asses:

Equity in pooletl cash and Investments
heltl in City Treasury $ 2,002 15,5fi3 3,459 21.019

Receivahles (net of allowance
for onwlledibles) 2 168 57 227

Inventories 1.214 1214'

Total accent assets 2,004 15,]31 4,125 22.460

Capital asses(net of accumulaletl
tlapreciation):
Depreclabie - ~ 6,]03 8.]03

Total asses 2,004 15,]31 11,428 29,163

LIRBILITIES
Current liabllRles

Accounts payable 22 10 74] ]]9
Amruetl liabilities i4] 155 119 421

Total curten~liebiliNes 169 165 888 1200

Nonwrrentllabllities'.
Accmetl vacation, sick leave antl

compensatory lime 2804 32 482 3.J28
Total liabilities 2,9]3 19] 1,358 4,528

NET ASSETS

Investetl In wDital assets, net o!
related tleb[ - ~ 6,]03 G]W

Resirictetl for capital projects entl o~M1er
agreements 37 8 1.323 1 ]fib

UnresVicletl _. (t,pp6) 15$26 2,044 16,564

To~el net assets 5 1969) 15,534 t0,W0 24,635
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City of San Jos€

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, antl Changes in Funtl Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

for the Year Ended June 30, 2072
($000's)

Stores, Vehicle
Public Works Employee Maintenance

Pmg~ams SUOPOtl 6ene0~s antl Operations
(FUntl 150) (FUntls 155-0fii~ (FUntls 551-55J) Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges b~services 5 8,827 84,350 19,242 113,223

OPERATING E%PENSES
Opeations and maintenance 11286 ]8,386 15.938 ID5812
~eprecialion antl emotlizetlon - - 3,552 3552
Olhe~expense - - 354 354

Total operatln9 expenses 11,206 ]8,386 19,844 ID9,518
Operating income doss) (1859) 5,868 (802) 1]05

NONOPEIiATING REVENUE$(EXPENSES~
InvesMent Income 122 103 8 231

Income Qosa)before Vansfera (1,53]) 6,069 (596) 3936

Trznsters In - 9 102 itf
Transfers om Std ry12) (585) __ 820

Changes in net assets ~1 fi5~) 5,968 (1,089) 3.227

Net assets- beglnMng 6B1 9,568 11,159 21,408
Nel asses-ending g (969) 15,534 10,070 24.695
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Funtls
For [he Year Entletl June 50, 2012

($000's)

Sbra; VeM1ide
Public Works Employee Maintenance

Gmgrams Support Benefis entl Opemtlons
(FUntl iSW (FUntls i55-18p ~FUntls 551~55J1 ToWi

CASH FLOWS F0.OM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

CasM1 receivetl ~mm lnfertuntl services pmvitle0 $ 9,665 85,239 16.803 to ]01
CasM1 payment to supP~ie~of Bootle antl services (141J) p198]) (8.100 (8],500)
CasM1 paymenNO employees for services (10,942) p,263) (],430) (19135)

Net cas~pmvidetl by ~osetl ln)operaling activities (2680) 5.989 1,673 a,W2

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
i1NFNCING ACTIVITIES
Tanslert~om o~M1e~Nn05 - 9 iW 111
Tanner to o~M1er NnUS (113) ry12) (595) (820)

Net casM1 used N noncapllal financing

aGivlNes (113) ry0J) X093) p091

CASH FLOWS FPOM GRVITAL AND
REIATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HcgWSi~ion antl consVm~ion o~cepilal asseh - (1$10) (1,510)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Inleres~receiveJ 122 103 6 231

Ne~cM1ange in os0 antl casM1 equNalen~s (2,681) 5,989 X324) 2,980

CasM1 antl cas~equivalenis~0agimm~g 4683 9,5]4 3,]99 18.035
CasF antl cash equivalon~s- entling S 24W 15,563 3Y56 21,019

Reconcilletion of operating Income(loss b
net casM1 OrovWetl by (usetl in) opera[Ing
actitltlea:

Operating income (bss) 5 (1859) 59fi6 (602) 3,)05
Atl)us~menls to reconcile Ope~e~in9

me noss~ m nee ~sn p~.~eea oy
(uutl in) opeating egivities'.

Deprecia(ion antl amortization ~ - 3.552 3,552
Decrease (inc se~in

Accounts ~ecervable 40 885 ] 932
Inventories - (G62) ~a62)

increase ~aecrease~ m.
Fccounls payable antl ammetl llebllilles (807) (BYS) (391) (1843)
Accmatl vaca~lon. sick leave
aM wmpensatory time (pfi0) (17) (i91) (912)

roiaiaaus~me~h ~i osi~ z~ zz~s izs~
Net cash O~o~~tled by (used in) operating activities § (26901 5 989 1,8)3 4 9]2
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of Pension Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2012

($000's)

ASSETS
Inveslmenls et talrva~ue:

Investments, exclutling sewrilles
ienaing collateral g

Sewrilies lentling cash collateral investment pool
Receivables (net of allowance

fob wrollegibles~:
Accmed invesMent Ncome
Employee con~nbutions
Employer conVibulions

Brokers entl others

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Dua io brokers

Secutlfles lentling collateral, due to borrowers
Other liabilities

Total liabilifies

NET HSSETS MELD IN TRUST FUND FOR:
Employees' pension benefits
Employees' postemploymen~ heallhw~e benefl~s

Fetlera~ea

Cary Employees' Police antl FVe
Re~itemen~5ystem Plan

{Funds 144,130 and id01 ~FUntls 1~5 antl 1417 _ Total

1,]8],412 X604,939 4,492,351
- 239,39fi 239,396

.3,29] 9,fi11 12,908
1,963 6fi0 2.623
88] 2,8]6 3,563

1,]28 4,275 6,003

1 ]95,08] 2,91,]5] 4,696,844

4.384 14,489 18,873

- 241,8]5 2x1.895
J.656 3,951 ),60]

8,040 260,315 268,355

1649249 2.5]8.464 0.227.]13

13],]98 fi2,W8 200,]]fi

Net assets heitl in trust for pension antl
postemploymenl M1eaflM1Cate benefits $ 1,98J,04P 2601602 4,428489
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of Changes in Pension Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Entled June 30, 2072

~$000's)

Feaera~ea
Cily Employees' Police antl Fire

Retirement 5yslem Plan
(FUntls 1241~d antl 100 (FUntl5135 antl 141) To(al

AOOITIONS

Investment income'

Inleresl $ 29,05] 44211 ]3,268
~ividentls 10488 30,121 9a.609
NeVemai income 559 6,051 - 6,G10
Net depreciation in fair valve
of plan imeSMen~s (106 fi6fi) (111,359) (218,25)

Investment expenses (>,820) (10,388) (1].988)
Sewriliea Ientlin8 activities:

Securities lending inwma 95 3,010 3,109
SecuMies lending reEates and expenses 4a (018) p]4)

ConMbWions:
Employer 112,918 142,214 265,13
Employees 25.550 30,819 58389

Total atltll~ions 69,423 13],88] 202,310

DEOIICTIONS
General antl adminishalive 35]4 3,643 ]21P
HealO insurance premiums 33,0]7 28,4]9 61,55fi
Refund of mnVibutions 2,195 1,926 0,121
Re(rement and other benef~s:
beam benefits 8601 ],d80 16,081
Retiremen~benef~s 126,001 142,314 268,315

Total detlutlions 173,448 185,842 357,290

Change In ne[assels (109,025) (05,955) (154,980)

Na[ assets M1eltl in Uusl for pension antl
poscemploymenc M1ealt~wre benefits

Beginning of yee~ 1896,0]2 2.68],39] 4583469

Entl of year S 1,78),04] 2,641,442 9.428488
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PSS ETS

InvB6lmen~e a~lelr value:
Inves Menls, extl Ytling seta nLes

IB ntling collalaal
Recervafiles (ne~ol allowanu
b~uncolleplblei~:

Ammetl inves~menl lnmme
Employee wnlnbWlons
Employer wnVibulions
Brokers an0 ol~ers

Tolel asses

City o(San Jose
Combining Statement of Definetl Benefit

antl Postemployment Healthcare Pian Net Assets
Federated City Employees' Retirement System

June 30, 2012
~8000's)

Fetlen~etl Retirement Fetletaletl Lostal Living (FUntl t00~antl
~FUnE ll<~ _ IRS COEe Se<tlon iiS Trust ffuntl iR01

~PIIneE 9C0¢f~ IRS COtlC Section
OeMetl Beno61 Poslamploymenl iolal Pension Plan 115 Tms~ Grena
Pentlon Plan H¢dpM1tare Pldn __F Yntl 130 FunO WO Funtl 40 _iolal Toldl

$ 1200]60 115,910 1,324618 901,22] 21507 463 ]3a t]B),412

2,304 221 2535 P2 - ]]Z J.3W
L60~ 309 lBb 59 59 1,963

- 369 318 68] fi0]
1.218 11] 1,33] 095 ~ 395 ii2fl

t 213800 1t65fi0 1,J30,aC0 <C2.022 41,825 C6g64] 1]95.00]

LIABILITIES

Due to broka2 3,W] 299 3.35] 1,@6 1 102] i]Bi
Olherliabilities 3.015 P99 3.309 309 3 ]52 3,858

To~xl llabllllies G.0]0 583 8,681 10]5 d 13]9 0000

NET ASSETS XELO IN TFUST FOR:
EmO~oyee5'pension MneOd 1,2W.003 ~ 120].802 <014i] - 091,44] 1,W9.349
Employees' Wslemploymenl haallM1wre

ben¢!tl5 - 115,9]] 115,9]] 21821 21821 10I,iBB

N el as Se is heltl in ~lu911ol pen antl
poslamplaymenl M1eaMwre benefits S 120]002 115,9]] 1]23.1]9 49190 21821 <6]2fi9 1]8].047
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of ~efinetl Benetit antl Postemployment HealtM1Care

Changes in Plan Net Assets
Fetle~atetl City Employees' Re~iremant System

Fot tM1e Year Entletl June 30, 2012
(5000's~

FeJera~eE Re~irommt Fetlen\etl LaSI OI LIVIng ~Fpntl iCO~entl
(WnO llq IftS COCe 5ec0on X15 Trus~IFUnE 13q

~ellne0 Benell IR$ COtle $eciion
peGnetl Benefit Postemploymenl Total Genaion Plsn 115 TVS1 G~an4
Pension Plan HeapM1wle Plan Fun413d puntl 100 Funtl lPq iolal TMeI

ADDITIONS
Inwslmenl in me.

In~er¢51 5 24199 4032 8231 B,8$] (1) 6,826 3905]
DiVitl[OtlY fi,993 ]02 ],685 236] p36 2803 ID,688
Nel rental income ]B9 J9 q28 191 ~ 141 559
Ne14e0reaallon In la rvalue
d pldO ipvASirtien~s (]p Of 3) (]ig45f (Bti45B) ($p,8d2~ (788) (36,308) QO6i6fifi)

Inve9me~l e%pB09B3 (5]69) (90~ (5,]9]) (tiB08) (1]) (182J) (]i820J
SecunOes lentling atliNlies:

Sewnlies lentling lnwme 66 I 73 2Z - 22 95
Secunlias lentlin9 rebates
entl ¢NpCn909 J1 3 3d t0 ~ 1p 4I

COn~nbulianm
ETpIOy¢t fi9.49fi 4,09d ]]$60 I],586 21,]90 39,3]6 fl3~816
El~lployaes ].99C to 895 24989 2,561 ~ $551 25$50

Total atldilions 85,8]8 13.84] ~9 ]35 2,856 21,894 34698 fid IPJ

oEOUClioxs
G¢0¢ldl dntl dtl101nlsbe~lve 2456 2d] 2 ]d3 850 21 8]I 3,5]d
Heal~M1 inmrancepremlums 330]7 33,0]7 - - 30,0]]
RelunOOl wn~tlW~ions 1,918 - 1916 2]] - 2]'/ P,195
Reti~¢m¢M entl OlM1er benefls'

~Bd~h Oenefds 5,100 ~ 5,f 00 3,621 - OAP 8,601
ft¢IleemPnl Oenaf~s 1pp,00I - 100.00I 25,994 - 25994 46,001

Thal tletludipns ID9,561 ]3]24 1g3,885 J0.5<P 21 30560 1]3.4<8

G~angE fn nB~B55¢IS (83i0B3~ (18 07]) (103,160) (2],688) 21,821 (5,865) (10902fi)

Nel acse~s M1eld in tmst for pension antl
pos~emgoym¢nl ryeallM1Care tam(i~s

Beginning o~year 1]81,085 f3565< 1616,939 L69,133 - 469,133 1.896,0]3

Ena of yeah S 120],0@ 115,8]9 ~,321I99 14149] 2f 641 4fi3,p6B t]W.04]
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City of San Jose
Combining Statement of

Definetl Benefit antl Postemploymenl Healthcare Plan Net Assets
Police and Fire Department Retirement Plan

June J0, 2012
(EOOU's~

ASSEiS
Inwalmenla al /air value:

m~e:~mem:, e.~meme ~e=~nre:
lenaing colleleal $

Sewn~iB6lPntlinB ash wllalBrdl invaslmen~ pool
Receivables (net of allowance
Ia~unwllacNbles~'.

Accmetl lnveslmen~iwame
Empby¢¢contrlh Wlans
Emplayarconlribulions
Brokers ana o0ers

iotdl a55e15

LIABILITIES
ore m e,oxe«
Securilles leiMing collateral, EUe ~o ~ortowers

OlM1efliadllliea

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR:
Employee5'p¢nsion benella

Employees'po5lamploymaM heallM1Cam banef~e

Ne~asse4 M1eltl in WS~lorpension antl
pos~empbymenl ~eal~~care beneNs

voice ana rva
Pollce Intl Fire Retirement Cosla(tivinp

~Pontl U51 _~FUntl sail
~elin~BCn¢ft PoSlempl0yment Total DelineE Bene(i~
Pension Pldn HealNCa~e Plan Fun0105 Pen5lon Plan Tulel

17002]2 G154] 1]]0.]79 8]4.160 2.660,939
iSV,])l 5.665 160,30> ]9009 238396

fi 350 233 6,583 7.020 9,611
2]3 283 538 124 660

1.921 86fi 19]fi 1,100 2,8]6
J,03G f2fi 3580 ]15 <,2]5

18]iA32 fi9,180 1,9<~6P1 958,106 2901,]57

10.OW 5]0 1046] 0022 1Q989
15G 32< 5.724 i8P,048 ]9,82] 841015
].185 11] 3302 699 5,951

169.8 6 6211 1]5,81] 84,490 280.315

1.IM.B25 1,]04,826 B]3.838 290.486
62.9)8 62,9]0 - 639]8

$ 1,]OJ 826 62,8)8 1)8],800 D]0,fi]0 2 fiG1092
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City o(San Jose
Combining Statement of ~eflnetl Benefit antl Poslemployment Healthcare

Changes in Plan Net Assets
Police antl Fire Department Retirement Plan

For [he Year Entletl June 90, 2012
(8000's)

P011m antl Fim
Polireantl Fir¢RaOremen~ Coslol Llving

~FVntl 1351 IFwtl1611
~elinetl BenPfi~ Poslemploymen~ Ta~TI Oeline08enefrl

_ Pension Plan Heal~~care Plan Fun0135 Pension Plan Total
AUDITIONS
ImesMenl Incom9

Interest 5 28,]50 t0A 29]6] 16,604 qq 211
~IVitlentls 22.165 )BD 228A8 fl.113 34,121
Ne~len~al income 3,915 138 Cp53 f 998 E,051
Net depRCialion in fair value

o(plan lnves~menls p2,150) (2,662) p4,]02) (36,65]) (111,059)
veaMen~ex0enses (6,895) (2C0~ p,128) (3,23I~ (t00fiG)

Seourhles lendng aclPo➢les.
Secueif sMnEing Income 1999 ]1 2,0]0 844 3,019
Seweilies k~MinB rebates antl expenses (531 (i9) (550j (268) (818)

Coninbmions:

Employed X0,980 21205 92, 85 SO,OA9 1@,214
Em~VOyces 1'i,352 11,4]4 2d B26 5,893 30,819

Total etltlltions 61$]5 01,894 9J,CC9 49,438 13].BW

~E~UCTIONS
General anE atlminiSVafve 2.JSd 8] 2501 1,102 3.643
HcallM1 lnsureze premiums - 2ep99 284]8 29,a]9
fleNntl of mnbibulions 1,590 - 1,54U 386 1926
Retirement antl o0e~benafik.

~ea~M1 penefls d355 - 4,J55 3,125 ],480
R¢lremenl Cenefla 110,648 - N0,648 3t8fi6 143.314

Total tletluclions 118,997 28566 tq~,583 36.2]9 183.BE2

CM1ange in re~assels (SI422) 3,308 (54,114) 8,159 (45955)

Nel assets M1eld in tmsl for p¢n9 antl

poslemployment ~ealN~'are benefls
Beglnni~g olyear 1762298 59,6)0 1,821918 865,A]9 2,68)39]

Entl otyear 5 1)09,BP5 62970 1,]61,800 813638 26414J2
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City o/San Jose
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Private Purpose Trust Funtls
June 30,2072

($000's)

Successor Agency
fo the

James Lick Retlevelopment
Private Purpose Agency
Tm5[FVntl Tmst FUntl To[a~

ASSETS
Curren assets:

Equity in pooletl cash and investments M1eltl
in Clry Treasury g spy spa

Wsh antl inves~men~s - 6985 fi,965
Receivables (nel of allowance

for uncollectiLles):
Dueimm the Clty MSan JosE - 850 850
Other 519 519

ResVictetl wsM1 antl invesGnents 153,999 153.988
Total current assets 104 162.333 162,434

Noncu~renl asse6s-.
Ntivances to fhe City of San Jost - 280 280
Loans receNable. net - 31.275 31,2]5
Deposits - 155 155
Dekrcetl cM1a~ges, nel - 30,940 - 3D 940
Properly held fortesale - 2z q~q py qyd
Capital assets:

Nontlep~ecia~le - 35,581 35,581
Depreciable, nel 92,895 92,895

Total noncurrent assets 213,600 213,600
Total asseh

_
104 3T5,933 376,03]

LIABILITIES
Curren~liabililies
Awmetl inleresi payable - 41,683 d1,682
Pass-1MmugM1 payable to the County of Sanla Clara - 15.)19 15,]19
Uneemetl revenue - 2,340 2,340
OtM1er liabilities 2,320 2320

Total wrren(liabillies - R2,061 62,061

LonB-~~m liabilities'.
Due. wi~M1in one year - 256.149 258,149
oue in more than ane year 2,119,105 2,i t9,to5

Total noncurcenl liabilities 2,37],254 2,3]].254
Total llabilitles 2,439.315 2,439,315

NET ASSETS
Heltl in trust for'.
Retlevelopmeni dissolufon antl other purposes 104 (2063,382) (2,0632]8

Total ne~assefs $ 106 (2,063,382) (2,063 2]87
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City of San Josh
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Private Purpose Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

($OOU's)

Successor Agency
to lM1e

James Lick Retlevelopmen~
Ptiva~e Purpose gg¢ncy

Truss FUntl Trusl Fantl Total
ADDITIONS
Redevelopment propetly tax revenues $ - 82,23] 8223] .
Investment earnings 5 150 155
Rend - 322 322
Other 5]8 578

Total atltli[ions 5 83261 83,292

OE~UCTIONS
General antl atlminisValive - 96] 9fi9
Project expenses - 816 816
Pass iM1mugM1 amounh to the County of Santa Clara - $~]] 8,1]]
Loss on fair value of propaM hem for resale - yip» y~at]
Depreciation ~ 2,040 2,060
Interest on debt 45,401 45.401

Total tletluclions _ 84.818 84,818

EAreortlinaryloss tmm dissolution o(the
Redevelopment Agency (2 O81 851) (2,061,851)

CM1ange in net asses 5 (2,063,382) ($063,3]])

NEf ASSETS HELD IN TRUST

Beginnln8 of Year 99 - 99

Entl o~year S 104 (2,463,382) (2,063,2]8)
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City of San Jose
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2072

~$000's)

Beginning Entling
Arena Capital Reserve (FUntl d59) Balance Atltli[ions Deletions Balance

ASSETS
Equity in pooletl cash and investments heltl

in Ciry Treasury
Receivables(net of allowances

for uncollectibles):
Accmetl interest

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

3,226 1,073 2,603 1,696

2 2 2 2

3,228 1,075 2,605 1,698

3,228 5~6 2,038 1698

$ 3,228 506 2,038 1,698
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Statistical Section

This section of the comprehensive annual financial report for the City of San Jose presents
detailed information as a context to the information presented in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information and to provide a framework to assess the
economic condition affecting the City of San Jose.

GASB issued Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Repor(ing; Tire Statistical Section — an
amendment of NCGA Statement 1. This statement amends the poAions of NCGA Sta~emen~ 1,
Govemmenlai Accounting and Financial Repotling Principles, that guide the preparation of the
sta[is~iwl section. The statistical section presents detailed information, typically in ten-year
trends, Iha~ assists users in utilizing the basic financial sta~emenls, notes to basic fnancial
statements, and required supplementary information to assess the economic condition affecting a
government During fiscal year 2005-2006, the City implemented phis statement and added new
information that fnancial statement users have identified as impodant antl elimina~etl certain
schedules previously required.

The dissoN[ion of the farmer Agency on February 1, 2012 had a significant impact on the
presentation of funds in the City's governmental fund financial slalemen~s and governmen4witle
fnancial statements which affects the statistical data. Most notably, the transfer of $2.313 billion
in long-term debt of the former Agency to SARA affected the ratios of outstanding tlebt for the
governmental activities in Schedules IX antl X. Mare information on the dissolution of the former
Agency is provided in the MDBA section and Notes to Basic Financial SlatemeNS.

Contents SeNedule

Financial Trends I - IV

These schedules present trend information to help the reader untlersfantl the
Citys financial performance and condition.

Revenue Capacity V -VIII

These schedules contain information regartling property tax, the Citys most
signi(cant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity IX - XIII

These schedules present information regaNing the City's current levels of
outstanding debt and the City's abi/ity to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information XIV-XV
These schedules illustrate demor~raphic and economic indicators to provide a
context ion wtlerstanding and assessing fhc City's financial activities.

Operating Information XVI-XVIII

These schetlules contain service and inirasbucfure data re/afed to services
the City provides and the activities if pedoims.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual fnancial reports for the relevant year.
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